From: Neff, Brandon D

To: Dale Lamborn

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL]

Date: Wednesday, December 20, 2023 12:02:20 PM
Attachments: GrazingSchedule 4130-001.pdf

Hello Dale,

To answer your questions:

We have not sent out this years invoice yet. Our range clerk that was to work on it has not
been able to get it out yet. | will go ahead and finish it today, so we can get it out the door by
tomorrow, | will have it mailed to Bart and Patti's PO Box in Randolph.

Yes, we will need a grazing schedule filled out for Dan's sheep with dates and numbers. I'll
attach a Crazing Schedule form to this email in case you don't have one.

Yes we are still on to meet at the Randolph Field Station on February 22, 2024 @ 10am.

Merry Christmas to you too!

Brandon Neff | Rangeland Management Specialist
West Desert District BLM | Salt Lake Field Office
491 North John Glenn Rd. | Salt Lake City, UT 84116
W: (385) 232-6289 | Email: bneff@blm.gov

From: Dale Lamborn <dlamborn@richschool.org>
Sent: Tuesday, December 19, 2023 5:47 PM

To: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL]

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on
links, opening attachments, or responding.

Brandon:

A couple of questions for you:

1. Have you sent the invoice for us to pay-- | may have missed it, but Patti doesn't
remember getting it and neither do I .
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Form 4130-1
(January 2018)

UNITED STATES

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT

GRAZING SCHEDULE
GRAZING APPLICATION

Name (last, first, middle initial)

Address (include street, city, State, and zip code)

Save Print Clear
FORM APPROVED
OMB NO. 1004-0041
Expires: 12/31/2020
FOR BLM USE ONLY

State

Office

Authorization No.

Schedule No.

Billing Code

Special Bill Code

I hereby apply for the following grazing use on the public lands and/or other lands administered by the Bureau of Land Management (BLM).

(D 2) 3) 4) (5) (6) 7 (8)
ALLOTMENT PASTURE LIVESTOCK PERIOD % TYPE
PL AUM’S
USE
NAME NO. NO. NUMBER KIND BEGIN END USE

Show your recorded brands, earmarks, and wattles

Show reason for nonuse, if requested: D conservation and protection of the public lands; |:| annual fluctuation of livestock operations; D financial
or other reasons beyond control of the operator; or D livestock disease or quarantine.

Signature

Printed Name

Date

Reason for nonuse: [_] Approved |:| Disapproved (Decision Required)

Signature of BLM

Date

Title U.S.C. Section 1001, makes it a crime for any person knowingly and willfully to make to any department or agency of the United States any false,

fictitious, or fraudulent statement or presentations as to any matter within its jurisdiction.

%PL Use: Percent forage from public land use.

Type Use: Categories with specific rules that govern AUM and grazing fee calculation and input on grazing authorizations and bills (A=Active Use,
D=Custodial Use, N=Nonuse, L=Ephemeral Use, T=Trailing Use).

(See terms and conditions on page 2)

(Form 4130-1)






TERMS AND CONDITIONS
(See 43 CFR 4100)

1. Grazing permit or lease terms and conditions and the fees charged for grazing use are established in accordance with all the provisions of the
grazing regulations now or hereafter approved by the Secretary of the Interior.

2. They are subject to cancellation, in whole or in part, at any time because of:
a. Noncompliance by the permittee/lessee with rules and regulations.
b. Loss of control by the permittee/lessee of all or a part of the property upon which it is based.
c. A transfer of grazing preference by the permittee/lessee to another party.
d. A decrease in the lands administered by the Bureau of Land Management within the allotment(s) described.
e. Repeated willful unauthorized grazing use.

3. They are subject to the terms and conditions of allotment management plans if such plans have been prepared. Allotment management plans must
be incorporated in permits or leases when completed.

Those holding permits or leases must own or control and be responsible for the management of livestock authorized to graze.
The BLM may require counting and/or additional or special marking or tagging of the livestock authorized to graze.

The permittee’s/lessee’s grazing case file is available for public inspection as required by the Freedom of Information Act.

N S v A

Grazing permits or leases are subject to the nondiscrimination clauses set forth in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1964, as amended. A
copy of this order may be obtained from the BLM.

8. Livestock grazing use that is different from that authorized by a permit or lease must be applied for prior to the grazing period and must be filed
with and approved by the BLM before grazing use can be made.

9. Billing notices are issued which specify fees due. Billing notices, when paid, become a part of the grazing permit or lease. Grazing use cannot be
authorized during any period of delinquency in the payment of amounts due, including settlement for unauthorized use.

10. The holder of this authorization must notify the authorized officer immediately upon the discovery of human remains, funerary objects, sacred
objects, or objects of cultural patrimony (cultural items), stop the activity in the area of the discovery and make a reasonable effort to protect the
remains and/or cultural items.

11. Grazing fee payments are due on the date specified on the billing notice and must be paid in full within 15 days of the due date, except as otherwise
provided in the grazing permit or lease. If payment is not made within that time frame, a late fee (the greater of $25 or 10 percent of the amount
owed but not more than $250) will be assessed.

12. Members of Congress may not enter into a grazing permit or lease. 41 U.S.C. 6306 (2014). Further, no officer, agent, or employee of the
Department of the Interior, other than members of Advisory committees appointed in accordance with the Federal Advisory Committee Act (5
U.S.C. App. 1) and Sections 309 of the Federal Land Policy and Management Act of 1976 (42 U.S.C. 1701 et. seq.) shall be admitted to any share
or part in a permit or lease for grazing or derive any benefit to arise from a permit or lease for grazing.

NOTICES

The Privacy Act and 43 CFR 2.48(d) require that you be furnished with the following information in connection with information requested by this
form.

AUTHORITY: 43 U.S.C. 315b, 315m, 1181d, 1732, 1752, and 1903, and 43 CFR part 4100.

PRINCIPAL PURPOSE: The BLM will use the information you provide to process your application to graze livestock or request a change in grazing
use on the public lands.

ROUTINE USES: In accordance with the Bureau of Land Management’s (BLM) System of Records Notice published in the Federal Register on
December 29, 2010 [Bureau of Land Management’s Range Management System—Interior, LLM—2; Notice To Amend an Existing System of Records;
Privacy Act of 1974; as Amended], names and addresses provided by the applicant on this form will be publically available in reports on the BLM
public website.

EFFECT OF NOT PROVIDING INFORMATION: Disclosure of the information is required to obtain or retain a benefit. Failure to submit all of the
requested information or to complete this form may result in delay or the rejection and/or denial of your application.

The Paperwork Reduction Act requires that you be furnished with the following information in connection with the information requested by this
form: BLM collects this information to authorize livestock grazing on public lands. Response to this request is required in order to obtain or retain
a benefit. You do not have to respond to this or any other Federal agency-sponsored information collection unless it displays a currently valid OMB
control number.

BURDEN HOURS STATEMENT: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including the time for
reviewing instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding the burden estimate or
any other aspect of this form to: U.S. Department of the Interior, Bureau of Land Management (1004-0041), Bureau Information Collection Clearance
Officer (WO-630), 1849 C Street, N.W., Room 2134LM, Washington, D.C. 20240.

(Form 4130-1, page 2)
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2. Do we need to do any paperwork to make us legal for Dan's sheep for the winter
usage? We have done the one-year submittal in the past.

We are still planning to meet on February 22 with Mike and the others. Is that still on for you?

Merry Christmas.



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

To: Patricia Argyle

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Actual use reports

Date: Thursday, November 9, 2023 11:55:10 AM
Hi Patti,

Don't panic! Everything looks good that | can tell, and | know you are tasked with doing a lot of
interpretation and compiling of all the move dates that get turned in to you. | know that you
do your best in filling out the Actual Use on Three Creeks. | appreciate you getting this to me. |
will calculate the use and get a bill sent out in the coming days.

Thank You

Brandon Neff | Rangeland Management Specialist
West Desert District BLM | Salt Lake Field Office
491 North John Glenn Rd. | Salt Lake City, UT 84116
W: (385) 232-6289 | Email: bneff@blm.gov

From: Patricia Argyle <bartnpattiargyle@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, November 8, 2023 2:43 PM

To: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Actual use reports

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on
links, opening attachments, or responding.

Brandon here they are the forms. I've had a lot of permittees give me lots of numbers and
dates. I would have to write a whole book to do each separate. So I've done the best I could.
Of course you know they open the gates on the days they're supposed to and it takes a few
days to get it cleaned up. | just panic because | want it right. let me know if there's something
i should do different.

thanks Patti


mailto:bneff@blm.gov
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
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From: Williams, Nancy N

To: Neff, Brandon D

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] All pipe sucker rod fence
Date: Tuesday, June 20, 2023 3:04:12 PM
Cool....thanks!

Nancy N Williams

Wildlife Biologist

Salt Lake Field Office
Bureau of Land Management
491 North John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116
(801) 320-8357

From: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, June 20, 2023 3:00 PM

To: Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] All pipe sucker rod fence

Yes, | believe so. See Chancey's email below, he says:
Brandon,

I've attached some pictures of the sucker rod fence we've done. This is a location
with lots of pressure, in a corral - so we would do your fence different, we'd have the
sucker rod spaced with the wildlife friendly spacing and it'd be 42 inches tall.

To do a top rail at 42" and then three sucker rod spaced below that would be about
$21.92 per foot. That's for labor and all material.

Brandon Neff | Rangeland Management Specialist
West Desert District BLM | Salt Lake Field Office
491 North John Glenn Rd. | Salt Lake City, UT 84116
W: (385) 232-6289 | Email: bneff@blm.gov

From: Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, June 20, 2023 2:56 PM

To: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] All pipe sucker rod fence

Could we cut down on the number of "rails" and change the spacing? It doesn't look too


mailto:nwilliam@blm.gov
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pronghorn friendly.

Nancy N Williams

Wildlife Biologist

Salt Lake Field Office
Bureau of Land Management
491 North John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116
(801) 320-8357

From: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, June 20, 2023 10:45 AM

To: Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>; Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>
Cc: Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Puttere, Jennifer M <jputtere@blm.gov>
Subject: Fw: [EXTERNAL] All pipe sucker rod fence

Hello,

| am forwarding this email from Chancey Hoffman to you two, it explains what sucker and rod
fence is and the pricing on it. This is the type of fence | would like to propose we replace the
old exclosure fencing with in RC. Chancey told me we could modify the fencing/spacing in
order to meet our needs in accordance with wildlife. He said this fence is nearly indestructible
and in fact the Wyoming BLM has been using it on some of their stuff lately. Also, it is cheaper
than | had originally figured for. Attached are pictures of the fencing from Chancey.

Thank You

Brandon Neff | Rangeland Management Specialist
West Desert District BLM | Salt Lake Field Office
491 North John Glenn Rd. | Salt Lake City, UT 84116
W: (385) 232-6289 | Email: bneff@blm.gov

From: bandcfencing.utah@yahoo.com <bandcfencing.utah@yahoo.com>
Sent: Monday, June 19, 2023 9:13 PM

To: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] All pipe sucker rod fence

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

Chancey



From: Chante Lundskog
Jencso, Emily D

Cc; Rose, Marcus F; Mellon, Cassie D

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Cattails LC/BT sites Grouse Creek
Date: Friday, June 9, 2023 11:13:38 AM

I didn't attach the pictures.

On Fri, Jun 9, 2023 at 11:00 AM Chante Lundskog <clundskog@utah.gov> wrote:
Lower Rocky Pass, Keg Spring, Cluster Spring, and I believe Red Knolls all have a cattail problem (see attached pictures from this week, minus Red Knolls).

I know Cassie and I chatted about this in the email thread, but just throwing it out there for everyone.

In some cases (e.g., Keg Spring & Lower Rocky Pass) a burn would be very beneficial; large portions of these ponds are primarily dead cattails that need to be removed. While in other cases,
spraying may be the most viable option I just need to do some research to ensure that it will not harm the amphibians present (I believe Chance has done some research thus far and there aren't
any dire consequences to fish health).

Thanks for the help everyone, and see you in a few weeks.

On Fri, Jun 9, 2023 at 10:23 AM Chante Lundskog <clundskog@utah.gov> wrote:
The 20th works for me as well. Thanks.

On Thu, Jun 8, 2023 at 3:35 PM Jencso, Emily D <gjencso@blm.gov> wrote:
T would like to be back NLT 5.

Emily Jencso

SLFO Wildlife Biologist CWB®
Cell: (801) 599-0954

Office: 801-320-8300

Salt Lake Field Office BLM

491 N John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116

From: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>


mailto:clundskog@utah.gov
mailto:ejencso@blm.gov
mailto:mrose@blm.gov
mailto:cmellon@blm.gov
mailto:clundskog@utah.gov
mailto:clundskog@utah.gov
mailto:ejencso@blm.gov
mailto:mrose@blm.gov

Sent: Thursday, June 8, 2023 2:58 PM

To: Jencso, Emily D <gjencso@blm.gov>; Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>
Cc: Chante Lundskog <clundskog@utah.gov>

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Cattails LC/BT sites Grouse Creek

The 20™" works for me as long as we can make it back to the office by around 6:00.

Thanks,

Marcus Rose

Rangeland Management Specialist
Bureau of Land Management

Salt Lake Field Office

Office: 801-320-8352

Cell: 385-600-1049

From: Jencso, Emily D <gjencso@blm.gov>

Sent: Thursday, June 8, 2023 2:44 PM

To: Mellon, Cassie D <¢mellon@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Ce: Chante Lundskog <clundskog(@utah.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Cattails LC/BT sites Grouse Creek

The 20" works for me. Marcus and Chante?

Emily Jencso

SLFO Wildlife Biologist CWB®
Cell: (801) 599-0954

Office: 801-320-8300

Salt Lake Field Office BLM

491 N John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116

From: Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>
Sent: Thursday, June 8, 2023 8:41 AM
To: Jencso, Emily D <gjencso(@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Ce: Chante Lundskog <clundskog(@utah.gov>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Cattails LC/BT sites Grouse Creek

I could go out sometime the week of June 20, the 28th or 29th,

Cassie Mellon

Fisheries and Riparian Program Lead
BLM Utah

801-539-4073 (office)

385-443-1621 (cell)
cmellon@blm.gov

From: Jencso, Emily D <gjencso@blm.gov>

Sent: Thursday, June 8, 2023 8:29 AM

To: Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Cec: Chante Lundskog <clundskog@utah.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Cattails LC/BT sites Grouse Creek

Chante and Cassie
Let's schedule a site visit. I can start the NEPA this summer. Hopefully we could do it under a CX. A site visit would help me wrap my mind around the project.

Best,
Em

Emily Jencso
SLFO Wildlife Biologist CWB®
cell: (801) 599-0954

Office: 801-320-8300
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Salt Lake Field Office BLM

491 N John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116

From: Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, June 7, 2023 3:53 PM

To: Jencso, Emily D <gjencso wb]m g0v> Rose Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Cc: Chante Lundskog <cl

Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Cattails LC/BT sites Grouse Creek

Emily and Marcus, see the email between me and Chante below. Chante is the native aquatics biologist for UDWR northern region. She was asking me about options for dealing with some of the build-up of cattails
in some of the sites in west Box Elder (Keg allotment) where we have least chub and boreal toad populations. I shared some initial thoughts but wanted to connect you all since it’s a field office decision on what the
best option might be.

Chante, Emily is our wildlife biologist who covers the west half of the field office and Marus is the range specialist who covers west Box Elder.

I’m not sure how familiar either of you are with these sites, I’d be happy to go out there with you all to show you and look at some of these things together as well if that would be helpful.

Cassie Mellon

Fisheries and Riparian Program Lead
BLM Utah

801-539-4073 (office)

385-443-1621 (cell)

mellon@blm.gov

From: Chante Lundskog <clundskog@utah.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, June 7, 2023 3:38 PM

To: Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Cattails LC/BT sites Grouse Creek

That would be great if you could connect me with them. I am sure you already have a thousand times already, so sorry about that. I don't think we had our regular BLM meeting this past spring
like we usually do.

On Wed, Jun 7, 2023 at 3:35 PM Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov> wrote:
We would want to talk with the field office, but any of those actions would require NEPA and/or some coordination with the field office specialists

The spraying would be the easiest since that is covered under a programmatic weeds EA and would just be a coordination effort. Dredging I think we’ve done as a maintenance activity before so that also wouldn’t
be too difficult, the challenge there is coming up with funds for the equipment. A burn we would likely need to do a new NEPA process for so that would take more time to go through that process.

Did your office have a coordination meeting with the BLM Salt Lake Field office yet this year? It’s usually in the spring and would be one place where you could bring up those ideas and get some feedback from
them. If that already happened, I think the range specialist and wildlife bio would be good places to start. I can get you in touch with them if you’d like.

Cassie Mellon

Fisheries and Riparian Program Lead
BLM Utah

801-539-4073 (office)

385-443-1621 (cell)
cmellon@blm.gov

From: Chante Lundskog <clundskog@utah.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, June 7, 2023 3:27 PM

To: Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Cattails LC/BT sites Grouse Creek

I am wondering (if permitted through BLM) if it would be plausible to burn and spray at these sites perhaps once a year for the next couple of years to see if that would help deter some of the
cattail growth. I would need to do some more research about spraying obviously because we wouldn't want to harm any inhabitants of the ponds, but I think a burn would be a viable option
especially for Keg Springs since a lot of those cattails are dead and there appears to be a thin layer of new growth towards the center of the pond.

Also, if we timed when we did spray we may be able to prevent harm to any inhabitants in the event it is early spring/later summer.

On Wed, Jun 7, 2023 at 3:07 PM Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov> wrote:

I think with all of those sites there’s been periodic dredging — by hand at Cluster and w/ equipment at the others to remove some of the vegetation build up. That’s part of the challenge with these artificial and
small sites that don’t have any disturbance. We did do a prescribed burn out at Gandy Marsh which was pretty successful in re-establishing open water habitat. Cattails weren’t the main problem there so I don’t
know if fire would be as effective on cattails and it also would not be a one-time fix. I think Chance was considering some chemical treatment at Pilot Pond, but we didn’t try it and I don’t recall if that was
something he was considering only if the fish were being salvaged first.

Cassie Mellon
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Fisheries and Riparian Program Lead
BLM Utah

801-539-4073 (office)

385-443-1621 (cell)

cmellon@blm.gov

From: Chante Lundskog <c! @ >

Sent: Wednesday, June 7, 2023 2:40 PM

To: Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Cattails LC/BT sites Grouse Creek

| [This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening or ] |

Sorry for another email, but quick question - is there anything we can do about cattails? I am slightly concerned about our cattail encroachment at the LC/BT sites in the Grouse Creek area.

Keg Springs, Lower Rocky Pass, and Cluster Springs are looking quite overgrown (at least the worst I've ever seen these sites), and I am worried they may completely overrun these shallow
ponds.

Let me know your thoughts, and I can also send some pictures.

Chanté Lundskog
Native Aquatic Biologist

M: (385) 333-2560
E:

[ Utah Department of Natural Resources
Division of Wildiife Resources

wildlife.utah.gov

Chanté Lundskog
Native Aquatic Biologist

M: (385) 333-2560
E: clundskog@utah.gov

[ Utah Department of Natural Resources

Division of Wildlife Resources

wildlife.utah.gov

The content email is confidential and intended for th i f ) strictly forbidden to share any part of this message with any third party without the written conser e sender ed this m

Chanté Lundskog
Native Aquatic Biologist

M: (385) 333-2560
E: dundskog@utah.gov

[ Utah Department of Natural Resources

Division of Wildiife Resources

wildlife.utah.gov
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From: Mellon, Cassie D

To: Chante Lundskog; Rose, Marcus F

Cc: Jencso, Emily D

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Cattails LC/BT sites Grouse Creek
Date: Wednesday, June 14, 2023 3:07:05 PM

Sounds good. See you at Keg at 10.

Cassie Mellon

Fisheries and Riparian Program Lead
BLM Utah

801-539-4073 (office)
385-443-1621 (cell)

cmellon@blm.gov

From: Chante Lundskog <clundskog@utah.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, June 14, 2023 1:53 PM

To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Cc: Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>; Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Cattails LC/BT sites Grouse Creek

Let's meet at Keg Springs at 10 am? I think that gives everyone adequate time to get there
from where we will all be coming from.

On Wed, Jun 14, 2023 at 1:25 PM Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov> wrote:

That all sounds good to me!

Marcus Rose

Rangeland Management Specialist
Bureau of Land Management

Salt Lake Field Office

Office: 801-320-8352

Cell: 385-600-1049

From: Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, June 14, 2023 1:11 PM

To: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>; Chante Lundskog <clundskog@utah.gov>
Cc: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Cattails LC/BT sites Grouse Creek

I am happy to have 15 minutes more of sleep. Let’s do 6:45

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

Sent: Wednesday, June 14, 2023 1:05 PM

To: Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>; Chante Lundskog <clundskog@utah.gov>
Cc: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Cattails LC/BT sites Grouse Creek

Good call Cassie. I should be able to make 630 work. 645 would be better for me so I nurse
the lil dude before leaving the house. Would that be ok with folks? So meeting at the
intersection at 945. We could take your old truck Cassie, unless Nancy let's us borrow hers.

Emily Jencso

SLFO Wildlife Biologist CWB®
Cell: (801) 599-0954

Office: 801-320-8300

Salt Lake Field Office BLM
491 N John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116

From: Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, June 14, 2023 11:24 AM

To: Chante Lundskog <clundskog@utah.gov>; Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>
Cc: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Cattails LC/BT sites Grouse Creek

Just wanted to see when and where we should plan on meeting Tuesday. Emily, your calendar
invite has 6:30. Can | get a ride with you and Marcus from the field office? | can be there and
ready to go by then. Chante, I'm assuming it doesn’t make sense to carpool since you’re coming
from Ogden. | was thinking it might be easiest to meet at the HWY 30, Grouse Creek Road
intersection. If we do leave at 6:30 we would be there by 9:30.

Open to other suggestions, just putting something out there so we have a plan before the end of
the week since Monday is a holiday for us.
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Thanks

Cassie Mellon

Fisheries and Riparian Program Lead
BLM Utah

801-539-4073 (office)
385-443-1621 (cell)

cmellon@blm.gov

From: Chante Lundskog <clundskog@utah.gov>

Sent: Friday, June 9, 2023 11:01 AM

To: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>

Cc: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>; Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Cattails LC/BT sites Grouse Creek

Lower Rocky Pass, Keg Spring, Cluster Spring, and I believe Red Knolls all have a cattail
problem (see attached pictures from this week, minus Red Knolls).

I know Cassie and I chatted about this in the email thread, but just throwing it out there
for everyone.

In some cases (e.g., Keg Spring & Lower Rocky Pass) a burn would be very beneficial;
large portions of these ponds are primarily dead cattails that need to be removed. While
in other cases, spraying may be the most viable option I just need to do some research
to ensure that it will not harm the amphibians present (I believe Chance has done some
research thus far and there aren't any dire consequences to fish health).

Thanks for the help everyone, and see you in a few weeks.

On Fri, Jun 9, 2023 at 10:23 AM Chante Lundskog <clundskog@utah.gov> wrote:

The 20th works for me as well. Thanks.
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On Thu, Jun 8, 2023 at 3:35 PM Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov> wrote:

I would like to be back NLT 5.

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
To: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>; Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>

Cc: Chante Lundskog <clundskog@utah.gov>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Cattails LC/BT sites Grouse Creek

The 20t works for me as long as we can make it back to the office by around 6:00.

Thanks,

Marcus Rose

Rangeland Management Specialist
Bureau of Land Management

Salt Lake Field Office

Office: 801-320-8352

Cell: 385-600-1049
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From: Jencso, Emily D <gjen Im.gov>

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

The 20™ works for me. Marcus and Chante?

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

To: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Cc: Chante Lundskog <clundskog@utah.gov>

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Cattails LC/BT sites Grouse Creek

I could go out sometime the week of June 20, the 28 or 29th,

Cassie Mellon

Fisheries and Riparian Program Lead
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BLM Utah
801-539-4073 (office)

385-443-1621 (cell)

cmellon@blm.gov

From: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>

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

Let's schedule a site visit. I can start the NEPA this summer. Hopefully we could do it
under a CX. A site visit would help me wrap my mind around the project.

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

Emily and Marcus, see the email between me and Chante below. Chante is the native
aquatics biologist for UDWR northern region. She was asking me about options for
dealing with some of the build-up of cattails in some of the sites in west Box Elder
(Keg allotment) where we have least chub and boreal toad populations. I shared some
initial thoughts but wanted to connect you all since it’s a field office decision on what
the best option might be.

Chante, Emily is our wildlife biologist who covers the west half of the field office and
Marus is the range specialist who covers west Box Elder.

I’m not sure how familiar either of you are with these sites, I’d be happy to go out there

with you all to show you and look at some of these things together as well if that would
be helpful.

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

That would be great if you could connect me with them. I am sure you already
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have a thousand times already, so sorry about that. I don't think we had our
regular BLM meeting this past spring like we usually do.

On Wed, Jun 7, 2023 at 3:35 PM Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov> wrote:

We would want to talk with the field office, but any of those actions would require
NEPA and/or some coordination with the field office specialists

The spraying would be the easiest since that is covered under a programmatic weeds
EA and would just be a coordination effort. Dredging I think we’ve done as a
maintenance activity before so that also wouldn’t be too difficult, the challenge there
is coming up with funds for the equipment. A burn we would likely need to do a new
NEPA process for so that would take more time to go through that process.

Did your office have a coordination meeting with the BLM Salt Lake Field office yet
this year? It’s usually in the spring and would be one place where you could bring up
those ideas and get some feedback from them. If that already happened, I think the
range specialist and wildlife bio would be good places to start. I can get you in touch
with them if you’d like.

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

I am wondering (if permitted through BLM) if it would be plausible to burn
and spray at these sites perhaps once a year for the next couple of years to
see if that would help deter some of the cattail growth. I would need to do
some more research about spraying obviously because we wouldn't want to
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harm any inhabitants of the ponds, but I think a burn would be a viable
option especially for Keg Springs since a lot of those cattails are dead and
there appears to be a thin layer of new growth towards the center of the
pond.

Also, if we timed when we did spray we may be able to prevent harm to any
inhabitants in the event it is early spring/later summer.

On Wed, Jun 7, 2023 at 3:07 PM Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov> wrote:

I think with all of those sites there’s been periodic dredging — by hand at Cluster
and w/ equipment at the others to remove some of the vegetation build up. That’s
part of the challenge with these artificial and small sites that don’t have any
disturbance. We did do a prescribed burn out at Gandy Marsh which was pretty
successful in re-establishing open water habitat. Cattails weren’t the main problem
there so I don’t know if fire would be as effective on cattails and it also would not
be a one-time fix. I think Chance was considering some chemical treatment at Pilot
Pond, but we didn’t try it and I don’t recall if that was something he was
considering only if the fish were being salvaged first.

Cassie Mellon

Fisheries and Riparian Program Lead
BLM Utah

801-539-4073 (office)

385-443-1621 (cell)

cmellon@blm.gov

From: Chante Lundskog <clundskog(@utah.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, June 7, 2023 2:40 PM

To: Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Cattails LC/BT sites Grouse Creek
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This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening
attachments, or responding.

Sorry for another email, but quick question - is there anything we can do
about cattails? I am slightly concerned about our cattail encroachment at
the LC/BT sites in the Grouse Creek area.

Keg Springs, Lower Rocky Pass, and Cluster Springs are looking quite
overgrown (at least the worst I've ever seen these sites), and I am worried
they may completely overrun these shallow ponds.

Let me know your thoughts, and I can also send some pictures.

Chanté Lundskog
Native Aquatic Biologist

M: (385) 333-2560
E: clundskog@utah.gov

Utah Department of Natural Resources
Division of Wildlife Resources

wildlife.utah.gov
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From: Helmick, Darcy

To: Rose, Marcus F

Cc: Satterwhite, Lori

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] data question
Date: Thursday, May 25, 2023 2:46:10 PM

Great thanks — looks like they might be working! Would be fun to go check them out!

From: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Sent: Thursday, May 25, 2023 2:42 PM

To: Helmick, Darcy <darcy.helmick@simplot.com>
Cc: Satterwhite, Lori <lori.satterwhite@simplot.com>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] data question

Hi Darcy,

That is a good question. | don’t have any other notes or the location for those. | will check with some
of the people that did the PFC assessments on Red Butte to see if they know where that is and if
they have any more information.

From: Helmick, Darcy <darcy.helmick@simplot.com>
Sent: Thursday, May 25, 2023 1:49 PM

To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Cc: Satterwhite, Lori <lori.satterwhite @simplot.com>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] data question

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links,
opening attachments, or responding.

Hi Marcus,

I’'m going through your data and had a question.

In the Red Butte Riparian folder, there are 3 pictures of what looks to be a small headcut project —
where is that located and do you have any associated notes or write up about it?

Thank you!

Darcy Helmick

Land Manager

Simplot Land and Livestock
Office —208-834-5152

Cell — 208-761-9378
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From: Rose, Marcus F

To: Mellon, Cassie D; Davis, Jordan R; Tucker, Dylan W
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] data question
Date: Tuesday, May 30, 2023 7:45:00 AM

Thanks for getting back to me Dylan and Cassie! Was that spring included in the PFC assessment for
upper North Bedke spring then?

From: Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>

Sent: Friday, May 26, 2023 8:27 AM

To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>; Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Tucker, Dylan W
<dwtucker@blm.gov>

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] data question

Marcus | don’t have access to the P drive so | can only see the picture you attached. That one is in
the N Bedke area like Dylan mentioned, but that one is on a very small spring. The structure is not to
prevent a head cut but it is something that Hugh Hurlow from UGS installed as a weir to measure
discharge from the spring. He has a number of spring and groundwater monitoring sites set up in
this area of West Box Elder as part of a study on the hydrologic response to juniper removal. | always
have a hard time finding this site on the map but believe it is at the point | attached.

Cassie Mellon

Fisheries and Riparian Program Lead
BLM Utah

801-539-4073 (office)
385-443-1621 (cell)
cmellon@blm.gov

From: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Sent: Thursday, May 25, 2023 3:36 PM
To: Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Tucker, Dylan W <dwtucker@blm.gov>; Mellon, Cassie

D <cmellon@blm.gov>
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] data question

Hello,

Would any of you happen to know where this spring is in Red Butte allotment? There are three
pictures showing what appears to be a small dam holding a headcut back near a spring. There are
three pictures, but they were too large to send all of them in an email. They are saved in the Salt
Lake NEPA folder P:\NEPA\EAS\FY23\WBE_Permit_Renewal\Data\Red Butte\Red Butte
Riparian\2021. Since you three were part of the group doing PFC assessments on Red Butte in 2021,
| figure | would test your minds to see if you remember anything about this.

Thanks!

Marcus
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From: Helmick, Darcy <darcy.helmick@simplot.com>
Sent: Thursday, May 25, 2023 2:46 PM
To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Cc: Satterwhite, Lori <|ori.satterwhite@simplot.com>
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
Office — 208-834-5152

Cell —208-761-9378
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From: Rose, Marcus F
To: Davis, Jordan R; Mellon, ie D
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: Dead Cows in Springs
Date: Wednesday, June 7, 2023 5:04:00 PM
Attachments: image001.pna

image002.pna

image004.png
imaae005.pna

| haven’t heard anything about this either.

From: Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, June 7, 2023 2:33 PM

To: Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: Dead Cows in Springs

[ haven't heard anything about this. It looks like a sad situation. It is difficult to really tell where they are
but in the second photo it looks like the Grouse Creek Mtns in the foreground and the highway to
Montello goes between the break in the mountain ranges which tells me they are on the NV side of the
Pilots. The Lucin Pilot allotment doesn't extend into Nevada.
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Assistant Field Manager

Salt Lake Field Office|Bureau of Land Management -Utah
p: (385) 278-3618

w: www.blm.gov

From: Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, June 7, 2023 1:55 PM

To: Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: Dead Cows in Springs

Have either of you heard anything about this? Sounds like these are in Nevada but on the Utah side of the Pilots and very
close to Utah. I'm thinking in UT this is the Pilot/Lucin allotment, right. Is that an allotment that extends into Nevada?
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
Sent: Wednesday, June 7, 2023 1:39 PM

To: Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: Dead Cows in Springs

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links, opening attachments, or responding.

Hey Cassie,

Eric Miskow NV sent me this email about a month ago (see pics attached). These sites are about 3 miles from
Halls Meadow. Have there been any reports of dead cows on the Utah side? Also, would this area fall under
one grazing allotment if it was grazed?

—————————— Forwarded message ---------

From: Eric Miskow <emiskow@heritage.nv.gov>
Date: Mon, May 8, 2023 at 3:45 PM

Subject: Re: Dead Cows in Springs

To: Chante Lundskog <clundskog@utah.gov>

Hey Chante,

Check this out. These two “incidents” were found last week.....two springs near the
NV/UT border....on the Bonneville drainage side of the Pilot Mtns. Springs at the “red
diamonds”
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Lat. 40.9082 Long. -114.0770

| have been out here before, a few years ago and these springs are pretty hammered,
no snails. | found Pyrgs up slope on the Pilot’s on the east side but nothing in the NV



springs below the road that skirts the lower slopes going north. The springs are a little
over 1 km from the NV/UT border.

Seems like these cattle may have been poisoned perhaps. You know much about this
area?

Hope all is well.

Cheers,

Eric

Eric Miskow
Aquatic Biologist/Data Manager
Nevada Division of Natural Heritage
Department of Conservation and Natural Resources
901 S. Stewart Street, Suite 5002
Carson City, NV 89701
miskow@heritage.nv.gov
(0) 775-684-2905 | (C) 775-830-4311
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“Counting fish is like counting trees,
except they are invisible and they keep moving.”

John Shepherd

Chanté Lundskog
Native Aquatic Biologist

M: (385) 333-2560
E: clundskog@utah.gov

[

Utah Department of Natural Resources
Division of Wildlife Resources

L) 111

wildlife.utah.gov

The content of this email is confidential and intended for the recipient specified in the message only. It is strictly forbidden to share any part of this message with any
third party without the written consent of the sender. If you received this message by mistake, please reply to this message and follow with its deletion so that we can
ensure such a mistake does not occur in the future.


mailto:emiskow@heritage.nv.gov
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fheritage.nv.gov%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cmrose%40blm.gov%7C3c638a09798142a4380108db67965fa1%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638217667877212613%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=T5%2F6i7pSBG%2BzefCPGyJfzXIHjYjVMNf39T1a28nTUVw%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fdcnr.nv.gov%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cmrose%40blm.gov%7C3c638a09798142a4380108db67965fa1%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638217667877212613%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=7PuLagzZyUAOY2Bgh79eVPiEB0%2Be0EVCvK9qZeFa1Zw%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FNevDCNR%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cmrose%40blm.gov%7C3c638a09798142a4380108db67965fa1%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638217667877212613%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=eWQpcs738HzPckSKqoNaGsxCiMOsTS%2FoeOSIolXLc0k%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FNevDCNR&data=05%7C01%7Cmrose%40blm.gov%7C3c638a09798142a4380108db67965fa1%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638217667877212613%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=0KILwpqoSrV24scmqnqKMeUa50WiTQqM6%2F%2BNIHpyV2I%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.instagram.com%2Fnvdcnr%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cmrose%40blm.gov%7C3c638a09798142a4380108db67965fa1%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638217667877212613%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=6LhA%2B9an%2Br8YSI50Aw2IdvE4nw2ImHMwsT6O8c0kn%2B4%3D&reserved=0
mailto:email@utah.gov
mailto:lundskog@utah.gov
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Ffacebook.com%2FUtahDWR&data=05%7C01%7Cmrose%40blm.gov%7C3c638a09798142a4380108db67965fa1%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638217667877212613%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=lvr6LMMgZROKRqq%2Bg2MVt8opo5uO9UuYPZMYN%2BF2aAI%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FUtahDWR&data=05%7C01%7Cmrose%40blm.gov%7C3c638a09798142a4380108db67965fa1%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638217667877368376%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=pLWdPCX4YIESdRLdxTISNWv3MPh4ISJnWMvq21h3I8A%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2Fuser%2FUDWR&data=05%7C01%7Cmrose%40blm.gov%7C3c638a09798142a4380108db67965fa1%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638217667877368376%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=tN5Q4E2RSUsxLZFd4GB1%2B4fpMNKx6a1aQDUKLtefcwg%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.instagram.com%2Futahdwr%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cmrose%40blm.gov%7C3c638a09798142a4380108db67965fa1%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638217667877368376%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Ty9Tem4tB1iucEdAu%2BLAPK8JmpQQmwNj0%2BCSCIr7og4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwildlife.utah.gov%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cmrose%40blm.gov%7C3c638a09798142a4380108db67965fa1%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638217667877368376%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=tnLhJ6V%2FXYydWe8XVtTHBvSt4Tg%2BgFjp1bI%2F%2FHZGkyc%3D&reserved=0

From: Moore, Jeffrey D

To: Rose, Marcus F

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: Dead Cows in Springs
Date: Wednesday, June 28, 2023 7:57:25 AM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
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Thanks Marcus. Things are chaotic as always and seem to be getting more so.

We got an alert about the second spring, the one full of carcasses, from a science group out of one
of the Utah universities that have been pulling core samples from it over the last year or two, I'm
pretty certain based on my site visit that the cows were trying to take shelter from the wind during
one of the big storms this past winter and simply could not get out, or possibly even got snowed
over. Simplot pulled about 40 bodies from that spring three or so weeks ago and buried them on
some private nearby. We did not get any other reports on that second spring until this, Ill pass that
along. We had significant death loss of those operators with winter permits that got caught out on
the range this year, some with losses upwards of 30%.

Hope all is well with you, and many thanks. Jeff.

From: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, June 28, 2023 6:35 AM
To: Moore, Jeffrey D <j2moore@blm.gov>
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: Dead Cows in Springs

Hello Jeff!

| hope all is well over there in Elko these days. | imagine you have seen these already, but | thought |
would send them over to you just in case.

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

Have either of you heard anything about this? Sounds like these are in Nevada but on the Utah side
of the Pilots and very close to Utah. I'm thinking in UT this is the Pilot/Lucin allotment, right. Is that
an allotment that extends into Nevada?

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

Eric Miskow NV sent me this email about a month ago (see pics attached). These sites are
about 3 miles from Halls Meadow. Have there been any reports of dead cows on the Utah
side? Also, would this area fall under one grazing allotment if it was grazed?

—————————— Forwarded message ---------

From: Eric Miskow <emiskow@heritage.nv.gov>
Date: Mon, May 8, 2023 at 3:45 PM

Subject: Re: Dead Cows in Springs

To: Chante Lundskog <clundskog@utah.gov>

Hey Chante,

Check this out. These two “incidents” were found last week.....two
springs near the NV/UT border....on the Bonneville drainage side of the
Pilot Mtns. Springs at the “red diamonds”
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Lat. 40.9247 Long. -114.0593

Second spring



Lat. 40.9082 Long.-114.0770

| have been out here before, a few years ago and these springs are
pretty hammered, no snails. | found Pyrgs up slope on the Pilot’s on the
east side but nothing in the NV springs below the road that skirts the
lower slopes going north. The springs are a little over 1 km from the
NV/UT border.

Seems like these cattle may have been poisoned perhaps. You know
much about this area?

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

emiskow@heritage.nv.gov
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
l—l Division of Wildlife Resources

[ I

wildlife.utah.gov

The content of this email is confidential and intended for the recipient specified in the message only. It is strictly forbidden to share any
part of this message with any third party without the written consent of the sender. If you received this message by mistake, please reply
to this message and follow with its deletion so that we can ensure such a mistake does not occur in the future.
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From: Daniel Sallee

To: Rose, Marcus F
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Domestic Sheep in the Leppy Hills/Silver Islands
Date: Monday, May 15, 2023 9:13:30 AM

Awesome, thank you. I looked at a trail camera photo that was sent to me and it looks more
like a spring box than an actual guzzler. We don't have a guzzler there in our database, so I am
thinking it's likely a piped spring. Sometimes sportsmen call any water source a guzzler so it
can get confusing locking down a location.

On Mon, May 15, 2023 at 9:01 AM Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov> wrote:

Yes, Burt Kunzler is the sheep permittee on that allotment. His number is 435-279-7399. 1
sent him the location this morning that you gave me last week. He said that he was looking
more to the west when he was there and didn’t know there was a guzzler there.

Thanks,

From: Daniel Sallee <dsall tah.gov>

Sent: Monday, May 15, 2023 8:51 AM

To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Domestic Sheep in the Leppy Hills/Silver Islands

Hey Marcus,

Would it be possible to get contact information for the permittee? I'd like to follow up with
him to find out if he found the sheep and offer to go look for them with him if he hasn't
located them yet.

Thank you,

On Fri, May 12, 2023 at 1:40 PM Daniel Sallee <dsallee@utah.gov> wrote:

I just got a trail cam photo from that guzzler from yesterday. The domestic sheep are still
right there.

Sent from my iPhone
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On May 12, 2023, at 1:22 PM, Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov> wrote:

That would be great. I spoke with the permittee and he said that he has been
looking for those sheep for the last 2-3 weeks, but hasn’t been able to track
them down. So any other information as far as specific location or water
development they are on would be very helpful.

Thanks,

From: Daniel Sallee <dsallee(@utah.gov>

Sent: Thursday, May 11, 2023 7:42 AM

To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Cec: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Domestic Sheep in the Leppy Hills/Silver
Islands

Thanks Marcus. If I hear any updates on where the sheep are I'll let you
know.

On Wed, May 10, 2023 at 5:52 PM Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
wrote:

Hello,

That looks like it is on the Lucin Pilot allotment. The permitted dates for
sheep on that allotment are 11/1 to 3/20. I can get a hold of the permittee
for that allotment and let them know that there are some sheep that got left
in that area.

Thanks for the information!

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
Sent: Wednesday, May 10, 2023 9:31 AM
To: Daniel Sallee <dsallee(@utah.gov>; Rose, Marcus F

<mrose@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Domestic Sheep in the Leppy Hills/Silver

Islands

Hi Daniel,

Sorry for the slow reply, I was on AL. I have included Marcus Rose on this
email. He is the Range Specialist for Box Elder and can help us figure out
whose allotment that is.

Marcus - see Daniel's message below regarding domestic sheep on the
Silver Islands.

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

Sent: Monday, May 8§, 2023 8:45 AM

To: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Domestic Sheep in the Leppy Hills/Silver Islands

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before

clicking on links, opening attachments, or responding.

Hello Emily,

Last week I received a report of a couple domestic sheep just north of
Wendover on a water development off the Leppy Pass Road. I know there
is a domestic sheep grazing allotment out there, but I do not know when it
starts and ends. Can you please give me a bit of info on who grazes sheep
out that way and when they enter/exit the area. If all the domestic sheep are
supposed to be out of the area by now I would like to reach out to the
grazer to coordinate removing the stray domestics to minimize any risk of
disease transmission this summer when bighorn start to key in on the water
developments.

Thank you,

<~WRDO0001.jpg> Daniel Sallee
Box Elder District Biologist

M: (385) 315-3651
E: dsallee@utah.gov
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From: Rose, Marcus F

To: Helmick, Darcy

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] fall application

Date: Thursday, August 24, 2023 7:12:00 AM
Okay, thanks!

Marcus

From: Helmick, Darcy <darcy.helmick@simplot.com>
Sent: Wednesday, August 23, 2023 2:08 PM

To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] fall application

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links,
opening attachments, or responding.

Hi Marcus —
We don’t need to make any changes to the grazing application that was sent over.
We will be utilizing our allotments with full numbers and full dates so please bill accordingly.

Thanks!

Darcy Helmick

Land Manager

Simplot Land and Livestock
Office — 208-834-5152

Cell —208-761-9378
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From: Davis, Jordan R

To: Sherie Goring

Cc: Seiders, Erin S

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Goring Actual Grazing Reports
Date: Wednesday, April 19, 2023 3:40:21 PM
Attachments: Outlook-tlvadtdb.png

Received, thank you.

NATIONAL SYSTEM OF PUBLIC LANDS

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
OF LAND M.

-‘?'

Jordan Davis

Assistant Field Manager

Salt Lake Field Office|Bureau of Land Management -Utah
p: (385) 278-3618

w: www.blm.gov

From: Sherie Goring <sheriegoring13@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, April 18, 2023 7:58 PM

To: Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Goring Actual Grazing Reports

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on
links, opening attachments, or responding.

I have attached the actual grazing reports. Please call me if you have questions,
Jr.
435-452-1152
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From: Rose, Marcus F

To: Helmick, Darcy; Clint Hill

Cc: Thomas, Ike; ryanchawker@gmail.com
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Keg Springs

Date: Thursday, May 25, 2023 11:39:00 AM
Darcy,

Thank you for taking the time to meet up yesterday. That plan sounds great. We will plan on you
using Keg Springs, and Cactus Ranch using the lower and upper pastures in Dry Canyon after the
fuels treatments next winter.

Thanks for getting back so quickly!

Marcus

From: Helmick, Darcy <darcy.helmick@simplot.com>

Sent: Thursday, May 25, 2023 10:53 AM

To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>; Clint Hill <clhill@utah.gov>
Cc: Thomas, lke <ike.thomas@simplot.com>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Keg Springs

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links,
opening attachments, or responding.

Hi Marcus,

Thank you for meeting with us yesterday, it was great to meet face to face.

| visited with ke, we agreed it would be easiest if we utilized Keg Springs while the fuels reduction
project is going on in the Dry Canyon Allotment.

Looking forward to continuing working together —

Thanks,

Darcy Helmick

Land Manager

Simplot Land and Livestock
Office — 208-834-5152

Cell — 208-761-9378
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From: Sheehan, Michael S

To: Arie Leeflang; Seiders, Erin S

Cc: Lindsay Fenner

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Check In 6-5-23
Date: Tuesday, June 6, 2023 8:06:20 AM

Hey Arie,

I'm inclined to agree with you. | think the consultant is a good one (which counts for
something in my mind), and more importantly cancelling the contract and starting over might
involve a more extensive time delay than simply offering an extension. Any extension though
ought to have caveats attached. For example, the time-frame should be conditioned by
broader project needs and it should be made clear that additional extensions are off the
table. That's my thinking anyway...

Happy Tuesday all!
Mike

Michael S. Sheehan, Ph.D.
Cultural Resources Program Lead
BLM-Salt Lake Field Office

491 North John Glenn Rd.

Salt Lake City, UT 84116

Ph: 801-320-8373

From: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, June 6, 2023 7:57 AM

To: Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>

Cc: Lindsay Fenner <Ifenner@utah.gov>; Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Check In 6-5-23

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on
links, opening attachments, or responding.

Hi Erin-

I hope things are well. I reached out to the cultural resource contractor for the Young Brothers
Pipeline project for a status update. The project is due on the 15th and it sounds like it hasn't
started yet (ugh). Are you open to an extension on the project schedule?

It's definitely a sticky moment- I can cancel the contract if needed for poor performance, but
we'd be back to square one on contracting and we'd probably lose more time. I personally
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would recommend retaining the contractor and providing an extension. But this is a BLM
project (if I remember correctly) and I'm just running the contract - so I defer to you needs.
When you have a moment, let me know what you think. (Mike and Lindsay, please feel free to
jump in as well).

Thanks,

Arie

Photo Arie Leeflang
Archaeologist

“" M: (801) 635-8897
E: aleeflang@utah.gov

Utah Department of Natural Resources
Division of Wildlife Resources

HE E E wildlife.utah.gov

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: lynnaneal@outlook.com <lynnaneal@outlook.com>

Date: Mon, Jun 5, 2023 at 4:42 PM

Subject: RE: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Check In 6-5-23
To: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>

Hi Arie,

Wow, time has flown by for me in general and definitely since this project’s inception.

My sincerest apologies for not getting in touch with you much sooner. I had planned to contact
you last week, but the gist of it is that I need to request more time for completion of this
project. I was hoping to get into the field to complete the fieldwork later this month and to
work on the report through July.

Let me know what kind of time you can give me; I’ll take as much as I can get yet also try to
condense the schedule wherever possible.

I will reach out to Michael and Lindsay with revised FW Authorization Requests after I hear
back from you.

Thank you for reaching out and rattling my cage; I needed it. Have been beyond slammed with
life and work, and actually looking forward to getting into the field.

Respectfully, Lynn

Lynn A Neal, RPA/M.A. (she/her/Ms.)
Sr. Archaeologist/Historic Preservation Specialist
Environmental Compliance Consultant
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LA Neal Consulting, LLC
3038 Shonto Trail
Flagstaff, AZ 86005

lneal@npgcable.com
928/606-2258

From: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>

Sent: Monday, June 5, 2023 2:36 PM

To: Ineal@npgcable.com

Cc: Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>; Lindsay Fenner <lfenner@utah.gov>;
Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Kickoff Mtg 3-30-23
Complete

Hi Lynn-

I hope things are going well. I wanted to check in on the Young Brothers Pipeline project and
see how things are progressing. Were you able to finish up the fieldwork and are on to the
report?

Thanks in advance. Best wishes,
Arie

Photo Arie Leeflang
Archaeologist
- M: (801) 635-8897
E: aleeflang@utah.gov
Utah Department of Natural Resources
Division of Wildlife Resources

wildlife.utah.gov
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From: Neff, Brandon D

To: Taylor Payne; Dale Lamborn

Cc: Davis, Jordan R

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Permission Letter for Three Creeks project
Date: Tuesday, August 8, 2023 3:07:31 PM

Taylor,

Yes, let's go ahead and maintain the broken pipeline between Dead Moose Trough and the
intersection of the North Fork Otter Creek Rd.

| will coordinate with BLM wildlife on the addition of three new troughs in the Twin Peaks
Pasture to see what wildlife clearances may or may not be needed depending on the time of
year the work would be done.

Thank You

Brandon Neff | Rangeland Management Specialist
West Desert District BLM | Salt Lake Field Office
491 North John Glenn Rd. | Salt Lake City, UT 84116
W: (385) 232-6289 | Email: bneff@blm.gov

From: Taylor Payne <taylorpayne@utah.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, June 20, 2023 11:27 AM

To: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>; Dale Lamborn <dlamborn@richschool.org>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Permission Letter for Three Creeks project

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on
links, opening attachments, or responding.

Brandon,

Three Creeks is funded to put in pipeline down the left hand fork of Otter Creek road to fix the
issue of the broken pipeline that is there now. This project should be a maintenance project
like the others where we are fixing the issue by installing a new pipeline in place of the other
one between the Dead Moose trough down to the intersection of the North Fork Otter Creek
road. I have attached a map to show you where I'm talking about. I need to have written
permission like we've done before to complete this job from BLM since it is on BLM lands.

I also have 3 new troughs that would be right on the existing pipeline that should be covered
by the previous Three Creeks EA and archeology clearances since it would be within the
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pipeline footprint.

Can you write me a short email with permission to complete this maintenance so I can get the
GIP contract going? I could get another letter after we have full clearances for the troughs.

Thanks Brandon,

-- Taylor

Taylor Payne | NW Region GIP Coordinator
| >
435-757-6115 mobile

Website | Twitter | Facebook | Instagram
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
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From: Lindsay Fenner

To: Sheehan, Michael S

Cc: Ineal@npgcable.com; Arie Leeflang; Seiders, Erin S

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] RE: EXTERNAL Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Setting Kickoff Mtg
Date: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 10:53:41 AM

I'm open to that also -- [ am in-office and available Thursday afternoon.

Although it's fairly common for me to need to participate in kick-offs or status calls from the
field, I appreciate the offer and flexibility Lynn. And for you too, Mike! Thanks everyone.

On Wed, Mar 29, 2023 at 10:49 AM Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov> wrote:
Tomorrow would work better for me...Friday is kind of a "no go". | can do almost any time

all day...

Mike

Michael S. Sheehan, Ph.D.
Cultural Resources Program Lead
BLM-Salt Lake Field Office

491 North John Glenn Rd.

Salt Lake City, UT 84116

Ph: 801-320-8373

From: Lynn A Neal <|neal@npgcable.com>

Sent: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 10:42 AM

To: 'Lindsay Fenner' <lfenner@utah.gov>; Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>

Cc: 'Arie Leeflang' <aleeflang@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: EXTERNAL Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Setting Kickoff
Mtg

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on
links, opening attachments, or responding.

With Lindsay in the field next week, would you two prefer to meet tomorrow or Friday of
this week? I’m available tomorrow afternoon and open Friday if either day works for you.

Cheers, Lynn
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From: Lindsay Fenner <lfenner@utah.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 7:29 AM

To: Sheehan, Michael S <msheechan@blm.gov>

Cc: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang(@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>;
Inecal@npgcable.com

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] RE: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Kickoff

Hello Lynn,

I can make virtually any time work for a call next week, I will just need to dial in as I expect
to be in the field Monday — Thursday.

Glad to have you aboard.

Lindsay

On Wed, Mar 29, 2023 at 6:23 AM Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov> wrote:
Hi Lynn,

Good to hear from you...my schedule for next week is fairly (except Friday), so I can
probably have a conversation almost any day/time that work for others.

Happy Wednesday!

Milke

Michael S. Sheehan, Ph.D.
Cultural Resources Program Lead
BLM-Salt Lake Field Office

491 North John Glenn Rd.

Salt Lake City, UT 84116

Ph: 801-320-8373
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From: Lynn A Neal <lneal@npgcable.com>

Sent: Tuesday, March 28, 2023 5:07 PM

To: 'Arie Leeflang' <aleeflang(@utah.gov>

Cc: Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>; 'Lindsay Fenner' <lfenner@utah.gov>;
Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Kickoff

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on
links, opening attachments, or responding.

Hi Arie, Mike, Lindsay, and Erin,

Yes, it has been a minute! The melt in northern AZ has begun and spring has sprung, so
I’m ready (or will be soon) to get my boots on the ground.

I did indeed receive the PO this morning and have the files from the solicitation, but
thanks for sending anyway.

Let me know when you are both available for a meeting, Mike and Lindsay. Perhaps some
time next week?

I will have questions outlined/be seeking clarifications and intend to be efficient with your
time.

Looking forward to working with you all, Lynn

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

From: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang(@utah.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, March 28, 2023 2:09 PM

To: Ineal@npgcable.com
Cc: msheehan@blm.gov; Lindsay Fenner <lfenner@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin S

<eseiders@blm.gov>
Subject: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Kickoff

Hi Lynn-

It's been a while, I hope things are fantastic down in Arizona. Thank you for your bid on
the Young Brothers Pipeline project. I trust you saw the PO that was generated this
morning by State Purchasing, officially awarding you the project. If not, please see
attached (AS23-112 Documents for Signature completed.pdf). I've cc'ed the pertinent
project personnel on this email:

Mike Sheehan, BLM Archaeologist, msheehan@blm.gov
Lindsay Fenner, SITLA Archaeologist, Ifenner@utah.gov
Erin Seiders, BLM Range Technician and project manager, eseiders@blm.gov
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My role is to handle the solicitation, contracting and invoicing. Please send any invoices
directly to me.

Next steps on the project will be to schedule a kickoff meeting with Mike and Lindsay
and to get BLM and SITLA FWA requests submitted (one per each agency). I'm assuming
you have the project data, but if not, please find the relevant files attached. If there are any
initial questions on these documents, please let us know.

Beyond that, we're pleased to have you on this project!

Arie
Photo Arie Leeflang
Archaeologist
M: (801) 635-8897

(2] E: aleeflang@utah.gov
Utah Department of Natural Resources
Division of Wildlife Resources

=== wildlife.utah.gov

Lindsay A. Fenner, M.A., RPA

Archaeologist

State of Utah, School and Institutional Trust Lands Administration
675 East 500 South, Suite 500

Salt Lake City, Utah 84102

801-538-5168

Ifenner(@utah.gov

Lindsay A. Fenner, M.A., RPA

Archaeologist

State of Utah, School and Institutional Trust Lands Administration
675 East 500 South, Suite 500

Salt Lake City, Utah 84102

801-538-5168

Ifenner@utah.gov


mailto:aleeflang@utah.gov
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Ffacebook.com%2FUtahDWR&data=05%7C01%7Ceseiders%40blm.gov%7C50aa8d020b6e43b5f0bc08db30762486%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638157056213195866%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Ayhral2vmbqg%2F37L%2F4CiSleeQGVHIGMawqNUHp2MIns%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FUtahDWR&data=05%7C01%7Ceseiders%40blm.gov%7C50aa8d020b6e43b5f0bc08db30762486%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638157056213195866%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=HIArNCg0fnruqkDZ3vPo9npidH5plMATF8MMXwJdPEE%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2Fuser%2FUDWR&data=05%7C01%7Ceseiders%40blm.gov%7C50aa8d020b6e43b5f0bc08db30762486%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638157056213195866%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=X%2F84fCrr045DEug6bFW011EBCaPjdROsSvnPgw9gVns%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.instagram.com%2Futahdwr%2F&data=05%7C01%7Ceseiders%40blm.gov%7C50aa8d020b6e43b5f0bc08db30762486%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638157056213195866%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=fpkB0sWAj0bLRJhQPPLedXURg99tWESTh9qO5DMSj3g%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwildlife.utah.gov%2F&data=05%7C01%7Ceseiders%40blm.gov%7C50aa8d020b6e43b5f0bc08db30762486%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638157056213195866%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=IgGyVJGAi5XPNFmcczB5uleAMxnCoJaJvOtH8qKt4Ik%3D&reserved=0
mailto:lfenner@utah.gov
mailto:lfenner@utah.gov

From: Sheehan, Michael S

To: "Lindsay Fenner"; Ineal@npgcable.com

Cc: "Arie Leeflang"; Seiders, Erin S

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] RE: EXTERNAL Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Setting Kickoff Mtg
Date: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 10:49:05 AM

Tomorrow would work better for me...Friday is kind of a "no go". | can do almost any time all
day...

Mike

Michael S. Sheehan, Ph.D.
Cultural Resources Program Lead
BLM-Salt Lake Field Office

491 North John Glenn Rd.

Salt Lake City, UT 84116

Ph: 801-320-8373

From: Lynn A Neal <Ineal@npgcable.com>

Sent: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 10:42 AM

To: 'Lindsay Fenner' <Ifenner@utah.gov>; Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>

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

With Lindsay in the field next week, would you two prefer to meet tomorrow or Friday of this
week? I'm available tomorrow afternoon and open Friday if either day works for you.
Cheers, Lynn

From: Lindsay Fenner <Ifenner@utah.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 7:29 AM

To: Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>

Cc: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>; Ineal@npgcable.com
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] RE: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Kickoff

Hello Lynn,
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| can make virtually any time work for a call next week, | will just need to dial in as | expect to be in
the field Monday — Thursday.

Glad to have you aboard.
Lindsay

On Wed, Mar 29, 2023 at 6:23 AM Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov> wrote:

Hi Lynn,
Good to hear from you...my schedule for next week is fairly (except Friday), so | can
probably have a conversation almost any day/time that work for others.

Happy Wednesday!
Mlke

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

To: 'Arie Leeflang' <aleeflang@utah.gov>

Cc: Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>; 'Lindsay Fenner' <lfenner@utah.gov>; Seiders,

Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>
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

Yes, it has been a minute! The melt in northern AZ has begun and spring has sprung, so I’'m
ready (or will be soon) to get my boots on the ground.

I did indeed receive the PO this morning and have the files from the solicitation, but thanks
for sending anyway.

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

<eseiders(@blm.gov>
Subject: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Kickoff

Hi Lynn-

It's been a while, I hope things are fantastic down in Arizona. Thank you for your bid on the
Young Brothers Pipeline project. I trust you saw the PO that was generated this morning by
State Purchasing, officially awarding you the project. If not, please see attached (AS23-112
Documents for Signature completed.pdf). I've cc'ed the pertinent project personnel on this
email:

Mike Sheehan, BLM Archaeologist, msheehan@blm.gov
Lindsay Fenner, SITLA Archaeologist, lfenner@utah.gov
Erin Seiders, BLM Range Technician and project manager, eseiders@blm.gov

My role is to handle the solicitation, contracting and invoicing. Please send any invoices
directly to me.

Next steps on the project will be to schedule a kickoff meeting with Mike and Lindsay and
to get BLM and SITLA FWA requests submitted (one per each agency). I'm assuming you
have the project data, but if not, please find the relevant files attached. If there are any
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

¢

L L wildlife.utah.gov
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

To: Lindsay Fenner

Cc: Ineal@npgcable.com; Arie Leeflang; Seiders, Erin S

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] RE: EXTERNAL Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Setting Kickoff Mtg
Date: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 10:57:29 AM

You bet...

Michael S. Sheehan, Ph.D.
Cultural Resources Program Lead
BLM-Salt Lake Field Office

491 North John Glenn Rd.

Salt Lake City, UT 84116

Ph: 801-320-8373

From: Lindsay Fenner <Ifenner@utah.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 10:53 AM

To: Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>

Cc: Ineal@npgcable.com <Ineal@npgcable.com>; Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin
S <eseiders@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] RE: EXTERNAL Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Setting
Kickoff Mtg

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

To: 'Lindsay Fenner' <l[fenner@utah.gov>; Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>

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

From: Lindsay Fenner <Ifenner(@utah.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 7:29 AM

To: Sheehan, Michael S <mshechan@blm.gov>

Cc: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang(@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>;

Ineal@npgcable.com
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

SRR R R wildlife.utah.gov

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


mailto:lneal@npgcable.com
mailto:lfenner@utah.gov
mailto:msheehan@blm.gov
mailto:aleeflang@utah.gov
mailto:eseiders@blm.gov
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

To: Jason Williams
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Grazing application for Buckskin and Red Butte
Date: Monday, May 8, 2023 1:52:00 PM

| got the signed application, thanks!
Marcus

From: Jason Williams <shortywilliams38 @yahoo.com>

Sent: Monday, May 8, 2023 1:39 PM

To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Grazing application for Buckskin and Red Butte

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links,
opening attachments, or responding.

On May 8, 2023, at 1:33 PM, Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov> wrote:
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o ity
o o s
subject e (ETERNAL e Pt
ey o, e 22, 2023 35759 2.
Hi
The pond water ed H Flow at Lower Rocky Pass Spring i also down. was so and did he Wasatch Front, that much of the snowmelt translate to soil moisture but not o spring flow and
‘groundwater evels.

pip for signs of leaking but However as looking into them,
Here is the link to.a shared google sheet I set up a while back.

ENIMAXVIEL 232023

Here is the plot. We should annotate the Keg Pass fire, and

the new plumbing. 1 don't back in our notes.

WATERLEVEL and FLOW

On Thu, Jun 22, 2023 at 2:16 PM Chante Lundskog <clundskog@utah gov> wrote:
i Hugh,

See the previous convo. Have you been out to Keg Spring lately and noticed anything unusual? We were out there on Tuesday and the gauge read 0.89-0.90.
We are thinking leak In the

On Tha Jun 22,2023 125 M Mellon, Cosic D <cnelion@bligo ot
es. We talked with Hugh about this as well. Thatis iy 't

that. May be good to loop hirm into this convo.
Get Qutlook for i0S.

From: Chante Lundskog <clundskog@utah gov:
Sent: Thursday, June 22, 2023 12:23:57 M
T, D <penciabilo e

c: Melon, wse,
Sbiet s TR R K ot

Is it possible that there is something wrong with the plumbing after the troughs were installed? Downstrea of the pond? Some kind of leak?
On Thu, Jun 22, 2023 at 12:16 PM Jencso, Emily
T o sk T i od e i, o s o a1 st Bk and ookt the EA and Decision. The wte vl supposd o b msnsind at 1.4, Looks e they wer don o 45 when o roughswers st nsalled. 1 a il nvous b i - et s and the fve o th e i i 59

Thoughts??

From the EADecsion under RDS - “Water level in K Sp be monitored d a
August 2018 Ifinflow or

fer. d 14 on the stafT gauge. drop below 1.5 gallons pe ‘as measured by the flume to maintain fish and amphibian habitat, These level
be deferred.”

Enly Tencso
SLFO Wildife Biolgist CW8®
cell (801 599-0954.
Office: 801-320-8300

el Lake Field Office BLM
491N John Glemn Rood
Self Lake City, UT 84116

From: Graham, Stepharie € <sesraham@bien gov>
Sent: Wechesy, 7 202 261

Yo Chance Broderius <
e el
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL Re: Keg Pond update

o sencso, Wade, Rosel, Jordan

Thanks Chance. Can you chat on Tdlike o

perature or ather factors play a role in water thatis added to the pond. 1 haven't heard from  but he is

Stephanie Graham

Assistant Field Manager-Renewable Resources
West Desert Distict, Bureau of Land Management
2370'S. Decker Lake Boulevard

West Valley City, UT 84119

Cell: (385) 236-0608.

Chance Broderius <chroderius@utah gov-
Sent Wedmestn, . 2021317 M
To: G, Scphanic

oeh Hurlow g > Jencso, Emily + Wade, I de@h
Subjet Re [EXTERNAL] e Kep ond ape

: Rosell, Jordan 2 > Davis, Jordan R v>; Chante L

v o and nlled o Fempertr Dol Onysen svor i he s it f he pond il g ot here and ol e s e sersor ey v el bty e 0 oo 0
et

my schedule. Additionally up Tl need pih on it or 1 without
scuba gear, so | will be out there frly requently. IF mow 5o I can make sure to get out there and move the
Water level on the staff gauge was 0.55 f oday but water was not nning while T was there.
Sorry I missed your call Sephanie, | 1did ry to call back To answer your s long as the water does not com: pond. I he p like o fll his a clean well water source y fine. 1
i water from o i o v e e oo o v s e (e g . B o o i . St M o
‘Additionally I've ccd Chante’ Lundskog, another Native Aquaics biologist inthe region, as d like o keep her n the loop on this issue as well.
Thanks,
Chance
On Wed, Jul 7, 2021 at $:31 AM Graham, Stephanic E <scgtaham@him gov> wrote:
Hiall
Werwent o th pond yestrday and e el was 0.5 . Wate was owing ntheponds o throughhe UGS e, et message o Chane 1 s poenial water rnsport Jondan s mesting with Shorytoday 2o water figure out i ¥ we
also a5 2 water truck. H 10 use it 0 transport water direely to the pond at that time based an Cassie’s comment about the fungus. We sill need to g vels back up o the 1.4 t level. » 2 inthe
B et o Conant s e e et e i pond

Thanks,

Stephanie Graham
Assistant Field Manager-Renewable Resources
BLM Salt Lake Ficld Office

(3852350608
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From: Chance Broderius
Se

nursday. July 1, 2021 6:17:11 PM
ellon, Cassie D <cmellon @bl gov>

Ce: Hugh @ 2 Clare Span
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Keg Pond update

 Jencso, Emily

Ihavea that I can dep time if we want ygen

de@blm gov>; Rosell, Jordan S

Chance

On Th, Jul 1, 2021 at 2:11 PM Mellon, Cassie D <emellon@blm gos> wrote:

Jordan, do you think

10 the pond if

rather the

asitlikely

the trough due to the float?

the fish

ity to get on

but 1 do agree it would be helpful to verify and make sure there’s not a leak or something.
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the weck of the 12 Hugh,

Otherwise a b

Casie Mellon
Aquatic Ecologist

St Lake Field Offce - West Deser Disirict BLM
$01977.4378

From: Hugh Hurlow <hughhurlos @uih gov:
Sent: Thursday, July 1, 2021 9:10 AM.
“To: Mellon, Cassie D “cmellon@ bl gov>

gou>; Jencso, Emily  Graham, Stephanie E- . > Wade, )

ca putah gov>;  Rosell, Jordan § u
‘Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Keg Pond update

Thanks Cassie!

was turned off for about an hour or even overnight. Wondering if we can do that during July at a time the cattle would not normally be drinking.

Fyou will be out there before 7/12. Just let us know

. open wter, ). We willbe sble »
On Wed, Jun 30, 2021 at3:00 PM Mellon, Cassie D <caselon @b gov> wrote:

(Chance and Hugh, | wanted to update you on where we are at with e Springs. | think you both know that  went o the pond Monday evening 6/28, Water levels were still at 045, Water was flowing when | arrived and tumed off a couple minutes after | arived.

the trough. 1 think

We've had some internal discussions about what to. ipdate you on that. v push hi the e Tower Rocky — for a coupl his will hel the pond the troughs. We are also
these are our s for n i the resources. I expect that by tomorrow we will know which of the first two options we are able to pursue and when. We're open to input and hearing other ideas from you though.
Chance, one thing that i we could. the pond. T said this s but T wanted to check with you o see if option UDWR 0 k.
Also wanted to let you on July 2~ July 13, ind UDWR's interests in Keg and the importance of getting water levels back up.
them know if there. a "m gone. Jordan will » Tuesday the 6 and. i s i the area the week of the 1 he'l
Twill be. head out.
Thanks for your help with this
Cassie Mellon
Aquatic Ecologi
Salt Lake Field Office — West Desert District BLM
801-977-4378.
Hugh Hurlow, Ph.D., P.G.
‘Groundswater Program Senior Scientist
Utah Geological Survey
1594 W North Temple.
Salt Lake City UT 84114
801-537-3385
ecologyuiah gov
Utah Division of Wildife Resources
Ogten, UT 84405
385) 3154676
thern Region Native Aquais Biologi
h Division of Wildife Resources
Nate At Bl
s 385 3332550
U Deprtmen of N s
EEaE widie wsh ao
i Chanté Lundskog
; Nate A Selogit
385 333250
CICIEIC

Hugh Hurlow (. 1)
Senior ScentsProgram Manager

Groundwater and Wetlands Program
: (501) 537-3385
E: hoohiuriowgutah goy.

Utah Department o Natra Resources
Utah Geological Survey.
‘Geology.utah.gov
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son s
e Lo v e

e oA e
o203 12722

es. We talked with Hugh about this as well, e didn' and are losing that. May be good to loop him into this convo.
Get Qulook for (08

From: Chante Lundsko <clundsko@utah gov>
Sent: Thursday, June 22, 2023 1223:57 P

Tot lencso, Emily D <cjencso@bim gov>

e Mell Marcus
oot o TRV e ot

Is it possible that there is something wrong with the plumbing after the troughs were installed? Downstream of the pond? Some kind of leak?

023 at 12:16 PM J D 2
lmougm T ould Torward this old et chai for o Marc i Chamte. |l et back nd looked t the EA and Decsion. The watrleves ar sposcd o be maitained at 1.4, Looks ik hey e down o & Tamalitde because this i a wet year and the level from the other day is .89.

Thoughts??

rom the EA/Decision under RDF - "Water levels in Keg Springs woul d » 14t the staff gauge. not drop below 1.5 » by the flume to maintain fish and amphibian habitat, These levels are considered base flow measured i

ld be
August 2015, I inflow or pond levels drop below minimum levels,livestack water usé from this source would be deferred.”

pariire dyverila
cell: 8o1) 55
e 801-320-8%00
Salt Lake Field Office BLM
491 N John Glemn Road
Salf Lake City. UT 84116,

From: Graham, Stephanie € <scgraham @bl gov>
Sent: Wednesday, July 7, 2021 3:26 P
To: Chance Braderius

e Mellon, p lencso, Emily O Wade, Rosell Jordan
Subject; RE: [EXTERNAL) Re: Keg Pond update.

‘Thanks Chance. Can you chat on Tdlike to water and other factors play a role i water that s added to the pond. 1 haven't heard from Jordan yet today, but he is chatting with Shorty about filling troughs as well.

Stephanie Graham
Assistant Field Manager-Renewable Resources.
West Desert District, Bureau of Land Management
2370'S. Decker Lake Boulevard

West Valley City, UT 84119

Cel:

(385) 235-0608.

From: Chance Broderius <
Sent: Wednesday, July 7. 2021 3:17 PM

To: Graham, Stephanie E <sca >

Ce: Mellon, Cassie D < 20> Hugh Hurl
Subjeet: R [EXTERNAL] Re Keg Pond i

 Jencso, Emily £ Wade, I de@blm go>; Rosel, u + Davis, Jordan R  Chante Lundskog.

Twas out a sensor in the pond. 1 will Iy togtous there and of forupto e back up Il need " it o Il never get it back without
scuba gear, s0 T will be out there fairly frequently. 1f v i ko s 1 mak s 105 vt her and e h probe

Waer level on the 1 was there

Sorry I missed your call Stephanie, | was driving out o keg. 1did try 1o call back but got no answer. . Ldo not see a problem ihe pond s long as the water does not come from another pond. If the permittee would like to fill his water truck with a clean well water source or culinary water then that would be fine. |
wouldn't ecommend hauling water from another pond out there though. That is just asking for cither- Chytrid Fungus) or an » Crayish, Big cared Radix snails, New Zealand Mud Snails...ctc.)

Additionally I'v c'd Chante' Lundskog, another Native the region, as id inthe loop on

Thanks,

Chance

On Wed, Jul 7, 2021 at 8:31 AM Graham, Stephanie E <segrabam@bli gov™ wrote:
Hiall,
Wewentto the pod yeserdey and e lve was 105 . Woter we lwing i th pond, ot hrough the UGS e | et mesagefor C sport, Jord: of oo alingorwatr ool (i we s ut f gt the pond s et rocommendad by DWR).We
41 spoke with Shorty st some opton 4 we sad he enondat e s  wle k. He was instrcedno o s o tansport watr direly o the pod " e based on Caseie'scomment about e . We s 0 0 the 14 Revel. T ook s difficult ng in the pond in the
et war consnt s We G s et e i e po
Thanks,

Stephanic Graham
Assistant Field Manager-Renewable Resources
BLM Salt Lake Field Office

(385)235-0608
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I have a temperature/oxygen logger that I can deploy next week some time if we wan o monitor the oxygen level as well. Probably  good idea s it ikely won' be temp alone that kill the fish if something does happen. 1l try to get on that next tuesday aftr the holiday.

Chance

On Thu, Jul 1, 2021 at 2:11 PM Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@him gov> wrofe:
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the trough. T think

Jordan, do you think the pond i the rather then just not due 10 the loat? My understanding is that it is tuming the water offat a different point o it wouldn’ . bt do agree © s nota leak or something:
Ihave some 11 and but 11 you are able to get one out the week of the 121 Hugh,that would be great. Otherwise | can get e out 2 week. 1 locations
Cassic Mellon
Aquatic Ecologist
Salt Lake Field Office - West Desert District BLM
5019774378
Hugh Hurlow < Do g
Sent: Thursday, July 1, 2021 9:10 AM
“To: Mellon, Cassie D < @ >
Ce: Chance Gt gor; > Jeneso, Emily +Graba, Stephanic E @ de, de@bim go>; Rosel,
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Keg Pond update
[T el b b received Fom o o D1 Use covion efore ciking on ks, opening stacments, o rspanding.
Thanks Cassic!
Thave been wondering what the flow (0 the pond would be fthe valve o the tanks was turned offfor about an hour or Wondering i Ty ata time ot normaly be drinking.
1 you allthink temperature monitoring would be important we caninsal idbits next ime ou, or pick them up f you il 7112, Just et s know the open water )
On Wed, Jun 30, 2021 4t 3:00 PM Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@hln goxc wrote:
‘Chance and Hugh, | wanted to update you on where we are at with Keg Springs. | think you both know that | went o the pond " still a1 0.45. Water ¢ when | arived and turned off a couple minutes after | arived.
Weve had some what 0 do and on that e further south in Tower Rocky - for acoupl ir tis will help in the p i the use at the troughs,
these e our o Texp Know which of the irst two options when. We're open (o nput

Chance, one thing that was brought up was if we could haul water directly to the pond. I said this would be a significant risk of introducing chyrid or other diseases, but I wanted to check with you to see f this could be an option what we would need o do for UDWR to feel comfortable that we have addressed this risk.

Also wanted to let you know that  will be on leave and without cell service from July 2 — July 13.

familiar with UGS and UDWR’s interests in Keg and

them know if a concerns while I'm gone. P

1wl be around tomorrow and will provide any updates we have before 1 head ou.

“Thanks for your help with this

Cassie Mellon
Aquatic Ecologist
Sall Lake Field Office - West Desert District BLM

801-9774378

Hugh Hurlow, Ph.D., P.G.
‘Groundwater Program Senior Scientist

Utah

Geological Survey
1594 W North Temple

Salt Lake City UT 84114

801-537-3385
‘scology wah gov

pie [
e e it

) 352560

U et of o Resrces
[ —

for th
Tuesday the 6 level

‘roup. Someone clsc from our office will

& i up. T
be in the area the week of the 12 and has told me he'll check on water levels when he

include them on
s there.
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Thada crazy thought.Is it p on the pond catle over the past 20 years and that loss. Would it be Thoughts?
Emily Jencso
SLFO Widife Bilogist CWE®
Cell: 801) 599-0954
Office: 801-320-8300
Salt Lok Field Office BLA
491 N Jon Glemn Rood
Salt Lake Gity, UT 84116
Froms Hugh Hurlow <hughhurlow@utzh gov>
Sent Friday, June 23, 2023 3:52 PM
o elon GO <rlon@bi g
Jencso, 3
S (TERA e o e
Great to hear from you Cassiel We'll keep the shared spreadsheet up o date.
On i Jun 23,2023 346 A Mllon Cassie D <cnelln@bin. g wros
Hugh, t the winter we would have expected from bi taleak in the syst L y Keg. We did check the Keg pipeline and in use.
Cassic Mellon
Fisherics and Riparian Program Lead
BLM Uah
501-539-4073 (ofice)
385431621 (cel)
fugh Hurlow <hughhurlow(@utah gov>
Sent: Thursday, June 22, 2023 331 PM
To: Chne L T >
Tencso Emily  Rose, Marcus F
Subjet R (X TERNAL] R et Pond spdn
i
The pond water the winter and has However, Flow at Lo y Pass Spring i also down. We suspect that the sol was so , pitation s the Wasatch Fron, that much of flow and
groundvater leves.
We have been quickly pipes. of| y ill check ca looking at the troughs o sce f any water is flowing into them.
Here i thefink t0 @ shared google sheet I sctup a while back.
b Nt FERSIS
» Keg Pass fire, and the : » 1 dontrecallthose dates but can chock back in our notes.
WATERLEVEL and FLOW
R —
.o
¢
On Tho, Jun 22, 2023 at 2:16 PM Chante Lundskog <clundskog@uiah gov wrote:
Hi Hugh,
See the previous convo, Have you been out to Keg Spring lately and noticed anything unusual? We were out there on Tuesday and the gauge read 0.89-0.90.
We are thinking there must be some leak in the fine downstream.
On Thu, Jun 22, 2023 at 1228 PM Mellon, Cassie D <emellon@bim gov> wrote:
Yes. We talked with That s definitely a p didn' e May be good to loop him ino this convo.
Get Qutlook for i0S.
From: Chante Lundskog <clundskog@utah gov>
s Thrsay e 22, 2024 22357 1
To: Jeneso. Emily D clesodhin gos>
Ce: Mellon, ¢ Rose, Mareus F <mrose@bln gov>
St e TEXTERNALTRe o Pondwte
I it possible that there is something wrong with the plumbing after the troughs were instalied? Downstream of the pond? Some kind of leak?
On Thu, Jun 22, 2023 at 12:16 PM Jencso, Emily D <cisncso@blm gov> wrote:
Lihought I would you d Chante. | Tooked at the EA and Decision. The water levelsare supposed to be mainiained at 14, Looks like they were down (o 45 when the troughs were first installed. | am a ltle nervous because this is a wet year and the levelfrom the other day is 89.
Thoughs??
From DF - "Water level drop below 1.4 he staff gauge. ot drop below 1.5 gallons p by the flume to maintain These level in
August 2018, Ifinflow or pond Tevels,lvestock water g
Enily
SIF erate St cwse
cell: gor) 569
e a9 -520 8300
Salt Loke Field Office BLM
491 N JTohn Glemn Rood
Lake City. UT 84116
From: G Sephani . “sesmunatin goc-
Wednesday, July 7, 2021 326 PM
o Charee rodcr, <o g
et Millon, Casic - = Hugh Hurlow  Clare Sp > Jencso, Emily 15 Wade, Jessica A <jade@hbim.gov>; Rosel g0y Davis, Jordan R  Chante L
Subjest: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Keg Pond update
‘Thanks Chance. Can rdliketo " well water and if temp play a role i pond. 1 Jordan yet od: 1 roughs as well
Stephanie Graham
Assistant Field Manager-Renewable Resources
West Desert District, Bureau of Land Management
2370'S. Decker Lake Boulevard
West Valley City, UT 84119
Cell: (385) 235-0608
hance Broderius < (antah gov
Wadnesday, July 7, 2021 3:17 PM
To: Graham, Stephanie F <
lon, Cassic D < e urow gov>; Claire Spang : Jenso, Emily . Wade, Jessica A <iwade@blm gov>; Rosel, E sou>; Davis, Jordan R sou; Chante | "
Subjest: Ré: (EXTERNAL] Re: Keg Pond update
Al
a semor i he dspst o the pond-L vl gt letit g0 for up o month depending on my schedule ally as wa w the depth on it or 1l never gt it back without
scuba gear, o [ will be ly frequently. If for e Ko o e s 1 8k ot e e . e
‘Water level on the staff gauge was 0.55 ft today but water was not runming while I was there.
sed your call Stephanic, 1 was driving out o keg. 1 did try o call back but got To answer your wate, 1 do not se¢ aproblem pondas long as pond. It Tike to fll his water truck with aclean well water source or culinary water then that would b ine. 1

tion about haul
wouldn't recommend hauling water from another pond out there though. That s just asking for cither “hytrid Fungus) or an

‘Additionally I've cc'd Chante' Lundskog, another Native Aquatics biologist in the region, as 4 like o keep her in the loop on this issue as w

Thanks,
Chance

On Wed, Jul 7, 2021 at 831 AM Graham, Stephanie E <segraham@blin gov wrote:
Hiall,

g i e R e N it Mo Sl i)

Wewent o he pond ystrdy and e evlwas ot 053 . Wt s lowing nhe o, g the UGS e, |

Jord
por P Cassic

s mecting with Shorty

hauling.

we figure out if

e Dot s oot s e B s et e e o

Thanks,

the fungus, We still need to get water

L4 Ulevel. |

We
I i the pond in the.
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From: Chance Broderius Guth gov-
Sent: Thursday, July 1, 2021 6:17:11 PM
“To: Mellon, Cassie D @bl gov

Ce: Hugh Hurlow <hughturlow@uah.gav- C o Jencso, Eily e s Wae, Jessica A <jadeah 1, Jord
Subjec: R (EXTERNAL] Re: Keg Fond updse

Ihve loggerthat | candep monitor the oxygen fvel s el Kills the fish Happen. Ty
Chance

On Th, Jul 1,2021 4t 2:11 PM Mellon, Cassie D <cinellon@him gov> wrote:

Jordan, do you P Father then

1 p logers as well and diffcultcs. Ify

Cassie Mellon
Aquaic Ecologist

Salt Lake Field Office - West Desert District BLM
8019774378

From: Hugh Hurlow <hughlurlow@utah gov>

holiday.

the week of the 12 Hugh, that would be great, Otherwise |

but 1 do agree it would be helpful to verify and make sure there’s not  leak or something.

Chance might

Tocations.
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Sent: Thurday Ty 1, 2021 210 AM
sic D <smcllon@ bl g

To: Mellon, Css o
sov>; Jeneso, Emily. sov; Graham, Stephanic E i  Wade, Jessica A <javade@hlm.gov>; Rosell, Jordan S <jrosell@bim. gov>

Sebjeets FXTERNAL) Re Kot Pond e

eceived from outside o1 DO  Use cautio before cking on ks, opening atadhments, o responding.

Thanks Cassic!

1 flow o the po valve to hour or even overnight Julyata

1o pick them up if you willbe out there before 7/12. Just et us know the best places (shade, open wate )

Ifyou all think temp o

On Wed, Jun 30, 2021 at 3:00 PM Mellon, Cassie D <gmellon@hlm gov> wrote:
Chance and Hugh, I wanted to update you on where we are at with Keg Springs. | think you both know that I went to the pond Monday evening 628, Water levels were stillat 0,45, Water was flowing when | arrived and turned offa couple minutes after | arrived.

et Rocky - o  coupl weks 0 e s will in the por the troughs. We are also the rough. I think
apen o nput and hearin oter dss rom yo (hough,

d so
e S et oo o ot T i o oo o o e et i b ortos i K i - st i o e e e 10 P 21d s
| butl with you to e if option what we would need to do for UDWR to feel comfortable that we have addressed this risk.

Chance, one thing that was brought up was if we could haul water directly o the pond. I said this would be y

Also wanted to let you know that I will be on leave and without cell service from July 2 - July 13 fe fo s familiar with U

ol ‘and UDWR's interests in Keg and the importance of getting water levels back up. They are both included on this email so please include them on any response to me and let
q "m gone. pond on Tuesday the 6" and will share the water level and condition they sce with the ofthe

12" and has told me he’ll check on water levels when he s there.

them know i
Twill be around omorrow and will proide any updates we have before  head o,
Thanks fo your help with this

Cassic Mellon

Aquati Eeologist

Salt Lake Field Office - West Desert District BLM
5019774378

Hugh Hurlow, Ph.D., P.G.
Groundwater Program Senior Scientist

jresy
s

e s s

Hugh Hurlow (w1
Senor SclntstProgram Manager
Groundate an Wetlands Progrom
(600 5373385
ohuosputah oo

i eprmert ot el s
Ut Geagcal
Gealogyatah.
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From: Rose, Marcus F

To: Clint Hill
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Muddy Creek Pipeline Extension and others from West box Elder Range Improvement EA
Date: Friday, May 12, 2023 1:15:00 PM

I will have to talk with Jared Redington a bit in our office to get his thoughts on it, because Brent said
that he thought that BLM was going to do a lot of it and it was associated with the fire around 2021.
But As far as | knew, this pipeline wasn’t associated with a fire.

However, Brent did say that they would be willing to put in for funding with it and maybe pipe from

the grazing board could be used. Brent says that some water has been put in that area recently, but
there is not much water where that pipeline is planned, so it would be beneficial.

From: Clint Hill <clhill@utah.gov>

Sent: Thursday, May 11, 2023 1:52 PM

To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Muddy Creek Pipeline Extension and others from West box Elder Range

Improvement EA

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links,
opening attachments, or responding.

Marcus,
Yeah | don't remember that location being completed either. It does seem like there has been some

water ran out in that same location / nearby area, but | could be mistaken. Did he act like it was still
needed or wanted? Maybe we should go tour around with him and check it out sometime and see
what the needs are and if he wants to sign it up for funding.
Thanks Clint

CLINT HILL | GRAZING IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

On Wed, May 10, 2023 at 5:10 PM Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov> wrote:

Hello Clint,
Here is a map showing the Muddy Creek pipeline extension that we talked about in the meeting

last week. It has not yet been completed from conversations with Brent Rose.
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

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Muddy Creek Pipeline Extension and Rosebud Range Improvement Projects
Date: Monday, November 27, 2023 8:28:00 AM

Yes.

From: Clint Hill <clhill@utah.gov>

Sent: Monday, November 20, 2023 10:27 AM

To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Muddy Creek Pipeline Extension and Rosebud Range Improvement Projects

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links,
opening attachments, or responding.

Thanks,
| assume we will want a solar pump and trough near the well for Kunzler Ranch?

CLINT HILL | GRAZING IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

How was your experience with the Utah Department of Agriculture and Food? Tell us about your experience
through this 2-minute survey!

Follow this link to the survey:

Take the Survey

On Wed, Nov 8, 2023 at 3:28 PM Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov> wrote:

Clint,

Here is some information for the Rosebud well and Muddy Creek pipeline extension. | haven’t
been able to find the shapefile for the Muddy Creek pipeline extension, but | attached the map
from the EA. | also attached the West Box Elder RIPs EA that analyzed that and multiple other
projects in Box Elder County in case you wanted more information about it.

The allocated AUMs for the Rosebud and Muddy Creek allotments are as follows:

Rosebud allotment:

Arimo Corp-15 BLM AUMs

Kunzler Ranch-336 BLM AUMs

Ingham Springs LLC-352 BLM AUMs and 122 Exchange of use AUMs
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Muddy Creek allotment:

440 BLM AUMs (Muddy Creek pasture only)

1636 total BLM AUMs and 1351 exchange of use AUMs across the Muddy Creek allotment (all
held by Ingham Springs LLC)

Once | am able to find the shapefile for the Muddy pipeline extension | will send it over.
Thanks,

Marcus Rose

Rangeland Management Specialist
Bureau of Land Management

Salt Lake Field Office

Office: 801-320-8352

Cell: 385-600-1049



From: Arie Leeflang

To: lynnaneal@outlook.com

Cc: Lindsay Fenner; Seiders, Erin S; Sheehan, Michael S

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Young Bros Water Infrastructure Arch Survey - Report Update
Date: Friday, September 1, 2023 8:09:12 AM

Hi Lynn-

I know you are juggling a bunch of projects right now - but could you please give us an update
and expected timeline for draft deliverables for the Young Brothers project? At this point
we're a couple of weeks past the final deadline but I'm assuming you're close?

Thank you,
Arie
Photo Arie Leeflang
Archaeologist

M: (801) 635-8897
E: aleeflang@utah.gov

Utah Department of Natural Resources
Division of Wildlife Resources

wildlife.utah.gov

[+
[
[
[+

On Wed, Aug 2, 2023 at 8:27 AM Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov> wrote:
| guess | should have read further up the email chain! LOL!

Michael S. Sheehan, Ph.D.
Cultural Resources Program Lead
BLM-Salt Lake Field Office

491 North John Glenn Rd.

Salt Lake City, UT 84116

Ph: 801-320-8373

From: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>
Sent: Monday, July 31, 2023 11:21 AM

To: lynnaneal@outlook.com <lynnaneal@outlook.com>
Cc: Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>; Lindsay Fenner <|fenner@utah.gov>
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Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Young Bros Water Infrastructure Arch Survey - Report Update

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on
links, opening attachments, or responding.

Hi Lynn-

Happy to help. For some reason it was giving me some trouble, but I finally got it figured
out. Here are the stats:

BLM: 127.43
SITLA: 30.79
Private: 131.36
I hope that helps!
A
Photo Arie Leeflang
Archaeologist
[ 2]
T M: (801) 635-8897
E: aleeflang@utah.gov
Utah Department of Natural Resources
Division of Wildlife Resources

On Mon, Jul 31, 2023 at 10:39 AM lynnaneal@outlook.com <lynnaneal@outlook.com>
wrote:

Hi all,

I am working as quickly as I can to complete the draft report for the Young Brothers
survey, and realize I’'m missing some information that hopefully one or more of you has
already calculated. I am looking for the project APE acreage breakdown by landowner. Is
this something one of you could provide or do I need to go ahead and calculate these
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acreages?

Thank you, Lynn

Lynn A Neal, RPA/M.A. (she/her/Ms.)

Sr. Archaeologist/Historic Preservation Specialist
Environmental Compliance Consultant

LA Neal Consulting, LLC

3038 Shonto Trail

Flagstaff, AZ 86005

lynnaneal@outlook.com
928/606-2258
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From: Sheehan, Michael S

To: "Lindsay Fenner"; Ineal@npgcable.com

Cc: "Arie Leeflang"; Seiders, Erin S

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] RE: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Kickoff Mtg 3-30-23
Date: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 3:38:05 PM

Mine came up 3:00 pm...all's good | do believe!

Michael S. Sheehan, Ph.D.
Cultural Resources Program Lead
BLM-Salt Lake Field Office

491 North John Glenn Rd.

Salt Lake City, UT 84116

Ph: 801-320-8373

From: Lynn A Neal <Ineal@npgcable.com>

Sent: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 3:02 PM

To: 'Lindsay Fenner' <Ifenner@utah.gov>; Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>

Cc: 'Arie Leeflang' <aleeflang@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Kickoff Mtg 3-30-23

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on
links, opening attachments, or responding.

| emailed you both a Zoom invite. Note that the meeting timeframe may reflect AZ time (2:00-
2:45 pm) rather than Utah/Mtn time (3:00-3:45 pm).
Thanks, Lynn

From: Lindsay Fenner <Ifenner@utah.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 10:57 AM

To: Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>

Cc: Ineal@npgcable.com; Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] RE: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Setting Kickoff Mtg

Same here.

On Wed, Mar 29, 2023 at 11:53 AM Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov> wrote:
Sure...that's fine.

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

Sent: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 11:40 AM

To: Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>; 'Lindsay Fenner' <lfenner@utah.gov>

Cc: 'Arie Leeflang' <aleeflang@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin S <gseiders@blm.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Setting Kickoff Mtg

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on
links, opening attachments, or responding.

If and when possible, you should be able to enjoy your field time, Lindsay.
So is Thursday, March 30 at 3:00 pm good? If so, should I set up a Zoom meeting and send
you both an invite?

From: Sheechan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 9:57 AM
To: Lindsay Fenner <lfenner@utah.gov>

Cec: Ineal@npgcable.com; Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin S

<eseiders@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] RE: EXTERNAL Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological

Survey - Setting Kickoff Mtg
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

Cec: Ineal@npgcable.com <Ineal@npgcable.com™>; Arie Leeflang <aleeflang(@utah.gov>;
Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: EXTERNAL Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Setting
Kickoff Mtg

I'm open to that also -- I am in-office and available Thursday afternoon.
Although it's fairly common for me to need to participate in kick-offs or status calls from

the field, I appreciate the offer and flexibility Lynn. And for you too, Mike! Thanks
everyone.
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On Wed, Mar 29, 2023 at 10:49 AM Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov> wrote:

Tomorrow would work better for me...Friday is kind of a "no go". I can do almost any
time all day...

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
Cec: 'Arie Leeflang' <aleeflang@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: EXTERNAL Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological
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

From: Lindsay Fenner <lfenner(@utah.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 7:29 AM

To: Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>

Cec: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang(@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>;
Ineal@npgcable.com

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] RE: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey -
Kickoff

Hello Lynn,

I can make virtually any time work for a call next week, I will just need to dial in as I
expect to be in the field Monday — Thursday.

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

Cc: Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>; 'Lindsay Fenner'
<Ifenner(@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>

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

Let me know when you are both available for a meeting, Mike and Lindsay. Perhaps
some time next week?

I will have questions outlined/be seeking clarifications and intend to be efficient with
your time.

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
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It's been a while, I hope things are fantastic down in Arizona. Thank you for your bid
on the Young Brothers Pipeline project. I trust you saw the PO that was generated this
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

My role is to handle the solicitation, contracting and invoicing. Please send any
invoices directly to me.

Next steps on the project will be to schedule a kickoff meeting with Mike and Lindsay
and to get BLM and SITLA FWA requests submitted (one per each agency). I'm
assuming you have the project data, but if not, please find the relevant files attached. If
there are any initial questions on these documents, please let us know.

Beyond that, we're pleased to have you on this project!

Arie
Photo Arie Leeflang
Archaeologist
M: (801) 635-8897

-_; E: aleeflang@utah.gov

Utah Department of Natural Resources
Division of Wildlife Resources

----------- wildlife.utah.gov

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
Date: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 11:57:31 AM

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

From: Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 9:57 AM
To: Lindsay Fenner <lfenner@utah.gov>
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Cc: Ineal@npgcable.com; Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin S

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

Cec: Ineal@npgcable.com <Ineal@npgcable.com>; Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>;

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

From: Lindsay Fenner <I[fenner(@utah.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 7:29 AM

To: Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>

Cec: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>;
Ineal@npgcable.com

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] RE: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey -
Kickoff

Hello Lynn,
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I can make virtually any time work for a call next week, I will just need to dial in as |
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

Cec: Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>; 'Lindsay Fenner'
<lfenner(@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>

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
I’'m ready (or will be soon) to get my boots on the ground.

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

From: Arie Leeflang <aleeflan tah.gov>

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
attached (AS23-112 Documents for Signature _completed.pdf). I've cc'ed the pertinent
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

2] M: (801) 635-8897
E: aleeflang@utah.gov

Utah Department of Natural Resources
Division of Wildlife Resources

BEE 8 wildlife.utah.gov

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

lfenner(@utah.gov

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
Date: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 11:53:11 AM

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

To: Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>; 'Lindsay Fenner' <Ifenner@utah.gov>

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
So is Thursday, March 30 at 3:00 pm good? If so, should | set up a Zoom meeting and send you
both an invite?

From: Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 9:57 AM

To: Lindsay Fenner <Ifenner@utah.gov>

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

From: Lindsay Fenner <|fenner@utah.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 10:53 AM

To: Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>

Cc: Ineal@npgcable.com <Ineal@npgcable.com>; Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin
S <eseiders@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: EXTERNAL Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Setting Kickoff Mtg

I'm open to that also -- | am in-office and available Thursday afternoon.

Although it's fairly common for me to need to participate in kick-offs or status calls from the field, |
appreciate the offer and flexibility Lynn. And for you too, Mike! Thanks everyone.

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

To: 'Lindsay Fenner' <[fenner@utah.gov>; Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>

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

<eseider: Im.gov>
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

To: "Arie Leeflang"; Ineal@npgcable.com

Cc: "Lindsay Fenner"; Seiders, Erin S

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] RE: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Kickoff
Date: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 6:23:17 AM

Hi Lynn,

Good to hear from you...my schedule for next week is fairly (except Friday), so | can probably
have a conversation almost any day/time that work for others.

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

Cc: Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>; 'Lindsay Fenner' <lfenner@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin S
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

| did indeed receive the PO this morning and have the files from the solicitation, but thanks for
sending anyway.

Let me know when you are both available for a meeting, Mike and Lindsay. Perhaps some time
next week?

| will have questions outlined/be seeking clarifications and intend to be efficient with your
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

Cc: msheehan@blm.gov; Lindsay Fenner <lfenner@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>
Subject: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Kickoff

Hi Lynn-

It's been a while, | hope things are fantastic down in Arizona. Thank you for your bid on the Young
Brothers Pipeline project. | trust you saw the PO that was generated this morning by State
Purchasing, officially awarding you the project. If not, please see attached (AS23-112 Documents for
Signature_completed.pdf). I've cc'ed the pertinent project personnel on this email:

Mike Sheehan, BLM Archaeologist, msheehan@blm.gov
Lindsay Fenner, SITLA Archaeologist, Ifenner@utah.gov
Erin Seiders, BLM Range Technician and project manager, eseiders@blm.gov

My role is to handle the solicitation, contracting and invoicing. Please send any invoices directly to
me.

Next steps on the project will be to schedule a kickoff meeting with Mike and Lindsay and to get BLM
and SITLA FWA requests submitted (one per each agency). I'm assuming you have the project data,
but if not, please find the relevant files attached. If there are any initial questions on these
documents, please let us know.

Beyond that, we're pleased to have you on this project!

Arie
Photo Arie Leeflang
Archaeologist
= M: (801) 635-8897
(2] E: aleeflang@utah.gov
Utah Department of Natural Resources
Division of Wildlife Resources

== wildlife.utah.gov
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The content of this email is confidential and intended for the recipient specified in the message only. It is strictly forbidden to share any part of this
message with any third party without the written consent of the sender. If you received this message by mistake, please reply to this message and follow
with its deletion so that we can ensure such a mistake does not occur in the future.



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

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] RE: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Kickoff Mtg 3-30-23 Complete
Date: Thursday, March 30, 2023 4:49:11 PM

Happy to help Lynn...have a good evening!
Mike

Michael S. Sheehan, Ph.D.
Cultural Resources Program Lead
BLM-Salt Lake Field Office

491 North John Glenn Rd.

Salt Lake City, UT 84116

Ph: 801-320-8373

From: Lynn A Neal <Ineal@npgcable.com>

Sent: Thursday, March 30, 2023 4:37 PM

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

Thanks Mike and Lindsay for your time and for being quick on your feet. Zoom did indeed
hang up on us, and you didn’t miss a beat signing in again to the meeting extension.

I'll be in touch with fieldwork authorizations soon.

Cheers, Lynn

From: Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>

Sent: Thursday, March 30, 2023 2:41 PM

To: Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>; Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>; Ineal@npgcable.com
Cc: Lindsay Fenner <Ifenner@utah.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Kickoff Mtg 3-30-23

| think "ZooM" hung up on us!
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Michael S. Sheehan, Ph.D.
Cultural Resources Program Lead
BLM-Salt Lake Field Office

491 North John Glenn Rd.

Salt Lake City, UT 84116

Ph: 801-320-8373

From: Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>
Sent: Thursday, March 30, 2023 9:27 AM

To: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>; Ineal@npgcable.com <Ineal@npgcable.com>
Cc: Lindsay Fenner <lfenner@utah.gov>; Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Kickoff Mtg 3-30-23
Thank you everyone, please reach out to me if you a need any more information.

Sincerely,
Erin

Erin Seiders, Range Technician
BLM Salt Lake Field Office
2370 S. Decker Lake Blvd

West Valley City, UT 84119
Desk: 801-977-4334

From: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>

Sent: Thursday, March 30, 2023 9:18 AM

To: Ineal@npgcable.com <|neal@npgcable.com>

Cc: Lindsay Fenner <lfenner@utah.gov>; Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>; Seiders, Erin S

<eseiders@blm.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Kickoff Mtg 3-30-23

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links,

opening attachments, or responding.

Thanks all - if anything comes up in your kickoff that involves me, please let me know. I'm off on a
quick family vacation, so unfortunately | won't be able to attend. Sending my best,

Aroie
Photo Arie Leeflang
Archaeologist
= M: (801) 635-8897
(2] E: aleeflang@utah.gov
Utah Department of Natural Resources
Division of Wildlife Resources

wildlife.utah.gov
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On Wed, Mar 29, 2023 at 3:02 PM Lynn A Neal <Ineal@npgcable.com> wrote:

I emailed you both a Zoom invite. Note that the meeting timeframe may reflect AZ time
(2:00-2:45 pm) rather than Utah/Mtn time (3:00-3:45 pm).
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
So is Thursday, March 30 at 3:00 pm good? If so, should I set up a Zoom meeting and
send you both an invite?

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

|| links, opening attachments, or responding. | |

With Lindsay in the field next week, would you two prefer to meet tomorrow or Friday
of this week? I’m available tomorrow afternoon and open Friday if either day works for
you.

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

Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey -
Kickoff

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking

on links, opening attachments, or responding.

Hi Arie, Mike, Lindsay, and Erin,
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Yes, it has been a minute! The melt in northern AZ has begun and spring has sprung,
so I’'m ready (or will be soon) to get my boots on the ground.

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
on the Young Brothers Pipeline project. I trust you saw the PO that was generated
this morning by State Purchasing, officially awarding you the project. If not, please
see attached (AS23-112 Documents for Signature completed.pdf). I've cc'ed the
pertinent project personnel on this email:

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

Next steps on the project will be to schedule a kickoff meeting with Mike and
Lindsay and to get BLM and SITLA FWA requests submitted (one per each agency).
I'm assuming you have the project data, but if not, please find the relevant files
attached. If there are any initial questions on these documents, please let us know.

Beyond that, we're pleased to have you on this project!

Arie
Arie Leeflang
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Photo
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

[fenner@utah.gov
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From: Arie Leeflang

To: Seiders, Erin S
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Young Pipeline Bid
Date: Monday, March 20, 2023 2:42:22 PM

Thanks Erin - I've asked State Purchasing to award the work. We'll keep you posted as the
project progresses.

Arie

Photo Arie Leeflang
Archaeologist

M: (801) 635-8897
E: aleeflang@utah.gov

Utah Department of Natural Resources
Division of Wildlife Resources

wildlife.utah.gov

On Mon, Mar 20, 2023 at 8:21 AM Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov> wrote:
Arie,

| talked to my supervisor Jordan Davis, and he is okay with the bid amount. Thanks again for
all your
hard work with this project.

Erin Seiders, Range Technician
BLM Salt Lake Field Office
2370 S. Decker Lake Blvd

West Valley City, UT 84119
Desk: 801-977-4334

From: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>
Sent: Friday, March 17, 2023 10:44 AM
To: Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Young Pipeline Bid

|| This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on ‘
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links, opening attachments, or responding.

No problem - I'll resend it. Happy Friday to you too

Photo Arie Leeflang
Archaeologist
2]

_' M: (801) 635-8897
E: aleeflang@utah.gov

Utah Department of Natural Resources
Division of Wildlife Resources

H E E wildlife.utah.gov

On Fri, Mar 17, 2023 at 10:17 AM Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov> wrote:
Hey Arie, | accidently deleted the email you sent with all the bid information. Could you
please

resend that to me ? Thanks a bunch. Happy Friday !!!

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
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Young Pipeline Cultural Report
Date: Thursday, October 26, 2023 11:33:50 AM

Thanks Erin - I finally heard back from the contractor that she is going to dive back into things
and provide us with a new due date. I'll keep you posted. Sorry this is such a boondoggle!

A

Photo

=

Arie Leeflang
Cultural Resources Program Specialist

M: (801) 635-8897
E: aleeflang@utah.gov

Utah Department of Natural Resources
Division of Wildlife Resources

wildlife.utah.gov

On Tue, Oct 24, 2023 at 8:26 AM Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov> wrote:

Erin Seiders, Range Technician
BLM Salt Lake Field Office
2370 S. Decker Lake Blvd

West Valley City, UT 84119

Desk: 801-977-4334

From: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, October 24, 2023 8:24 AM

To: Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Young Pipeline Cultural Report

Hey Erin - thanks for all that info. [ have an email to the contractor and I'm just waiting to
hear back. I'll keep you posted!

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

On Thu, Oct 19, 2023 at 3:06 PM Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov> wrote:
Hey Arie,

| do have some wiggle room for the time being since they won't probably be actually
starting construction until July. | do however, need those reports so that | can get the
paperwork finished up on my end, UGIP won't fund the project for my permittee without
first having the cultural clearances done. Always lots of paperwork to be finished before
anything can begin as you know...| really appreciate you

getting back to me, please let me know when you hear of any progress.

Sincerely,
Erin

Erin Seiders, Range Technician
BLM Salt Lake Field Office
2370 S. Decker Lake Blvd

West Valley City, UT 84119
Desk: 801-977-4334

From: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>

Sent: Thursday, October 19, 2023 2:46 PM

To: Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Young Pipeline Cultural Report

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on
links, opening attachments, or responding.

Hey Erin-

I admittedly haven't heard or followed up. I've been swamped and I have let this slide - my
apologies. She has three projects with me right now and she's behind on all of them. I've
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been pushing her on one that is super pressing - but I imagine yours is pressing too!
What's your timeline on the project? I can definitely push her.

Arie

Photo Arie Leeflang
Archaeologist

M: (801) 635-8897
E: aleeflang@utah.gov

Utah Department of Natural Resources
Division of Wildlife Resources

wildlife.utah.gov

On Thu, Oct 19, 2023 at 12:42 PM Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov> wrote:
Hi Arie, | was wondering if you have received word from Lynn about the finished reports
for the Young Pipeline ?

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
Date: Tuesday, October 24, 2023 8:24:55 AM

Hey Erin - thanks for all that info. I have an email to the contractor and I'm just waiting to
hear back. I'll keep you posted!

Photo Arie Leeflang
Cultural Resources Program Specialist

[-<]

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

| do have some wiggle room for the time being since they won't probably be actually starting
construction until July. | do however, need those reports so that | can get the paperwork
finished up on my end, UGIP won't fund the project for my permittee without first having
the cultural clearances done. Always lots of paperwork to be finished before anything can
begin as you know...| really appreciate you

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
been pushing her on one that is super pressing - but I imagine yours is pressing too! What's
your timeline on the project? I can definitely push her.

Arie

Photo Arie Leeflang
Archaeologist

— M: (801) 635-8897
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
Date: Tuesday, November 28, 2023 12:55:03 PM

Hey Erin-

I wanted to quickly check in - since it's been a while. Since we last emailed, I've been pushing
the contractor to finish up a different project that is super high priority. Unfortunately the
contractor keeps delaying and we are considering terminating that project. Things are a bit
fluid right now, but once that project is resolved, I'll be pushing on yours. I don't know what
the worst case scenario is, but I'm doing my best to get the project completed. I've never had a
contractor so delinquent and this is all new to me. I'll do my best to keep you posted - please
reach out at any time. Sorry for the trouble! This is definitely unexpected.

Arie

Photo Arie Leeflang
Cultural Resources Program Specialist

= M: (801) 635-8897
E: aleeflang@utah.gov

Utah Department of Natural Resources
Division of Wildlife Resources

wildlife.utah.gov
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On Mon, Oct 30, 2023 at 7:42 AM Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov> wrote:
Okay Arie, thanks for letting me know.

Erin Seiders, Range Technician
BLM Salt Lake Field Office
2370 S. Decker Lake Blvd

West Valley City, UT 84119
Desk: 801-977-4334

From: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>

Sent: Thursday, October 26, 2023 11:32 AM

To: Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Young Pipeline Cultural Report

Thanks Erin - I finally heard back from the contractor that she is going to dive back into
things and provide us with a new due date. I'll keep you posted. Sorry this is such a
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
paperwork finished up on my end, UGIP won't fund the project for my permittee
without first having the cultural clearances done. Always lots of paperwork to be
finished before anything can begin as you know...I really appreciate you

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

To: Seiders, Erin S <gseiders@blm.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Young Pipeline Cultural Report

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking
on links, opening attachments, or responding.

Hey Erin-

I admittedly haven't heard or followed up. I've been swamped and I have let this slide -
my apologies. She has three projects with me right now and she's behind on all of them.
I've been pushing her on one that is super pressing - but I imagine yours is pressing too!
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
Hi Arie, | was wondering if you have received word from Lynn about the finished
reports for the Young Pipeline ?

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

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Young Pipeline WRI Funding
Date: Tuesday, December 19, 2023 7:05:00 AM

Hi Erin-

I heard back from the contractor and she says she's planning to have everything wrapped up in
the second week of January. She says she's going to have one of the other projects I have
contracted with her wrapped up this week (it's an easy one) - so that will be somewhat of a test
case. I'll keep you posted and keep pushing. Thanks for your patience - this is definitely a
weird one! Happy Holidays :)

Arie

Photo Arie Leeflang
Cultural Resources Program Specialist

M: (801) 635-8897
E: aleeflang@utah.gov

Utah Department of Natural Resources
Division of Wildlife Resources
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On Thu, Dec 14, 2023 at 11:08 AM Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov> wrote:
Hi Arie,

Thanks for getting back to me on this, | was talking to my supervisor about this yesterday
and there were concerns about loosing money. Its sounding like things are going to start
moving forward soon, (hopefully) | really appreciate your attention on this project with
trying to get things finished up.

Erin

Erin Seiders, Range Technician
BLM Salt Lake Field Office
2370 S. Decker Lake Blvd

West Valley City, UT 84119
Desk: 801-977-4334

From: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>
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Sent: Thursday, December 14, 2023 6:35 AM
To: Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Young Pipeline WRI Funding

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on
links, opening attachments, or responding.

Hi Erin-

Thanks for checking in and that all makes sense. To date, we have indeed spent
$11,865.10. That covers the fieldwork portion of the project and now we're just
waiting on the reporting. The reporting portion of the project will be invoiced at
$7,910.00 for a project total of $ $19,775.10 for the archaeology. The full amount
should be invoiced well in advance of the end of June. Does that provide you the
information you need?

As a further update - | reached out to the contractor yesterday asking for another
update. They finally got me the reporting for a different project last week (equally far
behind schedule) that was a serious priority. Young Brothers is next in the priority
list. Good news is that they provided a good product. Bad news is that things are
obviously crazy behind schedule. I'll let you know when | hear back from them.

I'm sorry for the trouble! I've never had an issue like this before.

Avrie

Photo Arie Leeflang
Cultural Resources Program Specialist

M: (801) 635-8897
E: aleeflang@utah.gov

Utah Department of Natural Resources
Division of Wildlife Resources

HEHE B wildlife.utah.gov

On Wed, Dec 13, 2023 at 2:44 PM Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov> wrote:
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Hey Arie,

We received an email from WRI in regards to funding not being drawn for existing
projects. The WRI agreement shows that the Invoice amount is $11,865.10 with a balance
remaining of $13,134.90. | was wondering how much will

be paid to the contractor once the final reports are submitted ? | attached the
spreadsheet with these totals from the email. The totals in peach represent the funds that
could be lost if not used by June 2024. | really appreciate you

checking this for me.

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
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Sage Creek Road Crossing
Date: Thursday, August 31, 2023 2:57:03 PM

Sounds good. That’s what I've done (notify Jared and managers) and a similar response that I've
gotten on other road issues that I've brought up in the past. That bridge has been sketchy for a while
so I’'m not surprised to see it blew out.

Cassie Mellon

Fisheries and Riparian Program Lead
BLM Utah

801-539-4073 (office)
385-443-1621 (cell)
cmellon@blm.gov

From: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>
Sent: Thursday, August 31, 2023 2:14 PM
To: Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Sage Creek Road Crossing

Hi Cassie,

| have seen this. Jessie from WLC sent me an email with the same pictures. | forwarded it on to
Jared Reddington and Jordan Davis. | have not heard anything back on any of it yet. |
forwarded it on the day or maybe one day after | received it from Jessie. But, Jordan and Jared
should be aware. Do you recommend | do anything more with it?

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

Sent: Thursday, August 31, 2023 12:56 PM

To: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>

Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Sage Creek Road Crossing

Hi Brandon, did you see this road wash out? This is the bridge over Sage Creek — just off of the
highway. I'm not sure if this is something for operations but thought you should know at least.
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Cassie Mellon

Fisheries and Riparian Program Lead
BLM Utah

801-539-4073 (office)
385-443-1621 (cell)
cmellon@blm.gov

From: Kleimeyer,Mitch <Mitchell.Kleimeyer@colostate.edu>
Sent: Thursday, August 31, 2023 12:51 PM

To: Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Sage Creek Road Crossing

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links,
opening attachments, or responding.

Hi Cassie,

Forwarding these bridge photos to you in case you haven't received them yet. This is the
crossing at 41.768690, -111.174216 just off of the paved road and the damage occurred
during a flash/storm event the evening of 8/17/2023.

Thanks,

Mitch

Mitchell Kleimeyer

Aquatic Ecology Research Associate
Colorado Natural Heritage Program
Colorado State University
Mitchell.Kleimeyer@colostate.edu

From: David Fleshman <dflesh5 @gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2023 9:37 AM

To: Kleimeyer,Mitch <Mitchell.Kleimeyer@colostate.edu>
Subject:



mailto:cmellon@blm.gov
mailto:Mitchell.Kleimeyer@colostate.edu
mailto:cmellon@blm.gov
mailto:Mitchell.Kleimeyer@colostate.edu
mailto:dflesh5@gmail.com
mailto:Mitchell.Kleimeyer@colostate.edu

** Caution: EXTERNAL Sender **



From: Neff, Brandon D

To: Mellon, Cassie D

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Sage Creek Road Crossing
Date: Thursday, August 31, 2023 2:13:47 PM

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

H This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links,
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

From: David Fleshman <dflesh5@gmail.com>

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

To: Lynn Neal

Cc: Seiders, Erin S; Lindsay Fenner; Sheehan, Michael S

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Young Bros Water Infrastructure Arch Survey - Report Update
Date: Wednesday, September 13, 2023 6:48:02 AM

Thanks Lynn - the update is appreciated.

Arie

Photo Arie Leeflang
Archaeologist

M: (801) 635-8897
E: aleeflang@utah.gov

Utah Department of Natural Resources
Division of Wildlife Resources

wildlife.utah.gov
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On Tue, Sep 12,2023 at 10:01 AM Lynn Neal <lynnaneal@outlook.com> wrote:
Hi everyone,
I’'m working to wrap up the report in the next couple of days.
| very much appreciate you all bearing with me to make submittal.

Respectfully, Lynn

From: Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, September 5, 2023 9:19 AM

To: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang(@utah.gov>; Lynn Neal <lynnaneal@outlook.com>

Cc: Lindsay Fenner <lfenner@utah.gov>; Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: EXTERNAL Young Bros Water Infrastructure Arch
Survey - Report Update

Arie,
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Yes that timeline should work okay, thank you.

Sincerely,

Erin

Erin Seiders, Range Technician
BLM Salt Lake Field Office
2370 S. Decker Lake Blvd

West Valley City, UT 84119

Desk: 801-977-4334

From: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang(@utah.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, September 5, 2023 9:55 AM
To: Lynn Neal <lynnaneal@outlook.com>

Cec: Lindsay Fenner <lfenner@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>; Sheehan,

Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: EXTERNAL Young Bros Water Infrastructure Arch Survey -

Report Update

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links,
opening attachments, or responding.

Thanks for the update Lynn - | hope you had a great weekend as well.

Erin - | trust that timeline will work. If not, please let us know.

Best wishes,

Arie

Arie Leeflang
Archaeologist
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On Fri, Sep 1, 2023 at 1:47 PM Lynn Neal <lynnaneal@outlook.com> wrote:

Thanks for checking in about this report and closing out the project, Arie.

The report and associated deliverables are relatively close to complete, and obviously |
need to refocus and get them done.

| will get back to the reporting next week and hopefully wrap it up by week’s end (9/8-9)
and off to you all.

Have a nice holiday weekend, Lynn

From: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>
Sent: Friday, September 1, 2023 7:08 AM

To: lynnaneal@outlook.com

Cec: Lindsay Fenner <lfenner(@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>; Sheehan,
Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Young Bros Water Infrastructure Arch Survey - Report
Update

Hi Lynn-

| know you are juggling a bunch of projects right now - but could you please give us an update
and expected timeline for draft deliverables for the Young Brothers project? At this point we're
a couple of weeks past the final deadline but I'm assuming you're close?
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

Cc: Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>; Lindsay Fenner <lfenner@utah.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Young Bros Water Infrastructure Arch Survey - Report
Update
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This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links,
opening attachments, or responding.

Hi Lynn-

Happy to help. For some reason it was giving me some trouble, but | finally got it figured out.
Here are the stats:

BLM: 127.43
SITLA: 30.79

Private: 131.36

| hope that helps!
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

| am working as quickly as | can to complete the draft report for the Young Brothers
survey, and realize I'm missing some information that hopefully one or more of you
has already calculated. | am looking for the project APE acreage breakdown by
landowner. Is this something one of you could provide or do | need to go ahead and
calculate these acreages?
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

lynnaneal®@outlook.com
928/606-2258
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From: Lynn Neal

To: Seiders, Erin S; Arie Leeflang

Cc: Lindsay Fenner; Sheehan, Michael S

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Young Bros Water Infrastructure Arch Survey - Report Update
Date: Tuesday, September 12, 2023 10:02:02 AM

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

To: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>; Lynn Neal <lynnaneal@outlook.com>

Cc: Lindsay Fenner <Ifenner@utah.gov>; Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: EXTERNAL Young Bros Water Infrastructure Arch Survey - Report
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

Cc: Lindsay Fenner <lfenner@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>; Sheehan, Michael S
<msheehan@blm.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: EXTERNAL Young Bros Water Infrastructure Arch Survey - Report Update

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

The report and associated deliverables are relatively close to complete, and obviously | need
to refocus and get them done.

I will get back to the reporting next week and hopefully wrap it up by week’s end (9/8-9)
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

| know you are juggling a bunch of projects right now - but could you please give us an update and
expected timeline for draft deliverables for the Young Brothers project? At this point we're a
couple of weeks past the final deadline but I'm assuming you're close?

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
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On Mon, Jul 31, 2023 at 10:39 AM |lynnaneal@outlook.com <lynnaneal@outlook.com> wrote:

Hi all,

| am working as quickly as | can to complete the draft report for the Young Brothers
survey, and realize I’'m missing some information that hopefully one or more of you has
already calculated. | am looking for the project APE acreage breakdown by landowner.
Is this something one of you could provide or do | need to go ahead and calculate these
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
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From: lynnaneal@outlook.com

To: Seiders, Erin S
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Directions to PA
Date: Tuesday, June 20, 2023 10:44:52 AM

We're planning to be traveling to/from and in the field June 23-28.

From: Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, June 20, 2023 7:05 AM

To: lynnaneal@outlook.com

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] RE: EXTERNAL Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Directions to
PA

No problem Lynn, glad | could help. Do you know what date you'll be starting ?

Erin Seiders, Range Technician
BLM Salt Lake Field Office
2370 S. Decker Lake Blvd

West Valley City, UT 84119
Desk: 801-977-4334

From: lynnaneal@outlook.com <lynnaneal@outlook.com>
Sent: Friday, June 16, 2023 12:34 PM

To: Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: EXTERNAL Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Directions to PA

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links,

opening attachments, or responding.

This is very helpful and confirms what | was seeing as the best route online. Also confirms that
Tremonton is the closet place to stay, and a nice heads up about gassing up in Snowville
before heading off highway!

Thanks so much, Erin, and Happy long weekend to you, Lynn

From: Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>
Sent: Friday, June 16, 2023 9:47 AM

To: lynnaneal@outlook.com
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] RE: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Directions to PA

Hi Lynn,

To get to the project area you would take Highway 30 from Snowville UT. Follow signs for Park
Valley and Montello NV. Once you take a left and start and start heading south it should be
about nine miles and you should see a sign on the left for Kelton/Terrace. You go about 6
miles and take a right where the road splits. From there you should be able to navigate to the
project area with your
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GPS. The closest town for Hotel and Emergency Facilities would be Tremonton. Snowville does
have a few gas stations and a couple restaurants also. | would definitely recommend topping
off your gas in Snowville, no gas stations on Park Valley or Rosette. Hope this helps, I'm going
to be off the rest of today but will be back in the office next Tuesday if you have any more
questions. Thanks again for taking on this project.

Sincerely,
Erin

Erin Seiders, Range Technician
BLM Salt Lake Field Office
2370 S. Decker Lake Blvd

West Valley City, UT 84119
Desk: 801-977-4334

From: lynnaneal@outlook.com <lynnaneal@outlook.com>
Sent: Friday, June 16, 2023 9:41 AM

To: Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Directions to PA

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links,

opening attachments, or responding.

Hey Erin,

I’'m guessing you may be the best person to ask regarding the most direct directions to the
project area from the interstate/highway (we will be coming into the general area from the
south on 1-15/1-84), and also the closest town for a place to stay and emergency services.
Thanks in advance for your input, Lynn

From: Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>

Sent: Thursday, June 8, 2023 9:05 AM

To: Lindsay Fenner <lfenner@utah.gov>; Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>

Cc: lynnaneal@outlook.com; Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Extension

Lynn,

Thank you for accepting the extension, were looking forward to having the Young Pipeline
project move forward.

Sincerely,

Erin
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Erin Seiders, Range Technician
BLM Salt Lake Field Office
2370 S. Decker Lake Blvd

West Valley City, UT 84119
Desk: 801-977-4334

From: Lindsay Fenner <|/fenner@utah.gov>

Sent: Thursday, June 8, 2023 9:53 AM

To: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>

Cc: lynnaneal@outlook.com <lynnaneal@outlook.com>; Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>;

Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Extension

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on links,
opening attachments, or responding.

Same here. Thanks Lynn.
Lindsay

On Thu, Jun 8, 2023 at 8:52 AM Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov> wrote:

Thanks Lynn- we appreciate your services. Best wishes,

Arie
Photo Arie Leeflang
Archaeologist

(2] M: (801) 635-8897
E: aleeflang@utah.gov

Utah Department of Natural Resources
Division of Wildlife Resources
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On Thu, Jun 8, 2023 at 8:26 AM lynnaneal@outlook.com <lynnaneal@outlook.com> wrote:

Thank you so much for the deadline extension. | am very grateful.
This timeframe is doable.

I will be in touch shortly, Mike and Lindsay.

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
Sent: Wednesday, June 7, 2023 9:40 AM

To: lynnaneal@outlook.com

Cc: msheehan@blm.gov; Lindsay Fenner <lfenner@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin S

<eseiders@blm.gov>

Subject: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Extension

Hi Lynn-

I've emailed with the project manager (Erin - cc'ed) and with Mike and Lindsay and we are able
to make a deadline extension work (thanks Erin, Lindsay and Mike!). I'd like to propose the
following deadlines to match the overall project needs:

e Fieldwork completion: 6/30/2023

e Draft deliverables submitted: 7/28/2023

e Final deliverables submitted: 8/15/2023
We'll do our best to provide a quick review on the draft deliverables. The 8/15 deadline would
be a hard deadline that we'll need to adhere to.

If that works for you, please let us know. Then, please move forward with adjusting the FWAs to
match the fieldwork timing. If the deadlines don't work, also please let us know and we can
discuss further internally.

We appreciate your work on this project and we can definitely appreciate the challenges of
running a small business! Please keep us in the loop if you run into any challenges or issues
during fieldwork. Thanks,

Arie
Photo Arie Leeflang
Archaeologist

M: (801) 635-8897
E: aleeflang@utah.gov

Utah Department of Natural Resources
Division of Wildlife Resources
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Utah Trustlands Logo

Lindsay A. Fenner, M.A., RPA
ARCHAEOLOGIST

O: 801-538-5168
Ifenner@utah.gov

102 South 200 East, #600, SLC UT 84111 trustlands.utah.gov
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From: Arie Leeflang

To: Seiders, Erin S

Cc: Lindsay Fenner; Sheehan, Michael S

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Young Brothers Pipeline Update
Date: Wednesday, January 17, 2024 11:18:56 AM

Hello again everyone-

I appreciate everyone's feedback and general agreement to stay the course. Yesterday I

received the draft deliverables from her for another project (also significantly overdue) that
were [most recently] promised last week. Good news is the report for that project was super
clean and no revisions were needed. So I'm hopeful we'll get a good product on our project.

Bad news is that I presume she hasn't been working on Young Brothers over the last week.
Realistically I think we'll see draft deliverables by the end of the month. I'll keep poking her
and do my best to keep everyone in the loop. Thanks all,

Arie

Photo Arie Leeflang
Cultural Resources Program Specialist

M: (801) 635-8897
E: aleeflang@utah.gov

Utah Department of Natural Resources
Division of Wildlife Resources

wildlife.utah.gov

On Thu, Jan 11, 2024 at 11:55 AM Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov> wrote:
| also agree with Michael, hopefully she will be finished next week with a good

product...Happy Thursday !!!
Erin

Erin Seiders, Range Technician
BLM Salt Lake Field Office
2370 S. Decker Lake Blvd

West Valley City, UT 84119
Desk: 801-977-4334

From: Lindsay Fenner <|/fenner@utah.gov>
Sent: Thursday, January 11, 2024 11:34 AM
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To: Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>
Cc: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin S <gseiders@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Young Brothers Pipeline Update

I agree with Michael's sentiment. While it took a hefty amount of prodding and the need for
Arie to get very real with Lynn, she did eventually come through with a good product. As
the man holding the purse strings, that does put more on Arie once again, but I think he
handled everything as professionally and appropriately as humanly possible given the
conditions of the project we recently finished with Lynn. With the experience of that last
project, I am slightly more confident that she will pull through again, even if it does require
the same or more coaxing.

Thanks again Arie for professionally handling all the less fun aspects of these projects and
for helping us to achieve the best results possible.

On Thu, Jan 11, 2024 at 11:09 AM Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov> wrote:
Hey Arie,
My thinking is "let her finish" and then be careful going forward. If you pull the plug on
the project, we will be back at square one. Just my 2 cents worth!

Happy Thursday all!
Mike

Michael S. Sheehan, Ph.D.
Cultural Resources Program Lead
BLM-Salt Lake Field Office

491 North John Glenn Rd.

Salt Lake City, UT 84116

Ph: 801-320-8373

From: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>
Sent: Thursday, January 11, 2024 10:39 AM
To: Lindsay Fenner <lfenner@utah.gov>; Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>; Seiders,

Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Young Brothers Pipeline Update

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on
links, opening attachments, or responding.
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Hi all-

I've been neglecting to update everyone on the Young Brothers Pipeline project for some
time. My apologies. The project is drastically overdue but Lynn has promised the draft
deliverables by mid January. So next week.

Lindsay and I have already been through this on a separate project with Lynn that was also
significantly overdue. She did come through in the end and provided a good product, but it
took a lot of prodding. Outside of Young Brothers, I have another project with her (and
NRCS) that is in the same situation, but is simply a negative report.

In communication with the DWR legal team, it sounds like we can terminate the contract

at any time, with something like five days notice. Given we've already paid her a bit (as is
standard) my preference is to hope for the best and if needed, threaten project termination
to spur things along.

Based on the other project that Lindsay and I experienced with Lynn, I expect she'll come
through with a decent product. But I also expect it will take some pushing.

Please let me know if you have any questions or want to terminate the contract ASAP.
I'll include you on prodding-emails to Lynn next week if needed. Thanks - and sorry this
project is so far behind schedule.

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

102 South 200 East, #600, SLC UT 84111
trustlands.utah.gov

* PLEASE NOTE OUR NEW OFFICE LOCATION -
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From: Lindsay Fenner

To: Seiders, Erin S

Cc: Arie Leeflang; Sheehan, Michael S

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Young Brothers Pipeline Update
Date: Wednesday, January 17, 2024 11:43:02 AM

Thanks for the update. Really glad to hear she's still plugging along on other projects and is
providing a good product.

On Wed, Jan 17, 2024 at 11:40 AM Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov> wrote:
Arie,

Thank you for the update...

Sincerely,
Erin

Erin Seiders, Range Technician
BLM Salt Lake Field Office
2370 S. Decker Lake Blvd

West Valley City, UT 84119
Desk: 801-977-4334

From: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, January 17, 2024 11:17 AM

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

HEE & wildlife.utah.gov

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

I agree with Michael's sentiment. While it took a hefty amount of prodding and the need
for Arie to get very real with Lynn, she did eventually come through with a good product.
As the man holding the purse strings, that does put more on Arie once again, but I think he
handled everything as professionally and appropriately as humanly possible given the
conditions of the project we recently finished with Lynn. With the experience of that last
project, I am slightly more confident that she will pull through again, even if it does
require the same or more coaxing.

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

I've been neglecting to update everyone on the Young Brothers Pipeline project for
some time. My apologies. The project is drastically overdue but Lynn has promised the
draft deliverables by mid January. So next week.

Lindsay and I have already been through this on a separate project with Lynn that was
also significantly overdue. She did come through in the end and provided a good
product, but it took a lot of prodding. Outside of Young Brothers, I have another project
with her (and NRCS) that is in the same situation, but is simply a negative report.

In communication with the DWR legal team, it sounds like we can terminate the
contract at any time, with something like five days notice. Given we've already paid her
a bit (as is standard) my preference is to hope for the best and if needed, threaten project
termination to spur things along.

Based on the other project that Lindsay and I experienced with Lynn, I expect she'll
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come through with a decent product. But I also expect it will take some pushing.

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

The content of this email is confidential and intended for the recipient specified in the message only. It is strictly forbidden to share any part of
this message with any third party without the written consent of the sender. If you received this message by mistake, please reply to this
message and follow with its deletion so that we can ensure such a mistake does not occur in the future.

Utah Trustlands Logo

Lindsay A. Fenner | M.A., RPA
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
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Ffacebook.com%2FUtahDWR&data=05%7C02%7Ceseiders%40blm.gov%7Ca538ff2c80854e73ecbf08dc178c2023%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638411137814775554%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=BPg%2FHaEfvnTgmdBL2J1Dp25oirOpJ5xucnmGnLJDEQs%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FUtahDWR&data=05%7C02%7Ceseiders%40blm.gov%7Ca538ff2c80854e73ecbf08dc178c2023%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638411137814781060%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=CqddlDiXGDkotE09yoUzcJka86MsMGY9zebBreL4Qpo%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2Fuser%2FUDWR&data=05%7C02%7Ceseiders%40blm.gov%7Ca538ff2c80854e73ecbf08dc178c2023%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638411137814786408%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=nG3x7zfjyehNDKdK3uyE48A%2Bmb%2F6mCVljcd8VuUVhJg%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.instagram.com%2Futahdwr%2F&data=05%7C02%7Ceseiders%40blm.gov%7Ca538ff2c80854e73ecbf08dc178c2023%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638411137814791589%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ynn3fyS2CrykVh0wfKoCaf0BDpHA1QfAg6pvdSqCIag%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwildlife.utah.gov%2F&data=05%7C02%7Ceseiders%40blm.gov%7Ca538ff2c80854e73ecbf08dc178c2023%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638411137814796636%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ctlNA00B%2BroO5zkLzmeR0VINY1%2BxbJ3fHt%2Ft%2FqOI6D8%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftrustlands.utah.gov%2F&data=05%7C02%7Ceseiders%40blm.gov%7Ca538ff2c80854e73ecbf08dc178c2023%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638411137814802194%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2B9SDYSIY9QPqG1b0N3kORDoGHQHSoBb%2FV6j2EQaDYII%3D&reserved=0
mailto:lfenner@utah.gov
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftrustlands.utah.gov%2F&data=05%7C02%7Ceseiders%40blm.gov%7Ca538ff2c80854e73ecbf08dc178c2023%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638411137814807628%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=hteuiCtipicSCLH0ARChagQgZpv4muQwAwEr2l5co8c%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FUtahSITLA%2F&data=05%7C02%7Ceseiders%40blm.gov%7Ca538ff2c80854e73ecbf08dc178c2023%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638411137814813106%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=tlLGRvODc8UG3c%2FrQuMjZ8ihzxrRF2gg5FnMQtJWWSM%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Futahsitla&data=05%7C02%7Ceseiders%40blm.gov%7Ca538ff2c80854e73ecbf08dc178c2023%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638411137814818093%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=gLMvRS2QawKnX0%2BTlvuEKxraeGIuP5H0BtR%2BKuUubpY%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.instagram.com%2Futahsitla%2F&data=05%7C02%7Ceseiders%40blm.gov%7Ca538ff2c80854e73ecbf08dc178c2023%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638411137814823472%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=rzOE4BgoVfPYr3RtQRErhs4T3bRZssuLvgsEeRTsyXg%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fcompany%2Futahsitla%2F&data=05%7C02%7Ceseiders%40blm.gov%7Ca538ff2c80854e73ecbf08dc178c2023%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638411137814828894%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=iEewizYOw13F1n4nln0E6qUCthEXTZult8OWtSAUBUg%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftrustlands.utah.gov%2F&data=05%7C02%7Ceseiders%40blm.gov%7Ca538ff2c80854e73ecbf08dc178c2023%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638411137814834252%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Q9FO1fqACYTjQr%2FeJMSYdOeh8%2BK%2FLt3cZ8dXHOoumQ0%3D&reserved=0

Ifenner@utah.gov

102 South 200 East, #600, SLC UT 84111
trustlands.utah.gov

* PLEASE NOTE OUR NEW OFFICE LOCATION -


mailto:lfenner@utah.gov
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftrustlands.utah.gov%2F&data=05%7C02%7Ceseiders%40blm.gov%7Ca538ff2c80854e73ecbf08dc178c2023%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638411137814839713%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Jup7JvdYeeCZVeVklUthxzFPw7p9nder4Vn6MUdZt5g%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FUtahSITLA%2F&data=05%7C02%7Ceseiders%40blm.gov%7Ca538ff2c80854e73ecbf08dc178c2023%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638411137814845125%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=hs0Xs1xrl2OJe%2FVkMYlNBdVF4crwoP5pkAelTR2QZLs%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Futahsitla&data=05%7C02%7Ceseiders%40blm.gov%7Ca538ff2c80854e73ecbf08dc178c2023%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638411137814850607%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Fm33LCas%2FrKcgJaroZyouE6sGLT%2BaqEnB1qZnBRaCxU%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.instagram.com%2Futahsitla%2F&data=05%7C02%7Ceseiders%40blm.gov%7Ca538ff2c80854e73ecbf08dc178c2023%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638411137814855926%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=1S5ArI79RrcEzmhM4x%2BTD7m%2FKFlayoYmEx4GFuxL1g4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fcompany%2Futahsitla%2F&data=05%7C02%7Ceseiders%40blm.gov%7Ca538ff2c80854e73ecbf08dc178c2023%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638411137814861261%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=v6l7brFBQwh5494AxBCfYoNNr%2FG9WP6KtfqYCSis7Bw%3D&reserved=0

From: Sheehan, Michael S

To: Arie Leeflang; Seiders, Erin S

Cc: Lindsay Fenner

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Young Brothers Pipeline Update
Date: Wednesday, January 17, 2024 11:37:51 AM

No worries...thanks for the update Arie.

Happy Wednesday alll
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

-

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

From: Lindsay Fenner <[fenner@utah.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 11, 2024 11:34 AM

To: Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>

Cc: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>
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
message with any third party without the written consent of the sender. If you received this message by mistake, please reply to this message and
follow with its deletion so that we can ensure such a mistake does not occur in the future.

Utah Trustlands Logo

Lindsay A. Fenner | M.A., RPA
ARCHAEOLOGIST

O: 801-538-5168

Ifenner@utah.gov

102 South 200 East, #600, SLC UT 84111
trustlands.utah.gov

* PLEASE NOTE OUR NEW OFFICE LOCATION »
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From: Sheehan, Michael S

To: Arie Leeflang; Lindsay Fenner; Seiders, Erin S
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Young Brothers Pipeline Update
Date: Thursday, January 11, 2024 11:09:47 AM

Hey Arie,

My thinking is "let her finish" and then be careful going forward. If you pull the plug on the
project, we will be back at square one. Just my 2 cents worth!

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

To: Lindsay Fenner <Ifenner@utah.gov>; Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>; Seiders, Erin S
<eseiders@blm.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Young Brothers Pipeline Update

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on
links, opening attachments, or responding.

Hi all-

I've been neglecting to update everyone on the Young Brothers Pipeline project for some time.
My apologies. The project is drastically overdue but Lynn has promised the draft deliverables
by mid January. So next week.

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

In communication with the DWR legal team, it sounds like we can terminate the contract at
any time, with something like five days notice. Given we've already paid her a bit (as is
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standard) my preference is to hope for the best and if needed, threaten project termination to

spur things along.

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
Subject: Re: Bear River fences
Date: Wednesday, September 13, 2023 2:36:30 PM

Yes, that was the 28 miles | mentioned in the first email.

Nancy N Williams

Wildlife Biologist

Salt Lake Field Office
Bureau of Land Management
491 North John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116
(801) 320-8357

From: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, September 13, 2023 2:32 PM
To: Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Bear River fences

Also, were you able to get the mileage of the fence lines we discussed in the meeting?

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
Sent: Tuesday, September 12, 2023 3:14 PM
To: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>
Subject: Fw: Bear River fences

| forgot to mention that we need to mark fences in high risk areas for grouse and if we are
going to use those wood fence stays we need to mitigate for those as raptor perches as well. |
can do a clip and identify the sections that need to be marked.

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
Sent: Tuesday, September 12, 2023 2:52 PM
To: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>
Subject: Bear River fences

Brandon -

Attached are a pdf and shapefiles for the Bear River Fences. The fences we agreed to in the
meeting yesterday are in dark green with a priority of "high". They only totaled ~28 miles, so |
chose ~14 more miles of fence that | would like to see modified, which is light green with a
priority of "wild". That totals ~42 miles of fence. What do you think?

[FYI - The other categories include my original highest priorities 1 purple and 2 blue, the
fences | prioritized lower (low - brown), and the Stuart fence that is being removed (gray -
remov)].

Nancy

Nancy N Williams

Wildlife Biologist

Salt Lake Field Office
Bureau of Land Management
491 North John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116
(801) 320-8357



From: Neff, Brandon D

To: Williams, Nancy N
Subject: Re: Bear River fences
Date: Wednesday, September 13, 2023 2:32:39 PM

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
Date: Wednesday, September 13, 2023 2:12:06 PM

Thanks Nancy! | have a couple questions.

What does 1 & 2 mean on the legend?

What does Wild mean on the legend?

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
Date: Wednesday, September 13, 2023 2:40:33 PM

"I chose ~14 more miles of fence that | would like to see modified, which is light green with a
priority of "wild".

"[FYI - The other categories include my original highest priorities 1 purple and 2 blue, the
fences | prioritized lower (low - brown), and the Stuart fence that is being removed (gray -
remov)]".

Nancy N Williams

Wildlife Biologist

Salt Lake Field Office
Bureau of Land Management
491 North John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116
(801) 320-8357

From: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, September 13, 2023 2:12 PM
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

To: Davis, Jordan R; Williams, Nancy N

Subject: Re: Bear River wildlife priority fences for modification/replacement
Date: Tuesday, August 29, 2023 11:45:28 AM

Attachments: Outlook-wiceg4kv.png

| can do that. | will start the conversation with UGIP and Three Creeks to confirm whether that
fence is needed or not.

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

Sent: Tuesday, August 29, 2023 11:43 AM

To: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>; Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Bear River wildlife priority fences for modification/replacement

Thanks all, Kevin is tied in with the fence shape Nancy sent and has added it to our list
for inspection.

Brandon,

Would you get with Kevin and look over a fence line in Three Creeks, Stuart Pasture
and next to the Woodruff allotment. [ am not seeing a purpose for the fence there and
Nancy has it flagged on the shape file for modification. If it isn't needed we may just

added it to the contract for removal. But please verify if it is or isn't needed.

Take care,

NATIONAL SYSTEM OF PUBLIC LANDS

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT

-‘?

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

Sent: Tuesday, August 29, 2023 11:02 AM

To: Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>; Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Bear River wildlife priority fences for modification/replacement

Thank You Nancy, this will be a big help. We will be coordinating with you as the project gets
further along.

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

Sent: Tuesday, August 29, 2023 10:46 AM

To: Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>
Subject: Bear River wildlife priority fences for modification/replacement

I've attached the shapefile for the fences that | prioritized for replacement/modification in the
Bear River area. This shapefile probably does include some fences in the Woodruff Pastures
area that you have already upgraded and can therefore be removed from the project.

The total mileage of fence that | have prioritized was 102 miles (based on $10,000 per mile). |
can go back and review and narrow this down more if needed.

Nancy

Nancy N Williams

Wildlife Biologist

Salt Lake Field Office
Bureau of Land Management
491 North John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116
(801) 320-8357



From: Davis, Jordan R

To: Neff, Brandon D; Williams, Nancy N

Subject: Re: Bear River wildlife priority fences for modification/replacement
Date: Tuesday, August 29, 2023 11:43:03 AM

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

\__ A& /

Jordan Davis

Assistant Field Manager

Salt Lake Field Office|Bureau of Land Management -Utah
p: (385) 278-3618

W: www.blm.gov

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


mailto:jordandavis@blm.gov
mailto:bneff@blm.gov
mailto:nwilliam@blm.gov
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.blm.gov%2Futah&data=05%7C01%7Cbneff%40blm.gov%7C705d85a5cecf46b88cf408dba8b763f7%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638289277828123815%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=9qUA0bCE3U9aLuHBLZ7rru5MIQ3nmsKIE1IEwsmQLpc%3D&reserved=0
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

To: Williams, Nancy N; Davis, Jordan R
Subject: Re: Bear River wildlife priority fences for modification/replacement
Date: Tuesday, August 29, 2023 11:02:05 AM

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
Date: Tuesday, August 29, 2023 1:27:51 PM

Attachments: Outlook-wiceg4kv.png

Hi All,

| just had a conversation with Taylor Payne about the fence in the southeast corner of the
Stuart Pasture. He recommended removal of the fence and stated it served no purpose and is
a liability/impediment if anything. | will follow up with Dale Lamborn to make sure, but it
sounds like this is a fence line we could put on the removal list.

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

To: Gallegos, Heather D; Howell, Tami L
Subject: RE: CBS Fee waivers
Date: Monday, November 13, 2023 7:41:00 AM

Okay thanks Heather. | wonder if they paid it right before we sent the late fee waivers in.

From: Gallegos, Heather D <hgallegos@blm.gov>

Sent: Thursday, November 9, 2023 10:24 AM

To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>; Howell, Tami L <thowell@blm.gov>
Subject: FW: CBS Fee waivers

Marcus,
Waivers have been entered; | will work with Erica next week to do the refund.

Thank you

From: CBS WaivelateFee, BLM_OC <BLM_OC _CBS WaivelateFee@blm.gov>
Sent: Thursday, November 9, 2023 9:54 AM

To: Gallegos, Heather D <hgallegos@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: CBS Fee waivers

Hello Heather,

Your waiver requests have been completed. Summary Bill 2023027231 has an
overpayment of 137.16. You will need to do a refund to the customer. thank you

From: Gallegos, Heather D <hgallegos@blm.gov>

Sent: Thursday, November 9, 2023 8:56 AM

To: CBS_WaivelateFee, BLM_OC <BLM_OC_CBS_WaivelateFee@blm.gov>
Cc: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>; Howell, Tami L <thowell@blm.gov>
Subject: CBS Fee waivers

Please see attached.

Thank you,

Heather Corona
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From: Puttere, Jennifer M

To: Gallegos, Heather D; Neff, Brandon D

Cc: Wade, Jessica A

Subject: RE: Dee"s inc

Date: Friday, November 3, 2023 9:36:27 AM

Attachments: Grazing Schedule 2023-2024 DeesInc BasinLL (1).pdf
image004.png

Signed

Jennifer Puttere

Assistant Field Manager, Renewables — Salt Lake Field Office
West Desert District

Bureau of Land Management

491 North John Glenn Road

Salt Lake City, Utah 84116

Desk Phone: 801-320-8364

Cell Phone: 385-471-1518

From: Gallegos, Heather D <hgallegos@blm.gov>

Sent: Friday, November 3, 2023 9:29 AM

To: Puttere, Jennifer M <jputtere@blm.gov>; Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>
Subject: Dee's inc

Jennifer,

I need this signed but due to you not being in dts I was not able to
add you to the routing. can you please at your soonest convenience
digital sign or print, sign, and scan back to me?

I apologize for any inconvenience.

Thank you so much,

v

o _*,..) *)
5" 5" 5"

- (. Sewther Cuorana

Administrative Support Assistant.
West Desert District

Department of the Interior
Bureau of Land Management
Work-801-320-8300
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Form 4130-1 UNITED STATES
(January 2018) DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT

FORM APPROVED
OMB NO. 1004-0041
Expires: 12/31/2020

GRAZING SCHEDULE FOR BLM USE ONLY
GRAZING APPLICATION state Utah
Name (last, first, middle initial) office SLFO
LEEs Ine: Authorization No. 4302667
Address (include street, city, State, and zip code) i 2
777 E. 2100 S. SehednleNo.

Salt Lake City, Utah 84106 Billing Code Advance

Special Bill Code NA

1 hereby apply for the following grazing use on the public lands and/or other lands administered by the Bureau of Land Management (BLM).
[©)] ) (€] O] ) (6) U] @®)

ALLOTMENT PASTURE LIVESTOCK PERIOD % TYPE
PL AUM’S
USE
NAME NO. NO. NUMBER KIND BEGIN END USE
Basin L&L 05066 NA 890 C 11/06/2023 | 02/28/2024 | 46% A 1548

Show your recorded brands, earmarks, and wattles &
A

Show reason for nonuse, if requested: [_] conservation and protection of the public lands; [ ] annual fluctuation of livestock operations; [] financial
or other reasons beyond control of the operator; or |:] livestock disease or quarantine.

Printed Name ate
Bichael Olgen [T0-31-n=

Signature of BLM jENNIFER

Reason for nonuse: [_] Approved [ ] Disapproved (Decision Required)

Digitally signed by JENNIFER Date
PUTTERE

PU'I—I'ERE Dat.e: 2023.11.03 09:32:51
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

(See terms and conditions on page 2) (Form 4130-1)






A AVINAYAD ALY CULIWLLIVIND

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

S

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
December 29, 2010 [Bureau of Land Management’s Range Management System—Interior, LLM-2; Notice To Amend an Existing System of Records;

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
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From: Jencso, Emily D

To: Rose, Marcus

Ce: Davis, Jordan R; Howell, Tami L; Atwood, Mark L; Redington, Jared; Mellon, Cassie D; Puttere, Jennifer M
Subject: Re: DLT Updates 10/2/23

Date: Wednesday, October 4, 2023 2:09:16 PM

Attachments: image001.ong

I think having Joe run out there would be a good idea.

Emily Jencso

SLFO Wildlife Biologist CWB®
Cell: (801) 599-0954

Office: 801-320-8300

Salt Lake Field Office BLM
491 N John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116

From: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 4, 2023 1:58 PM

To: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>

Cc: Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Howell, Tami L <thowell@blm.gov>; Atwood, Mark L <matwood @blm.gov>; Redington, Jared <jredingt@blm.gov>; Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>; Puttere, Jennifer M
<jputtere@blm.gov>

Subject: RE: DLT Updates 10/2/23

That sounds great. Yes, | can work with them and facilitate the effort. Maybe we can have Joe run up to get an inventory of supplies needed this week or next, unless Lucas has already done that with his fence mapping effort over
the summer.

From: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 4, 2023 1:38 PM

To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Cc: Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Howell, Tami L <thowell@blm.gov>; Atwood, Mark L <matwood@blm.gov>; Redington, Jared <jredingt@blm.gov>; Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>; Puttere, Jennifer M
<jputtere@blm.gov>

Subject: Fw: DLT Updates 10/2/23

Hi Marcus and Jordan,

The fire/fuels folks have kindly agreed to help fix the buck and pole fence out at the Kimball Creek exclosure that is currently non-functional. Can you (Marcus) help with facilitating this effort? It would be great to
show in the causal factor analysis and EA that we have already taken steps to fix the primary reason for this riparian area not being in PFC.

Best,
Em

Enmily Jencso

SLFO Wildlife Biologist CWB®
Cell: (801) 599-0954

Office: 801-320-8300

Salt Lake Field Office BLM
491 N John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116

From: Atwood, Mark L <matwood@blm.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 4, 2023 12:22 PM

To: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>

Cc: Jessop, Brad D <hdjessop@blm.gov>; Chong, Jared A <jchong@blm.gov>; Hunter, Nathan S <nhunter@blm.gov>; Tateishi, Michael L <mtateishi@blm.gov>; Valdez, Erik L <evaldez@blm.gov>
Subject: RE: DLT Updates 10/2/23

Emily

| wanted to share where we have landed on assisting with some of the task requests. | have CC’d a few folks that are going to assist with coordinating this work. After working through the details this is what we have come up
with:

. Ei . c f B
o 1day 5-6 people
o Week of October 16-20
. -
o 4-6 people couple days 2-3
o Week of October 16-20.

Not sure that this will all line up that week but that would be a good time for us.
I am headed out on leave (After today) and as the fuel’s folks have a chance to coordinate amongst themselves, they will reach out to you to iron out the details.

| hope this helps to let you know how we can help. As far as the other efforts we discussed it's not likely that we will have the folks to commit to those.

Mark Atwood

Fuels Program Lead (Detailed)
DOI-Bureau of Land Management, Utah
West Desert District

491 N John Glenn Rd

Salt Lake City, UT 84116

Office:

Cell: (970)422-2277

From: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, October 3, 2023 2:33 PM
To: Atwood, Mark L <matwood @blm.gov>
Subject: Re: DLT Updates 10/2/23

Hi Mark, I can chat now if you would like. We can talk on Teams.
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
Sent: Tuesday, October 3, 2023 2:23 PM

To: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>
Subject: FW: DLT Updates 10/2/23

Emily
When might you have a minute to share some details with me on the project efforts below. | will round up the information and work with Brad and Jared on what we can get done based on what | learn from you.

Thanks

Mark Atwood

Fuels Program Lead (Detailed)
DOI-Bureau of Land Management, Utah
West Desert District

491 N John Glenn Rd

Salt Lake City, UT 84116

Office:

Cell: (970)422-2277

From: Jessop, Brad D <! Im.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, October 3, 2023 2:16 PM

To: Atwood, Mark L <matwood @blm.gov>; Valdez, Erik L <evaldez@blm.gov>; Chong, Jared A <jchon, |m.gov>
Cc: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>; Puttere, Jennifer M < I Im.gov>

Subject: RE: DLT Updates 10/2/23

All,
It seems to me that the term Fuels Crew is being used to capture all fall/winter work to be done by Fire personnel and may not be specifically asking for the actual Fuels Crew. Could we get some clarification so that we can
identify who needs to be included in the conversation?

Thanks,

From: Atwood, Mark L <matwood@blm.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, October 3, 2023 1:56 PM

To: Valdez, Erik L <evaldez@blm.gov>; Jessop, Brad D <bdjessop@blm.gov>; Chong, Jared A <jchon Im.gov:
Cc: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>; Puttere, Jennifer M <jputtere@blm.gov>
Subject: RE: DLT Updates 10/2/23

| have captured these two projects on out winter work fuels spreadsheet. | will have Brad and Jared get the detail on these projects and see how it can best fit into the current workload.

Mark Atwood

Fuels Program Lead (Detailed)
DOI-Bureau of Land Management, Utah
West Desert District

491 N John Glenn Rd

Salt Lake City, UT 84116

Office:

Cell: (970)422-2277

From: Valdez, Erik L <evaldez@blm.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, October 3, 2023 1:46 PM

To: Atwood, Mark L <matwood @blm.gov>; Jessop, Brad D <bdiessop@blm.gov>; Chong, Jared A <jchong@blm.gov>
Cc: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>; Puttere, Jennifer M <jputtere@blm.gov>

Subject: Fw: DLT Updates 10/2/23

All,

See if there is an opportunity to help with these tasks starting next Tuesday.
Thanks,

Erik

From: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, October 3, 2023 1:42 PM

To: Puttere, Jennifer M <jputtere@blm.gov>; Barth, Jonathan R <jbarth@blm.gov>; Blackhurst, Travis L <tblackhurst@blm.gov>; Cluff, Brandon M <bcluff@blm.gov>; Darby, Zachary D <zdarby@blm.gov>; Henzler, Lucas D
<lhenzler@blm.gov>; Schmitz, Kevin T <kschmitz@blm.gov>; Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>; Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>; Valdez, Erik L <evaldez@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: DLT Updates 10/2/23

Jennifer -
Here are a few other fuels crew requests:

1. Install escape ramps on livestock troughs. Brandon and Travis will be doing this the rest of this week so they could join in this effort.
2. Fix the Kimball Creek exclosure that is currently non functional

Thank you.

Emily Jencso

SLFO Wildlife Biologist CWB®
Cell: (801) 599-0954

Office: 801-320-8300

Salt Lake Field Office BLM
491 N John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116

From: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, October 3, 2023 12:17 PM

To: Puttere, Jennifer M <jputtere@blm.gov>; Barth, Jonathan R <jbarth@blm.gov>; Blackhurst, Travis L <tblackhurst@blm.gov>; Cluff, Brandon M <bcluff@blm.gov>; Darby, Zachary D <zdarby@blm.gov>; Henzler, Lucas D
<lhenzler@blm.gov>; Schmitz, Kevin T <kschmitz@blm.gov>; Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>; Chante Lundskog <clundskog@utah.gov>; Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: DLT Updates 10/2/23
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We would like to utilize the Fuels crew to lish the r ion work we had scheduled for Public Lands Day out at Cluster Springs. When are they available?

Emily Jencso

SLFO Wildlife Biologist CWB®
Cell: (801) 599-0954

Office: 801-320-8300

Salt Lake Field Office BLM
491 N John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116

From: Puttere, Jennifer M <jputtere@blm.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, October 3, 2023 10:57 AM

To: Barth, Jonathan R <jbarth@blm.gov>; Blackhurst, Travis L <tblackhurst@blm.gov>; Cluff, Brandon M <bcluff@blm.gov>; Darby, Zachary D <zdarby@blm.gov>; Henzler, Lucas D <lhenzler@blm.gov>; Jencso, Emily D
<ejencso@blm.gov>; Schmitz, Kevin T <kschmitz@blm.gov>; Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>

Subject: DLT Updates 10/2/23

Updates from DLT:

Tech refresh will occur in November and December of this year. Operations/IT will work through individual groups.

USA Performance is going live. The system will be used for EPAPs. DOI Talent will continue to be used for training and IDPs.
Starting tomorrow, Concur is switching to a single sign-on. Please follow the directions in the instructions | have attached to this email. These are the same instructions sent by Shekeetah a few days ago.
Operations is starting to look at roads that have been washed out, mainly in the northern half of the district at this time.

Let me know if anyone in this group is interested in being part of the Safety Committee
» Let me know if anyone has fall/winter work for the Fuels crews

You can continue to put in Authorizations into Concur; however, vouchers cannot be approved until October 17t

Not part of the DLT meeting, just a reminder that next Tuesday, October 10™, is the new Hydrologist’s first day. His name is Nathan Fish, and he will be in the cubicle across from Nancy.

Jennifer Puttere

Assistant Field Manager, Renewables — Salt Lake Field Office

West Desert D ict

Bureau of Land Management
491 North John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, Utah 84116
Desk Phone: 801-320-8364
Cell Phone: 385-471-1518
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From: Rose, Marcus F

To: Jessop, Brad D
Subject: RE: Fuels treatments within West Box Elder permit renewal area
Date: Monday, October 30, 2023 3:41:00 PM

Great, thanks for looking that over!

From: Jessop, Brad D <bdjessop@blm.gov>

Sent: Monday, October 30, 2023 2:56 PM

To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Subject: RE: Fuels treatments within West Box Elder permit renewal area

Marcus,
It looks | only found one date that was incorrect. Cook Canyon Bullhog happened in 2004 not 2007.
Other than that, Badger Flat Bullhog Phase One was missing a letter. (Red highlights below).

Brad

The SLFO has completed multiple fuels projects to reduce juniper cover in sagebrush communities
within the Dry Canyon, Kimball Creek, and Red Butte allotments (Figure 3).

Treatments in the Dry Canyon allotment include the North Grouse Creek Bullhog in 2008, North
Grouse Creek Slashing (lop and scatter treatment) in 2011, North Grouse Creek Bullhog Phase Il in
2012, and North Grouse Creek Bullhog Second Entry in 2013.Future lop and scatter and bullhog
treatments in the Dry Canyon allotment are planned for 2023 and 2024.

Treatments in the Kimball Creek allotment include the Kimball Creek Bullhog in 2006, Kimball Creek
HLI slashing in 2007, Kimball Creek Bullhog Maintenance in 2009, and Kimball Creek Bullhog Phase
One and Two in 2010 and 2011. Additional lop and scatter treatments are planned for 2023.

Treatments in the Red Butte allotment include the Cook Canyon Bullhog in 2004, Cook Canyon
Bullhog Phase Two in 2009, Badger Flat Bullhog Phase One and Badger Flat Green Strip in 2010,
Grouse Creek Bullhog Phase Two in 2012, Grouse Creek Bullhog Phase Three in 2016, and Cook
Canyon Bullhog in 2023.

Seedings generally took place with bullhog treatments.

From: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Sent: Monday, October 30, 2023 1:20 PM

To: Jessop, Brad D <bdjessop@blm.gov>

Subject: Fuels treatments within West Box Elder permit renewal area

Hi Brad,
The paragraph below is what | have been able to put together describing fuels treatments in the
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West Box Elder permit renewal area (Dry Canyon, Kimball Creek, Lynn, Owl Springs and Red Butte
allotments). Could you read through this description to make sure the dates are accurate, and | have
not left out any treatments?

Thanks,

Marcus

The SLFO has completed multiple fuels projects to reduce juniper cover in sagebrush
communities within the Dry Canyon, Kimball Creek, and Red Butte allotments (Figure 3).
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

Treatments in the Kimball Creek allotment include the Kimball Creek Bullhog in 2006, Kimball
Creek HLI slashing in 2007, Kimball Creek Bullhog Maintenance in 2009, and Kimball Creek
Bullhog Phase One and Two in 2010 and 2011. Additional lop and scatter treatments are planned
for 2023.

Treatments in the Red Butte allotment include the Cook Canyon Bullhog in 2007, Cook Canyon
Bullhog Phase Two in 2009, Badger Flat Bulhog Phase One and Badger Flat Green Strip in 2010,
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

Subject: Re: Fw: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Check In 6-5-23
Date: Wednesday, June 7, 2023 7:02:05 AM

Thanks Erin (and Mike and Lindsay)-

I appreciate you running it up the chain - and for Mike and Lindsay considering it. It is
definitely unfortunate and disappointing things are late, but I'm glad you are able to make
some room in the schedule. If we put a final due date of 8/15 would that work?

It sounds like she was aiming to do the survey this month and the report next month. We can
definitely push to have things done quicker if the project schedule requires it - but if 8/15
works, I'll run with that (with tight constraints).

Arie

Photo Arie Leeflang
Archaeologist

M: (801) 635-8897
E: aleeflang@utah.gov

Utah Department of Natural Resources
Division of Wildlife Resources

wildlife.utah.gov

[<]
[+
[<]

On Wed, Jun 7, 2023 at 6:55 AM Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov> wrote:
Arie,

Thanks again for the update. Its unfortunate that we are going to be delayed some with the
Young

Pipeline project but that being said, it's sounding like its a good idea to do an extension. |
talked

with my supervisor and he also agrees for moving forward. | agree with Mike on getting a
"locked in"

timeline so that we don't have more delays. Thank you all for your insight and help on this
project.

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

Sent: Tuesday, June 6, 2023 9:20 AM

To: Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>

Cc: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang@utah.gov>; Seiders, Erin S <gseiders@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Check In 6-5-23

I'm on board with your thinking, Mike. We'd surely be working with a bigger time frame if
we start over fresh. And I'm honestly a bit surprised, while I've never personally worked
with Lynn, my impression was not of someone who would drop the ball like this. I don't
have a problem sticking with her here, but how she treats the remainder of the project will
make a difference moving forward.

I'm not sure what those caveats need to be, but you're right Mike, there needs to be language
to help make sure this doesn't happen again. I've contacted my range manager over this
project and am waiting to get his impression on an updated time frame.

Really glad you checked in with Lynn, Arie. Thank you as always for your thoughtful
management of these projects.

On Tue, Jun 6, 2023 at 8:06 AM Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov> wrote:
Hey Arie,
I'm inclined to agree with you. | think the consultant is a good one (which counts for
something in my mind), and more importantly cancelling the contract and starting over
might involve a more extensive time delay than simply offering an extension. Any
extension though ought to have caveats attached. For example, the time-frame should be
conditioned by broader project needs and it should be made clear that additional
extensions are off the table. That's my thinking anyway...

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

I hope things are well. I reached out to the cultural resource contractor for the Young
Brothers Pipeline project for a status update. The project is due on the 15th and it sounds
like it hasn't started yet (ugh). Are you open to an extension on the project schedule?

It's definitely a sticky moment- I can cancel the contract if needed for poor performance,
but we'd be back to square one on contracting and we'd probably lose more time. I
personally would recommend retaining the contractor and providing an extension. But this
is a BLM project (if I remember correctly) and I'm just running the contract - so I defer to
you needs. When you have a moment, let me know what you think. (Mike and Lindsay,
please feel free to jump in as well).

Thanks,

Arie

Photo Arie Leeflang
Archaeologist

""" M: (801) 635-8897
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
To: Arie Leeflang <aleeflang(@utah.gov>

Hi Arie,
Wow, time has flown by for me in general and definitely since this project’s inception.

My sincerest apologies for not getting in touch with you much sooner. I had planned to
contact you last week, but the gist of it is that I need to request more time for completion
of this project. I was hoping to get into the field to complete the fieldwork later this month
and to work on the report through July.

Let me know what kind of time you can give me; I’ll take as much as I can get yet also try
to condense the schedule wherever possible.

I will reach out to Michael and Lindsay with revised FW Authorization Requests after I
hear back from you.

Thank you for reaching out and rattling my cage; I needed it. Have been beyond slammed
with life and work, and actually looking forward to getting into the field.

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

Cec: Sheehan, Michael S <msheehan@blm.gov>; Lindsay Fenner <lfenner(@utah.gov>;
Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: Young Brothers Pipeline Archaeological Survey - Kickoff Mtg 3-30-23
Complete

Hi Lynn-

I hope things are going well. I wanted to check in on the Young Brothers Pipeline project
and see how things are progressing. Were you able to finish up the fieldwork and are on to
the report?

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
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From: Shane Hill

To: Daniel Olson

Cc: Neff, Brandon D; Mellon, Cassie D; Davis, Jordan R
Subject: Re: Fw: [EXTERNAL] Riparian Repair Invoice
Date: Tuesday, July 25, 2023 3:47:54 PM

Brandon & Cassie. As far as I can tell there was only $2,800 allocated for this project (5983).
I'm not sure we can use any funds from 5519. Do you know where we can move the extra
$1000 to cover this invoice?

On Tue, Jul 25, 2023 at 3:27 PM Daniel Olson <danielolson@utah.gov> wrote:
Sorry that didn't come through. Here is the invoice.

On Tue, Jul 25, 2023 at 3:11 PM Shane Hill <sahill@utah.gov> wrote:
I can help out. There is no invoice attached though.
Looking at the carryover request it looks like we didn't request any money be held over for
#5519, we noted that it would be complete before the end of the fiscal year. There is,
however, $2,800 remaining in #5983.

On Tue, Jul 25, 2023 at 2:53 PM Daniel Olson <danielolson@utah.gov> wrote:
Thanks, Brandon! Shane, can you help Brandon process this payment?
On Mon, Jul 24, 2023 at 1:48 PM Neff, Brandon D <bneff(@blm.gov> wrote:

Hi Daniel,

| am forwarding an invoice from B&C Fencing, it is for the repair work on the N Otter
Creek Exclosure this year, after last year's snow load wrecked it. Please let me know if
| need to do anything more to help facilitate payment. The funding is parked in WRI
under Rich County Exclosure Maintenance there are two project #'s, 5519 (FY21 & 22
BIL Funding) and 5983 (FY23 BIL Funding). | am not sure if there's a specific funding
year you'd rather take out of, but Cassie and | were thinking to use the 5519 first since
it is older. Also, if possible, Cassie and | were thinking that it would be nice to combine
the two funding sources into one, we just aren't sure of the process or stipulations
that might have on the WRI side under the Good Neighbor Authority.

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
Sent: Tuesday, July 18, 2023 9:08 PM


mailto:sahill@utah.gov
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=79e1eadf11de413bb6a9151a9d6081e2-Guest_23526
mailto:bneff@blm.gov
mailto:cmellon@blm.gov
mailto:jordandavis@blm.gov
mailto:danielolson@utah.gov
mailto:sahill@utah.gov
mailto:danielolson@utah.gov
mailto:bneff@blm.gov
mailto:bneff@blm.gov
mailto:bandcfencing.utah@yahoo.com
mailto:bandcfencing.utah@yahoo.com

To: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Riparian Repair Invoice

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking
on links, opening attachments, or responding.

Brandon,

Here's the invoice for repairs on the riparian area up Otter Creek. Let us know
if you need anything else to get this processed.

Chancey

Photo Daniel Olson, PhD
Northern Region Habitat Program Manager

M: (385) 415-4010
E: danielolson@utah.gov

Utah Department of Natural Resources
Division of Wildlife Resources

wildlife.utah.gov
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Photo Shane Hill
Habitat Restoration Biologist

M: (385) 985-7526
E: sahill@utah.gov

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
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From: Barth, Jonathan R

To: Seiders, Erin S; Rose, Marcus F

Subject: RE: Grazing history on ESR AIM survey plots
Date: Thursday, August 17, 2023 7:04:32 PM
Attachments: image001.png

| think there is some security blocking it. | can’t even open if from the link | shared.

| see that Erin has entered some of the info. Thanks!

Please try again later. If | don’t see any edits next week, I'll move it to a the Z drive and send out the
path.

Thanks,
Jonathan

From: Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>

Sent: Thursday, August 17, 2023 3:51 PM

To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>; Barth, Jonathan R <jbarth@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Grazing history on ESR AIM survey plots

| was able to go into it a while ago, but now it won't open for me either...

Erin Seiders, Range Technician
BLM Salt Lake Field Office
2370 S. Decker Lake Blvd

West Valley City, UT 84119
Desk: 801-977-4334

From: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Sent: Thursday, August 17, 2023 3:33 PM

To: Barth, Jonathan R <jbarth@blm.gov>; Seiders, Erin S <gseiders@blm.gov>
Subject: RE: Grazing history on ESR AIM survey plots

| can’t open the document for some reason. | am guessing | do not have permission to open it where
you have it saved.

Thanks,

Marcus

From: Barth, Jonathan R <jbarth@blm.gov>

Sent: Thursday, August 17, 2023 1:43 PM

To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>; Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>
Subject: Grazing history on ESR AIM survey plots

Hi Marcus and Erin,

| need to enter the grazing history in the AIM surveys I'm doing on ESR sites. | have looked up the


mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=220e9c0ad5114b2e979e27c496e7d9b4-6fe2eedd-e9
mailto:eseiders@blm.gov
mailto:mrose@blm.gov
mailto:mrose@blm.gov
mailto:jbarth@blm.gov
mailto:eseiders@blm.gov
mailto:jbarth@blm.gov
mailto:mrose@blm.gov
mailto:eseiders@blm.gov





Grazing Allotment/Pasture/Pasture# for each of the points. | have also included the GPS coordinates
just in case part of a pasture or allotment was allowed to be grazed, and not the entire
allotment/pasture. If known, also enter any unauthorized or accidental grazing you know of, and
when.

Please open the Excel file linked to below, and enter information in the two far right columns.
e “Date Last Grazed” [for example, March 2020]
e “Projected Resumption of Grazing (if known)” [for example, March 2024]

Here is a link to the Excel file “Grazing history on ESR AIM survey plots up to 2023.xlsx”
B2 https://doimspp-

If these allotments are not yours, will you forward this message to your collogues that oversee
those? CC me so | know who to follow up with. Thanks for your help so far, and with this information
gathering.

Thanks,
Jonathan Barth
ESR AIM



From: Jencso, Emily D

To: Davis, Jordan R; Puttere, Jennifer M; Williams, Nancy N; Rose, Marcus F; Tucker, Dylan W; Bullock, Jerry D; Neff, Brandon D
Subject: Re: Grouse and Grazing News Article

Date: Thursday, November 9, 2023 2:14:44 PM

Attachments: Outlnok-utr2atvd nna

I look forward to seeing the published/peer-reviewed research on this. Do you know if they were using rotational grazing? I am glad to see long-term collaborative research in this realm. The recent paper from
McGinn et al. (2022) showed non-native ungulates (horses and livestock) have a negative impact on brood-rearing habitat, specifically from year-round pressure of horses, and livestock grazing that occurs at the
same time annually rather than a rotational grazing system.

Emily Jencso
SLFO Wildlife Biologist CWB®
Cell: (801) 599-0954

Office: 801-320-8300

Salt Lake Field Office BLM
491 N John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116

From: Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>

Sent: Monday, November 6, 2023 9:59 AM

To: Puttere, Jennifer M <jputtere@blm.gov>; Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>; Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>; Tucker, Dylan W <dwtucker@blm.gov>; Bullock, Jerry D
<jdbulloc@blm.gov>; Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>

Subject: Grouse and Grazing News Article

Tam sure you have already seen this but incase you haven't below is an article on some research being completed on cattle spring grazing in GRSG nesting success in Idaho.

Grouse and Grazing

r study by a team of University of Idz entists reveals that
g has little influence on sage grouse nests or their f

NATIONAL SYSTEM OF PUBLIC LANDS
U.5. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF LAND T

Jordan Davis

Acting Field Manager

Price Field Office|Bureau of Land Management -Utah
p: (435) 636-3659

w: www blm.gov
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From: Seiders, Erin S

To: Rose, Marcus F
Subject: Re: Grouse Creek Allotment information
Date: Thursday, August 24, 2023 1:52:24 PM

Awesome, thanks Marcus !!!
Get Outlook for i0S

From: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Sent: Thursday, August 24, 2023 1:03:38 PM
To: Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>
Subject: Grouse Creek Allotment information

Hi Erin,

Here is some information about the Grouse Creek allotment for next week. There should not be
cows along Straight Fork creek on the south end of the allotment. Also if you can get a good count of
how many cows there are with each brand that would be very helpful. Let me know if you have any
questions.

Thanks for being willing to run up there and check things out!

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

To: Bullock, Jerry D

Subject: RE: Ingham and Keg Springs Trend
Date: Thursday, August 31, 2023 9:49:00 AM
Okay thanks Jerry

From: Bullock, Jerry D <jdbulloc@blm.gov>
Sent: Thursday, August 31, 2023 9:47 AM
To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Ingham and Keg Springs Trend

| may have been looking at it wrong. The new invite is 11 and 12th . Let me know if you don't
have enough help. I'd rather not be out monitoring that whole week but | will if your in a bind.

Jerry Bullock

Range Management Specialist
Bureau of Land Management
Salt Lake Field Office

491 North John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, Utah 84116
Office: (801) 320-8326

Cell: (801) 232-7551

From: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Sent: Thursday, August 31, 2023 9:36 AM
To: Bullock, Jerry D <jdbulloc@blm.gov>
Subject: RE: Ingham and Keg Springs Trend

s it still showing as the 61 and 72 | changed it and sent out a different invitation for the afternoon
of September 11 and the 12"

From: Bullock, Jerry D <jdbulloc@blm.gov>
Sent: Thursday, August 31, 2023 9:14 AM
To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Ingham and Keg Springs Trend

Sorry Marcus, I'd help but | told Dylan | would help him on that Wednesday.

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

Sent: Thursday, August 24, 2023 7:22 AM

Cc: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>; Tucker, Dylan W <dwtucker@blm.gov>; Bullock, Jerry D
<jdbulloc@blm.gov>; Royal, Kevin A <kroval@blm.gov>

Subject: Ingham and Keg Springs Trend

When: Wednesday, September 6, 2023, 6:30 AM to Thursday, September 7, 2023, 6:00 PM.
Where:

Figured | would send this out to everyone in case anyone wanted to come along for some trend
monitoring in Box Elder County. There is one point to visit on the Ingham allotment and two on Keg
Springs. | am thinking we will stay at the Rosebud field station overnight. Thanks!
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From: Davis, Jordan R

To: Goodrich, Philip (Chip); Verhoef, Nicholas S

Cc: Seiders, Erin S; Kurchinski, Matthew; Batty, Ronald (Keith)

Subject: Re: Land Surveyor Report for Young Brothers Pipeline - [SIGNITURE REQUIRED]
Date: Thursday, September 7, 2023 3:25:57 PM

Attachments: LSR-YOUNG BROTHERS PIPELINE.pdf

Outlook-t2pxdmru.png

Philip,

I have signed and attached the LSR for the Young Brother's Pipeline. Let me know if
you need anything else.

Take care,

NATIONAL SYSTEM OF PUBLIC LANDS

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT

Jordan Davis

Assistant Field Manager

Salt Lake Field Office |Bureau of Land Management -Utah
p: (385) 278-3618

w: www.blm.gov.

.‘7'

From: Goodrich, Philip (Chip) <pgoodrich@blm.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, September 5, 2023 4:44 PM

To: Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Verhoef, Nicholas S <nverhoef@blm.gov>

Cc: Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>; Kurchinski, Matthew <mkurchin@blm.gov>; Batty, Ronald
(Keith) <rbatty@blm.gov>

Subject: Land Surveyor Report for Young Brothers Pipeline - [SIGNITURE REQUIRED]

Attached to this email is a scanned copy of the Land Surveyor Report for the Young Brothers
Pipeline. Jordan, as the authorizing official, when convenient, could you please review the
report and attachments, fill out page 5, sign it, and return a copy for our records.

| will work with Nick to get the hardcopy of the official report to you.

If there are any additional questions or concerns, don't hesitate to reach out to either Nick

V. or myself.

Thanks,
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Land Surveyor Report
Final Determination by the Certified DOI Land Surveyor:
September 5, 2023
To:  Jordan Davis, Assistant Field Manager, Division of Rangeland Management

Young Pipeline

Township 8 North, Range 10 West, Salt Lake Meridian, Utal
Township 8 North, Range 11 West, Salt Lake Meridian, Utah
Township 9 North, Range 11 West, Salt Lake Meridian, Utah
Township 9 North, Range 12 West, Salt Lake Meridian, Utah
Township 10 North, Range 12 West, Salt Lake Meridian, Utah
Township 11 North, Range 12 West, Salt Lake Meridian, Utah
Township 11 North, Range 13 West, Salt Lake Meridian, Utah

The stated action risks disturbing thirty-six (36} Public Land Survey System (PLSS) corners.
Five (5) of these corners are marked with substandard materials. The stated action presents
significant risk to these corners. The posting of all corners and accessories, along with
remonumentation of the ‘substandard’ corners is recommended.

Cadastral Survey (UT925) was notified via signed LDR worksheet dated August 8, 2023 (also by
unofficial LSSR on April 27, 2023, as shown in email chain dated May 18, 2023) with attached
GIS shapefiles of the proposed path of the pipeline, trough, and tank locations. Included was a
West Desert Work Order dated September 27, 2022, enabling the above reference action to be
reviewed.

A review of the above request has been completed and the following determination(s) has been
made by the DOI Land Surveyor or Certified Federal Surveyor:

The [land description / land surveys] is/are acceptable for the stated purpose, see
comments below.

The land description / land surveys has/have potential problems as noted below;
however, the risk appears minor and the action within the stated purpose should not be
affected.

The [land description / land surveys] has/have potential problems and should not be
used for the stated purpose. The following errors and/or concerns as noted below need
to be corrected/addressed before this/these [land description / land surveys]) should be
used.

Page 1 of §
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X | A boundary survey is required. (See cost/time estimate below)

A field visit has not been performed by Cadastral Survey for this project review; only BLM
official records were reviewed.

History of Surveys pertaining to the proposed work:

T.8 N..R 10 W., Salt Lake Meridian, Utah
- 18B6 E. Wilkes
- 1961 B.S. Owens (south boundary)
- 1967 Chappell (west boundary)

T.8 N..R 11 W., Salt Lake Meridian, Utah
- 1886 E. Wilkes
- 1971 G.B Halch

T.9N.,R 11 W., Salt Lake Meridian, Utah
- 1886 E. Wilkes
- 1971 C.P. Sylvester

T.9 N..R 12 W,, Salt Lake Meridian, Utah
- 1886 E. Wilkes
- 2008 R. Baugh (partial)

T. I0N., R 12 W.. Salt Lake Meridian, Utah
- 1886 E. Wilkes
- 2007 R. Baugh

T. 11 N., R 12 W._, Salt Lake Meridian, Utah
- 1887 E. Wilkes
- 1967 F.R. Chappell

Condition of corner monuments: (see attached map for graphical depiction)

All the section corner monuments and accessories, within/near the project area were analyzed for
the level of risk presented by the project.

Corners monumented with metal posts are considered standard monumentation, while corners
monumented with stones or wood posts are considered substandard. Five (5) affected corners in
township 9 north, range 12 west are monumented with substandard materials. Remonumentation
of these corners will be necessary to bring them up to standard.

All other affected corners are monumented with standard iron or aluminum metal posts.
Corner monument type within the project area:
- (! substandard original wood post)

- (4 substandard original marked stones)
- (31 standard iron or aluminum posts)

Page 2 of 5
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Land Status:

The proposed project area consists of a mix of federal, state, and private lands. The GIS shapefile
provided appears to show that this project will be completed in collaboration with state and
private entities. If on-the-ground boundary locations between federal and non-federal lands are
needed, please contact this office for more information.

Recommendations/Comments/Concerns/Corrections:

Locating and protecting PLSS corners, along with their accessories, protects the continuity of
surveys. This eliminales the potential for damage and disturbance of land boundary lines and the
costs associated with those disturbances. Locating and protecting corners prior to disturbance is
less expensive and less complicated than re-establishing disturbed corners when there becomes a
land management issue.

Minimal PLSS corner protection work is recommended. This will require the remonumentation
of five (5) substandard corners within the project area. Remonumentation is 4 way to update

existent substandard corners at a reduced cost and timeframe.

Any corners with standard monumentation likely to be affected by the stated action should be
flagged and a steel fence post set alongside to aide in proiection.

Cost Estimate

Up to $6000: Anticipated to take 6 days (including drive time from Salt Lake City) to complete
the remonumentation of five (5) substandard corners, flag corner evidence and set steel fence
posts alongside all corners in the project area (as indicated on the following maps).

I certify that the parcel described on the provided legal description contains__N/A __ acres.
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This report correctly represents the records and documents evaluated by me or under my direct
supervision in conformance with the requirements of the Department of the Interior Standards
for Federal Lands Boundary Evidence, of the parcel(s) of land identified.

Name: DOI Land Surveyor, or
Certified Federal Surveyor

Office, Title and Contact
Information:

Datre:

Clup Goodrich

UT-925, Cadastral Surveyor
440 West, 200 South, Suite 500
Salt Lake City, UT 84101
801-539-4155

‘7/6’ /§023

This report correctly represents the records and documents evaluated under my direction and
control and in conformance with the requirements of the Department of the Interior Standards
for Federal Lands Boundary Evidence, of the parcel(s) of land identified.

[}
Kurchinski

Matthew

801-539-4139

Name: Certified DOI Land Surveyor Contact Information: Date:
Chief Cadastral Surveyor for Utah
440 West, 200 South, Suite 500
: . (5 (2.2
Salt Lake City, UT 84101

Attachments:

Unofficial LSSR email chain dated May, 18, 2023

West Desert Work Order Submission

Pipeline Proposal: YOUNG BROTHERS

Corner status GIS maps (created with the supplied shapefiles)

Annotated survey plats and notes
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Young Pipeline

Authorized Officer:

o 1 concur with the above recommendation(s) and:

0O Additional funding is not required.

600 DM 5

& Funding for the recommended action(s) is authorized in the amount of $_6,000.00

Cost code: LLUTWO01000/L81000000.JC0000/LXRIJB00622/23X

0 Funding for the recommended action(s) will be provided at a later date.

0 Ido not accept the above recommendation(s) for the following reason(s):

Comment:

Authorized Officer Name: Office, Title and Contact Date:
Information:
JORDAN Digitally signed by
JORDAN DAVIS Salt Lake Field Office, Acting Field Manager,
D AVI S Date: 2023.09.07 jordandavis@blm.gov, and 385-278-3618 9/5/2023
15:22:18 -06'00'
[Signature]

This report is to be retained in the official case file.
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Land Description Review Worksheet
United States Department of the Interior
Bureau of Land Management
West Desert District Office
Salt Lake Field Office
To: BLM Uiah State office, Cadastral Survey
Attention: Chiel Cadastral Surveyor
From: Jordan Davis, Assistant Field Manager, Division of Rangeland Management
Subject:  Land Description Review (LDR) Worksheet
BLM LAND AREA CODE: | TOWNSHIP, RANGE, SECTION, PURPOSE:
MERIDIAN, & STATE:
Young Brothers Pipeline | Multiple townships, Box Review of PLSS to ensure that ground
Elder County (shapefiles disturbing activilies don't destroy any
emailed) PLSS comers.

Please review the land description(s) in the attached conveyancefactivity documeni(s) for the case
identified abave, please complete the attached interoffice memo and return them to me for filing in the
official case file [when applicable]. The purpose for the LDR is:

In additicn BLM is lo report upan {check box(s), and within the brackels circle the service(s)):

Condition of comer monuments based upon (existing knowledge or office investigation or
field investigation).

Condition of boundary line marking based upon (existing knowledge or office investigation
or ficld investigation).

Practicability of the boundaries for compliance with program purposes based upon {existing
knowledge or office investigation or field investigation).

Condition of Geographic Coordinate Dala Base (GCDB).

Acres determined Fom GLO/BLM records.

Acres determined by other means.

Other -

ocoDo T Y| ol

The LDR is needed by: Oclober 1, 2023

Authorized by:
Name: Jordan Davis Title and Contact infoermaiion; Date:
[Signature] Assistant Field Manager, Division of I,
Dighally signed by sospar | Rangeland Management 8¢ 442023
JORDAN DAVIS oaws o
Date: 2023 £8 0 G7.02:16 -06'D0°

Date Received By Cadasiral Survey: () |/ K { 2% Received By: __L\j_;j;_ \\.&ﬁ M_E
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Project Description:

BLM has received a request for the construction/mainienance of water pipeline with troughs and tanks.
The total length of the proposed pipeline is 257,664 R. (48.8 miles). The pipeline would be constructed
with 2-4" poly Fusible pipe and would be installed by a dozer with a pipelaying ripper attachment. The
ripper would bury the pipe approximately 36" deep. The pipeline would include 21 troughs and 2 storage
tank locations. The troughs would be either tire or aluminum type and would include a wildlifc escape
ramps. The expected disturhance is approximately 16° wide along the 48 miles of proposed pipeline
routes (106.7 acres ol temporary disturbance) and approximately '+ of an acre at cach of the 21 trough and
2 storage tank sites {5.73 acres of temporary disturbance). Afier installation, the pipelines and trough sites
would be rehabilitated by leveling owt the berms created by the ripper, recontouring and resecding as
directed by the authonzed ofTicer.

This worksheet is o be retained in the official case file





Batg, Ronald (Keith)

From: Verhoef, Nicholas S

Sent: Thursday, May 18, 2023 11:31 AM

To: Batty, Ronald (Keith)

Cc: Kurchinski, Matthew

Subject: WOD - Young Brothers Pipeline

Attachments: SLFO NEPA Initiation Form.pdf, Operatians Work Order Submission_Young Pipeline

Flagging_signed.pdf; Young Pipeline Updated Map (1).pdf

Follow Up Flag: Flag far follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Keith,

Here is all | have from Jordan Davis and WDD concerning the Young Brother's Pipeline. The shapefile can
be found
at \\blm\dfs\loc\EGIS\UT\GisData\ut\sl\projects\Range\RIPS\layers work\Young Bro Pipeline

This was the extent of the unofficial LSSR:

n |U=1Uﬂy. F\PI LN Y
¢ e & &
D Davis, Jordan R 4/27 11:17 AM
@  Here is the pipeline initiation form. [t has a pathway for the shapefile for it on the form or here
\bImidfs\loc\EGIS\UT\GisData\ut\sh\projects\Range\RIPS\layers_work\Young_Bro_Pipeline

@'T«

Let me know if you need anything else for the pipeline. R
y ything pip éd 0 & G G

211

Young_Bro_Pipeline_Initiation_Form_FY2...

Let me know if you think | need to get an official LSSR. THANKS!

Nicholas (Nick) S. Verhoef
BLM, West Desert District
U.S. Cadastral Surveyor
491 N. John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, Utah 84116
385-235-1966 Cell
nverhoef@blm.gov
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West Desért Work Order Submission
Operations Support

PROJECT OVERVIEW

Project Name: Young Pipeline Date: September 27, 2022
Office Location: SLFO

Project Coordinator: Erin Seiders

Priority Level: Moderate (3)

PROJECT DESCRIPTION and OBJECTIVES {attach additional sheets as needed):

BLM has received a request for the construction/maintenance of water pipeline with troughs and
tanks. The total length of the proposed pipeline is 257,664 ft. (48.8 miles). The pipeline would be
constructed with 2-4” poly fusible pipe and would be installed by a dozer with a pipelaying ripper
attachment. The ripper would bury the pipe approximately 36” deep. The pipeline would include 21
troughs and 2 storage tank locations. The troughs would be either tire or aluminum type and would
include a wildlife escape ramps. The expected disturbance is approximately 16’ wide along the 48
miles of proposed pipeline routes (106.7 acres of temporary disturbance) and approximately % of an
acre at each of the 21 trough and 2 storage tank sites {5.75 acres of temporary disturbance). After
installation, the pipelines and trough sites would be rehabilitated by leveling out the berms created
by the ripper, recontouring and reseeding as directed by the authorized officer.

We would need help flagging the pipeline, troughs and tank locations for Archaeological clearances.

PROJECT DEADLINES
Recommended Project Start Date: March 31, 2023
Recommended Project End Date: August 30, 2023

PROJECT RESTRICTIONS {insert “None” if no restrictions are required)






NEEDED SERVICES

Engineering [ Survey X Construction [ Maintenance [
Contracting [ Material Estimates o Inspection O Procurement ]

Pre-Work Site Visit Requested: Yes | No |
Requested Date for Site Visit: Click here to enter a date.

ESTIMATED PROJECT COSTS/FUNDING

EXPENSE COST ESTIMATE FUNDING SOURCE FUNDED
Cast Center/Functional Location/WBS ¥Y/N

Labor

Materials/Supplies

Contract

Vehicles

Equipment

TOTAL EXPENSE

PROJECT STATUS Yes Not Required

Feasibility study/Site review W
Environmental Clearance - Other

Environmental Clearance - Wildlife

Environmental Clearance - Cultural

NEPA document

Project file started

Note: Please attach any additional project descriptions, maps, photographs, estimates, etc. outlining
project scope/work request as appropriate.

Digitally signed by JESSICA WADE
Field Manager Appl'oval JESS|CA WADE Date: 2022.04.20 15:42.01 -0600

Support Services Approval

Work Order Number: Click here to enter text.
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Pipeline Proposal: YOUNG BROTHERS
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e DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 279
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT

ORIGINAL

FIELD NOTES

OF THR

DEPENDENT RESURVEY OF
A PORTION OF THE SOUTH BOUNDARY,

THE WEST BOUNDARY
SUBDLVISIONAL LINES
ARD
THE ADJUSTED ORTGTNAL MEANDER LINES
IN_

e FRACTIONAL TOWNSHIP 8 NORTH, RAMGE 11 WEST

of the SALT LAXE Meridian,

» State of Ueak

EXECUTED BY

Glen B. Hatch Supervisory Cadastral Sutveyor

apecial instructions dated _June 10 +19ZL__, which provided for the surveys

fed under Group Number .33 + spproved _dune 16, 1971
June 21 ,1071

ssignment instructions dated

Survey commenced ___July 1 A8l

Survey completed ____Septamher R P 1920
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- 16.00

33.50

wh 2‘

18.00
36.65

41,33

A TR RANNE

Toumahip 8 North,

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins, diam,, 2
in the ground, with brass cap ;:l:d. » 2 dua.

T8 R11W
813

X 5%
1971

No accessories available.
Gpnt:lnue over nearly level land.
Waeh, drains drregularly S, 12° E,

The cor. of secs. 13, 14, 23 and 24.

N. 0® 19' W., bet. secs, 13 and 14,

Over gently rolling bench land through shadscale under-
growth. Ascend 15 ft. over gentle SW. slope.

Bagse of bench, bears N. 40° W, and 5. 40° E.; zsc. 170 ft.
over rocky SW. slope.

Top of bench, bears N. 40° W. and §. 40° E.; thence over
nearly level bench land.

The % eec, cor. of mecs. 13 and 14, monumented with a
conglomerate stong, 24x15x6 ins., firmly set 1n small
mound of atone, and plainly mkd, ¥ on W. face.

At the cor, point

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2k ins. diam., 14 ims.
ia the ground to bedrock, and in a mound of stone, 3% ft.
base to top, with brase cap mkd.

T8N R11W
5
514|513

1971

Bury the original cor. atone alongside irom post.

N. 1° 54' W,, beginning new measurement.
Descend 15 ft. over gentle NE. slope.
Wash, drains §. 60° E.; asc. 50 ft. over gentle 5W. slope

Boad on rim of bench, bears N. 45° W. and §. 45° E.;
desc, 70 ft. over eteep NE. slope.

Point for the cor. of secs. 11, 12, 13 and 14, at propor-
tionate distance latitudinally, and record dist. longitu-
dioally from.the cor. of sece. 9, 10, 15 and 16; there
is no remaining evidence of the original cor.

8at an iron post, 30 ing. long, 2% ins. diam., 24 ins.
in the ground, and in a collar of stone, with brass cap

<84

FIELD NOTE PAPER






Deperident Resurvey of fhe Subdtviuton,

Tpatichs nd

2 Tt T8N RIIW

g11}812 -
511I513

1971

Set a steel fence post, 6 fr. long, alongaide iron g

East, bet. secs, 12 and 13.

Over rolling bench land, through shadscale undergromad
Descend 200 ft. over NE. slope of bench.

27.70 |Rcad, bears N. 25° W. to Kelton and S. 25° E. to Mog
desc. 60 ft. over gentle NE, slope,

40.00 |Point for the ¥ sec. cor. of secs. 12 and 13, at rec
courge &nd distance; there is no remsining evidence
original cor.

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins. diam,, 22 ind
in the ground, and in a collar of stone, with brasa ¢
mkd,

T8N RLIW
512
% Ts13
1971

Set a steel fence post, 6 ft. long, alongstde iron po
Descend 55 ft. over gentle NE. slope.
43.00 |Wash, drains N. 56° E.

63.50 |Point for the meander cor. of secs. 12 and 13, on the

shore line of the Great Salt Lake, at record course a

distance; there is no repaining evidence of the origi;
cor,

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2k ims. diam., 24 ins,
in the ground, with fir post, 4 ips. square, 4§ fr, lot
alongside iron post, with brass cap mkd.

T8N RI1IW
5§12
§13

1971

|Raise a mound of stone, 3 ft, bage, 2 ft. high, W. of
cor.

Frow the cor., of secs. 11, 12, 13 and 14,
N. 0° 13' §,, het. secs. 1l and 12.

Over rolling bench land through shadscale undergrowth,
Descend 130 ft. aver NE. slope.

30.00 |Base of steep descent, thence over nearly level land.

! ..
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Dependent Resurvey of the Subdivision, Touwship & North, '
Ra 11 West, Salt Lake.Maridisn, Ussh - i

CHAINS

40.40

16.20
31.90
41.42

25.00
36.50
40.00

The ¥ sec. cor. of secs. 15 and 16, mommented with a
limestone, 18xi0xé ins., firmiy set and platuly mkd. X% on
W, face. ;

At the cor. point

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins. diam., 24 ing,
in the ground, with brass cap mkd.

TBR RI1W
S
s16(s1s
1971
Bury the original cor. stone alongside iron past.

No accessories available.

N. 0° I1' ¥., beginning new measurement.
Ascend 80 ft. over SE. slope
Gully, drains S. 60° E.
Wash, 30 lks. wide, 6 ft. deep, drains S. 50° E.
The cor. of seaes. 9, 10, 15 and 16, monumented with a
limesteone, 16xBx8 ins., firmly set and improperly mkd.
4 notches on N, and 2 on S. edges.
At the cor. peint
Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins. diam., 16 ins.
in the ground to bedrock, and in = mound of stone, 3
ft. base to top, with brass cap mkd,
T8N R11W
s9]s10
816‘815
1971

Buxy the original cor. stone alongside iron pose, .

From the cor, of secs. 10, 11, 14 and 15,

S. 89° 09' W., bet, secs. 10 and 15,

Over gently rolling land through shadscale und;rgrcm:h.
Ascend 75 ft. along S, slope. - | -
Wagh, drains 5. 15° E,.

Small wash, drains 8. 55° E,

Point for the % sec. cor. of sees. 10 and: 15, at propore
tionate digtance latitudinnally and record diss. lomgt

ally from the cor. of secs. 9, 10, 15 and 16; there is no
remaining evidence of the original cor. .

Set an iron post, 30 ins, long, 2% ina, diam,, 22 fns;
in the ground, and in & collar of stone, with steel fence
post alongaide, brass cap mkd.,

Loy





v

Dgpm‘ﬁ; Bagurvay of the Subdivieion, Tmmahip 8 North,
£, t T 1)

T8N R11W
$10
% 7815

1971
Ascend B5 ft. ovar rolling SE. slope.
Hagh, drains 8. 35° E.
Wash, drains §. 10® E.
Wash, drains §, 33° E.
Wash, drains 8. from N, 45° W,
Wash, drains S, 20" E,

The cor, of secs., 9, 10, 15 and 16.

N, 0° 28" W., bet. gecs, 9 and 10.

Over rolling land through shadscale undrrgrowth. Ascemd
200 £fr. over BE, slope. '

Wash, drains irregularly S, 25° E.
Wash, drains §. 25° E.

Dirt road, om curve, bears N, 80° E. curving N. 40" E.
and S, 80° W., curving W.

Gully, draing S. 30° E.
Point for the % aec, cor. of secs. 9 and 10, at propor- .
tionate distance; there is no remaining evidence of the )
original cor.
Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins. diam., 14 ins. im |
the ground, to bedrock, and in a mound of satone, 4 ft. .
base to top, with brass cap mkd.
T8N R1lW
I
| :
59810 :
1971 !
Ascend 125 ft. over SE. slope.
Trail road, bears N. 45° W. and S. 45° E.
Small gully, drains 5. 30° E,

Wash, drains S. 40° E,

slope.

72,60 {Rim of bench, bears E. and W.; asg. 50 ft. over gentle
5. ﬂlopﬁn

82,28 |Poiut for the cor. of secs. 3, 4, 9 and 10, at propor-

L7 (October 1964) tlamerly 4-4726) USDI—BLM FIELD NOTE PAPER
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Dependent Resurvey of the Btbdi.'duun, Townalilp 8 North,
Range 11 West,- Salt lea-ﬂeridinn.'uiajL :

CHAINE

6.50
17.50

28.00

40.15

8C.30

9.65

tionate distance latitudinally and record dist. i
longitudinally from the cor. of secs. 1, 6, 7 and 12, on"
the W. bdy. of the Tp.

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% fns, diam., 24 ins.
in the ground, and in a collar of stone, with steel fenca
post alongside, brass cap mkd,
TBN RIIW
94‘53
"58|510

1971

From the cor. of sees. 2, 3, 10 and 11,
S. 89" 11' W., bet. secs. 3 and 10.

Over rolling bench land, through shadscale undergrowth,
Ascend 160 fr. over E. slope,

Trail road, bears N. 33°'W, and S. 33° E.

|Wash, drains N. 20 E., at base of bench; asc. 250
ft. over steep NE. slope.

Rim of bench, bears N. 35° W, and 5. 35° E.; thence over
nearly level land,

Point for the X see. cor. of secs. 3 and 10, at propor-
tionate dietance latitudinally and record dist. longitudin-
ally from the cor. of seca. 1, 6, 7 and 12, on the W. bdy.

of the Tp.; there is no remzining evidence of the
original cor.

Set an iron post, 30 ins. loig, 2% ins. diam., 24.ins.
in the ground, with brass cap mkd.

T8N R1IW

s3
¥ TS0

1971

Llo accessories available,

Lontinue along gentle 5. slope on bench.

The cor. of gecs. 3, 4, 9 and 10.

m- 0° 01' Eo’ bet. secs. 3 a‘l!d 4.

Dver gently rolling high bench land through shadscale
undergrowth. Along general E. slope.

ash, drains N. 50°-E.; asc. 80 ft. over SE. slope.

L






1.00
10.60
17.15
21.65
27.15
40.65
41.13

pcpéndhn: nanuryey of the Subdivision, Township 8 North,

Jdid

L e

Trail rodd, bears 8. 34° W. and curves N. 5° E,

Point of spur, slopes E, about 1.50 chs. to end; desc,
60 ft. over N. slope.

Wash, drains §. 45° E.{ asec. 35 ft, along E. slope.

The )% sec. cor. of secs, 3 and 4, monumented with a
limestone, 10x6x6 ins., plainly mkd. %.

At the cor. point

Set an iron poat, 30 ins. long, 2% ins., diam., 24 ins.
in the ground, and in a collar of stone, brass cap mkd.

T8N R11W

¥
s4[83
1971

Bury original cor. stone alongside irom post.

N. 2° 33" W., begiming new measurement.

Ascend 60 ft. over SE. slope,

Wash, drains 5. 62° E,

Small spur, slopes B.; desc. 60 ft. over NE. slope.
Wagh, drains N. 70° E.; thence along E. slope.

Wagh, dratns N, 85° E,; asc. 10 ft. over gentle SE. slope
Top of ascent, slopes E.; desc. 30 ft. along E. slope,
Wash, drains N. 53° E.

Intersect the Second Standard Parallel North.

Point for the closing cor., of secs. 3 and 4, at propor-
tionate distance bet. the standard cor, of see¢s. 33 and

34, and the etandard cor. of secs. 32 and 33.

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins, diam., 22 ims.
in the ground, with brass cap mkd.

T9N RliW
533

SéISS

cC
T8N R11W
1971

From this cor., the standard cor. of secs. 33 and 34,
bears N, 89° 53" E., 0.70 chs., dist., wonumented with an
iron pest, 2% ina. dism., properly mkd. as described

in the field notes of the concurrent resurvey of T. 9 N.,
R. 11 W.

(Octohar 1964) Pamerty 4—87%) UEDL---BLM
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Depéndent Kesutvey of the Sibdivision m*l

——

CHAIND

12.00
31.75

37.76

63.25
65.75

73.00
75.52

3.00

27.00

41.60

67.25

75.00

lL

1 "y

Wagh, drains S, 50° E. .

s :-{.3 1

Wash, 30 1ks, wide, 3 ft. desp, drains 8, 80° 3. from 3
N. 25° W. :

Point for the ¥ sec. cor. of secs. 9 and 1§, dt propor- ':
tionate distance; there ie no remaining evidence of tha '
original cor. g

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% 4ns. diam., 24 ins.
in the ground, with steel fence post alongside, brass
cap mkd. A

TEN RLIW
89
k 315

1971

i L R

Raigse a mound of atone, 2 ft. base, 1) ft, high, N, of
cor,

Thence along gentle S, slope.
Wash, 15 lks. wide, 3 ft. deep, draips S,

Wash, 15 lke. wide, 4 ft. deep, drains irregularly S.
10. E. 1+

Wagh, 10 lks. wide, 2 ft. deep, drains S. 30° E.

The cor. of mecs. 8, 9, 16 and 17.

Spur, slopes 8. 10° W.; 10.00 cha. to em':l} dese,..30 ft.

N. 3° 46' W., bet. secs. B and 9.

Over rolling land through shadscale undergrowth, Ascend
155 ft. over 5. slope.

Wash, 15 lks, wide, 4 ft. deep, drains irregulsrly S.
35° E.

Wash, 20 1ks. wide, & ft. deep, drains irregularly S.
25" E,

Point for the k sec. cor. of secs. 8 and 9, at propor-
tionate distance; there is no remaining evidence of the
original cer,

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins. diam,, 24 ins.
in the ground, with fence post alongside, brasqk_c'ap
mkd.

T8N R1IW
%

s8|s9
1971

Cor. iz located 1.50 chs. R, of wash, 20 l¥g. wide, 4

ft. deep, drains irregularly S, Ascend 145 ft. cver |
S, slope,

Dirt road, bears E. and W.; amc. 110 £t. over SE. slope.
of spur. ‘ i

........-h'.!-, LR e
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Da'pendﬁt Regurvey of the Subdivieion, Township 8 North,

over KW, slope.

Point for the cor. of secs. 4, 5, 8 and 9, at propor-
tionate distance. latitudinally and record dist.
longitudinally from the cor. of secs. 1, 6, 7 and 12, on
the W. bdy. of the Tp.

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 24 ins. diam., 24 ins.
:;dthe ground, with steel fence post alongside, brass cap

TBN RIlW
53|54
58]89
1371

From the cor. of secs. 3, 4, 9 and 190,
S. 89° 00' W., bet. secs., 4 and 9.

Over mountainous land, through shadscale undergrowth.
Descend 10 ft. over gentle W, slope,

Wagh, drains S,

Trail road, at base of hill, bears N, 53° E. and 5. 53°
W.; asc. 120 ft. over broken SE. slope.

Small spur, slopes S.; desc, 20 ft. over 5W. alope.
Small draw, drains S5.; asc. 60 f£t. over S5E. slope.

Spur, slopes S.; desc. 50 ft. over W. slope. Scattered
timber N. of line.

Draw, drains S.; asc. 20 ft. over E. slope,
Small spur, slopes S.; desc. 20 ft. over SW, slope.

Draw, drains S. 50° E.; curving S. 70° E.; asc. 60 ft.
over NE. slope.

Spur, slopes S. 55" E.; thence along steep S. slope.

Point for the % sec, cor. of secs, 4 and 9, at propor-
tionate distance latitudinally and record dist.
longitudinally from the cor, of secs. 1, 6, 7 and 12,

on the W. bdy. of the Tp., there is no remaining evidence
of the original cor.

Set an fron post, 30 ins. loog, 2% ins. diam., 18 ins.
in the ground to bedrock, and in a mound of stcone, § ft.
base to top, with steel fence post alongside, brass cap
ukd.

TN R1IW
54
% 59
1971
Continue along steep 5. glope,

46,35 | Spur, slopes S. 55° W.; desc. 120 £t. over NMW. slope.

=¥ {Octcher 1964) Uermarly 4570} UEDE—BLM FIELD NOTE PAPER

—_——

el






Laning jeavewpry Jo uvafsiang *ysip
\\.d\\...%“@
[ 2 Rm\.\
0332330 Y Jod

rpaydozaw Agaiay st ‘reaang s{yl jo EWST3
-vgnfas ayl puk AF] Jo sIusmasinbel 3yl {ITA FIUEWPIOIDE
uy painzax 411301202 wosg Fulawy ‘dsains 241 puw fmojun
pLAT} pesnidde a4l 01 ILgEmAcTues AT135I38 sy Arpd FIyl

He61 "01 ITH “3'a ‘ucibupern
LNDEIVHYH QR J0 AV
WOIMALLNT FUL JO LEDAINYAEd SULVIS QALIKD

“Legt 'ic awniny
awaaw pur ETUFIICL

TBIUIpFAD BIqE
TRl Jheg 2y O0F BULPI0DY B1ic anay djEyl

RALIRA N B W
saul] Azpursm
—qns syl o

L668IE 4 kot d
e e i X .

A2 TEO0oT0 wrabesl

WoSE 65 Tuln Spaia1

AJAHNSIH LN3ON3430

B vl LRO0AEN S
Mo EE AT gtr Y

twop <10 IR

‘HYLN ‘NVIQIY3N 3XMvT1 1IvS 3HL 40 'LS3M Ol JONVY 'HLM¥ON 8

diHSNMOL

PESOOF =4
BErbikix

“AD0wt
m whiBen380 Fisubom vemmy
3

TYNIOIHO






§180-8 UNITED STATES 81
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DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT

ORIGINAL

FIELD NOTES

OF THE

DEFPENDENT RESURVEY OF A PORTION OF THE

SOUTH BOUNDARY OF T. 10 N., R. 8 W., T

WEST BOUNDARY OF T, 11 N., R. 8 W., i

WEST BOUNDARY OF T. 8 N., R. 10 W., -

NORTH AND EAST BOUNDARIES OF T. 11 N., R. 10 W.,

SOUTH BOUNDARY OF T. 12 N., R. 11 W.,

HORTH BOUNDARY AND A PORTION

OF THE SOUTH BOUNDARY AND

SUBDIVISIONAL LINES OF T. 10 N., R. 11 W.,

THE RETRACEMENT OF A PORTION OF THE

EAST BOUNDARY OF T. 12 N., R. 11 W., ‘

AND THE

REMONUMENTATION OF THE MEANDER CORNERS

ON THE TOWNSHIP AND RANGE LINES

INTERSECTING GREAT SALT LAKE

Of the Salt Lake Meridian,

In the State of Utah

EXECUTED BY

Fred R. Chappell Supervisory Cadastral Surveyor

Gerald W. Hochstrasser Cadastral Surveyor

r

supplemental

Under/special instroctions dated__August 14 19 67 , epproved___August 14, 1967

. which provided for the surveys included under U.S. Survey/Group

Number 490 , end assignment instructions dated__August 18 19 67.

Survey commenced__September 14  ,19_67 _
Survey completed —_September 3 19 _68






Dependent Besurvey of the West Boundary,
8 north 10

CHAINS

80.34

31.00

40.17

49.10

80.34

40.17

Point for the cor. of secs. 19, 24, 25 and 30, at propor-
tionate distance; there is no remaining evidence of the
original cor.

i{Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins. diam., 22 ios.
{in the ground, and in a collar of stone, with brass cap
mied.

T8N
B1lW RI1O0W

524I519
85251830

1967

North, bet. secs. 19 and 24.

Over desert land; asc. 120 ft. over a gentle § slope,
through scant vegetation.

Low, flat topped peninsula, projects S. 45° E.
Point for the % sec. cor. of secs. 19 and 24, at propor-

tionate dietance; there is no remaining evidence of the
original cer.

in the ground, and in a collar of stone, with brass cap

|Set. an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins. diam., 22 ins.

T8N
R1lw RIOW

b I
824|819
1967

proved dirt road, bears NW. and SE.; desc. 40 ft.
ver gentle NE. slape.

oint for the cor. of secs. 13, 18, 19 and 24, at propor-
tionate distance; there is no remaining evidence of the
riginal cor.
]
Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins. diam,, 22 inms.
t:dthe ground, and in a collar of stone, with brass cap

TBN
R11W R10W

Sl3|318
524819

1967

orth, bet. seca. 13 and 18.

er desert land; desc. 60 ft. over gentle NE. slope,
hrough scant vegetation.

oint for the ¥ sec. cor. of secs. 13 and 18, at propor-
icnate distance; there is no remaining evidence of the
inal cor.

t aa iron post, 30 ins. leng, 2% ins. diam., 22 ins.
the ground, and is a collar of stome, with brass cap
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3 UNITED STATES
40y DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR g
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT e

ORIGINAL

FIELD NOTES

OF THE

o4

DEPENDENT RESURVEY

OF

A PORTION OF THE NORTH BOUNDARY

AND
A PORTION OF THE SUBDIVISION

oF

TOWNSHIP 7 NORTH, RANGE 10 WEST

al aXd

w

FETTORT LoLh i

agcr et

Of the SALT LARE

Metidian,
te of UTAH

EXECUTED BY

Boyd S. Owens, Cadastral Suvrveyor

zial instructions dated March 3 .19 _61 | ghich provided [or the surveys
1der Group Number 443 approved March 10, 1961
ment instructions dated April 25 . 19 61

Survey commenced July 3 ,19 _61

Survey completed July 11 ,19_61






CHATNS

15.21

40.55

63.50
80.25

81.10

Dependent Resurvey of a Portion of the North
Boundary of Township 7 North, Range 10 West

Dependent Resurvey of a Portion of the North
Boundary of Township 7 North, Range 10 West

Reestablishment of the Survey Executed by
EBdmund Wilkes and Charles 1L, Betts in 1886

Note: The following dependent resurvey is for the
control of the survey in Group # 443, Township 7 North,
Range 11 West.

Beginning at the cor, of Tps. 7 and 8 N., Rs. 10 and 11
V., monumented with a fir post, set, wkd. and witneased
a5 described in the 1961 field notes of the dependent
resurvey of a portion of the N. bdy. of . 7 N., R. 11
H.

5, 89° 43' E,, bat. secs. 6 and 31.
Over level, barren alkali deserc.

Point for the original meander cor. of secs, 6 and 31
at proportionate dist.; there is no remaining evidence
of the origimal cor.

Set a fir post, 4x4 ine., 4 ft. long, 36 ins, in the
ground, scribed as follows:

T8N 831 on N.; MC on E.; T7¥ 56 on 8. and R1OW on
W, facea. Dig pits, 18x18x12 ins., W. of cor., 3
ft. and 6 ft. dist.

Point for the original % sec. cor. of secs. 6 and 31

at proportionate dist.; there is no remaining evidence
of the original cor.

Set a fir post, 4x&4 ins., 4 fr. long, 36 ins. in the
ground, scribed as follows:

TBN & 831 on N.; RIOW on E, and T7N 56 on 5. faces.

Dig pits, 18x18x12 ins., E. and W. of cor., & ft.
dist.

Enter brush land; asc. 75 ft. over gentle W. slope.
Low ridge, bears N. and S.

The original cer. of secs. 5, 6, 31 and 32, monumented
with a broken stone, dimly mkd. I accept this as the
original cor., after resurveying the line S, between

gsecs. 5 and 6,

At the cor. point

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ine. diam., 22 ina.
in the ground, with brass cap mkd.

T8N R1OW
531|S32
S6|85
I8
1961






Dependent Resurvey of a Portion of the North
Boundary of Township 7 North, Range 10 West

W
T}

Bury piece of broken, mkd, stone alongside iron
post, and raise a mound of stone, 3% fc. base, 3
ft. high, W. of cor,

From this cor., the original mesnder cor., of secs, S
and 32, Tps. 7 and B N., R, 10 W., mommented with a
sandstone, 18x8x6 ins. set 6 ins. in tha ground in a
small mound of stone, mkd. MC on the east face, bears
S. 86" 23' 30" E,, 29.50 chs. dist.

Land, level glkali desert,

S0il, alkall clay, fourth rate.

Vegetation, none W, portion; moderate shadscale and
galt brush E. portion.

Dependent Resurvey of a Portion of the
Subdivision of T, 7 North, Range 10 West

Note: The line betwsen secs. 5 and 6 was resurveyed in
order to verify the cor. of secs. S, 6, 31 and 32, Tps.
7 and B N,, R. 10 ¥,

From the cor. of secs. 5, 6, 31 and 32 on the N. bdy.
of the Tp.

5. 0° 27' W,, bet. secs. 5 and 6.

Over nearly level desert land through moderate shadscale
gnd salt brush.

Desc. 30 ft. along gentle W, slope.
The original % sec. cor. of secs. 5 and 6, monumented
with a limestone, 4x6x8 ins,, set, mkd. end witnessed
as described in the official record.

At the cor. point.

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins. diam,, 22 ins,
in the ground, with brass cap mkd,

T7N R1OH

E 4
S6|s5
1961

Dig pits, 18x18xI12 ins., N. and 8. of cor., 4 £ft.
dist,, and bury stone cor, alongside iron post,

§. 0 21' W., beginning new measurement.
Over gently rolling W. slope.
The original cor. of secs. S, 6, 7 and 8, monumented with|

a limeatone, 6x8x10 ins., set, mkd. and witnessed as des -
cribed in the official record.

1964) tHormerly 4=675%) USDI——BLM

FIELD NOTE PAPER
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CADASTRAL
Pipeline Proposal: YOUNG BROTHERS

T.9N., R. 11 W,, Salt Lake Meridian, Utah
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UNITED STATES ULk
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT

ORIGINAL

FIELD NOTES

OF THE

DEPENDENT RESUBVEY OF THE

SECOND STANDARD PARALLEL NORTH (SOUTH BOUNDARY,)

THE WEST BOUNDARY, THE SUBDIVISIONAL LINES

AND THE ADJUSTED ORIGINAL MEANDER LINES

oF

FRACTIONAL TOWNSHIP 9 NORTH, RANGE 11 WEST / 7 7

Of the SALT LAKE Mezidian,

State of UTAR

EXECUTED BY

Craig P. Sylvester Bupervisory Cadastral Surveyor

r special instructions dated June 23 .10 71 approved_ June 24, 1971

, which provided for the surveys included under U.5. Suzvey/Group

fper 532 , and essignment instrcticns dated June 25 L1971

Sarvey commenced__August 9 @ 1971
Survey completed September 9 ,19 71






Dependent Rasurvay of tha Sacond Btandnrd Parallel North,

S. 89° 53' E., beginning new-messurement.
» A "' 1

Desc, 175 ft. B¥er -general E. slope.

‘Hagh, drains S.
L L E"
Improved dirt road, in narrow valley, heara H. to

Kelton and §. to Hogup; asc,. 75 ft. cver pensral E.
slope. .

Point for the standard cor, of secs. 31 and 32, at pro-

portionate distance; there is no remaining evidence of
the original cor.

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins, diam,, 24 ins.
in the ground, with brass cap mkd.

sC
T98 RLIW

§31({832
§6

1971 ‘

Raise a mound of stone, 2k ft. base, 1k ft. high,
N. of cor. . .

Land, mowntainous.

So01il, gravelly.

Timbexr, scattered scrub pinon.agd juniper.
Undergrowth, shadecale, sagebrush and june grass.

pe N

S. 89° 59! E., along the 5. bdy. of sec.,32,

Over mountainous.land, throygh widely scattered scrub
timber. Asc, 100 ft. over rolling SW. slope.

Wash, draine §. 80° W. from.N..55° B., agc. 170 ft. over
SW. slope.

40.27 Point for the standard % sec. gor. of sec. 32, at pro-
portionate distance; there is no remaining evidence of
the original cor,

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins..diam., 24 ins.
in the ground, with stesl fence post alongside, brass
cap mkd. . 5 . ; .

§C
TSN R11W

. - 5 . 532
1971

3§ac. 105 ft. over SW. slope..

53.55 | Wash, drdlns S. 80° W. from N, 27°°E., asc. 15 ft. along
5. slope.

58.50 Gully, drains S, 10° W.; asc. 120 £t. over W. slopa.

70.65 Spur, slopes 8. from N. 45° E.; desc. 75 ft. over §E.
eélope,

R (October 1964) Uarmerly 4—473%) USDI——BLM FIELD NOTE PAPER






- U e
_lhpdndnnt lhdwuy affithe Bacoud Btandard Parallel Horth,

Bpur, slopes §, 35° B. from W.; desc, about 260 ft.. over
RE. llope.

e o MR
D:au, dr_ains 8. B0° B., desc. 260 fl:. OVEL general E
alope. L I /TS - .- t

The standard oors of seos, 33 and 34, mommented with a
-} broken limestond, 8xBxb :lna;., plainly mkd. 5C on N, face.
Rad trlanaﬁlnrinn. o

M: thn cor, poim: <

Set an h:on post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins. diam., 24 ins. in
the ground, and in a collar of stone, with brass cap mkd.

¢ i 5Cye
% * T9N R1IW
833'334
83
. : 1971

N |
Bury the original fur. stone alongside the iron post.

Land, mountainous.

So0il, rocky.

Timber, widely scattered scrub juniper.
bndergrowth, shadacale and june grass.

N. 88° 50° E., along the S. bdy. of sec. 34,

Over mountainous land, through shadscale undergrowth.
Deac. 100 ft. over gemeral E, slope.

Trail road,” bears N, and 5.; wash, drains East from S.
55° W,

14.30 | Draw, uear hesd, draing N. 50° E.; asc. 40 ft. over NW.
slope.

t

19.30 |Flat spur, slopes N. 40° E.; desc, 195 ft, over general
E. slope.

33.00 |Base of mountain, bears N. snd S., thence over rolling
bench land; desc, 40 £t. over E. slope.

40.15 |Point for the gtandard ¥ sec. cor. of sec. 34, at pro-
porticaate distance; there is no remaining evidence of
the original cor.

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins. diam,, 26 ins. in
the ground and in a collar of stone, with brass cap mkd.

. BC
TSN RILW

k s34
;i ': L 1: 1971

Desc, 15 ft. over SE. ulope.

42,30 [Wash, drnins N, 63° B.; desc. 235 fe. over rolling E.
slopa oi bench Iand" 41

L

B (October 1964) Gowmerty 4-67%) URDI—BIM FIELD NOTE PAPER
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ooy B DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 279
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT

ORIGINAL
FIELD NOTES
OF THE
PEPENDENT RESURVEY OF
A PORTTON OF THE SOUTH BOUNDARY

e S

THE WEST BOUNDARY
SUBDIVISIONAL LINES
AND

-—IHE ADJUSTED ORTGTNAJ, MPANDER LINES
TN

Of the SALT LAKE Meridian,

+ State of Urah

EXECUTED BY

Glen B. Hatch Supervisory Cadastral Surveyor
special instructions dated June 10 , 1971 _, which provided for the surveys
fed under Group Number 333 , spproved __June 18, 1971
71
ssignment instructions dated _ June 2L ,19
Survey commenced ___ July 1 ,18 21
Survey completed ____Septemher B » 19 1L






gL
Depundent

ne_nurvey of the

_Subdiv:taion, Township 8 North,
BY i 7:_-____1 -1,

Trafl rodd, bears 8. 34* W. and curves K. 5° E.

Point of spur, slopes E, about 1.50 chas, to end; desc.
60 ft. over N. slope.

Wash, draios 5. 45° E.; asc. 35 ft, along E. slope,

The ¥ sec. cor. of secs. 3 and 4, mommented with a
limestone, 10x6x5 ins., plainly mkd. k.

At the cor. point

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins. diam., 24 ins.
in the ground, and in a collar of atone, brass cap mkd.

T8N R11W

L 4
s4]s53
1971

Bury original cor, stone alongside irom post.

N, 2° 33' W., begimning new measurement.

Ascend 60 ft. over SE. slope.

Wash, drains S. 62° E,

Swall spur, slopes E.; desc, 60 ft, over NE. slope.

Wash, drains N. 70° E.; thence along E. alope.

Wash, drains N, 85° E,; asc. 10 ft. over gentle SE. slope
Top of ascent, slopes E.; desc, 30 f£t. along E. slope,
Wash, drains N. 53° E,

Intergect the Second Standard Parallel Nerth.

Point for the closing cor. of seca. 3 and &4, at propor-

tionate distance bet. the standard cor. of secs, 33 and
34, and the standard cor. of seca. 32 and 33.

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins. diam., 22 ims.
in the ground, with brass cap mkd.

T9N R11W
833
54 I| 53

cC
T8N R11W
971

From this cor., the standard cor. of secs. 33 and 34,
bears N. B9® 53' E., 0.70 chs., dist., monumented with anj
iron post, 25 ins. diam,, properly mkd. as described

in the field notes of the concurrent resurvey of 7. 9 N.,
R. 11 W.

{Octcbar 1964) Uarmerly 4-873%) USDI-—HLM FIELD NOTE PAPER






54

Depsndent Resurvey of the Bubdivision, Township 8 Norpl
Bange 11 Weat, Eslt Lake Maridian, Utah

CHAINS
57.60

61.70

80.60

9.00

17.00

42,29

62.00

63.00

85.21

=

Spur, slopes §.; desc. 20 ft. over W. slops.

Wash, 10 lks, wide, 3 ft. deep, drains 8. 3,50 chs.
thence E.; ase, 330 ft. cvar 8E. slope.

The cor, of secs. 1, 6, 7 and 12, on tha W. bdy. of the
Tp., hereinbefore described.

o =k

From the cor. of secs. 5, 6, 7 and 8.

RSBy 1
=

N, 0° 22" W., ber, secs, 5 and 6.

!
Y

Over rolling land through shadscale undergrowth. Desceod|
50 f£t. over generall NE, alope over series of small
washes draining NE.

@
A 4

Wash, drains E.

Graded dirt road, bears N. 10° W, to Kelton and 8. A
10° E. to Hogup.

Point for the % sec. cor. of secs. 5 and 6, at propor~
tionate distance; there is no remaining evidence of the
originsl cor,

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins, diam. 24 ina.
in the ground, fence post alongside, brags cap mkd.

TBN R1IW
X

56185 -
1971

Cor. is located 3.70 cha. W. of Big Wash, and 2.20 chs.
E, of Hogup~Kelton road. ¥

Descend NE. slope. £ h

Big Wash, 30 lks. wide, 4 ft. deep, drains irregularly

Improved dirt road, bears NW. and SE. ; ¥ i
Intersect the Second Standard Parallel North.
Point for the closing cor. of secs. 5 and 6, at propor- ]

tiopate distance bet. the standard cor. of secs. 31 gad
32, and the standard cor. of zecs. 32 and 33,

Set an iron post, 30 ins. lc'ma, 24 ins. diam., 24 ins.
in the groynd, with brass cap mxd.

T9N R1IW 23
S32 ;

S6185

cc ) -
T8N R11W 1
1971

Raise a mound of stonme, 2 ft. base, Us fr. high, S.
of cor.

Fromw this cor., the standard cer. of anesy Sl and 32, &
T. 9 N., B. 11 W., bears N. 83" 54" W., 0.91 chs. dfer. -

o T2 T

T = s e m

g e
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Pipeline Proposal: YOUNG BROTHERS
T.9 N., R. 12 W., Salt Lake Meridian, Utah
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UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT

ORIGINAL

FIELD NOTES

OF
THE DEPENDENT RESURVEY OF A
PORTION OF THE SOUTH BOUNDARY (SECOND STANDARD PARALLEL NORTH) ,
THE WEST BOUNDARY (GUIDE MERIDIAN) , A PORTION OF THE NORTH BOUNDARY,
AND

A PORTION OF THE SUBDIVISIONAL LINES

IN

TownsHIP 9 NORTH, RANGE 12 WEST
OF THE SALT LAKE MERIDIAN
IN THE STATE OF UTaH

EXECUTED By

Ronald K. Baugh
Supervisory Cadastral Surveyor

Under special instructions dated and approved September 07, 2006, which
provided for the surveys included under Group Number 1031, assignment
instructions dated September 07, 2006, and reassignment instructions dated
January 14, 2007,

Survey commenced September 13, 2006
Survey completed July 8, 2008
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DEPENDENT RESURVEY OF A PORTION OF THE SUBDIVISIONAL LINES,

TOWNSHIP 9 NORTH RANGE 12 WEST, SALT LaKE MERIDIAN, UTAH
CHAINS

T9N R12W
SZB|S27
$3315834
2006
Buried marked stone alongside aluminum post.

Set steel fence post alongside aluminum post.

Corner is located north, 28 ft. distance, from a wash draining
westerly.

N. 0° 18.8’ W., between sections 27 and 28,
40.382 Point for the 1/4 section corner of sections 27 and 28, at

proportionate distance, there is no remaining evidence of original
corner.

Set an aluminum post, 30 inches long, 2 1/2 inches in diameter, 12
inches in the ground to sclid rock, with magnet at base, and
aluminum cap marked:

TO9N R12W
1/4

528|527
2006
Set steel fence post alongside aluminum post.
Corner located on westerly slope.
80.764 Point for the corner of sections 21, 22, 27, and 28, at
proportionate distance, there is no remaining evidence of original

corner.

Set an aluminum pest, 30 inches long, 2 1/2 inches in diameter, 28
inches in the ground, with magnet at base, and aluminum cap marked:

TO9N R12W

s2hs2z

5281527
2006

Set steel fence post alongside aluminum post.

From the 1/4 section corner of sections 22 and 27, monumented with a
flint stone, BX6X4 inches, firmly set, marked 1/4 on west face.

At the corner point





CHAINS

40.458

39.053

40.281

19

DEPENDENT RESURVEY OF A PORTION OF THE SUBDIVISIONAL LINES,
TownsHIP 9 NORTH RaNGE 12 WesT, SALT LAKE MERIDIAN, UTAH

The 1/4 section corner of sections 8 and 9, monumented with a mound
of stone. This mound of stone is accepted as best available evidence
of original corner position.

At the corner position

Set an aluminum post at the center of mound, 30 inches long, 2 1/2
inches in diameter, 28 inches in the ground, with magnet at base, in
a mound of stone, 2 ft. base to top of aluminum cap marked:

TO9N R12ZW
1/4

58|59
2006

Set steel fence post alongside aluminum post.

N. 0° 26.7' W., beginning new measurement.

The corner of sections 4, 5, B, and 9, monumented with a lava stone,
18X8X7 inches, firmly set, with 4 grooves on east and 5 grooves on
south faces. Alongside stone is a 5/8 inch rebar with plastic cap
marked “Box Elder County Surveyor” and a steel fence post.

At the corner point

Set an aluminum post, 30 inches long, 2 1/2 inches in diameter, 27

inches in the ground, with magnet at base, and aluminum cap marked:

T9N R12ZW
85|84
58159
2006

Buried marked stone alongside aluminum post.

Deposit rebar inside aluminum post.

From the corner of sections 5, 6, 31, and 32, on the south boundary
of the township, hereinbefore described.

N. 0° 08.6" W., between sections 31 and 32.

The 1/4 section corner of sections 31 and 32, monumented with a
limestone, 10X5X5 inches, firmly set, marked 1/4 on west face.

At the corner point

Set an aluminum post, 30 inches long, 2 1/2 inches in diameter, 26
inches in the ground, with magnet at base, and aluminum cap marked:





CHAINS

82,607

40.31¢6

40.394

25

DEPENDENT RESURVEY OF A PORTION OF THE SUBDIVISIONAL LINES,
ToWwNSHIP 9 NORTH RANGE 12 WEST, SALT LAKE MERIDIAN, UTAH

Set an aluminum post, 30 inches long, 2 1/2 inches in diameter, 26
inches in the ground, with magnet at base, and aluminum cap marked:

TSN R12W
518
1/4
519
2006

Set steel fence post alongside aluminum post.

The corner of sections 13, 18, 19, and 24, on the west boundary of
the township, hereinbefore described.

From the corner of sections 17, 18, 19, and 20.
N. 0° 27.8' E., between sections 17 and 18.

The 1/4 section corner of sections 17 and 18, monumented with a
sandstone, 12X6X4 inches, firmly set, dimly marked 1/4 on west face.

At the corner point

Set an aluminum post, 30 inches long, 2 1/2 inches in diameter, 27
inches in the ground, with magnet at base, and aluminum cap marked:

TON R12W
1/4

518|517
2006
Buried marked stone alongside aluminum post.

Set steel fence post alongside aluminum post.

N. 4° 00.9' W., beginning new measurement.

Point for the corner of sections 7, 8, 17, and 18, at proportionate
distance, there is no remaining evidence of the original corner.

Set an aluminum post, 30 inches long, 2 1/2 inches in diameter, 27
inches in the ground, with magnet at base, and aluminum cap marked:

TS9N R12W
57|SB
5181517
2006

Set steel fence post alongside aluminum post.






CHAINS

40.314

BD.628

40.212

80.725

40.342

26

DEPENDENT RESURVEY OF A PORTION OF THE SUBDIVISIONAL LINES,
ToWNSHIP O NORTH RANGE 12 West, SALT LAKE MERIDIAN, UTAH

From the corner of sections 8, 9, 16, and 17.
S. 88° 16.%' W., between sections 8 and 17.

Point for the 1/4 section corner of sections 8 and 17, at
proportionate distance, there is no remaining evidence of the
original corner.

Set an aluminum post, 30 inches long, 2 1/2 inches in diameter, 27
inches in the ground, with magnet at base, and aluminum cap marked:

TO9N R1ZW
58
1/4
517
2006

Set steel fence post alongside aluminum post.

The corner of sections 7, 8, 17, and 18,

S. B8° 58.6' W., between sections 7 and 18.

Point for the 1/4 section corner of sections 7 and 18, at
proportionate distance, there is no remaining evidence of the
original corner.

Set an aluminum post, 30 inches long, 2 1/2 inches in diameter, 28
inches in the ground, with magnet at base, and aluminum cap marked:

TO9N R12W
s7
1/4
518
2008

The corner of sections 7, 12, 13, and 18, on the west boundary of
the township, hereinbefore described.

From the corner of sections 7, 8, 17, and 18,

N. 2° 46.9' E., between sections 7 and 8.

The 1/4 section corner of sections 7 and 8, monumented with a
sandstone, 12X8X5 inches, firmly set, plainly marked 1/4 on west
face.

At the corner point

Set an aluminum post, 30 inches long, 2 1/2 inches in diameter, 25
inches in the ground, with magnet at base, and aluminum cap marked:
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DEPENDENT RESURVEY OF A PORTION OF THE SUBDIVISIONAL LINES,

ToWNSHIP 9 NORTH RANGE 12 WEST, SALT LAKE MERIDIAN, UTAH
CHAINS

T9N R12ZW
1/4
57|58
2006
Buried marked stone alongside aluminum post.

Set steel fence post alongside aluminum post.

N. 3° 43.1' W., beginning new measurement.

39.554 Point for the corner of sections 5, 6, 7, and 8, at proportionate
distance, there is no remaining evidence of the original corner.

Set an aluminum post, 30 inches long, 2 1/2 inches in diameter, 28
inches in the ground, with magnet at base, and aluminum cap marked:

TON R1Z2W
SG'SS
57158
2006

Set steel fence post alongside aluminum post.

From the corner of sections 4, 5, 8, and &.
S. 88° 27.4" W., between sections 5 and 8.

40.313 Point for the 1/4 section corner of sections 8 and 17, at
proportionate distance, there is no remaining evidence of the
original corner.

Set an aluminum post, 30 inches long, 2 1/2 inches in diameter, 27
inches in the ground, with magnel at base, and aluminum cap marked:

TON R12ZW
55
1/4
s8
2006

Set steel fence post alongside aluminum post.

80.626 The corner of sections &, &, 7, and 8.

S. 89° 25.3’ W., between sections 6 and 7.
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DEPENDENT RESURVEY OF A PORTION OF THE SUBDIVISIONAL LINES,

TOWNSHIP O NORTH RANGE 12 WEST, SALT LAKE MERIDIAN, UTAH
CHAINS

40.400 Point for the 1/4 section corner of sections 6 and 7, at
proportionate distance, there is no remaining evidence of the
original corner.

Set an aluminum post, 30 inches long, 2 1/2? inches in diameter, 28
inches in the ground, with magnet at base, and aluminum cap marked:

TS9N R12W
56

1/4
57
2008

80.922 The corner of sections 1, 6, 7, and 12, on the west boundary of the
township, hereinbefore described.

From the corner of sections 5, 6, 7, and 8.
N. 0° 40.5' W., between sections 5 and 6.

39.472 Point for the 1/4 section corner of sections 5 and 6, at
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

56|85
2008

78.451 The corner of sections 5, 6, 31, and 32, on the north boundary of
the township, hereinbefore described.
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UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT

ORIGTNAL

FIELD NOTES
OF
THE DEPENDENT RESURVEY OF

A PORTION OF THE SOUTH BOUNDARY,

A PORTION OF THE WEST BOUNDARY,
AND

A PORTION OF THE SUBDIVISIONAL LINES
IN
TOWNSHIP 10 NORTH, RANGE 12 WEST

OF THE SALT LAKE MERIDIAN
IN THE STATE OFf UTAH

EXECUTED BY

Ronald K. Baugh
Supervisory Cadastral Surveyor

Under Special Instructions dated and approved December 13, 2006, which

provided for the surveys included under Group Number 1032, and Assignment
Instructions dated December 13, 2006.

Survey commenced March 22, 2007
Survey completed July 19, 2007





CHAINS

35,997

40.046

80.092

29

DEPENDENT RESURVEY OF A PORTION OF THE SUBDIVISIONAL Lines,
TownsHIP 10 NORTH, RANGE 12 WEST, SALT LAKE MERIDIAN, UTAH

TIONRI1ZW
1/4

S4158 3
2007
Deposit the marked stone alongside the aluminum post.

Set a steel fence post alengside the aluminum post.

N. 1°13.4' W., beginning new measurement.

The corner of sections 3, 4, 33, and 34, on the north boundary
of the township, monumented with an iron pest, 2 1/2 inches
diameter, projecting 12 inches above the ground, in a mound of
stone, with brass cap marked as described in the official
record of the 1967 resurvey.

Set a steel fence post alongside the iron post.

Corner is located on north edge of rim.

From the corner of sections 27, 28, 33, and 34.
S. 89°49.1' W., between sections 28 and 33.

Point for the 1/4 section corner of sections 28 and 33, at
pProportionate distance, there is no remaining evidence of the
original corner.

Set an aluminum post, 30 inches long, 2 1/2 inches diameter,
26 inches in the ground, with magnet at base, and aluminum cap
marked:

TIONRI12 W
5 28

1/4
s 33
2007

Set a steel fence post alongside the aluminum post.
The corner of sections 28, 29, 32, and 33, monumented with an
unrecorded iron pipe, 1 inch diameter, with a 1 1/2 inches

diameter iron cap marked, 28 29 32 33.

The iron pipe is accepted as the best available evidence of
the position of the original corner.

AL the corner point





CHAINS

40.429

40.306

30

DEPENDENT RESURVEY OF A PORTION OF THE SUBDIVISIONRL LINES,
TowNsHIP 10 NORTH, RANGE 12 WEST, SALT LAKE MERIDIAN, UTaAH

Set an aluminum post, 30 inches long, 2 1/2 inches diameter,
26 inches in the ground, with magnet at base, and aluminum
cap marked:
TIONR 12 W
S 2% IS 28
S 3218 33
2007

Deposit the iron pipe, inverted, alongside the aluminum post.

Set a steel fence post alongside the aluminum post.

N. 0°29.5' W., between sections 28 and 29.

The 1/4 section corner of sections 28 and 29, monumented with
a limestone, 11 X B X 4 inches, firmly set, projecting 2
inches above the ground, marked 1/4 on west face.

At the corner point

Set an aluminum post, 30 inches long, 2 1/2 inches diameter,
28 inches in the ground, with magnet at base, and aluminum

cap marked:

TIONRI1Z W
1/4

S 2% ]S 28
2007
Deposit the marked stone alongside the aluminum post.

Set a steel fence post alongside the aluminum post.,

N. 0°28.9’ W., beginning new measurement.

The corner of sections 20, 21, 28, and 29, monumented with a
limestone, broken in two, 12 X B8 X 6 inches, when put
together, the bottom half is firmly set, marked with 4 notches
on east edge. Alongside the corner, a rebar, 5/8 inch
diameter, with yellow plastic cap marked “BOX ELDER CO
SURVEYOR”, and an unrecorded iron pipe, 1 inch diameter, with
1 1/2 inches diameter iron cap marked, 20 21 28 29,

At the corner point





31

DEPENDENT RESURVEY OF A PORTION OF THE SUBDIVISIONAL LINES,
TownsHIP 10 NoORTH, RANGE 12 WEST, SALT LAKE MERIDIAN, UTan

CHAINS
Set an aluminum post, 30 inches long, 2 1/2 inches diameter,
28 inches in the ground, with magnet at base, and aluminum cap
marked:
TI10NRI12 W
S 20 5 21
S 29 5 28
2007
Deposit the broken marked stone, rebar, and iron pipe,
inverted, alongside the aluminum post.
Set a steel fence post alongside Lhe aluminum post.
From Lhe corner of sections 21, 22, 27, and 28.
N. 89°41.7" W., between sections 21 and 28.
39,935 Point for the 1/4 section corner of sections 21 and 28, at

proportionate distance, there is no remaining evidence of the
original corner.

Set an aluminum post, 30 inches long, 2 1/2 inches diameter,
24 inches in the ground, with magnet at base, and aluminum cap
marked:

TI10ONR 12 W
5 21
1/4
5 28
2007

Set a steel fence post alongside the aluminum post.

79.870 The corner of sections 20, 21, 28, and 29.

N. 0°45.8' W., between sections 20 and 21.

39.765 Point for the 1/4 section corner of sections 20 and 21, at
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

79.530

32

DEPENDENT RESURVEY OF A PORTION OF THE SUBDIVISTONAL LiNES,
TOWNSHIP 10 NoRTH, RANGE 12 WEST, SALT LAKE MERIDIAN, UTaH

TIONRI12W
1/4

5 20 5 21
2007

Set a steel fence post aleongside the aluminum post.
The corner of sections 16, 17, 20, and 21, monumented with a
limestone, 9 X 4 X 3 inches, firmly set, marked with 3 notches
on south and 4 notches on east edges. Alongside the corner, an
unrecorded iron pipe, 1 inch diameter, 4.5 ft. long,
projecting 24 inches above the ground, with a 1 1/2 inech
diameter iron cap marked, 16 17 20 21.
At the corner point
Set an aluminum post, 30 inches long, 2 1/2 inches diameter,
26 inches in the ground, with magnet at base, and aluminum cap

marked:

T 10 NR 12 W

s 17 S 16
s 20 g 21
2007

Deposit the marked stone and iron pipe, inverted, alongside
the aluminum post.

Set a steel fence post alongside the aluminum post.

From the corner of sections 8, 9, 16, and 17, monumented with
a sandstone, 10 X 5 X 3 inches, plainly marked with 4 notches
on south and 4 notches on east edges. Alongside the corner, an
unrecorded iron pipe, 3/4 inch diameter, firmly set,
projecting 2 ft. above the ground, with a 1 1/2 inches
diameter iron cap marked, 8 9 16 17,

At the corner point
Set an aluminum post, 30 inches long, 2 1/2 inches diameter,
26 inches in the ground, with magnet at base, and aluminum

cap marked:

TIONRI12 W





CHAINS

3%9.682

79.364

33

DEPENDENT RESURVEY OF A PORTION OF THE SUBDIVISTONAL LINES,
TownsHIP 10 NORTH, RANGE 12 WEST, SALT LAKE MERIDIAN, UTaH

Deposit the marked stone and iron pipe, inverted, alongside
the aluminum post.

Set a steel fence post alongside the aluminum post.

N. 0°09.3’ W., between sections 8 and 9.

Point for the 1/4 section corner of sections 8 and 9, at
proportionate distance, there is no remaining evidence of the
original corner.

Set. an aluminum post, 30 inches long, 2 1/2 inches diameter,
24 inches in the ground, wilh magnet al base, and aluminum cap

marked:

TI1I0ONRI12 W
1/4

58|59
2007
Set a steel fence post alongside the aluminum post.
The corner of sections 4, 5, B, and 9, monumented with an
unrecorded iron pipe, 1 inch diameter, with a 1 1/2 inches

diameter iron cap marked, 4 5 8 9.

The iron pipe is accepted as the best available evidence of
the posilion of the original corner.

At the corner point
Set an aluminum post, 30 inches long, 2 1/2 inches diameter,
26 inches in the ground, with magnet at base, and aluminum
cap marked:
T 10 NR 12 W
S 5| S 4
58|59
2007

Deposit the iron pipe, inverted, alongside the aluminum post.

Set a steel fence post alongside the aluminum post.

From the corner of sections 3, 4, 9, and 10.

S, 89°48.7' W., between sections 4 and 9.
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UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT

QORIGINAL

FIELD NOTES

OF
THE DEPENDENT RESURVEY OF A
PORTION OF THE SOUTH BoUNDARY (SECOND STANDARD PARALLEL NorTH) ,
THE WeEsST BOUNDARY (GUIDE MERIDIAN), A PORTION OF THE NORTH BOUNDARY,
AND

A PORTION OF THE SUBDIVISIONAL LINES
IN

TOWNSHIP 9 NORTH, RANGE 12 WEST
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
January 14, 2007.

Survey commenced September 13, 2006
Survey completed July 8, 2008
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DEPENDENT RESURVEY OF THE WEST BOUNDARY (GUIDE MERIDIAN) ,

TownNsHIP 9 NORTH RANGE 12 WEST, SALT LAKE MERIDIAN, UTAH
CHAINS

Set an aluminum post, 30 inches long, 2 1/2 inches in diameter, 27
inches in the ground, with magnet at base, and aluminum cap marked:

T10N
R13W R12W

836|S3l

S51is6
T9N
2008

Buried marked stone alongside aluminum post.

Dependent Resurvey of a Portion of the North Boundary,
Township 9 North, Range 12 West, Salt Lake Meridian, Utah.

Reestablishment of the Survey Executed by
E. Wilks & C.L. Betts in 1886

From the corner of sections 5, 6, 31, and 32, on the north boundary
of the township, monumented with a wooden post, 12 inches long.

At the corner point

Set an aluminum post, 30 inches long, 2 1/2 inches in diameter, 27
inches in the ground, with magnet at base, and aluminum cap marked:

T10N R12W
S31|S32
56l1S5
TIN
2006
Buried wood post alongside aluminum post.
Set steel fence post alongside aluminum post.
S. B9° 58.9' W., between sections 6 and 31.
40.508 Point for the 1/4 section corner of sections 6 and 31, at

proportionate distance, there is no remaining evidence of original
corner.

Set an aluminum post, 30 inches long, 2 1/2 inches in diameter, 28
inches in the ground, with magnet at base, and aluminum cap marked.

T10N R12W
S531
1/4
56
TN

2008
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CADASTRAL

Pipeline Proposal: YOUNG BROTHERS

T.11 N, R. 12&13 W., Salt Lake Meridian, Utah
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Faorm 9180-6
(:;'a': 1965) UNITED STATES

Hormerly 4=78) DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT 121

ORIGINAL

FIELD NOTES

OF THE

DEPENDENT RESURVEY

OF

THE SOUTH BOUNDARY

OF

TOWNSHIP 12 NORTH, RANGE 12 WEST

AND THE

DEPENDENT RESURVEY

oF

.. _THE SOUTH, WEST AND EAST BOUNDARZIES

AND

THE SUBDIVISIONAL LINES

- OF

TOWNSHIP 11 NORTH, RANGE 12 WEST

L e e — we I T

Of the SALT LAKE = _

i Mecidian,

In the State of Lt w UTAH

EXECUTED BY

FRED R. CHAPPELL i _ SUPERVISORY CADASTRAL SURVEYOR

e e

Under special instructions dated __ FEBRUARY 20 . 19 67 _, which provided or the surveys

included under Group Number 491 . appeoved __FEBRUARY 24, 1967

and assigpment instructions dated MAY 26 .19 67

Survey commenced JULY 17 .19 _67

Survey completed AUGUST 29 , 19 67






CHAIRS

39.97

45.65

78.40
79.94

Dependent Resurvey, 5. Bdy., T. 11 N., R, 12 W.

Set an fren post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins. in diam,, 24
ins, in the ground, with brass cap mkd,

TL11N R12W

532[833
S3|84
T1ON R12W

1967

Set a steel fence post, 6 ft. long, 24 inse, in
the ground, alongside the iron post,

Land, nearly level and desert hills,

S0il, sandy clay.

No timber,

Undergrowth, medium dense, shadscale and sapebrush,

—

§. 89° 51' W., bet. secs. 5 and 32,

Over nearly level desert land through medfuwn dense
undergrowth.

Point for the % sec., cor. of secs. 5 and 32, at pro-
porticnate distance; there 1z no remaining evidence of
the original cor,

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins, in diam., 24
ins. in the ground, with brass cap mkd,

T11N R12W
§32

t 85

T10N R12w

1947
Bury broken glass around the iron post,

Trail road, bears N, 72° E. and §. 72° W.; asc. 75 ft,
over gentle E. slope.

Low spur, projects §, 10° E,

The cor., of secs. 5, 6, 31 and 32, monumented with a
trachyte stone, 25x13x7 ing., firmly set in the ground
and mkd. with 5 notches on the E, and 1 notch on the W,
edge. .

4t the cor, point

Set an iron post, 30 ins, long, 2% ins. in diam,, 12
ins. in the ground to solid rock and in a mound of stone,
3% fr. base, ta top, with brass cap mkd,

T11N R12W

§31is32
56|85
TI0H- R12W

1967

Set a steel fence post, 6 ft. long, 2 ft, in the
ground alongside the ifron post,

(-1 2-3 Ty o]





Dependent Resurvey, §. Bdy., T. L1 N., R, 12 W,

—— TR TR T s am

CHAINS

Bury the original cor. in the mound alongside the
iron post.

Land, gently rolling desecrt.

Soil, sandy and tocky clay.

No timber.

Undergrowth, medium dense shadscale, sagebrush, scant
graas,

5. 88° 21' W,, bet. secs, 6 and 31,

Over gently rolling desert land.

10,560 Trail road, bears S, 10 E, and N. 10° W,

39.96 The k sec. cor. of sece. 6 and 31, monumented with a
trachyte stone, 18x12x6 ins., firmly set in the ground
and mkd. % on the N. face.

At the cor. point

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins. in diam., 24
ine. in the ground, with brass cap mkd.

TIIN RIZW

§31 :

k 86 .

T10N R12W
1967

Set a steael fence post, 6 ft. long, 2 ft. in the |
ground, alongside the iron post. I

Bury the original cor. alongside the iron post.
S, 88° 20' W,, beginning new meisurement,
40,73 The cor. of Tpe. 10 and 11 N., Rs, 12 and 13 #., monu-

mented with an iron post, 2% ins. in diam., with a
steel fence post set alongside brass cap mkd.

TL1IN
R1W RlAW

$36)531
51|86
T10N
1967

Land, nearly level desert.

Soil, saudy clay.

Ho timber.

Undergrowth, medium dense shadscale, grass and weeds.

Dependent Resurvey, W, Bdy., T. 11 N., R, 12 ¥,

Reestablishment of the Survey Executed by
H. Fitzhugh, Deputy Surveyor in 1883,

ru-v (October 1964) (formesly 4=57Jb) USDI—BLM FIELD NOTE S4PER






CHAINE

41,01

48,90
54,40
61,00
72.60

82,02

Dependent Resurvey, W. Bdy., T. 11 N,, R, 12 W,

From the cor, of Tps. 10 and 1l N., Re. 12 and 13 W.,
hereinbefore described.

N, 0° 45" W,, bet. secs., 31 and 36.

Over nearly level desert land through scant undergrowth.
Point for the % sec. cor, of secs. 31 and 36, at pro-
portionate distance; there is no remaining evidence of

the original cor.

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% Ins. in diam., 24
ins, in the ground, with brass cap mkd,

TLIR
R13W R12W

2
536|531
1967

Set a steel fence post, 6 ft. lohg, 2 fr, in the
ground, alongside the iron post.

Wash, 25 lks. wide, & ft, deep, drzins 5. 56° E,
Wagh, 12 lks. wide, 4 ft, deep, drains S. 78" E,
Wash, 30 lks. wide, 5 ft. deep, drains S. 76° E.
Wash, 5 lks. wide, 2 ft, deep, drains §. 24° E.

The cor. of secs. 25, 10, 31 and 36, monumented with a
trachyte atons, l0x8x6 ina., firmly set in the ground

‘and mkd. with 1 notch on the S. and 5 notches on the

N. Bdge-
At the cor, point

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins. in diam,., 24
ins. in the ground, with brass cap mkd.

TilN
R13W R12wW

251830
536531
. 1967

Set a steel fenca post, 6 ft, long, 2 ft. in the
ground, alongside the iron post,

Bury the original cor. alongside the iron post,

Land, nearly level desert,

S0il, sandy clay,

No timber,

Undergrowth, scamt shadscale, grass and weeds.

N. 0°0%' E., bet. secs. 25 and 30,

SPO sast





131

Dependent Resurvey, W, Bdy., T. 11 N., R, 12 W.
CHAINS

Over nearly level desert land through medium dense
undergrowth.

5.90 Trail road, bears N, 56° W. and 5. 56° E.

10.90 Wash, B lks, wide, 2 ft, deep, drains 5, 33" E.; esec,
63 ft. over a SW. slope.

24,60 Rocky point, projects N. 20° W.; desc, 75 ft. over a
NE. slope.
39.37 The ¥ sec. cor. of secs. 25 and 30, monumented with a

trachyte stone, 22x12x7 ins., firmly set In the ground
and mkd. ¥ on the W. face.

At the cor, point

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins, in diam,, 18
ins. in the ground to solid rock and in 2 mound of
stone, 3% ft, base, to top, with brass cap mkd,

T11N
RL3W R12W
-
§25|530

1967

Bury the original cor. im the ground and mound
alongside the iron post.

N. 1° 12' W,, beginning new measurement.

20.15 Wash, 8 lks. wide, 1 fc. deep, drains 5, 89° W,

26.25 Wash, 17 lks, wide, 4 ft. deep, drains §. 33° W,

29,55 Trail road, bears N. 59° W, and S, 59° E,

40,85 The cor. of secs, 19, 24, 25 and 30, monumented with a
trachyte stone, 15xBx7 ins., firmly set in the ground

and mkd. with 2 notches on the S. and 4 notches on the
N. edges.

Ac the cor. point

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins. in diam,, 24
ins. in the ground, with brass cap mkd.

TLIN
R13¥ RL2W

5241519
825|530
1967

Set a pilne post, 5 ft. long, 5 ins..in dizm., alongt
gide the iron post.

Bury the original cor. alongside the iron post.

ro_ir {October 1964) (formerly 4=b73h) USDI~~ALM FIELD NOTE PAPER





CHAINS

7.95

37.00
38.30

39.97

-85
22.60
32,15
39,90

40,15

10

Dependent Resurvey, W. Bdy., T, 11 N., R. 12 ¥,

Land, gently rolling deserc.
Soil, sandy clay.

No timber. .
Undergrowth, medium dense shadscale, grass and weeds,

N, 07 13' W,, bet. secs, 19 and 24.
Over nearly level desert land through scant undergrowth.

Improved dirt road, bears N. 71° E. to Kelton, and S.
71° W. to Rosebud; asc. 50 ft. over gentle S, slopea.,

Top of rise,

Trail road, bears N. 44° E. and 5. 44° W.

The % sec. cor, of secs. 19 and 24, monumented with

a trachyte stone, 15x8x5 ins., firmly set in the ground
and mkd. % on the W. face,

At the cor. point

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2k ins. in diam., 24
ins. in the ground, with brass cap mkd.

T1IN
R13W R12W

k
524|519
1967

Ralse a mound of stone, 3 ft. base, 2% ft. high
W. of the cor.

Bury the original cor. alongside the fron post.

N. 0% 58' W,, beginning new measurement.

Trail road, bears N. 70° W, and 5. 70° E.

Trail road, bears N, B8° E. and §. BB° W,

Wash, 4 lks, wide, 2 ft, deep, drains N, 75° w,

Trail road, bears N, 74° E. and S, 74° 4.

Point for cthe cor. of seecs. 13, 18, 19 and 24 at pro-
portionate distance; there is no remaining evidence of

the original cor,

Set an {iron post, 30 ins, long, 2% ins. in diam., 24
ins. in the ground, with brass cap mkd.

TLLIN
R1W R12uw

13|s18
524|519

1967






150G

34

Depandent Resurvey, T, 11 N,, R, 12 W,

CHAIN

43.25

79.90

14.70
24,80

40.25

68.50

80.50

Wash, 20 lks. wide, 3 ft, deep, drains M. 26° E,; asc.
40 ft, ovar a NE, slope.

The cor. of asoce, 1L, 12, 1) and 14,

Land, rolling desart bench.

Soil, stony clay,

No timbar. )
Undergrovth, medium dense sagebrush, shadscale,

N, 0° 43' W,, bat, secs. 11 and 12,

Over deserct bench land sloping gently to the NE.
Wash, 10 lks. wide, 3 fr. doap, draina N. 60° E,
Tratl road, bears irrvegulariy W, and N, 45" K,

Point for the & sec. cor, of secs. 11 and 12, at pro-
portionate distance; there is no remaining evidence of
the original cor,

Sct an fron post, 3O {ns, long, 24 Lns, in diam., 24
{ns. in the ground, with brasa cap mkd.

TIIN R12
t
s11]s12

1967

Set a stecl fence post, 6 fr. long, 2 ft, In the
ground alongside the iron post,

Trall road, bears 8. 51° W, and N. 51° E,

Polnt for the cor. of secs. 1, 2, 11 and 12 at pro-
portionace distance; there is no remaining evidencs
of the original cor.

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 24 ias. in diam., 24
ins. in the ground, with brass cap mkd,

TLIN R12W

82|31
si1isi2
1967

Set a steel fence post, 6 ft., long, 2 ft. in the
ground, alongside the iron post,

Land, gently sloping bench land,
Soil, sandy clay.
No I‘.imhel' N

Undergrowth, mediun dense sagebrush, shadscale, scant
grass,

Fram the cor. of secs. 1, 6, 7 and 12 on the X, bdy. of
the Tp.






171
49

Depandent Resurvey, T. 1l N., R, 12 W,

CHAINS

West, bet, secs. 15 and 22,

Over nearly level desert land through scant undergrowth.
39,08 Point for the % sec. cor. of smecs. 15 and 22 at pro-
portionate dfstance; there is no remaining evidence

of the original cor.

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins. in diam,, 24
ing. in the ground, with brass cap mkd.

TIIN RLW
Si3
: 522
1967

Ser a sceel fence post, 6 ft. long, 2 ft. in the
ground, alengside the iron post,

70,65 Trail road, bears S, 22° W, and N, 22° E,
78.16 The cor. of secs, 15, 16, 21 and 22,
Land, nearly level desert.

Soil, sandy clay.

No timber,
Undergrowth, scant shadscale and sagebrush.

R

N, 0° 48' W., bet. sces. 15 and 16,
Over gently rolling desert land through scanc undergroweh
39,88 The & sec. cor. of secs, 1S and 16, monumented with a

quartzite stone, 6x5x2 ins., firmly 3et in the ground
@ and mkd. % on the W, face, witnessed by a mound of scone,

2 fr. base, L ft. high, W, of the cor. (record calls for
a quartzite L8x9x6 iny.).
At the cor. point

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins. in diam,, 24 ins.
in the ground, with brass cap mkd,

TLIN R12W

k
816|815
1967

Set a steel fence post, 6 ft. long, 2 ft. in the
ground, alongside the iron post,

Bury the original cor, alongside the iron post.,

N. 0° 54' W., beginning new measurement.

6.00 Improved bladed dirt road, bears S. 52° 15' W. and N.
52° 15' €,

F180~7 {Ocioher 190A) (twmeriy 4—nT0h) USD]-—BLM f-=IELD NOTE PAPER
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Dependent Resurvey, T. 11 N., R. 12 W,

CHAINS

40,77

50.90
62.40
64,70
80.41

31,20

37.90

40,25

R. 89° 39' W,, bet. secs. 19 and 30,

Over nearly level desert land through medfum dense
undergrowth.

Point for the % sec. cor, of secs, 19 and 30 at pro-
portionate distance; there is no remaining evidence
of the original cor.

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins. in diam,, 24
ins. in the ground and in a collar of sCone, with brass
czp mkd,

T11N Ri2w
519

t s30
1967

Set a steel fence post, 6 ft. long, 2 ft. in the
ground alongside the iron post

Wash, 13 1ks. wide, 7 ft. deep, drains 5. 36° W,
Wash, 11 lks. wide, 13 ft. deep, drains S. 45° W,
Wash, 10 1lks. wide, 9 ft. deep, drains S. 31° W,

The cor. of secs. 19, 24, 25 and 30, on the W, bdy. of
the Tp., hereinbefore described,

Land, nearly level desert.

Soil, sandy clay,

No timber.

Undergrowth, medium dense shadscale, sagebrush, grass
and weeds,

From the cor. of secs. 19, 20, 29 and 30.
N. 0° 23' W,, bet. secs., 19 and 20.

Over nearly level desert land through scant under-
growth.

Trail road, bears §. 77° E. and N. 77° W.

Improved bladed road, bears N, 69° 50’ E. and §. 69°
50" w.

Point for the ¥ sec. cor, of secs. 19 and 20 at pro-
portionate distance; there is no remaining evidence
of the original cor,.

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2k ins. in diam., 24
ins. in the ground, with brass cap mkd.,

T11N RI2W
i

19520
1967

Bury broken glass around the iron post,

Set a stael fence post, & fE. long, 2 ft, in the
ground, alongside the iron post,

180~7 (October 1963} (formerly 4~67387 USDI——BLM

FIELD NOTE PAPER





CHAING

43.80

80.50

12,50

40.89

53.75
69.45

81.78

Dependent Resurvey, T. 11 N., R, 12 W,

Wagh, 7 lks. wide, 2 ft. deep, drains 5. 18° W,

Point for the cor. of secs. 17, 18, 19 and 20, at pro-
portionate distance; there is no remaining evidence of
the original cor.

Set an iron post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins. in diam., 24
ins. in the ground, with brass cap wkd.

TLIN R12W
5181817
519{520

1967

Set a steel fence post, 6 ft. long, 2 ft, in the
ground, alongside the iron post,

Land, nearly level desert,

Soil, sandy clay.

No timber.

Undergrowth, scant shadscale, grass and weeds,

From the cor. of secs. 16, 17, 20 and 2i.
5. 89° 46' W., bet, seca. 17 and 20.

Over gently rolling desert land through medium dense
undergrowth.

Wesh, 20 lks. wide, 3 ft. deep, drains S. 40° W,

Point for the ¥ sec, cor. of secs. 17 and 20 at pro-
portionate distance; there is no remaining evidence
of the original cor.

Set an {ren post, 30 ins. long, 2% ins. in diam,, 16
ins. in the ground to solid rock and in a mound of
stone, 3% ft. base, to top, with brass cap mkd.

T1IN R12W

517
k 520
1967

Wash, 20 lks, wide, 5 ft. deep, drains S. 20° W,
Wash, 4 lks, wide, 2 fc. deep, drains S. 20° W,
The cor. of secs, 17, 18, 19 and 20,

Land, gently rolling and nearly level desert,

So01l, sandy clay,
No timber,

Undergrowth, medium dense sagebrush and shadscale,

N. 89° 59' W., bet, secs. 18 and 19.
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P. Chip Goodrich

BLM - Cadastral Surveyor
Utah State Office - Salt Lake City
440 West 200 South, Suite #500

C: 801-209-4160

O: 801-539-4155
pgoodrich@blm.gov



From: Green, Adam W

To: Savage, Shannon L; Jencso, Emily D
Cc: Burgess-Conforti, Jason R; Rose, Marcus F; Davis, Jordan R; Kachergis, Emily J
Subject: Re: Landcart
Date: Tuesday, August 29, 2023 3:30:25 PM
Attachments: image001.png
imaae002.png

Hi everyone,

| read the section in the LandCART User's Guide on Sen's slope test and thought | might could help
refine our conversation a little. First, the guide does say it uses the median in one sentence (page 12
first paragraph) and mean in another (page 12 second paragraph). But I'm pretty sure it means that
it's reporting the median Sen's value based on the mean indicator values for the AOI.

Second, it seems that the length of the time series (i.e., number of years) is the issue regarding
interpreting p-values, not the size of the inference area. LandCART is just taking the mean for the
AOIl, no matter the size of the AQI, so the spatial area shouldn't matter. But Sen's test is essentially
creating a distribution of all the observed differences between every pair of years. For example, one
data point will be the slope between 2006 and 2007 (i.e., (x2007 - x2006)/1), and another will be the

slope between 2008 and 2020 (i.e., (x2020 - x2008)/12). We then use the median (50th percentile) of
that distribution as our "best" estimate of slope and calculate p-values based on the percentiles
observed in the data. For example, if we have 105 possible year combinations (as you do from 2006-
2021) and 5 pairs have a slope <0, the p-value will be 0.048 (i.e., 5/105). So when you have a short
time series, you won't have enough data points to create a good distribution. With only 5 years, you
end up with 10 pairs of years - if only 1 pair has a negative slope, your p-value would be 0.1, but if 2
have a negative slope, your p-value jumps to 0.2. Essentially with short time series, your data is too
discretized to effectively represent a p-value. In your case, you have 105 year pairs, so if you go from
5 pairs with negative slopes to 6 pairs, your p-value only goes from 0.048 to 0.057. It's less sensitive
to the influence of one year pair when the time series is longer.

| hope that helps. Let me know if you have any more questions.

Adam

From: Savage, Shannon L <ssavage@blm.gov>

Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 12:01 PM

To: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>; Green, Adam W <agreen@blm.gov>

Cc: Burgess-Conforti, Jason R <jburgessconforti@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>;
Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Kachergis, Emily J <ekachergis@blm.gov>

Subject: RE: Landcart

Hi Emily,

I’m happy to chat this week. Feel free to check my calendar and set something up.
Cheers!

-Shannon
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Shannon Savage, PhD (she/her/hers)
Remote Sensing Section Chief (OC-534)
National Operations Center

Diversity and Inclusion Change Agent

Bureau of Land Management

Email: ssavage(@blm.gov

Cell: (720) 520-6862

Desk: (303) 236-7342 or Call via Teams
OC-534 SharePoint Site

OC-534 Sketchfab Page
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From: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>

Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 11:03 AM

To: Savage, Shannon L <ssavage@blm.gov>; Green, Adam W <agreen@blm.gov>

Cc: Burgess-Conforti, Jason R <jburgessconforti@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>;
Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Kachergis, Emily J <ekachergis@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: Landcart

Shannon and Adam,

I sent this email to Emily Kachergis last week (see email string, original message copied
below). Do you have time for a quick chat this week?

"We are plugging away at the rangeland health assessment for the West Box Elder Permit
Renewal. We are using both the RAP Tool and LandCart as additional lines of evidence. We

chose to compare the growing season defined as April 15t to August (5 months) from 2006
(date of last permit renewal) to 2021 (cutoff of data included in analysis) for eight indicators
on BLM lands in each of the 5 allotments. We have been having discussions on data
interpretation. Namely, whether Sens slope being insignificant is the end all, versus, also
displaying the raster images showing the % difference, as well as the difference chart. To me,
it seems like the Sens slope of the median has value in speaking to the trend of the median, but
it doesn't paint a complete picture, nor does an insignificant p value render the difference
charts, aerial imagery, and histograms useless.

Since this is a new tool, and we have collectively poured over the tech note and the Landcart
guide, we (Marcus and I) would appreciate having a short meeting with you or someone that
could provide some insight and direction. "


mailto:ssavage@blm.gov
callto:ssavage@blm.gov
https://doimspp.sharepoint.com/sites/OC-534SharePointSite/SitePages/Home.aspx
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsketchfab.com%2Foc534%2Fmodels&data=05%7C01%7Cmrose%40blm.gov%7C4dd61c6dabe342668c3f08dba8d72719%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638289414249401843%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=NRqU9RFufej4595DELfLMErzhcclGhOgckX4w0XyDjM%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fforms.office.com%2Fg%2FwJ0yzUp8uj&data=05%7C01%7Cmrose%40blm.gov%7C4dd61c6dabe342668c3f08dba8d72719%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638289414249401843%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=pLqGTvf0QLwwTsmL%2BQL%2Fhu%2FmrzwNzcxGeKV%2FLQZg%2FNM%3D&reserved=0

Emily Jencso

SLFO Wildlife Biologist CWB®
Cell: (801) 599-0954

Office: 801-320-8300

Salt Lake Field Office BLM
491 N John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116

From: Jencso, Emily D <gjencso@blm.gov>

Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 10:47 AM

To: Kachergis, Emily J <ekachergis@blm.gov>

Cc: Burgess-Conforti, Jason R <jburgessconforti@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>;
Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: Landcart

Thanks Emily. I will reach out to them. If you are available to listen in, we would welcome
your experience. I will cc you on the email and invite in case it works for you.

Best,
Em

Emily Jencso

SLFO Wildlife Biologist CWB®
Cell: (801) 599-0954

Office: 801-320-8300

Salt Lake Field Office BLM
491 N John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116

From: Kachergis, Emily J <ekachergis@blm.gov>

Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 10:35 AM

To: Jencso, Emily D <gjencso@blm.gov>

Cc: Burgess-Conforti, Jason R <jburgessconforti@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>;
Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: Landcart

Hi y'all,

The NOC recommended you contact Shannon Savage and Adam Green. Happy to listen in also
if that would be helpful. Thanks!
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Best,
Emily

Emily Kachergis

Assessment, Inventory and Monitoring (AIM) Coordinator
Division of Decision Support, Planning, and NEPA

BLM Headquarters

Lakewood, CO

(720) 614-3656

Learn more about AlIM, including data access: https://www.blm.gov/aim/strategy

From: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, August 22, 2023 3:33 PM

To: Kachergis, Emily J <ekachergis@blm.gov>

Cc: Burgess-Conforti, Jason R <jburgessconforti@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>;
Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>

Subject: Landcart

Hi Emily,

We are plugging away at the rangeland health assessment for the West Box Elder Permit
Renewal. We are using both the RAP Tool and LandCart as additional lines of evidence. We

chose to compare the growing season defined as April 15 to August (5 months) from 2006
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
could provide some insight and direction.

Best,
Em,

Emily Jencso

SLFO Wildlife Biologist CWB®
Cell: (801) 599-0954

Office: 801-320-8300

Salt Lake Field Office BLM
491 N John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116
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From: Agardy, Savanna S

To: Rose, Marcus F

Subject: Re: Lucin Pilot Allotment use dates
Date: Monday, July 31, 2023 1:50:06 PM
Attachments: Outlook-chamv4k2.png

Thanks Marcus!

Savanna Agardy, M.A., RPA
District Fuels Archaeologist

West Desert District

Bureau of Land Management

491 N John Glenn Road, SLC, UT

Office: 801-320-8347; Cell: 385-408-

2544

NATIONAL SYSTEM OF PUBLIC LANDS

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT

-‘7'

From: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Sent: Monday, July 31, 2023 1:19 PM

To: Agardy, Savanna S <sagardy@blm.gov>
Subject: Lucin Pilot Allotment use dates

Hello Savanna,

Here are the use dates for the Lucin Pilot allotment:

There are five different authorizations on the Lucin Pilot allotment. The dates and Animal Unit
Months (AUMs) are shown below:

David lveson-5/16-10/31 (406 cattle AUMs)

David Iveson-5/16-10/31 (478 cattle AUMs)

Kunzler Sheep and Cattle LLC-11/1-3/20 (1229 Sheep AUMs)
Burt Kunzler-1/10-3/20 (671 Sheep AUMs)

Della Ranches-

9/10-11/10 (196 cattle AUMs)

11/30-3/30 (382 cattle AUMSs)

11/1-3/15 (1106 Sheep AUMs)

Feel free to let me know if you have any questions.
Thanks,

Marcus Rose

Rangeland Management Specialist
Bureau of Land Management

Salt Lake Field Office

Office: 801-320-8352

Cell: 385-600-1049


mailto:sagardy@blm.gov
mailto:mrose@blm.gov

NATIONAL SYSTEM OF PUBLIC LANDS

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT





From: Burgess-Conforti, Jason R

To: Jencso, Emily D; Rose, Marcus F; Mellon, Cassie D
Subject: RE: New Report : Setting Benchmarks with Terrestrial AIM Data
Date: Thursday, September 7, 2023 11:47:59 PM

| appreciate the effort they put in but | find a lot of flaws in their method and | think what
we’ve done for WBE is miles ahead. | truly think WBE will be the most thorough LHA/permit
renewal in BLM history.

Jason R. Burgess-Conforti, Ph.D.
Monitoring Coordinator / ESR State Lead
United States Department of the Interior
Bureau of Land Management

Utah State Office

Cell: (385) 867-4708

Office: (801) 539-4106

From: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>

Sent: Thursday, September 7, 2023 8:12 PM

To: Burgess-Conforti, Jason R <jburgessconforti@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>;
Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>

Subject: Fw: New Report : Setting Benchmarks with Terrestrial AIM Data

Worth a read.

Emily Jencso

SLFO Wildlife Biologist CWB®
Cell: (801) 599-0954

Office: 801-320-8300

Salt Lake Field Office BLM
491 N John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116

From: Nelson, Jennifer E <jenelson@blm.gov>

Sent: Thursday, September 7, 2023 3:27 PM

To: NAIMPractitioners <bIm-NAIMPractitioners@blm.gov>

Subject: New Report : Setting Benchmarks with Terrestrial AIM Data

Hello AIM Practitioners,

A report about setting benchmarks with terrestrial AIM data to evaluate a land health
standard was just released. It is attached to this email and you may access it and an R
workflow internally here:! Standard 1 Benchmarks
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The report accompanies a presentation from the 2023 AIM Practitioners' Webinar Series by
Jennifer Nelson and Monica Ketcham. In June, they described how their team developed
benchmarks for evaluating OR/WA land health standard 1 in the Cow Lakes Allotments and
Assessment Area. To set benchmarks, they used the approach outlined in Appendix 2 of
Technical Note 453 with data from terrestrial AIM plots in Level IV Ecoregions. You can find
the presentation in the AIM Practitioners Webinars Stream Channel:
https://web.microsoftstream.com/channel/dd68a714-62c5-4b1b-b52a-2efd117b0001

Enjoy!
Jennifer

Jennifer E. Nelson, MSc (she, her, hers)

Terrestrial AIM Data Specialist, The Great Basin Institute
BLM Headquarters

1387 S. Vinnell Way

Boise, ID 83709

Office: (208) 373-3835

jenelson@blm.gov

The Great Basin Institute advances environmental research, education, and service throughout the west.
The institute promotes applied research and ecological literacy through community engagement and
agency partnerships to support national parks, forests, open spaces and public lands.

AIM Links:

blm.gov/aim

External user access to Terrestrial and Lotic AIM Data
Internal user access to Terrestrial and Lotic AIM Data
Terrestrial Geospatial Gateway

Lotic Geospatial Gateway
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From: Burgess-Conforti, Jason R

To: Rose, Marcus F

Cc: Jencso, Emily D

Subject: RE: New spreadsheet for West Box Elder Frequency
Date: Tuesday, June 13, 2023 7:23:49 PM
Attachments: WBE Freq Graphs 6.13.23.docx

Attached are the updated graphs.

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

Sent: Monday, June 12, 2023 4:07 PM

To: Burgess-Conforti, Jason R <jburgessconforti@blm.gov>
Subject: New spreadsheet for West Box Elder Frequency

Hello Jason,

Here is the new spreadsheet for the West Box Elder frequency data. Let me know if you have any
guestions or if there are any errors that | didn’t catch as you go through this.

Thanks!

Marcus Rose

Rangeland Management Specialist
Bureau of Land Management

Salt Lake Field Office

Office: 801-320-8352

Cell: 385-600-1049
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From: Bullock, Jerry D

To: Black, Tami S

Cc: Davis, Jordan R; Neff, Brandon D; Tucker, Dylan W; Seiders, Erin S; Rose, Marcus F
Subject: Re: Range Program Meeting (Follow-up)

Date: Tuesday, July 18, 2023 12:16:33 PM

Thanks Tami, that helps clear things up. Nobody has started the master index template vyet,
and yes, we would love help on that. Let me know if you need anything from us. We will have
Kendrick work on the task order the first of next week and I'll get you the charge code also.
Thanks for your hep.

Jerry Bullock

Range Management Specialist
Bureau of Land Management
Salt Lake Field Office

491 North John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, Utah 84116
Office: (801) 320-8326

Cell: (801) 232-7551

From: Black, Tami S <tblack@blm.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, July 18, 2023 12:10 PM

To: Bullock, Jerry D <jdbulloc@blm.gov>

Cc: Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>; Tucker, Dylan W
<dwtucker@blm.gov>; Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Subject: RE: Range Program Meeting (Follow-up)

Hi Jerry:
My apologies, let me see if [ can be more clear.

The following are needed to start the scanning project with the contractor:
1. the Task Order
2. the Box Lists (which you’ve done)
3. the Master Index Template (aka metadata sheet which I realize now I can complete for
you)
4. the charge code information so I can fill out the PR for SO review

I'm a bit confused now. So, we need to fill out the master index template for every individual
permit as well as the eERDMS forms for every individual permit? No, the master index
template only needs the column headings (the eEERDMS was a screenshot example of what it
will look like once we xfer the files to eERDMS to explain what the information is used for).
The scanning contractor oversees the population of the data on this document while the
documents are being scanned. The scanning software automatically populates it. The only part
that needs a count is the number of files in each box so you can enter that information on the
task order.
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If nobody has worked on the master index template I will take care of that part, I just want to
make sure that nobody has begun working on it. (the spreadsheet w/only the column
headings)

Please let me know.

Tami S. Black, MPA

Government Information Specialist

West Desert District BLM Utah

C: 385-226-1464

West Desert District SharePoint Site
BLM Records SharePoint Site

From: Bullock, Jerry D <jdbulloc@blm.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, July 18, 2023 11:21 AM

To: Black, Tami S <tblack@blm.gov>; Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Neff, Brandon D
<bneff@blm.gov>; Tucker, Dylan W <dwtucker@blm.gov>; Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>;
Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: Range Program Meeting (Follow-up)

I'm a bit confused now. So, we need to fill out the master index template for every individual
permit as well as the eERDMS forms for every individual permit? This is in addition to the
tracking sheets that we already filled out?

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

Sent: Tuesday, July 18, 2023 11:01 AM

To: Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>; Tucker, Dylan W
<dwtucker@blm.gov>; Bullock, Jerry D <jdbulloc@blm.gov>; Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>;
Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Subject: Range Program Meeting (Follow-up)

Good morning:

In reading through my notes from the meeting, I failed to mention one important step in the
process. I don’t believe we discussed the metadata sheet which is required when we send
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documents to the contractor for scanning (along with the task order) — see attached example.
The attached screenshot from eERDMS is from AZ’s range files and follows the grazing IM. I
thought I heard Jordan say that someone was already working on one your scanning project? If
not, please let me know who will be putting this together.

Thanks,

Tami S. Black, MPA

Government Information Specialist

West Desert District BLM Utah

C: 385-226-1464 email: thlack@blm.gov
West Desert District SharePoint Site

BLM Records SharePoint Site
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From: Tucker, Dylan W

To: Rose, Marcus F

Subject: Re: Rangeland Health Determinations
Date: Monday, December 4, 2023 3:32:49 PM
Marcus,

Thanks for the information. If | need any other info (maybe dates the assessment was
completed | will let you know).

Dylan Tucker

Range Management Specialist

Interior Region 7. Bureau of Land Management
Salt Lake Field Office

491 North John Glenn Road

Salt Lake City, UT 84116

Office: (801) 320-8300

Cell: (801) 349-0593

Email:dwtucker@blm.gov

From: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Sent: Monday, December 4, 2023 2:52 PM
To: Tucker, Dylan W <dwtucker@blm.gov>
Subject: RE: Rangeland Health Determinations

Most things weren’t meeting, but we haven’t talked about causal factors. The Land Health
assessment is not final and we didn’t include causal factor determinations. Jordan suggested putting
the causal factor analysis in a separate document that we haven’t finished yet. | can send a link to
the draft land health assessment on the sharepoint if needed. Jordan and Tami are currently
reviewing it.

Here are the rankings:

Dry Canyon:

1-Not meeting

2-Not meeting

3-Not meeting

4-Meeting

Kimball Creek

1-Not Meeting
2-Not Meeting
3-Not Meeting
4-Meeting
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Lynn

1-Not Meeting
2-Not Meeting
3-Not Meeting
4-Meeting

Owl Springs
1-Not Meeting
2-Not applicable
3-Not Meeting
4-Meeting

Red Butte
1-Not Meeting
2-Meeting
3-Not Meeting
4-Meeting

From: Tucker, Dylan W <dwtucker@blm.gov>
Sent: Monday, December 4, 2023 2:01 PM
To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Subject: Rangeland Health Determinations

Marcus,

We (you, Jordan et al.,) made rangeland health determinations this past fiscal year on
the five Box Elder Allotments if | am remembering correctly.

| have been asked to enter that data and other data into the yearly RIME report. Is
there a location on the P: where those determinations (final) can be found? Thanks

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

To: Neff, Brandon D; Davis, Jordan R
Subject: Re: Rich Co Fence Map
Date: Tuesday, September 26, 2023 11:43:36 AM

It could use some work. | wasn't really thinking end product with this. Just wanted to show
where we were at at the moment.

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

Sent: Tuesday, September 26, 2023 11:40 AM

To: Bullock, Jerry D <jdbulloc@blm.gov>; Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Rich Co Fence Map

| like it Jerry! What do you think about turning off the topo and going with NAIP or hillshade. In
my experience it makes the roads so much easier to see and takes a lot of the busyness out of
it. Also, it looks like there are some highlighted lines that looks like a query or something, but
doesn't show up in the legend as such. What do you think?

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

Sent: Tuesday, September 26, 2023 11:14 AM

To: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>; Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>
Subject: Rich Co Fence Map

Here's a map of the preliminary fence lines. Just waiting for the estimate to come back to
determine how much we can do. | will add on if the estimate allows. Also, there is a portion
that goes through State that | will need to clip out.
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

To: Bullock, Jerry D; Davis, Jordan R
Subject: Re: Rich Co Fence Map
Date: Tuesday, September 26, 2023 11:40:11 AM

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
Date: Tuesday, September 26, 2023 11:45:37 AM

Oh Ok, my misunderstanding. Looks great then for that purpose. Thanks Jerry!

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

Sent: Tuesday, September 26, 2023 11:43 AM

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
mailto:jdbulloc@blm.gov
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



From: Howell, Tami L

To: Rose, Marcus F

Subject: RE: Rosebud Well DNA initiation form
Date: Wednesday, January 3, 2024 2:56:49 PM
Marcus,

| looked at this and had one comment with a couple of questions that | think could be clarified a little
in the proposal. | have saved it with todays date on the P drive in the NEPA folder for this project. If
you have any questions let me know.

Fhanks,

Tami Howell

Wild Horse & Burro Specialist
Salt Lake Field Office

491 N John Glenn Road

Salt Lake City, UT 84116
Desk: 801-320-8359

Cell: 801-419-4552
thowell@blm.gov

From: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, December 12, 2023 8:21 AM
To: Howell, Tami L <thowell@blm.gov>
Subject: Rosebud Well DNA initiation form

Tami,

The initiation form for the Rosebud DNA is attached. The final location of the well may vary a little
bit, but it shouldn’t change more than about % mile.

Thanks,

Marcus
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by Toosin 2.

Please work with Heather to have it uploaded into DTS,

i Davis
Salt Lok Fild Office Bureau of Land Management -Uiah
P (3851 278 3618

s g

From: Rose, Marcus  <mrose@bim ov>
Sent: Tuesday,June 27,2023 258 P

To: Daus,Jordan R <ordandavis@bim gov>

Subect: - Scanned from a Xerox Mltfncton Printer

Hello Jordan,

Thanks,
Mareus

——Original Message-

From: XeroxSecaniablm gov <XeroxSean@bim gov>
Sent: Tucsday, June 27, 2023 231 PV

TorRose, Marcus F <mrose@bim. o>
Subect: Scamned from  Xerox Malifuntion Prnter

Atachment il Type: pdf, Muli-Page

Aulifuncion Printer Location: BLM Sal Lake City Field Offce - 491 Norh Joh Glenn Road, Sl Lake Cty, UT §4116

»
Device Name: ILMUTSL2.Salt Lake
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Form 4130-1 UNITED STATES FORM APPROVED

(May 2021) DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR OE'*;'B, Noblm !
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT s
GRAZING SCHEDULE FOR BLM USE ONLY
GRAZING APPLICATION sae AT

. . SLFe  wtwizeee
Applicant Name flast, first, middle initiai) Office
(467‘&1 ) M Lo Authorization o, A DD U Gt

Mailing Address (include sireel, city. State, and zip code) |

ZCJ'Z"/ s da &_ Schedule No

Billing Code !

ME‘-{I -;o g?_?‘,‘é Specmal Bl Code

| hereby apply for the following grazing use, or nonuse on the public lands and/or other lands administered by the Bureau of Land Management (BLM).

ALLOTMENT PASTURE LIVESTOCK PERIOD = ;1.. TYPE  |[ANIMAL UNIT
USE' | MONTHS
NAME NO. ND NUMBER KIND aeGin | A eno USE!' {AUMS)

Dy Volker oo | ¢ | & PR3] 22 5,
Dawgr e~ sso | ¢ | D g0l 2% 254/

Show your recorded brands, carmarks, and wattles

Show reason for nonuse, if requested: [_] conservation and protection of the public lands; [J annual fiucuation of livestock operations; ﬁ financial
or other reasons beyond control of the eperator; or [] livestock disease or quorantine.

Applicant's Signature %_ M Printed Name z:ﬂ'rd / Mnate L /27 /‘Z z

. : ei ; BLM Maneger's Daie
Reason for nonuse: [X] Approved [7] Disapproved (Decision Reguired) | Signature Jf-) S s ol =t

Title US.C. Scction 1001, makes i1 a crime for any person knowingly and wilifully to make to any department of agcncﬁf the United States any false,
fictitious, or fraudulent statement or presentations as to any matter within its jurisdiction,

1%PL Use: Percenl forage from public land use.

*Type Use: Categories with specific rules thar govem AUM and grazing fee calculation and input on grazing authorizations and bills (A=Active
Use, D=Custodial Use. N=Nonuse, L=Ephemeral Use. T=Trailing Use}.

(Sec terms and conditions on page 2) {Form 4130-1)






TERMS AND CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL PERMITS AND LEASES
(See 43 CFR 4100

. Grazing permit or lease terms and conditions and the fees charged for grazing use are established in accordance with the provisions of the
grazing regulations now or hereafter approved by the Secretary of the Interior.

2. Grazing permils and leases ore subject to cancellation, in whole or in part. at any lime because of:
a. Noncompliance by the permittec/lessee with rules and regulations
b. Loss of control by the permitiee/lessee of all or a part of the praperty upon which it is based.
c. A transfer of grazing preference by the permitiee/lessee to another party.
d. A decrease in the lands administered by the Bureau of Land Management within the allotment(s) described.
¢. Repeated willful unauthorized grazing use.

3. Grazing permils and leases are subject 1o the lerms and condilions of alloiment management plans if such plans have been prepared. Allotment
management plans MUST be incorporated in permits or leases when completed

Those helding permits or leases MUST own or control and be responsible for the management of livestock authorized to graze
The authorized officer may require counting and/or additional ur special marking or tagging of the livestock authorized 1o graze.

The permiitee’sflessee’s prazing case file is available for public inspection as required by the Freedom of Information Act.

Mo; o e

Grazing permits or leases are subject to the nondiscrimination clauses set forth in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1964, s amended. A
capy of this order may be obtained from the authorized officer

8. Livesiock grazing use that is different from that authorized by a permit or lease MUST be applied for prior to the prazing period and MUST be
filed with and approved by the authorized officer before grazing use can be made.

9. Billing notices are issued which specify fees due. Billing notices, when paid, become a pan of the grazing permit or lease. Grazing use cannot be
authorized during any period of delinguency in the payment of amounts due, including settlement for unauthorized use

10. The holder of this authorization MUST noiify the authorized officer immediately upon the discovery of human remains, funerary objects,
sacred objects, or objects of cultural patrimony (cullural items), stop the activity in the area of the discovery and make a reasonable effori io
protect the remains and/or cultural items,

11. Geazing fee payments are duc on the date specificd on the billmg notice and MUST be patd in full within 15 days of the due date, except as
otherwise provided in the grazing permit or lease. I payment is not made within that time frame, a late fee (the grealer of $25 or 10 percent of
the amount owed but not more than $250) will be assessed

12. Members of Congress may not enter into a grazing permit or lease. 41 U.SC 6306 (2014). Further, no officer, agent, or employee of the
Depariment of the [nterior, other than members of Advisory committees appointed in accordance with the Federal Advisory Commitiee Act (§
U.S.C. App. 1) and Sections 309 of the Federal Land Policy and Management Act of 1976 {42 U.S.C. 1701 ct. seq.] shall be admitied lo any share
or part in a permit or lease for grazing or desive any benefit to arise from a permit or lease for grazing.

NOTICES

The Privacy Act and 43 CFR 2.48(d) require that you be furnished with the following information in connection with information requested by this
form.

AUTHORITY: 43 U.S.C. 315b, 315m. 11814d. 1732, 1752. and 1903, and 43 CFR pan 4100.

PRINCIPAL PURPOSE: The BLM will use the information you provide 10 process your application 1o graze livestock or request a change in grazing
use on the public lands.

ROUTINE USES: In accordance with the Bureau of Land Management’s (BLM) Sysiem of Records Notice published in the Federal Register on
December 29, 2010 (Bureau of Land Manogement's Range Management System—Interior. LLM-2; Naotice To Amend an Existing System of
Records; Privacy Act of 1974; as Amended), names and addresses provided by the applicant on this form will be publicly available in reports on the
BLM public website.

EFFECT OF NOT PROVIDING INFORMATION: Disclosure of the information is required to obtain or retain a benefit. Failure to submit all of 1he
requested information or to complete this form may result in delay or the rejection and/or denial of vour application.

The Paperwork Reductlon Act requites that you be furnished with the following information in connection with the information requested by this
form: BLM collects this information to outhorize livestock prazing on public lands. Response to this request is required in order to obtain or retzin
a benehit. You do not have to respond to this or any other Federal agency-sponsored information colleclion unless it displays a currently valid OMB
control number.

BURDEN HOURS STATEMENT: Public reponting burden for this form is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including the time for
reviewing instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing ihe form. Direct comments regarding the burden estimate or
any other aspect of this form to: U.S. Department of the Interior, Bureau of Land Management (1004-0041), Bureau Informaiion Collection
Clearance Officer (HQ-610), 1849 C Street, N.W., Room 2134LM, Washington, D.C. 20240.

{Form 4130-1, page 2}
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NATIONAL SYSTEM OF PUBLIC LANDS

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT





From: Rose, Marcus F

To: Gallegos, Heather D

Subject: RE: Scanned from a Xerox Multifunction Printer
Date: Thursday, June 29, 2023 10:37:00 AM
Attachments: image001.png

No, just scanning it into DTS should be fine. | emailed a copy to the permittee already

From: Gallegos, Heather D <hgallegos@blm.gov>

Sent: Thursday, June 29, 2023 8:43 AM

To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Subject: RE: Scanned from a Xerox Multifunction Printer

Does this need to mailed out?

From: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2023 3:48 PM

To: Gallegos, Heather D <hgallegos@blm.gov>

Subject: FW: Scanned from a Xerox Multifunction Printer

Hello Heather,

Could you upload this document into DTS for me when you get a chance?
Thanks,

Marcus

From: Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2023 3:15 PM

To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: Scanned from a Xerox Multifunction Printer

Please work with Heather to have it uploaded into DTS.

Jordan Davis

INATIONAL SYSTEM OF PUBLIC LANDS
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
OF LAND MANAGEMENT

e Assistant Field Manager

Salt Lake Field Office|Bureau of Land Management -Utah

p: (385) 278-3618

W: www.blm.gov.

From: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2023 2:58 PM
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To: Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>
Subject: FW: Scanned from a Xerox Multifunction Printer

Hello Jordan,

The grazing application for Cactus Ranch on the Dairy Valley allotment is attached for your approval.
They are under permitted AUMs, but since they went onto the allotment around 5 weeks late due to
weather this year, they would like to move their off date to 8/30 instead of 7/30. Let me know if you
have any questions or concerns.

Thanks,

Marcus

From: XeroxScan@blm.gov <XeroxScan@blm.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2023 2:51 PM

To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Subject: Scanned from a Xerox Multifunction Printer

Please open the attached document. It was scanned and sent to you using a Xerox Multifunction
Printer.

Attachment File Type: pdf, Multi-Page

Multifunction Printer Location: BLM Salt Lake City Field Office - 491 North John Glenn Road, Salt Lake
City, UT 84116
Device Name: ILMUTSL2_Salt_Lake

For more information on Xerox products and solutions, please visit
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?

url=http%3A%2F%2 Fwww.xerox.com%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cjordandavis%40blm.gov%7C580733ba
260340de7a7408db77514ee3%7C0693b5badb184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638234963

334026349%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMCAwlLjAWMDAILCIQljoiV2IuMzIiLCIBTil6lk1ha
WwiLCIXVCI6EMNO0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=tC5E7DGVB2XVZvmWI3HLDSKVrH8vgFJdZAx8
WxxfAYY%3D&reserved=0
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From: Rose, Marcus F

To: Puttere, Jennifer M; Jencso, Emily D
Cc: Howell, Tami L

Subject: RE: Status of West Box Elder

Date: Monday, October 16, 2023 8:46:00 AM

Jason Burgess is reviewing the document right now to make corrections and add information that he
had a part in. Once he is done, | am planning to incorporate his edits into the document. | also plan
to add grazing permit information for each allotment and take a final read through the document to
check formatting, etc. by the end of the week.

From: Puttere, Jennifer M <jputtere@blm.gov>

Sent: Monday, October 16, 2023 7:36 AM

To: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Cc: Howell, Tami L <thowell@blm.gov>

Subject: Status of West Box Elder

Emily and Marcus
Can you both let us know the status of the West Box Elder permit renewal?

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
mailto:jputtere@blm.gov
mailto:ejencso@blm.gov
mailto:thowell@blm.gov

From: Rose, Marcus F

To: Lopez, Erica; dan

Cc: Gallegos, Heather D

Subject: RE: Transfer fee receipt

Date: Wednesday, April 12, 2023 7:15:00 AM

Attachments: image001.png
image002.png
image003.png
image004.png
image005.png
image006.png

Thank youl!

From: Lopez, Erica <ellopez@blm.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, April 11, 2023 4:15 PM

To: dan <iveson@gmail.com>

Cc: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>; Gallegos, Heather D <hgallegos@blm.gov>
Subject: Transfer fee receipt

Please see attached Transfer fee receipt

ERICA A.LOPEZ

Administrative Support Assistant, AOPC
Salt Lake Field Office/West Desert District
Department of the Interior

Bureau of Land Management

NATIONAL SYSTEM OF PUBLIC LANDS

Work-801-320-8390
Cell-385-232-0306

[ifdo-6

Resources for BLM UT employees: Procurement SharePoint Uniform Program SharePoint
Charge Card Program SharePoint site
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https://doimspp.sharepoint.com/sites/opmb-PAM-Charge_Card_Program
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From: Neff, Brandon D

To: Williams, Nancy N; Davis, Jordan R
Subject: Re: Virtual fencing towers
Date: Friday, September 8, 2023 1:17:21 PM

| think that is something that could be looked at. Also, there might be a different
approach/suggestion form the virtual fence company, this may be something that has been
looked at in other scenarios. Thank you passing the concern along, we definitely would want
to try and make everything as wildlife friendly as possible.

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

Sent: Friday, September 8, 2023 12:58 PM

To: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>; Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>
Subject: Virtual fencing towers

| just talked to Jared Reese about the virtual fence towers. He is not concerned about the
towers themselves (as seen in the attached photo) but he is concerned about the fence
around the tower, which | am a little concerned about as well. The fence would provide a nice
perch for a raptor or ravens. Would it be possible to use an electric fence instead?

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

To: Jencso, Emily D; Rose, Marcus F; Davis, Jordan R
Subject: RE: WBE AIM Data Updates
Date: Monday, September 18, 2023 8:37:03 AM

That is correct.

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

Sent: Friday, September 15, 2023 11:20 AM

To: Burgess-Conforti, Jason R <jburgessconforti@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>;
Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: WBE AIM Data Updates

Hi Jason,

Just want to make sure this doesn't include points from 2022.

Emily Jencso

SLFO Wildlife Biologist CWB®
Cell: (801) 599-0954

Office: 801-320-8300

Salt Lake Field Office BLM
491 N John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116

From: Burgess-Conforti, Jason R <jburgessconforti@blm.gov>
Sent: Thursday, September 14, 2023 9:37 AM
To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>; Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Jencso, Emily D

<gjencso@blm.gov>
Subject: WBE AIM Data Updates

All, attached are the new summary table for each allotment and new benchmarks
calculated using the method described in TN455 (i.e., “percentile method”). What changed?
After some previous discussions amongst this group as well as other biostatisticians, I've
decided it would be appropriate to remove the plots within the 5 allotments for calculating
benchmarks which is more consistent to what has been done in other offices. I've also
updated the annual grass calculations to set a threshold at 5% cover, which is consistent
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with guidance from the NOC and peer-reviewed literature.

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

To: Burgess-Conforti, Jason R

Cc: Bouchard, Emma O

Subject: RE: WBE AIM Data Updates

Date: Thursday, September 14, 2023 5:28:00 PM

Attachments: strd 1 allotment graphs by indicator updated 09142023 (version 1).xlsb.xlsx
Hi Jason,

| put the numbers that you sent over into the tables for the land health evaluation and there are a
couple of indicators that don’t quite match up. | haven’t been able to figure out where the
discrepancy is yet. | attached the tables to the email and highlighted the indicators that don’t match
with what you sent earlier. Maybe you can help me figure out where these differences are coming
from.

Thanks!

Marcus

From: Burgess-Conforti, Jason R <jburgessconforti@blm.gov>

Sent: Thursday, September 14, 2023 9:38 AM

To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>; Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Jencso, Emily D
<ejencso@blm.gov>

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
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Dry Canyon

				Plot ID		ESD#		Avg. Plot Soil Stability 		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)								Need to go through and either consisitnely take out benchmark limits if there is no data or add them.

				Dry16		R025XY320UT		5.4		3		Yes		*		*

				GRSGINTS-WySage-059		R025XY322UT		3.9		3		Yes		2.3		Yes

				GRSGINTS-Other-109		R025XY322UT		3.7		3		Yes		2.3		Yes

				Dry10		R025XY324UT		5.0		2		Yes		1.6		Yes

				GRSGINTS-BlackSage-278		R025XY415UT		3.7		3		Yes		4.7		No

				% Plots Meeting								100.0%				75.0%

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.

				* Insufficient data available to form percentile benchmark.



				Plot ID		ESD#		Plot Bare Ground		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting(Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				Dry1		R025XY310UT		30.0		20		No		*		*

				Dry5		R025XY322UT		2.0		15		Yes		16.8		Yes

				GRSGINTS-WySage-059		R025XY322UT		12.7		15		Yes		16.8		Yes

				GRSGINTS-Other-109		R025XY322UT		14.0		15		Yes		16.8		Yes

				Dry3		R025XY415UT		25.0		40		Yes		9.5		No

				GRSGINTS-BlackSage-278		R025XY415UT		5.3		40		Yes		9.5		Yes

				N-9		R025XY415UT		10.0		40		Yes		9.5		No

				% Plots Meeting								85.7%				66.7%

				* Insufficient data available to form percentile benchmark.



				Plot ID		ESD#		Plot Total Foliar Cover		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting(Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				Dry1		R025XY310UT		65.0		35		Yes		*		*

				Dry5		R025XY322UT		99.0		35		Yes		49.7		Yes

				GRSGINTS-WySage-059		R025XY322UT		61.3		35		Yes		49.7		Yes

				GRSGINTS-Other-109		R025XY322UT		63.3		35		Yes		49.7		Yes

				Dry3		R025XY415UT		71.0		30		Yes		74.1		No

				GRSGINTS-BlackSage-278		R025XY415UT		61.3		30		Yes		74.1		No

				N-9		R025XY415UT		46.5		30		Yes		74.1		No

				% Plots Meeting								100.0%				50.0%

				* Insufficient data available to form percentile benchmark.



				Plot ID		ESD#		Plot Shrub Cover		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting(Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				Dry1		R025XY310UT		14.0		10		Yes		*		*

				Dry5		R025XY322UT		57.0		10		Yes		4.4		Yes

				GRSGINTS-WySage-059		R025XY322UT		0.7		10		No		4.4		No

				GRSGINTS-Other-109		R025XY322UT		14.7		10		Yes		4.4		Yes

				Dry3		R025XY415UT		33.0		15		Yes		18.4		Yes

				GRSGINTS-BlackSage-278		R025XY415UT		9.3		15		No		18.4		No

				N-9		R025XY415UT		16.0		15		Yes		18.4		No

				% Plots Meeting								71.4%				50.0%

				* Insufficient data available to form percentile benchmark.



				Plot ID		ESD#		Perennial Grass Cover		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting(Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				Dry1		R025XY310UT		16.0		20		No		*		*

				Dry5		R025XY322UT		10.0		10		Yes		32.4		No

				GRSGINTS-WySage-059		R025XY322UT		7.3		10		No		32.4		No

				GRSGINTS-Other-109		R025XY322UT		20.7		10		Yes		32.4		No

				Dry3		R025XY415UT		8.0		10		No		15.2		No

				GRSGINTS-BlackSage-278		R025XY415UT		42.0		10		Yes		15.2		Yes

				N-9		R025XY415UT		28.0		10		Yes		15.2		Yes

				% Plots Meeting								57.1%				33.3%

				* Insufficient data available to form percentile benchmark.



				Plot ID		ESD#		Plot Litter Cover		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting(Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				Dry1		R025XY310UT		34.0		-		-		*		*

				Dry5		R025XY322UT		23.0		10		Yes		38.0		No

				GRSGINTS-WySage-059		R025XY322UT		53.3		10		Yes		38.0		Yes

				GRSGINTS-Other-109		R025XY322UT		54.7		10		Yes		38.0		Yes

				Dry3		R025XY415UT		57.0		5		Yes		42.4		Yes

				GRSGINTS-BlackSage-278		R025XY415UT		68.7		5		Yes		42.4		Yes

				N-9		R025XY415UT		28.0		5		Yes		42.4		No

				% Plots Meeting								100.0%				66.7%

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.

				* Insufficient data available to form percentile benchmark.

				Plot ID		ESD#		Canopy Gap 25-100 cm		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting(Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				GRSGINTS-WySage-059		R025XY322UT		5.1		-		-		14.8		Yes

				GRSGINTS-BlackSage-278		R025XY415UT		29.2		-		-		3.8		No

				GRSGINTS-Other-109		R025XY322UT		13.1		-		-		14.8		Yes

				% Plots Meeting												66.7%

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.

				* Insufficient data available to form percentile benchmark.

				Plot ID		ESD#		Canopy Gap 100+ cm		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting(Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				GRSGINTS-WySage-059		R025XY322UT		39.9		-		-		6.4		No

				GRSGINTS-BlackSage-278		R025XY415UT		16.9		-		-		0.0		No

				GRSGINTS-Other-109		R025XY322UT		13.8		-		-		6.4		No

				% Plots Meeting												0.0%				33.33

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.

				* Insufficient data available to form percentile benchmark.

				Plot ID		ESD#		Annual Grass Cover		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting(Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				Dry1		R025XY310UT		1.0		-		-		*		*

				Dry5		R025XY322UT		0.0		-		-		18.4		Yes

				GRSGINTS-WySage-059		R025XY322UT		6.0		-		-		18.4		Yes

				GRSGINTS-Other-109		R025XY322UT		15.3		-		-		18.4		Yes

				Dry3		R025XY415UT		0.0		-		-		18.27		Yes

				GRSGINTS-BlackSage-278		R025XY415UT		6.0		-		-		18.27		Yes

				N-9		R025XY415UT		0.0		-		-		18.27		Yes

				% Plots Meeting												100.0%

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.

				* Insufficient data available to form percentile benchmark.





Kimball Creek

				Plot ID		ESD#		Avg. Plot Soil Stability 		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				KC10		R025XY310UT		3.4		3		Yes		*		*

				KC3		R025XY310UT		5.0		3		Yes		*		*

				KC5		R025XY314UT		5.5		3		Yes		4.00		Yes

				KC4		R025XY318UT		3.7		3		Yes		*		*

				KC1		R025XY322UT		5.2		3		Yes		2.32		Yes

				KC2		R025XY324UT		4.8		2		Yes		1.61		Yes

				KC9		R025XY412UT		5.3		4		Yes		4.30		Yes

				KC7		R025XY414UT		5.3		3		Yes		*		*

				KC6		R025XY418UT		4.7		3		Yes		*		*

				251		R025XY418UT		4.9		3		Yes		*		*

				% Plots Meeting								100.0%				100.0%

				* Insufficient data available to form percentile benchmark.

				Plot ID		ESD#		Plot Bare Ground		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				Kimbell Creek		R028AY310UT		23.20		20		No		22.88		No

				KC_BH		R025XY310UT		11.00		20		Yes		*		*

				KC_BH_CH_S		R025XY310UT		6.00		20		Yes		*		*

				KC_CH_S		R025XY310UT		3.00		20		Yes		*		*

				KC_SL_M_S		R025XY310UT		1.00		20		Yes		*		*

				KC-10		R025XY322UT		16.00		15		No		16.80		Yes

				KC-5		R025XY322UT		20.00		15		No		16.80		No

				KC-12		R025XY418UT		24.00		50		Yes		*		*

				KC-11		R028AY006UT		21.00		14		No		28.93		Yes

				T-2		R025XY310UT		7.00		20		Yes		*		*

				251		R025XY418UT		10.67		50		Yes		*		*

				% Plots Meeting								63.6%				50.0%

				* Insufficient data available to form percentile benchmark.

				Plot ID		ESD#		Plot Total Foliar Cover		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				Kimbell Creek		R028AY310UT		34.2		35		No		39.33		No

				KC_BH		R025XY310UT		35.7		35		Yes		*		*

				KC_BH_CH_S		R025XY310UT		38.3		35		Yes		*		*

				KC_CH_S		R025XY310UT		43.3		35		Yes		*		*

				KC_SL_M_S		R025XY310UT		46.0		35		Yes		*		*

				KC-10		R025XY322UT		52.0		35		Yes		49.73		Yes

				KC-5		R025XY322UT		40.0		35		Yes		49.73		No

				KC-12		R025XY418UT		44.0		30		Yes		*		*

				KC-11		R028AY006UT		48.0		37		Yes		41.73		Yes

				T-2		R025XY310UT		80.5		35		Yes		*		*

				251		R025XY418UT		60.7		30		Yes		*		*

				% Plots Meeting								90.9%				50.0%

				* Insufficient data available to form percentile benchmark.

				Plot ID		ESD#		Plot Shrub Cover		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				Kimbell Creek		R028AY310UT		26.0		5		Yes		0.00		Yes

				KC_BH		R025XY310UT		37.3		10		Yes		*		*

				KC_BH_CH_S		R025XY310UT		36.7		10		Yes		*		*

				KC_CH_S		R025XY310UT		28.0		10		Yes		*		*

				KC_SL_M_S		R025XY310UT		37.3		10		Yes		*		*

				KC-10		R025XY322UT		35.0		10		Yes		4.40		Yes

				KC-5		R025XY322UT		32.0		10		Yes		4.40		Yes

				KC-12		R025XY418UT		20.0		10		Yes		*		*

				KC-11		R028AY006UT		40.0		10		Yes		9.60		Yes

				T-2		R025XY310UT		21.0		10		Yes		*		*

				251		R025XY418UT		26.7		10		Yes		*		*

				% Plots Meeting								100.0%				100.0%

				* Insufficient data available to form percentile benchmark.

				Plot ID		ESD#		Perennial Grass Cover		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				Kimbell Creek		R028AY310UT		10.9		40		No		3.73		Yes

				KC_BH		R025XY310UT		30.7		20		Yes		*		*

				KC_BH_CH_S		R025XY310UT		26.7		20		Yes		*		*

				KC_CH_S		R025XY310UT		51.3		20		Yes		*		*

				KC_SL_M_S		R025XY310UT		54.0		20		Yes		*		*

				KC-10		R025XY322UT		15.0		10		Yes		32.4		No

				KC-5		R025XY322UT		6.0		10		No		32.4		No

				KC-12		R025XY418UT		9.0		15		No		*		*

				KC-11		R028AY006UT		7.0		25		No		0		Yes

				T-2		R025XY310UT		36.0		20		Yes		*		*

				251		R025XY418UT		42.7		15		Yes		*		*

				% Plots Meeting								63.6%				50.0%

				* Insufficient data available to form percentile benchmark.

				Plot ID		ESD#		Litter Cover		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				Kimbell Creek		R028AY310UT		42.1		15		Yes		32.53		Yes

				KC_BH		R025XY310UT		68.0		-		-		*		*

				KC_BH_CH_S		R025XY310UT		86.0		-		-		*		*

				KC_CH_S		R025XY310UT		93.0		-		-		*		*

				KC_SL_M_S		R025XY310UT		94.0		-		-		*		*

				KC-10		R025XY322UT		30.0		10		Yes		38.00		No

				KC-5		R025XY322UT		37.0		10		Yes		38.00		No

				KC-12		R025XY418UT		22.0		5		Yes		*		*

				KC-11		R028AY006UT		27.0		5		Yes		56.80		No

				T-2		R025XY310UT		62.5		-		-		*		*

				251		R025XY418UT		38.7		5		Yes		*		*

				% Plots Meeting								100.0%				25.0%

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.

				* Insufficient data available to form percentile benchmark.



				Plot ID		ESD#		Canopy Gap 25-100 cm		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				251		R025XY418UT		18.8		-		-		*		*

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.

				* Insufficient data available to form percentile benchmark.

				Plot ID		ESD#		Canopy Gap 100+ cm		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				251		R025XY418UT		1.6		-		-		*		*

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.

				* Insufficient data available to form percentile benchmark.

				Plot ID		ESD#		Annual Grass Cover		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				Kimbell Creek		R028AY310UT		0.5		-		-		49.33		Yes

				KC_BH		R025XY310UT		9.3		-		-		*		*

				KC_BH_CH_S		R025XY310UT		4.7		-		-		*		*

				KC_CH_S		R025XY310UT		8.0		-		-		*		*

				KC_SL_M_S		R025XY310UT		9.3		-		-		*		*

				KC-10		R025XY322UT		1.0		-		-		18.40		Yes

				KC-5		R025XY322UT		0.0		-		-		18.40		Yes

				KC-12		R025XY418UT		0.0		-		-		*		*

				KC-11		R028AY006UT		0.0		-		-		29.07		Yes

				T-2		R025XY310UT		50.0		-		-		*		*

				251		R025XY418UT		4.7		-		-		*		*

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

				Lynn-4		R025XY310UT		2.7		3		No		*		*

				GRSGINTS-Other-163		R025XY310UT		2.9		3		No		*		*

				Lynn-1		R025XY412UT		3.8		4		No		4.30		No

				Lynn-3		R025XY412UT		3.8		4		No		4.30		No

				Lynn-5		R025XY412UT		3.1		4		No		4.30		No

				Lynn-2		R025XY418UT		3.3		3		Yes		*		*

				% Plots Meeting								16.7%				0.0%

				* Insufficient data available to form percentile benchmark.

				Plot ID		ESD#		Plot Bare Ground		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				GRSGINTS-Other-163		R025XY310UT		6.7		20		Yes		*		*

				Lynn-1		R025XY412UT		12.0		15		Yes		5.60		No

				T-1		R025XY412UT		14.0		15		Yes		5.60		No

				V-2		R025XY412UT		10.0		15		Yes		5.60		No

				V-3		R025XY412UT		10.0		15		Yes		5.60		No

				% Plots Meeting								100.0%				0.0%		25

				Plot ID		ESD#		Plot Total Foliar Cover		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				GRSGINTS-Other-163		R025XY310UT		82.0		35		Yes		*		*

				Lynn-1		R025XY412UT		47.0		35		Yes		70.00		No

				T-1		R025XY412UT		77.0		35		Yes		70.00		Yes

				V-2		R025XY412UT		97.0		35		Yes		70.00		Yes

				V-3		R025XY412UT		81.0		35		Yes		70.00		Yes

				% Plots Meeting								100.0%				75.0%

				Plot ID		ESD#		Plot Shrub Cover		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				GRSGINTS-Other-163		R025XY310UT		33.3		10		Yes		*		*

				Lynn-1		R025XY412UT		27.0		10		Yes		14.00		Yes

				T-1		R025XY412UT		28.5		10		Yes		14.00		Yes

				V-2		R025XY412UT		21.5		10		Yes		14.00		Yes

				V-3		R025XY412UT		37.0		10		Yes		14.00		Yes

				% Plots Meeting								100.0%				100.0%

				Plot ID		ESD#		Perennial Grass Cover		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				GRSGINTS-Other-163		R025XY310UT		58.0		20		Yes		*		*

				Lynn-1		R025XY412UT		16.0		20		No		24.4		No

				T-1		R025XY412UT		53.0		20		Yes		24.4		Yes

				V-2		R025XY412UT		85.5		20		Yes		24.4		Yes

				V-3		R025XY412UT		56.0		20		Yes		24.4		Yes

				% Plots Meeting								80.0%				75.0%

				Plot ID		ESD#		Litter Cover		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)										Need to go through and either consisitnely take out benchmark limits if there is no data or add them.

				GRSGINTS-Other-163		R025XY310UT		84.7		-		-		*		*

				Lynn-1		R025XY412UT		33.0		-		-		60.53		No

				T-1		R025XY412UT		43.0		-		-		60.53		No

				V-2		R025XY412UT		83.5		-		-		60.53		Yes

				V-3		R025XY412UT		50.5		-		-		60.53		No

				% Plots Meeting												25.0%

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.

				Plot ID		ESD#		Canopy Gap 25-100 cm		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				GRSGINTS-Other-163		R025XY310UT		10.2		-		-		*		*

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.

				Plot ID		ESD#		Canopy Gap 100+ cm		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				GRSGINTS-Other-163		R025XY310UT		2.5 		-		-		*		*

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.

				Plot ID		ESD#		Annual Grass Cover		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				GRSGINTS-Other-163		R025XY310UT		0.0		-		-		*		*

				Lynn-1		R025XY412UT		0.0		-		-		10.53		Yes

				T-1		R025XY412UT		6.0		-		-		10.53		Yes

				V-2		R025XY412UT		1.5		-		-		10.53		Yes

				V-3		R025XY412UT		0.0		-		-		10.53		Yes

				% Plots Meeting												100.0%		75

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.





Owl Springs

				Plot ID		ESD#		Avg. Plot Soil Stability 		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				OS-13		R025XY318UT		4.30		3		Yes		*		*

				OS-10		R025XY324UT		4.60		2		Yes		1.61		Yes

				OS-14		R028AY104UT		4.20		3		Yes		2.34		Yes

				440		R028AY104UT		3.75		3		Yes		2.34		Yes

				OS-9		R028AY119UT		4.50		4		Yes		2.72		Yes

				2020493201713B1		R028AY119UT		4.71		4		Yes		2.72		Yes

				2020493201713B2		R028AY119UT		4.44		4		Yes		2.72		Yes

				Shade-488		R028AY119UT		5.44		4		Yes		2.72		Yes

				2011493070201R1		R028AY120UT		4.67		4		Yes		2.70		Yes

				OS-15		R028AY124UT		4.70		4		Yes		3.38		Yes

				OS-4		R028AY124UT		4.10		4		Yes		3.38		Yes

				2011493070201R2		R028AY124UT		5.22		4		Yes		3.38		Yes

				2018493201708B1		R028AY124UT		3.11		4		No		3.38		No

				2018493201708B2		R028AY124UT		3.78		4		No		3.38		Yes

				GRSGINTS-Other-125		R028AY124UT		5.11		4		Yes		3.38		Yes

				OS-19		R028AY130UT		5.16		2		Yes		2.89		Yes

				OS-16		R028AY134UT		5.20		2		Yes		1.30		Yes

				Shade-520		R028AY134UT		3.94		2		Yes		1.30		Yes

				OS-18		R028AY139UT		5.16		4		Yes		2.73		Yes

				OS-8		R028AY139UT		3.20		4		No		2.73		Yes

				OS-2		R028AY140UT		3.90		3		Yes		2.96		Yes

				OS-5		R028AY202UT		4.20		4		Yes		3.27		Yes

				OS-12		R028AY215UT		3.20		3.5		No		2.67		Yes

				OS-6		R028AY215UT		4.60		3.5		Yes		2.67		Yes

				OS-20		R028AY227UT		3.20		3.5		No		3.13		Yes

				OS-17		R028AY252UT		4.10		4		Yes		2.40		Yes

				OS-3		R028AY252UT		4.30		4		Yes		2.40		Yes

				LowSage-215		R028AY252UT		2.89		4		No		2.40		Yes

				257		R028AY252UT		3.89		4		No		2.40		Yes

				% Plots Meeting								75.9%				96.4%

				* Insufficient data available to form percentile benchmark.

				Plot ID		ESD#		Plot Bare Ground		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				440		R028AY104UT		10.67		15		Yes		47.6		Yes

				2020493201713B1		R028AY119UT		20.93		60		Yes		62		Yes

				2020493201713B2		R028AY119UT		15.84		60		Yes		62		Yes

				Shade-488		R028AY119UT		26.00		60		Yes		62		Yes

				2011493070201R1		R028AY120UT		29.70		20		No		34.65		Yes

				2011493070201R2		R028AY124UT		36.63		50		Yes		38.4		Yes

				2018493201708B1		R028AY124UT		27.72		50		Yes		38.4		Yes

				2018493201708B2		R028AY124UT		23.76		50		Yes		38.4		Yes

				Owl-1		R028AY124UT		25.00		50		Yes		38.4		Yes

				GRSGINTS-Other-125		R028AY124UT		36.00		50		Yes		38.4		Yes

				Shade-520		R028AY134UT		28.00		40		Yes		55.95		Yes

				Owl-2		R028AY252UT		40.75		35		No		30.8		No

				LowSage-215		R028AY252UT		16.00		35		Yes		30.8		Yes

				N-19		R028AY252UT		48.00		35		No		30.8		No

				257		R028AY252UT		35.33		35		No		30.8		No

				% Plots Meeting								73.3%				80.0%

				Plot ID		ESD#		Plot Total Foliar Cover		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				440		R028AY104UT		36.00		23		Yes		17.33		Yes

				2020493201713B1		R028AY119UT		48.84		19		Yes		18.67		Yes

				2020493201713B2		R028AY119UT		58.41		19		Yes		18.67		Yes

				Shade-488		R028AY119UT		46.00		19		Yes		18.67		Yes

				2011493070201R1		R028AY120UT		45.54		22		Yes		24.6		Yes

				2011493070201R2		R028AY124UT		38.61		17		Yes		38.9		No

				2018493201708B1		R028AY124UT		40.59		17		Yes		38.9		Yes

				2018493201708B2		R028AY124UT		38.61		17		Yes		38.9		No

				Owl-1		R028AY124UT		21.00		17		Yes		38.9		No

				GRSGINTS-Other-125		R028AY124UT		47.33		17		Yes		38.9		Yes

				Shade-520		R028AY134UT		38.67		22		Yes		25.12		Yes

				Owl-2		R028AY252UT		35.14		-		-		29.89		Yes

				LowSage-215		R028AY252UT		51.33		-		-		29.89		Yes

				N-19		R028AY252UT		30.50		-		-		29.89		Yes

				257		R028AY252UT		50.67		-		-		29.89		Yes

				% Plots Meeting								100.0%				80.0%

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.

				Plot ID		ESD#		Plot Shrub Cover		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				440		R028AY104UT		16.67		15		Yes		1.73		Yes

				2020493201713B1		R028AY119UT		2.33		15		No		1.33		Yes

				2020493201713B2		R028AY119UT		4.95		15		No		1.33		Yes

				Shade-488		R028AY119UT		31.33		15		Yes		1.33		Yes

				2011493070201R1		R028AY120UT		34.65		10		Yes		0.99		Yes

				2011493070201R2		R028AY124UT		36.63		5		Yes		0		Yes

				2018493201708B1		R028AY124UT		26.73		5		Yes		0		Yes

				2018493201708B2		R028AY124UT		19.80		5		Yes		0		Yes

				Owl-1		R028AY124UT		16.00		5		Yes		0		Yes

				GRSGINTS-Other-125		R028AY124UT		28.00		5		Yes		0		Yes

				Shade-520		R028AY134UT		5.33		10		No		8.99		No

				Owl-2		R028AY252UT		30.88		-		-		0.67		Yes

				LowSage-215		R028AY252UT		20.67		-		-		0.67		Yes

				N-19		R028AY252UT		19.50		-		-		0.67		Yes

				257		R028AY252UT		45.33		-		-		0.67		Yes

				% Plots Meeting								72.7%				93.3%		80

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.

				Plot ID		ESD#		Perennial Grass Cover		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				440		R028AY104UT		8.00		5		Yes		0		Yes

				2020493201713B1		R028AY119UT		0.00		2		No		0		Yes

				2020493201713B2		R028AY119UT		0.00		2		No		0		Yes

				Shade-488		R028AY119UT		10.67		2		Yes		0		Yes

				2011493070201R1		R028AY120UT		13.86		10		Yes		1.2		Yes

				2011493070201R2		R028AY124UT		0.00		10		No		0		Yes

				2018493201708B1		R028AY124UT		16.83		10		Yes		0		Yes

				2018493201708B2		R028AY124UT		25.74		10		Yes		0		Yes

				Owl-1		R028AY124UT		11.00		10		Yes		0		Yes

				GRSGINTS-Other-125		R028AY124UT		6.00		10		No		0		Yes

				Shade-520		R028AY134UT		0.00		10		No		0.79		No

				Owl-2		R028AY252UT		2.88		-		-		1.6		Yes

				LowSage-215		R028AY252UT		1.33		-		-		1.6		No

				N-19		R028AY252UT		7.50		-		-		1.6		Yes

				257		R028AY252UT		6.00		-		-		1.6		Yes

				% Plots Meeting								54.5%				86.7%

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.

				Plot ID		ESD#		Litter Cover		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				440		R028AY104UT		22.67		10		Yes		5.56		Yes

				2020493201713B1		R028AY119UT		62.79		10		Yes		8		Yes

				2020493201713B2		R028AY119UT		61.39		10		Yes		8		Yes

				Shade-488		R028AY119UT		15.33		10		Yes		8		Yes

				2011493070201R1		R028AY120UT		47.52		10		Yes		10.51		Yes

				2011493070201R2		R028AY124UT		42.57		10		Yes		28.25		Yes

				2018493201708B1		R028AY124UT		39.60		10		Yes		28.25		Yes

				2018493201708B2		R028AY124UT		39.60		10		Yes		28.25		Yes

				Owl-1		R028AY124UT		27.00		10		Yes		28.25		No

				GRSGINTS-Other-125		R028AY124UT		56.00		10		Yes		28.25		Yes

				Shade-520		R028AY134UT		62.67		20		Yes		29.96		Yes

				Owl-2		R028AY252UT		13.88		-		-		11.49		Yes

				LowSage-215		R028AY252UT		46.00		-		-		11.49		Yes

				N-19		R028AY252UT		18.00		-		-		11.49		Yes

				257		R028AY252UT		51.33		-		-		11.49		Yes

				% Plots Meeting								100.0%				93.3%		80

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.

				Plot ID		ESD#		Canopy Gap 25-100 cm		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				440		R028AY104UT		23.9		-		-		18.37		No

				2020493201713B1		R028AY119UT		4.3		-		-		14.32		Yes

				2020493201713B2		R028AY119UT		7.9		-		-		14.32		Yes

				Shade-488		R028AY119UT		22.6		-		-		14.32		No

				2011493070201R1		R028AY120UT		24.9		-		-		16.39		No

				2011493070201R2		R028AY124UT		22.8		-		-		13.61		No

				2018493201708B1		R028AY124UT		4.3		-		-		13.61		Yes

				2018493201708B2		R028AY124UT		23.3		-		-		13.61		No

				GRSGINTS-Other-125		R028AY124UT		7.9		-		-		13.61		Yes

				Shade-520		R028AY134UT		5.5		-		-		11.71		Yes

				LowSage-215		R028AY252UT		16.6		-		-		19.12		Yes

				257		R028AY252UT		13.5		-		-		19.12		Yes

				% Plots Meeting												58.3%		41.67

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.

				Plot ID		ESD#		Canopy Gap 100+ cm		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				440		R028AY104UT		40.5		-		-		45.16		Yes

				2020493201713B1		R028AY119UT		10.7		-		-		63.19		Yes

				2020493201713B2		R028AY119UT		1.3		-		-		63.19		Yes

				Shade-488		R028AY119UT		31.3		-		-		63.19		Yes

				2011493070201R1		R028AY120UT		29.5		-		-		37.03		Yes

				2011493070201R2		R028AY124UT		26.6		-		-		15.76		No

				2018493201708B1		R028AY124UT		16.0		-		-		15.76		No

				2018493201708B2		R028AY124UT		21.2		-		-		15.76		No

				GRSGINTS-Other-125		R028AY124UT		17.1		-		-		15.76		No

				Shade-520		R028AY134UT		89.2		-		-		56.54		No

				LowSage-215		R028AY252UT		47.4		-		-		30.2		No

				257		R028AY252UT		37.8		-		-		30.2		No

				% Plots Meeting												41.7%		83.33

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.



				Plot ID		ESD#		Annual Grass Cover		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				440		R028AY104UT		2.00		-		-		13.77		Yes

				2020493201713B1		R028AY119UT		39.50		-		-		42.67		Yes

				2020493201713B2		R028AY119UT		51.50		-		-		42.67		No

				Shade-488		R028AY119UT		3.30		-		-		42.67		Yes

				2011493070201R1		R028AY120UT		5.90		-		-		52		Yes

				2011493070201R2		R028AY124UT		1.00		-		-		59.83		Yes

				2018493201708B1		R028AY124UT		2.00		-		-		59.83		Yes

				2018493201708B2		R028AY124UT		51.50		-		-		59.83		Yes

				Owl-1		R028AY124UT		1.00		-		-		59.83		Yes

				GRSGINTS-Other-125		R028AY124UT		20.00		-		-		59.83		Yes

				Shade-520		R028AY134UT		1.30		-		-		32.53		Yes

				Owl-2		R028AY252UT		0.00		-		-		39.84		Yes

				LowSage-215		R028AY252UT		40.70		-		-		39.84		No

				N-19		R028AY252UT		0.00		-		-		39.84		Yes

				257		R028AY252UT		2.70		-		-		39.84		Yes

				% Plots Meeting												86.7%

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.





Red Buttte

				Plot ID		ESD#		Avg. Plot Soil Stability 		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				RB-14		R025XY314UT		5.50		3		Yes		4.00		Yes

				RB-10		R025XY318UT		4.50		3		Yes		*		*

				RB-17		R025XY318UT		5.00		3		Yes		*		*

				RB-12		R025XY322UT		3.30		3		Yes		2.32		Yes

				RB-13		R025XY322UT		3.50		3		Yes		2.32		Yes

				RB-3		R025XY322UT		3.80		3		Yes		2.32		Yes

				11		R025XY322UT		4.61		3		Yes		2.32		Yes

				RB-9		R025XY324UT		4.10		2		Yes		1.61		Yes

				RB-1		R028AY130UT		4.40		2		Yes		2.89		Yes

				RB-18		R028AY139UT		5.70		4		Yes		2.73		Yes

				RB-11		R028AY202UT		3.60		4		No		3.27		Yes

				RB-15		R028AY202UT		4.40		4		Yes		3.27		Yes

				RB-4		R028AY202UT		5.20		4		Yes		3.27		Yes

				RB-5		R028AY202UT		5.20		4		Yes		3.27		Yes

				GRSGINTS-WySage-068		R028AY215UT		2.11		3.5		No		2.67		No

				GRSGINTS-WySage-039		R028AY215UT		3.67		3.5		Yes		2.67		Yes

				GRSGINTS-WySage-055		R028AY215UT		5.50		3.5		Yes		2.67		Yes

				RB-7		R028AY231UT		4.80		3.5		Yes		3.28		Yes

				GRSGINTS-BlackSage-274		R028AY236UT		5.44		4		Yes		3.00		Yes

				418		R028AY238UT		5.11		4		Yes		3.00		Yes

				PJ-418		R028AY238UT		5.33		4		Yes		3.00		Yes

				% Plots Meeting								90.5%				94.7%

				* Insufficient data available to form percentile benchmark.



				Plot ID		ESD#		Plot Bare Ground		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				Bedke		R025XY310UT		23.10		20		No		*		*

				W-5		R025XY314UT		45.50		25		No		24.67		No

				CC_BH_1		R025XY322UT		20.00		15		No		16.80		No

				CC_BH_2		R025XY322UT		12.67		15		Yes		16.80		Yes

				CC_BH_3		R025XY322UT		19.33		15		No		16.80		No

				CC_BH_4		R025XY322UT		18.00		15		No		16.80		No

				11		R025XY322UT		13.33		15		Yes		16.80		Yes

				GRSGINTS-WySage-068		R028AY215UT		18.00		35		Yes		29.87		Yes

				GRSGINTS-WySage-039		R028AY215UT		28.67		35		Yes		29.87		Yes

				GRSGINTS-WySage-055		R028AY215UT		4.00		35		Yes		29.87		Yes

				W-38		R028AY215UT		39.00		35		No		29.87		No

				GC2		R028AY220UT		4.00		30		Yes		30.67		Yes

				RB5		R028AY220UT		23.00		30		Yes		30.67		Yes

				N-6		R028AY220UT		41.00		30		No		30.67		No

				W-17		R028AY220UT		47.00		30		No		30.67		No

				GRSGINTS-BlackSage-274		R028AY236UT		29.33		35		Yes		25.87		No

				GC1		R028AY238UT		11.30		30		Yes		24.16		Yes

				GC3		R028AY238UT		8.70		30		Yes		24.16		Yes

				GC4		R028AY238UT		25.30		30		Yes		24.16		No

				RB1		R028AY238UT		10.00		30		Yes		24.16		Yes

				RB2		R028AY238UT		19.00		30		Yes		24.16		Yes

				418		R028AY238UT		26.67		30		Yes		24.16		No

				PJ-418		R028AY238UT		18.67		30		Yes		24.16		Yes

				RB7		R028AY252UT		45.00		35		No		30.80		No

				N-11		R028AY252UT		32.50		35		Yes		30.80		No

				% Plots Meeting								64.0%				50.0%

				Plot ID		ESD#		Plot Total Foliar Cover		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				Bedke		R025XY310UT		36.70		35		Yes		*		*

				W-5		R025XY314UT		35.00		45		No		47.33		No

				CC_BH_1		R025XY322UT		43.33		35		Yes		49.73		No

				CC_BH_2		R025XY322UT		45.33		35		Yes		49.73		No

				CC_BH_3		R025XY322UT		43.33		35		Yes		49.73		No

				CC_BH_4		R025XY322UT		42.00		35		Yes		49.73		No

				11		R025XY322UT		62.67		35		Yes		49.73		Yes

				GRSGINTS-WySage-068		R028AY215UT		43.33		32		Yes		42.40		Yes

				GRSGINTS-WySage-039		R028AY215UT		55.33		32		Yes		42.40		Yes

				GRSGINTS-WySage-055		R028AY215UT		85.33		32		Yes		42.40		Yes

				W-38		R028AY215UT		12.50		32		No		42.40		No

				GC2		R028AY220UT		63.30		27		Yes		36.67		Yes

				RB5		R028AY220UT		31.00		27		Yes		36.67		No

				N-6		R028AY220UT		23.50		27		No		36.67		No

				W-17		R028AY220UT		33.50		27		Yes		36.67		No

				GRSGINTS-BlackSage-274		R028AY236UT		45.33		27		Yes		35.12		Yes

				GC1		R028AY238UT		36.00		20		Yes		32.67		Yes

				GC3		R028AY238UT		56.70		20		Yes		32.67		Yes

				GC4		R028AY238UT		32.70		20		Yes		32.67		Yes

				RB1		R028AY238UT		42.00		20		Yes		32.67		Yes

				RB2		R028AY238UT		26.00		20		Yes		32.67		No

				418		R028AY238UT		44.00		20		Yes		32.67		Yes

				PJ-418		R028AY238UT		54.67		20		Yes		32.67		Yes

				RB7		R028AY252UT		28.00		-		-		29.89		No

				N-11		R028AY252UT		22		-		-		29.89		No

				% Plots Meeting								87.0%				50.0%

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.

				Plot ID		ESD#		Plot Shrub Cover		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				Bedke		R025XY310UT		11.00		10		Yes		*		*

				W-5		R025XY314UT		15.50		15		Yes		8.00		Yes

				CC_BH_1		R025XY322UT		0.67		10		No		4.40		No

				CC_BH_2		R025XY322UT		0.67		10		No		4.40		No

				CC_BH_3		R025XY322UT		2.00		10		No		4.40		No

				CC_BH_4		R025XY322UT		4.67		10		No		4.40		Yes

				11		R025XY322UT		16.00		10		Yes		4.40		Yes

				GRSGINTS-WySage-068		R028AY215UT		18.67		15		Yes		0.40		Yes

				GRSGINTS-WySage-039		R028AY215UT		18.00		15		Yes		0.40		Yes

				GRSGINTS-WySage-055		R028AY215UT		31.33		15		Yes		0.40		Yes

				W-38		R028AY215UT		10.50		15		No		0.40		Yes

				GC2		R028AY220UT		5.30		10		No		2.27		Yes

				RB5		R028AY220UT		6.00		10		No		2.27		Yes

				N-6		R028AY220UT		21.50		10		Yes		2.27		Yes

				W-17		R028AY220UT		23.00		10		Yes		2.27		Yes

				GRSGINTS-BlackSage-274		R028AY236UT		6.00		15		No		5.95		Yes

				GC1		R028AY238UT		2.00		10		No		2.67		No

				GC3		R028AY238UT		4.00		10		No		2.67		Yes

				GC4		R028AY238UT		4.70		10		No		2.67		Yes

				RB1		R028AY238UT		32.00		10		Yes		2.67		Yes

				RB2		R028AY238UT		15.00		10		Yes		2.67		Yes

				418		R028AY238UT		13.33		10		Yes		2.67		Yes

				PJ-418		R028AY238UT		17.33		10		Yes		2.67		Yes

				RB7		R028AY252UT		15.00		-		-		0.67		Yes

				N-11		R028AY252UT		15.50		-		-		0.67		Yes

				% Plots Meeting								52.2%				83.3%

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.



				Plot ID		ESD#		Perennial Grass Cover		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				Bedke		R025XY310UT		17.30		20		No		*		*

				W-5		R025XY314UT		24.00		25		No		22.00		Yes

				CC_BH_1		R025XY322UT		13.33		10		Yes		32.40		No

				CC_BH_2		R025XY322UT		14.67		10		Yes		32.40		No

				CC_BH_3		R025XY322UT		12.00		10		Yes		32.40		No

				CC_BH_4		R025XY322UT		6.67		10		No		32.40		No

				11		R025XY322UT		40.00		10		Yes		32.40		Yes

				GRSGINTS-WySage-068		R028AY215UT		2.67		15		No		6.67		No

				GRSGINTS-WySage-039		R028AY215UT		29.33		15		Yes		6.67		Yes

				GRSGINTS-WySage-055		R028AY215UT		1.33		15		No		6.67		No

				W-38		R028AY215UT		2.00		15		No		6.67		No

				GC2		R028AY220UT		49.30		15		Yes		2.27		Yes

				RB5		R028AY220UT		25.00		15		Yes		2.27		Yes

				N-6		R028AY220UT		2.00		15		No		2.27		No

				W-17		R028AY220UT		14.50		15		No		2.27		Yes

				GRSGINTS-BlackSage-274		R028AY236UT		40.00		10		Yes		2.73		Yes

				GC1		R028AY238UT		20.70		5		Yes		2.85		Yes

				GC3		R028AY238UT		44.70		5		Yes		2.85		Yes

				GC4		R028AY238UT		26.70		5		Yes		2.85		Yes

				RB1		R028AY238UT		6.00		5		Yes		2.85		Yes

				RB2		R028AY238UT		10.00		5		Yes		2.85		Yes

				418		R028AY238UT		24.67		5		Yes		2.85		Yes

				PJ-418		R028AY238UT		35.33		5		Yes		2.85		Yes

				RB7		R028AY252UT		11.00		-		-		1.60		Yes

				N-11		R028AY252UT		4.50		-		-		1.60		Yes

				% Plots Meeting								65.2%				66.7%

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.

				Plot ID		ESD#		Litter Cover		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				Bedke		R025XY310UT		33.50		-		-		*		*

				W-5		R025XY314UT		37.50		10		Yes		48.51		No

				CC_BH_1		R025XY322UT		64.67		10		Yes		38.00		Yes

				CC_BH_2		R025XY322UT		52.67		10		Yes		38.00		Yes

				CC_BH_3		R025XY322UT		59.33		10		Yes		38.00		Yes

				CC_BH_4		R025XY322UT		58.00		10		Yes		38.00		Yes

				11		R025XY322UT		52.67		10		Yes		38.00		Yes

				GRSGINTS-WySage-068		R028AY215UT		76.00		15		Yes		35.06		Yes

				GRSGINTS-WySage-039		R028AY215UT		46.00		15		Yes		35.06		Yes

				GRSGINTS-WySage-055		R028AY215UT		87.33		15		Yes		35.06		Yes

				W-38		R028AY215UT		35.00		15		Yes		35.06		No

				GC2		R028AY220UT		92.00		20		Yes		32.94		Yes

				RB5		R028AY220UT		38.00		20		Yes		32.94		Yes

				N-6		R028AY220UT		13.50		20		No		32.94		No

				W-17		R028AY220UT		29.00		20		Yes		32.94		No

				GRSGINTS-BlackSage-274		R028AY236UT		54.00		15		Yes		20.79		Yes

				GC1		R028AY238UT		83.00		10		Yes		18.42		Yes

				GC3		R028AY238UT		78.00		10		Yes		18.42		Yes

				GC4		R028AY238UT		57.00		10		Yes		18.42		Yes

				RB1		R028AY238UT		18.00		10		Yes		18.42		No

				RB2		R028AY238UT		38.00		10		Yes		18.42		Yes

				418		R028AY238UT		48.00		10		Yes		18.42		Yes

				PJ-418		R028AY238UT		46.67		10		Yes		18.42		Yes

				RB7		R028AY252UT		10.00		-		-		11.49		No

				N-11		R028AY252UT		30.50		-		-		11.49		Yes

				% Plots Meeting								95.5%				75.0%

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.

				Plot ID		ESD#		Canopy Gap 25-100 cm		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				11		R025XY322UT		18.90		-		-		14.81		No

				GRSGINTS-WySage-068		R028AY215UT		19.40		-		-		17.86		No

				GRSGINTS-WySage-039		R028AY215UT		23.70		-		-		17.86		No

				GRSGINTS-WySage-055		R028AY215UT		8.60		-		-		17.86		Yes

				GRSGINTS-BlackSage-274		R028AY236UT		16.40		-		-		18.37		Yes

				418		R028AY238UT		21.60		-		-		17.22		No

				PJ-418		R028AY238UT		10.60		-		-		17.22		Yes

				% Plots Meeting												42.9%		100

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.

				Plot ID		ESD#		Canopy Gap 100+ cm		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				11		R025XY322UT		1.40		-		-		6.35		Yes

				GRSGINTS-WySage-068		R028AY215UT		58.70		-		-		17.93		No

				GRSGINTS-WySage-039		R028AY215UT		24.90		-		-		17.93		No

				GRSGINTS-WySage-055		R028AY215UT		0.00		-		-		17.93		Yes

				GRSGINTS-BlackSage-274		R028AY236UT		0.00		-		-		37.10		Yes

				GC1		R028AY238UT		41.90		-		-		31.90		No

				418		R028AY238UT		33.90		-		-		31.90		No

				% Plots Meeting												42.9%		85.71

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.



				Plot ID		ESD#		Annual Grass Cover		Expected Value (ESD)		Meeting (Y/N) (ESD)		Percentile limit		Meeting (Y/N)  (Percentile)

				Bedke		R025XY310UT		2.00		-		-		*		*

				W-5		R025XY314UT		0.00		-		-		3.33		Yes

				CC_BH_1		R025XY322UT		0.00		-		-		18.40		Yes

				CC_BH_2		R025XY322UT		0.00		-		-		18.40		Yes

				CC_BH_3		R025XY322UT		0.00		-		-		18.40		Yes

				CC_BH_4		R025XY322UT		0.00		-		-		18.40		Yes

				11		R025XY322UT		1.30		-		-		18.40		Yes

				GRSGINTS-WySage-068		R028AY215UT		30.70		-		-		36.25		Yes

				GRSGINTS-WySage-039		R028AY215UT		17.30		-		-		36.25		Yes

				GRSGINTS-WySage-055		R028AY215UT		78.70		-		-		36.25		No

				W-38		R028AY215UT		0.00		-		-		36.25		Yes

				GC2		R028AY220UT		13.30		-		-		32.00		Yes

				RB5		R028AY220UT		0.00		-		-		32.00		Yes

				N-6		R028AY220UT		0.00		-		-		32.00		Yes

				W-17		R028AY220UT		0.00		-		-		32.00		Yes

				GRSGINTS-BlackSage-274		R028AY236UT		0.00		-		-		27.64		Yes

				GC1		R028AY238UT		8.00		-		-		38.67		Yes

				GC3		R028AY238UT		8.00		-		-		38.67		Yes

				GC4		R028AY238UT		0.70		-		-		38.67		Yes

				RB1		R028AY238UT		0.00		-		-		38.67		Yes

				RB2		R028AY238UT		5.00		-		-		38.67		Yes

				418		R028AY238UT		0.00		-		-		38.67		Yes

				PJ-418		R028AY238UT		2.00		-		-		38.67		Yes

				RB7		R028AY252UT		0.00		-		-		39.84		Yes

				N-11		R028AY252UT		0.00		-		-		39.84		Yes

				% Plots Meeting												95.8%		73.91

				-No value available in ESD reference sheet.






From: Burgess-Conforti, Jason R

To: Rose, Marcus F
Cc: Bouchard, Emma O
Subject: RE: WBE AIM Data Updates
Date: Monday, September 18, 2023 3:06:33 PM
Attachments: WBE sum 9.18.csv
WBE benchmarks 9.18.csv
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Marcus here is what | found:

Black Sage — 278 CG 100+. There were 4 AIM plots outside our permit renewal area and
all 4 had 0% canopy gaps greater than 100cm. This to me reads as the expected ecological
condition for this 025XY415UT would be to have no canopy gaps greater than 100cm.

GRSGINTS-Other-163 (Lynn): There were no data points outside of the WBE allotments
with the ESD 025XY310UT so benchmarks could not be set. The ESD provided value of
20% and the observed bare soil values for the three points within that ESD are well below
that so I’'m not too concerned about having to NA that one

Owl Springs: Found an error in canopy gap calculation; fixed errors in column values for
2020493201713B1, 2020493201713B2

Red Butte same issues with canopy gap calculation. | fixed the benchmark table for AG to
demonstrate that 5% is the limit for all ESDs. I'd also check the values in your table, as an
example you have AG cover of 51.5% for 2018493201708B2 but | checked my data, as
well as the data portal and its showing as 0%

Terrestriallndicators (TerrdDet and LMF combined - no related tables)
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

Sent: Thursday, September 14, 2023 5:29 PM

To: Burgess-Conforti, Jason R <jburgessconforti@blm.gov>
Cc: Bouchard, Emma O <ebouchard@blm.gov>

Subject: RE: WBE AIM Data Updates
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ALLOT_NAME,pts,pts_aim_trend_fuels,pts_ESI_soilstab,ag,pg,totalfoliar,shrub,bareground,litter,gap25100,gap100plus,soilstabil

Dry Canyon,7,6,1,50.0,33.3,50.0,50.0,66.7,66.7,66.7,33.3,75.0

Kimball Creek,8,4,4,100.0,50.0,50.0,100.0,50.0,25.0,NA,NA,100.0

Lynn,6,4,2,75.0,75.0,75.0,100.0,25.0,25.0,NA,NA,0.0

Owl Springs,31,15,16,80.0,86.7,80.0,93.3,80.0,93.3,75.0,91.7,96.4

Red Butte,36,24,12,70.8,66.7,50.0,83.3,50.0,75.0,100.0,85.7,94.7




		stratum		agcover_value_80		bareground_value_80		foliarcover_value_20		gap100plus_value_80		gap25100_value_80		littercover_value_20		pgcover_value_20		shrubcover_value_20		soilstability_value_20		treecover_value_80

		025XY314UT		5.0		24.7		47.3		22.4		30.4		48.5		22.0		8.0		4.0		3.3

		025XY322UT		5.0		16.8		49.7		17.2		28.3		38.0		32.4		4.4		2.3		5.7

		025XY324UT		5.0		24.5		37.1		33.2		31.5		9.9		8.3		0.8		1.6		12.8

		025XY412UT		5.0		5.6		70.0		2.4		17.5		60.5		24.4		14.0		4.3		3.2

		025XY415UT		5.0		9.5		74.1		1.2		8.2		42.4		15.2		18.4		4.7		0.0

		028AY006UT		5.0		28.9		41.7		62.0		12.2		56.8		0.0		9.6		1.8		3.2

		028AY104UT		5.0		47.6		17.3		63.9		25.2		5.6		0.0		1.7		2.3		0.0

		028AY119UT		5.0		62.0		18.7		76.9		22.1		8.0		0.0		1.3		2.7		0.0

		028AY120UT		5.0		34.7		24.6		61.2		23.8		10.5		1.2		1.0		2.7		0.0

		028AY124UT		5.0		38.4		38.9		31.5		23.5		28.3		0.0		0.0		3.4		0.0

		028AY130UT		5.0		66.7		18.7		77.8		15.1		10.0		0.0		0.3		2.9		0.0

		028AY134UT		5.0		56.0		25.1		75.6		15.7		30.0		0.8		9.0		1.3		0.0

		028AY139UT		5.0		58.6		19.2		45.8		31.0		22.2		0.0		2.0		2.7		0.0

		028AY140UT		5.0		62.4		8.7		83.9		11.1		16.2		0.0		0.0		3.0		0.0

		028AY202UT		5.0		36.2		33.4		49.3		23.8		33.5		0.0		24.4		3.3		0.0

		028AY215UT		5.0		29.9		42.4		32.3		28.7		35.1		6.7		0.4		2.7		0.0

		028AY220UT		5.0		30.7		36.7		36.7		30.0		32.9		2.3		2.3		2.4		0.0

		028AY227UT		5.0		13.9		25.5		72.8		25.5		20.4		2.8		7.5		3.1		0.0

		028AY231UT		5.0		26.0		36.6		42.9		31.4		30.7		5.3		5.3		3.3		8.0

		028AY236UT		5.0		25.9		35.1		51.1		24.0		20.8		2.7		6.0		3.0		6.5

		028AY238UT		5.0		24.2		32.7		50.4		25.7		18.4		2.9		2.7		3.0		19.7

		028AY252UT		5.0		30.8		29.9		54.8		27.7		11.5		1.6		0.7		2.4		0.0

		028AY310UT		5.0		22.9		39.3		51.4		23.9		32.5		3.7		0.0		1.9		27.9




Terrestrialingicators (TerrADst and LMIF combined - no related tebles)
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

To: Davis, Jordan R; Jencso, Emily D; Burgess-Conforti, Jason R; Mellon, Cassie D; Gates, Michael D
Cc: Puttere, Jennifer M; Wade, Jessica A

Subject: RE: WBE LHS 1 - multiple lines of evidence

Date: Thursday, April 13, 2023 8:00:00 AM

Attachments: image001.png

For Mike Davis review .docx

Hello Mike,

The above link is an excerpt from the West Box Elder land health assessment showing the approach
that we are taking to use multiple lines of evidence to ultimately conclude whether standards are
being met or not. This is mainly to give you a brief update to show you the outline and datasets that
we are using and how we plan to integrate them into the land health assessment. The plan is to use
both the ESD reference values and the percentile benchmark methods side by side as well as the
other datasets discussed in this document to make a final assessment of whether land health
standards are being achieved. If you can take a look and let us know if you see any glaring problems
or holes in this approach then we will fix them early on.

Thanks,

Marcus

From: Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, April 12, 2023 7:26 AM

To: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>; Burgess-Conforti, Jason
R <jburgessconforti@blm.gov>; Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>

Cc: Puttere, Jennifer M <jputtere@blm.gov>; Wade, Jessica A <jwade@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: WBE LHS 1 - multiple lines of evidence

I reviewed it and saved it to the NEPA sharepoint (titled For Mike Davis Review),

Thanks

Jordan Davis
Assistant Field Manager

Salt Lake Field Office|Bureau of Land
Management -Utah

p: (385) 278-3618
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From: Jencso, Emily D <gjencso@blm.gov>

Sent: Thursday, April 6, 2023 10:03 AM

To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>; Burgess-Conforti, Jason R <jburgessconforti@blm.gov>;
Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>; Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>

Cc: Puttere, Jennifer M <jputtere@blm.gov>; Wade, Jessica A <jwade@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: WBE LHS 1 - multiple lines of evidence

Hi folks,

Use this one instead. I did a quick reread and caught some mistakes. :

Emily Jencso

SLFO Wildlife Biologist CWB®
Cell: (801) 599-0954

Office: 801-320-8300

Salt Lake Field Office BLM
491 N John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116

From: Jencso, Emily D <gjencso@blm.gov>

Sent: Thursday, April 6, 2023 9:22 AM

To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>; Burgess-Conforti, Jason R <jburgessconforti@blm.gov>;
Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>; Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>

Cc: Puttere, Jennifer M <jputtere@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: WBE LHS 1 - multiple lines of evidence

Marcus, thanks for making those tables and editing the doc. Those tables really help get the


https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.blm.gov%2Futah&data=05%7C01%7Cmrose%40blm.gov%7C4f79e6842bc844d7036008db3b598554%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638169027893594831%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=9w2U06LHeEI7P%2BV7KiEAbrcwC%2B1xRMaX12r0aaXKCC4%3D&reserved=0
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point across!

I went through and removed track changes, did some formatting, and refined the doc.
Everyone, please open it and read it carefully. I included an intro for Mike.

Emily Jencso

SLFO Wildlife Biologist CWB®
Cell: (801) 599-0954

Office: 801-320-8300

Salt Lake Field Office BLM
491 N John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116

From: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, April 5, 2023 4:15 PM

To: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>; Burgess-Conforti, Jason R <jburgessconforti@blm.gov>;
Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>; Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>

Cc: Puttere, Jennifer M <jputtere@blm.gov>

Subject: RE: WBE LHS 1 - multiple lines of evidence

Hello all,

Here is what Emily originally sent out along with some added example tables and a bit of additional
information. This outlines the data we plan to include in LHS 1 and how we plan to use it to
determine if land health standards are being met. If you could take a quick look at it and let me know
if there is anything that needs to be further clarified that would be helpful.

Thanks!

Marcus

From: Jencso, Emily D <gjencso@blm.gov>

Sent: Monday, April 3, 2023 1:18 PM

To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>; Burgess-Conforti, Jason R <jburgessconforti@blm.gov>;
Mellon, Cassie D <cmellon@blm.gov>; Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>

Cc: Puttere, Jennifer M <jputtere@blm.gov>

Subject: WBE LHS 1 - multiple lines of evidence

All,

Here is my draft of a write up for Mike. Marcus- there are some things to fill in. I think it
would be wise to include an example data table of how we intend to present the threshold
analysis from both TN's (453 and 455). I think including a written narrative the way I have
here is useful. I pulled from the draft I put together of Chap. 1 and 2 so far.

I will also send out the action items/to-do list that I was working on with shared screens.


mailto:mrose@blm.gov
mailto:ejencso@blm.gov
mailto:jburgessconforti@blm.gov
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

Here is a link to the working copy of the RHA. West Box Elder Rangeland Health We need
to sit down as an IDT after this has been flushed out (LHS 1 assessment and evaluation) and
figure out deadlines and agree to a working outline of Chap 3 (and review Chapter 2/fill in
gaps/edit). And also discuss causal factors for all standards determined to not be meeting.
There seems to be quite a bit of analysis left.

....this is also attached as a word doc.

The land health standards are descriptions of the desired condition of the biological and
physical components and characteristics of rangelands. Each land health standard has
associated indicators which are features of an ecosystem that can be measured or observed in
order to gain an understanding of the relative condition of a particular landscape or portion of
a landscape (BLM, 1997). Indicators are evaluated using methods and techniques that are
considered best available science and with defensible methodology. Not every indicator
applies equally to every acre of land or ecological site, Similarly, because of natural
variability, extreme degradation, or management objectives, there may be a need for discretion
in applying the standards of rangeland health when evaluating standards (BLM, 1997).
Various monitoring datasets were used to assess achievement of land health standards in the
WBE allotments (Table 1).

An interdisciplinary team (IDT) including BLM specialists in range management, hydrology,
wildlife biology, aquatic ecology, and soil science reviewed information within the assessment
area. A brief description of the quantitative and qualitative methods and analysis used in the
assessment are described below. Explicit details on how to collect and interpret the data can be
found in cited technical references documents. Data were collected by the IDT, contracted
field crews, Utah Division of Wildlife Resources (UDWR), Utah State University (USU),
United States Department of Agriculture-Natural Resources Conservation Service (USDA-
NRCS) crews, and the United States Geological Survey (USGS).

Table 1. BLM Utah land health standards, associated indicators, and the methods used to
assess, inventory, and/or monitor those associated indicators.

Standard 1. Upland soils exhibit permeability and infiltration rates that sustain or improve site productivity,
considering the soil type, climate, and landform. As indicated by:

a. Sufficient cover and |Associated Indicators Method
litter to protect the soil surface [Bare ground, foliar and litter [AIM and LMF
from excessive water and wind |cover, vegetation UDWR HAF AIM
erosion, promote infiltration,  |composition UDWR Big Game Range Trend
detain surface flow, and retard IBLM Range trend (nested frequency, point
soil moisture loss by intercept, photo plots)
evaporation. Ecological Similarity Index
Remote sensing data (RAP, LandCART

b. The absence of Tool)
indicators of excessive erosion Photo plots (AIM, UDWR Big Game
such as rills, soil pedestals, and Range Trend, Aquatic AIM and PFC
actively eroding gullies. photos)

IWater infiltration (soil AIM and LMF
c. The appropriate aggregate stability, proportion [UDWR HAF AIM
amount, type, and distribution  fof large gaps between plant [UDWR Big Game Range Trend
of vegetation reflecting the canopies)
presence of (1) the Desired Soil erosion (rills, pedestals, |AIM and LMF
Plant Community (DPC), where|o,jies) and deposition UDWR HAF AIM
identified in a land use plan, or UDWR Big Game Range Trend
(2) where the DPC is not BLM Range trend


https://doimspp.sharepoint.com/sites/blm-UTNEPAWestDesert/SLFO_NEPA/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2Fblm%2DUTNEPAWestDesert%2FSLFO%5FNEPA%2FWest%20Box%20Elder%20Rangeland%20Health&viewid=95652d1f%2D7a38%2D4041%2Db546%2D2cbb83d199ed

identified, a community that [Ecological Similarity Index

equally sustains.the desired [IRH

level of productivity and Photo plots (AIM, UDWR Big Game
properly functioning ecological Range Trend, Aquatic AIM and PFC
conditions. photos)

Standard 2. Riparian and wetland areas are in properly functioning condition. Stream channel morphology
and functions are appropriate to soil type, climate and landform. As indicated by:

a. Streambank Associated Indicators Techniques/Assessment

vegetation consisting of, or  [Hydrogeomorphic: (floodplain, [Riparian Proper Functioning Condition
showing trend toward, species [recharge/discharge, ground (PFC) Assessments (BLM TR 1737-9 and
with root masses capable of  |water, sinuosity, width/depth  [TR 1737-11)

withstanding high streamflow [ration, etc.) Lotic AIM

events. Vegetative cover [Vegetation: (type, canopy, Aquatic resource inventory and habitat
adequate to protect stream reproduction, production, root [assessments

banks as dissipate streamflow |density, etc.) Water quality measurements

energy associated with high-  [Erosion/deposition: (band and [Photo plots
water flows, protect against  |bed stability, deposition)
accelerated erosion, capture  [Soils: (type, soil water states,

sediment, and provide for capillarity, etc.)

groundwater recharge. Water Quality: (sediment,
temperature, nutrients, salinity,

b. Vegetation etc.)

reflecting: Desired plant
community, maintenance of
riparian and wetland soil
moisture characteristics,
diverse age structure and
composition, high vigor, large
woody debris when site
potential allows, and providing
food, cover, and other habitat
needs for dependent animal
species.

c. Revegetating point
bars; lateral stream movement
associated with natural
sinuosity; channel width,
depth, pool frequency and
roughness appropriate to
landscape position.

d. Active floodplain.

Standard 3. Desired species, including native, threatened, endangered, and special-status species, are
maintained at a level appropriate for the site and species involved. As indicated by:

a. Frequency, diversity, |Associated Indicators Techniques/Assessment
density, age classes, and |Vegetation: (age classes, AIM and LMF
productivity of desired native  [frequency, density, [UDWR HAF AIM
species necessary to ensure composition, productivity, [UDWR Big Game Range Trend
reproductive capability and ratio of native/non-native, IBLM Range trend (nested frequency and
survival. [percent cover) point intercept)

Remote sensing data (RAP Tool, Landcart)
b. Habitats connected at Greater sage-grouse habitat assessment
a level to enhance species framework (HAF, Stiver et al. 2015, BLM




survival.

c. Native species re-
occupy habitat niches and voids
caused by disturbances unless
management objectives call for
introduction or maintenance of
non-native species.

d. Habitats for
threatened, endangered, and
special-status species managed
to provide for recovery and
move species toward de-
listing.
e. Appropriate amount,
type, and distribution of
vegetation reflecting the
presence of (1) the Desired
Plant Community, where
identified in a land use plan
conforming to these standards,
or (2) where the DPC is not
identified a community that
equally sustains the desired
level of productivity and
properly functioning ecological
processes.

2019)
Species specific conservation strategies and
habitat assessments where available

Soils: (erosion, soil aggregate
stability, proportion of large
gaps between plant canopies,
[percent bare ground)

AIM and LMF

[UDWR HAF AIM

[UDWR Big Game Range Trend
Remote sensing (percent bare ground)

[Habitats: (cover, connectivity,
abundance of species, species
diversity, prey abundance)

AIM (terrestrial and aquatic) and LMF
Riparian Proper Functioning Condition
(PFC) Assessments (BLM TR 1737-9 and
TR 1737-11)

Lotic AIM

[UDWR HAF AIM

[UDWR Big Game Range Trend

IBLM Range trend (nested frequency and
point intercept)

Remote sensing data (RAP Tool, Landcart)
Greater sage-grouse habitat assessment
framework (HAF, Stiver et al. 2015, BLM
2019)

Species specific conservation strategies and
habitat assessments where available
[Population metrics by species where
available

Standard 4. BLM will apply and comply with water quality standards established by the state of Utah (R.317-2) and
the Federal Clean Water and Safe Drinking Water Acts. Activities on BLM lands will fully support the designated
beneficial uses described in the Utah Water Quality Standards (R.317-2) for surface and groundwater. As indicated
by:

a. Measurement of |Associated Indicators
nutrient loads, total dissolved
solids, chemical constituents,
fecal coliform, water
temperature and other water
quality parameters.

b. Macroinvertebrate
communities that indicate water
quality meets aquatic
objectives.

Techniques/Assessment
[Aquatic AIM
Utah DNR water quality monitoring

INutrient loads, total dissolved
solids, chemical constituents,
fecal coliform, temperature,
IpH, specific conductance,
turbidity, temperature, total
mitrogen and total
lphosphorous, benthic
Imacroinvertebrates, streambed|
particle size, etc.

Land Health Standard 1
Proposed assessment methods

The IDT followed the methods outlined in BLM TN 453 “Guide to Using AIM and LMF Data
in Land Health Evaluations and Authorizations of Permitted Uses” (Kachergis et al. 2020), TN
455 “Applying and Interpreting Assessment, Inventory, and Monitoring (AIM) Data at the
Field Office Level: An Example” (Grant-Hoffman et al. 2021), and BLM Handbook H-4180-
1, “Rangeland Health Standards” (BLM 2001) to assess land health standards one through

four.

Multiple lines of evidence were used to assess LHS #1 including: assessing AIM, LMF, and



other quantitative data (upland trend, fuels and ESR monitoring data, ESI soil stability) using
the benchmark method, qualitative assessments (PFC, IIRH), photo plots, analysis of nested
frequency and key species, remote sensing (RAP Tool, LandCART), land use history,
precipitation and NDVI, IDT site visits, and professional opinion. Supplemental data including
utilization studies, analysis of actual use to permitted use and available AUMs, drought
analysis by year of data collection, comparison of annual production (Ibs/ac) by year, fence
and water development mapping and condition, and existing structural range improvements
were used in addition to interpret the results of the assessment.

First, the IDT reviewed available datasets and selected relevant indicators for each land health
standard (Table 1). Datasets were reviewed to determine which methods and indicators were
comparable (Table 6). Next, the IDT reviewed available ecological site descriptions (ESDs)
for Box Elder County to determine appropriate benchmarks for each selected indicator for
LHS #1 and 3. Due to the number of incomplete and/or provisional ESDs for the assessment
area, the IDT decided to use existing monitoring data to inform benchmark values as outlined
in TN 453, and Appendix 2 of TN 455. These data were then aggregated and analyzed using
upper and lower limits of benchmarks using quantiles from all AIM points within MLRA
28[JED1] [JED1] and other scientific data as determined by the SLFO IDT (see TN 455,
Appendix A for detailed methods).

After reviewing the initial analysis from the TN-455.A method, the IDT decided to also
analyze each of the nine selected indicators for LHS #1 using set values (reference condition
of ecological site descriptions) as outlined in the benchmark method in TN 453. Benchmarks
for each indicator were determined by the ecological site reference condition value. Indicators
meeting a benchmark were equal to or greater than the low reference condition value. A total
of 29 ecological sites and XX plots were evaluated using this method.

The IDT decided to present the analyses from both the TN-455.A (quantile) and benchmark
(TN 453) approach side by side. This was done as an additional line of evidence. Benchmarks
and the percent quartile threshold for each ecological site are shown in Table #.

The IDT evaluated whether each plot was meeting the quantitative objectives by comparing
indicator values at each plot to applicable benchmark values (Table #). The IDT considered
each plot’s location and land use history when summarizing the benchmark analysis results.
For instance, the AIM and LMF points were identified using a random stratified sample
design, whereas, upland trend plots represent “key areas”, and fuels monitoring plots were
purposefully selected to represent the effectiveness of management. After the IDT summarized
the results of the benchmark (TN 453) and percentile methods (TN 455) by allotment, they
assessed additional lines of evidence prior to making determining whether individual
allotments were meeting LHS #1.

Additional lines of evidence:

Ecological Site Inventory

The BLM completed Ecological Site Inventories (ESI) (Habich 2001) at 71 sites in the
assessment area in 2006 (Figure 1). Based on those inventories, a total of 28 ecological sites
occur on the BLM-managed lands in the assessment area (Appendix A). The most common
ecological sites are upland stony clay, upland loam, upland shallow loam, upland shallow
loam, upland stony loam and mountain gravelly loam.

Through the ESI process, a comparison of vegetation production and composition can be made
between the existing community and the Historical Climax Plant Community (HCPC)
described in the ESD. This comparison involves sampling the productivity by species (e.g.,
clipping and weighing), or estimating the productivity based on previous samples, in order to
generate a similarity index. The existing productivity is then summed for all measured species
and described as a percentage of the total productivity in the HCPC, thereby generating the
similarity index. Similarity indexes corresponding to successional status (Table 4).Table 5
describes the successional status for each allotment in the assessment area.



. Similarity index and corresponding successional status (after Habich 2001).

Similarity Index Successional Status
0-25% Early
26-50% Mid
51-75% Late
76-100% Historic Climax Plant Community

Summary of Ecological Site Inventory data and successional status in the assessment area.

Sut:sctzstsl::nal Dry Canyon Red Butte Owl Springs Kimball Creek Lynn
Early 4% 8% 1% 0% 0%

Mid 45% 47% 51% 37% 70%

Late 45% 26% 46% 60% 29%
Pﬁﬁ:‘gfmfnhﬁi"y 3% 12% 0% 0% 0%
Not rated 3% 7% 2% 3% 1%

The ESI found that Red Butte and Lynn are mostly in the mid seral successional status. Owl
Springs and Dry Canyon are mostly in the mid seral and late seral successional status. Kimball
Creek are mostly in the late seral successional status. Data from the ESI were used by the
NRCS to update ecological site descriptions within Box Elder County. ESI data is typically
used in assessing Utah Standards for Rangeland Health #1 and #3. However, these data were
collected in 2006 and are provided here as baseline conditions for the allotments in 2006. It is
not assumed that allotments have remained in the same successional status since the 2006 ESI

assessment.

Interpreting Indicators of Rangeland Health

A BLM interdisciplinary team completed the Interpreting Indicators of Rangeland Health
protocol (IIRH; Pellant et al. 2005) on the Dry Canyon, Kimball Creek, Lynn, Owl Springs,
and Red Butte allotments in 2006 (Figure X). Figure X shows the location of the sites assessed
(n=71). No determination of rangeland health was made at the time of the data collection
(2006), as the BLM recognized that more quantitative data was needed to make a
determination. IIRH data is typically used in assessing Utah Standards for Rangeland Health
#1 and #3. However, these data were collected in 2006 and are provided here as baseline
conditions for the allotments in 2006. It is not assumed that the allotments have remained in
the same condition since the 2006 IIRH assessment.

Photo plots — analysis/comparison/trend by allotment and plots (bring to IDT). Update in methods.
Nested frequency and key species analysis by allotment

Remote sensing

a. RAP Tool - this already done by allotment. Production has not been done. The RAP
tool was also used to compare current year production to past years and quantify
the amount above or below the average since the last permit renewal in 2004.

b. LandCART - 19 indicators available. The IDT used the LandCART to evaluate
trend of percent cover of selected AIM indicators (annual grass, bare ground, bare
soil, canopy gap, perennial herbaceous, sagebrush, shrubs, and total foliar cover) by
allotment within specified time periods. GROWING SEASON = May 1 — September

15t We chose these dates based on when data was collected. 2006 till 2021.
i. Lynn



ii. Kimball
iii. Dry Canyon
iv. Red Butte
v. Owl Springs
Land use history — just consider this in making the overall calls by allotments and when evaluating
points

IDT site visits

e Document site visits by team and purpose, general dates, notes

Date/timeframe IDT Where Purpose/Conclusions

Professional opinion -

Supplemental data (Causal factors)

1. utilization studies
2. analysis of actual use to permitted use and available AUMs
3. drought analysis by year of data collection
4. Precip and NDVI
5. comparison of annual production (Ibs/ac) by year
6. fence and water development mapping and condition
7. existing structural range improvements
Emily Jencso

SLFO Wildlife Biologist CWB®
Cell: (801) 599-0954
Office: 801-320-8300

Salt Lake Field Office BLM
491 N John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116

JED1]Update this to whatever was actually done.



From: Davis, Jordan R

To: Jencso, Emily D; Schuller, Pamela N; Rose, Marcus F

ce Puttere, Jennifer M; Wade, Jessica A; Howell, Tami L; Marks, Todd R
Subject: Re: WBE RHA

Date: Monday, December 4, 2023 3:56:42 PM

Attachments: ‘Outlook-zehOkkke.ona

Pam et al.

1 think it best that we get through the land health steps before looking at the EA. I would want to have a final draft of the land heath completed and a draft of the determination before jumping back
into the NEPA compliance.

My rational for this is we would want to make sure that there are no major changes through the review process for the LHA/determination. I am wanting the determination to be the driver for our
alternatives. I think this was part of the issue we ran into with the decision issued in 2020 where our land health docs were being edited along with the EA. What that caused is that our docs were not
in alignment with each other. If we could work to avoid that with our current process is what I would hope for. I really do not want to go through these again.

Jessica can of course jump in and give us her leaders intent on the process and we will follow her lead on it. But at least you have an idea of where my thought process is.

Thank you,

NATIONAL SYSTEM OF PUBLIC LANDS

Jordan Davis

Acting Field Manager

Price Field Office|Bureau of Land Management -Utah
p: (435) 636-3659

w: www.blm.gov

From: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>

Sent: Monday, December 4, 2023 3:32 PM

To: Schuller, Pamela N <pschulle@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Cc: Puttere, Jennifer M <jputtere@blm.gov>; Wade, Jessica A <jwade@blm.gov>; Howell, Tami L <thowell@blm.gov>; Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Marks, Todd R <tmarks@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: WBE RHA

That is a good question Pam. I think we need to do the Determination and Causal Factor portion of the land health eval before we develop alternatives.

Emily Jencso
SLFO Wildlife Biologist CWB®
Cell: (801) 599-0954

Office: 801-320-8300

Salt Lake Field Office BLM
491 N John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116

From: Schuller, Pamela N <pschulle@blm.gov>

Sent: Monday, December 4, 2023 3:25 PM

To: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Cc: Puttere, Jennifer M <jputtere@blm.gov>; Wade, Jessica A <jwade@blm.gov>; Howell, Tami L <thowell@blm.gov>; Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Marks, Todd R <tmarks@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: WBE RHA

Thanks Emily.

T was wondering if the managers now want us (Marcus, Emily and I) to take certain content/conclusions from the RHA and to start editing/updating the EA? Or should I just stand still while managers are
reviewing/commenting on the RHA?

I've added Todd Marks for coordination purposes because of this important step in this project.

Thank You, Pamela

From: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>

Sent: Sunday, November 19, 2023 9:01 PM

To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Cc: Puttere, Jennifer M <jputtere@blm.gov>; Wade, Jessica A <jwade@blm.gov>; Howell, Tami L <thowell@blm.gov>; Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Schuller, Pamela N <pschulle@blm.gov>
Subject: WBE RHA

Hi folks,

I have a few comments in the WBE RHA for Marcus, and a placeholder for me to update a map a two. Jason reviewed/edited Chapters 1-3, and Chapter 4 Standard 1 sections, but did not review Standard 3. He
(Jason) did not participate/contribute to Standard 3 but I did ask him to review it just to have another pair of eyes. Maybe he will get around to looking at it this week but I am guessing not.

I have not entered in my bajillion references. I will work on that this week and may ask Brandon to help me out (it would be beneficial for him to start getting some MS Word skills and familiarize himself with some
of the references).

Marcus - I went through and accepted edits from Jason etc. that had not been reviewed/accepted. I am guessing we may have some issues with table/figures cross references throughout still. T will be on AL
tomorrow.

AND- long story short. The document is ready from my perspective for manager review. There are things that I would do differently or change as I continue to learn but I think Marcus and I can be pretty proud of
the product we are putting forward for review. Job well done Marcus!!! I have appreciated all your effort, ideas, and demeanor throughout.

Best,
Emily

Emily Jencso

SLFO Wildlife Biologist CWB®
Cell: (801) 599-0954

Office: 801-320-8300

Salt Lake Field Office BLM
491 N John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116
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https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.blm.gov%2Futah&data=05%7C01%7Cmrose%40blm.gov%7C20fc9d19e0b64adf248308dbf51c466d%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638373274014385886%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=MIpUJGW05nrpEptnERmrofOUz24Sb2WLTbIGt27r7Kw%3D&reserved=0

NATIONAL SYSTEM OF PUBLIC LANDS

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT





From: Jencso, Emily D
To: Schuller, Pamela N; Rose, Marcus £

Cc: ; Howell, Tami L; Davis, Jordan R; Marks, Todd R
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

1 was wondering if the managers now want us (Marcus, Emily and I) to take certain content/conclusions from the RHA and to start editing/updating the EA? Or should I just stand still while managers are
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

T have not entered in my bajillion references. I will work on that this week and may ask Brandon to help me out (it would be beneficial for him to start getting some MS Word skills and familiarize himself with some
of the references).

Marcus - I went through and accepted edits from Jason etc. that had not been reviewed/accepted. I am guessing we may have some issues with table/figures cross references throughout still. I will be on AL
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

To: Jencso, Emily D; Schuller, Pamela N

Cc: Puttere, Jennifer M; Wade, Jessica A; Howell, Tami L; Davis, Jordan R; Marks, Todd R
Subject: RE: WBE RHA

Date: Monday, December 4, 2023 3:46:00 PM

| agree that it would be best to wait until the determination and causal factors are hashed out
before we dig into the EA.
Thanks

From: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>

Sent: Monday, December 4, 2023 3:33 PM

To: Schuller, Pamela N <pschulle@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Cc: Puttere, Jennifer M <jputtere@blm.gov>; Wade, Jessica A <jwade@blm.gov>; Howell, Tami L
<thowell@blm.gov>; Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Marks, Todd R <tmarks@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: WBE RHA

That is a good question Pam. I think we need to do the Determination and Causal Factor
portion of the land health eval before we develop alternatives.

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

I was wondering if the managers now want us (Marcus, Emily and ) to take certain
content/conclusions from the RHA and to start editing/updating the EA? Or should I just stand
still while managers are reviewing/commenting on the RHA?

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
<thowell@blm.gov>; Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Schuller, Pamela N
<pschulle@blm.gov>

Subject: WBE RHA

Hi folks,

I have a few comments in the WBE RHA for Marcus, and a placeholder for me to update a
map a two. Jason reviewed/edited Chapters 1-3, and Chapter 4 Standard 1 sections, but did not
review Standard 3. He (Jason) did not participate/contribute to Standard 3 but I did ask him to
review it just to have another pair of eyes. Maybe he will get around to looking at it this week
but [ am guessing not.

I have not entered in my bajillion references. I will work on that this week and may ask
Brandon to help me out (it would be beneficial for him to start getting some MS Word skills
and familiarize himself with some of the references).

Marcus - I went through and accepted edits from Jason etc. that had not been
reviewed/accepted. I am guessing we may have some issues with table/figures cross references
throughout still. I will be on AL tomorrow.

AND- long story short. The document is ready from my perspective for manager review.
There are things that I would do differently or change as I continue to learn but I think Marcus
and I can be pretty proud of the product we are putting forward for review. Job well done
Marcus!!! I have appreciated all your effort, ideas, and demeanor throughout.

Best,
Emily

Emily Jencso

SLFO Wildlife Biologist CWB®
Cell: (801) 599-0954

Office: 801-320-8300

Salt Lake Field Office BLM
491 N John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116
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From: Schuller, Pamela N

To: Jencso, Emily D; Rose, Marcus F

ca Puttere, Jennifer M; ; Howell, Tami L; Davis, Jordan R; Marks, Todd R
Subject: Re: WBE RHA

Date: Monday, December 4, 2023 3:25:46 PM

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

Thave a few comments in the WBE RHA for Marcus, and a placeholder for me to update a map a two. Jason reviewed/edited Chapters 1-3, and Chapter 4 Standard 1 sections, but did not review Standard 3. He
(Jason) did not participate/contribute to Standard 3 but I did ask him to review it just to have another pair of eyes. Maybe he will get around to looking at it this week but I am guessing not.

T have not entered in my bajillion references. I will work on that this week and may ask Brandon to help me out (it would be beneficial for him to start getting some MS Word skills and familiarize himself with some
of the references).

Marcus - I went through and accepted edits from Jason etc. that had not been revi d pted. [ am ing we may have some issues with table/figures cross references throughout still. I will be on AL
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
491 N John 6Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116
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From: Wade, Jessica A

To: Davis, Jordan R; Jencso, Emily D; Schuller, Pamela N; Rose, Marcus F
Cc: Puttere, Jennifer M; Howell, Tami L; Marks, Todd R

Subject: RE: WBE RHA

Date: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 6:30:10 AM

Attachments: image002.png

Good morning —

Thank you Emily and Marcus! We all know how incredibly hard you both have been working on this
assessment. | am really excited to see your work. This is a big piece that is just about to the finish
line. And agree, you should be proud.

| agree with Jordan’s synopsis. Although a painfully long process, the determination needs to be
drafted before the EA is started. | suppose we should be talking about how long that will take and to
start figuring out timelines for that in early 2024. Pam, is this determination on your priority sheet
yet?

Jessica Wade

Bureau of Land Management

West Desert District/Salt Lake Field Office
Field Manager

O: 801-320-8350

NATIONAL SYSTEM OF PUBLIC LANDS
U.5. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT

From: Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>

Sent: Monday, December 4, 2023 3:57 PM

To: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>; Schuller, Pamela N <pschulle@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F
<mrose@blm.gov>

Cc: Puttere, Jennifer M <jputtere@blm.gov>; Wade, Jessica A <jwade@blm.gov>; Howell, Tami L
<thowell@blm.gov>; Marks, Todd R <tmarks@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: WBE RHA

Pam et al.
I think it best that we get through the land health steps before looking at the EA. I
would want to have a final draft of the land heath completed and a draft of the

determination before jumping back into the NEPA compliance.

My rational for this is we would want to make sure that there are no major changes
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NATIONAL SYSTEM OF PUBLIC LANDS

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT





through the review process for the LHA/determination. [ am wanting the
determination to be the driver for our alternatives. I think this was part of the issue we
ran into with the decision issued in 2020 where our land health docs were being edited
along with the EA. What that caused is that our docs were not in alignment with each
other. If we could work to avoid that with our current process is what [ would hope for.
I really do not want to go through these again.

Jessica can of course jump in and give us her leaders intent on the process and we will
follow her lead on it. But at least you have an idea of where my thought process is.

Thank you,

NATIONAL SYSTEM OF PUBLIC LANDS Jordan Davis

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
OF LAND M

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

I was wondering if the managers now want us (Marcus, Emily and I) to take certain
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
but I am guessing not.

I have not entered in my bajillion references. I will work on that this week and may ask
Brandon to help me out (it would be beneficial for him to start getting some MS Word skills
and familiarize himself with some of the references).

Marcus - [ went through and accepted edits from Jason etc. that had not been
reviewed/accepted. | am guessing we may have some issues with table/figures cross references
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

To: Jencso, Emily D; Puttere, Jennifer M; Rose, Marcus F
Subject: Re: WBE wildife updates

Date: Thursday, August 31, 2023 4:04:11 PM
Attachments: Qutlonk-Sew1vds2 png

Thanks for the update.

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

Sent: Thursday, August 31, 2023 2:36 PM

To: Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Puttere, Jennifer M <jputtere@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Subject: WBE wildlife updates

Jordan, I just wanted to update you. I asked Marcus to move the executive summary meeting a few days. I am still writing, I gave Jennifer an update this morning and she was supportive and aware of my schedule. I
lost 2 days last week to computer nonsense, and today has been lost to meetings, data errors, and WRI completion reports as well as project submissions for the next . I am plugging away and can provide a

more detailed update as needed (you can see how much has been written etc in the doc).

best,
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

To: Howell, Tami L

Subject: RE: West Box Elder

Date: Monday, December 18, 2023 6:41:00 AM
Tami,

Once the managers finish reviewing the land health document, we would need a few weeks to make
edits and corrections, depending on how many edits are needed. Then the plan was to send it out to
permittees for comments to see if they have any additional data or information/comments they
would like to add. | believe the initial plan that Jordan and | talked about was just to send the land
health assessment out and then send a separate determination of causal factors. However, | think it
would be worth a discussion to talk about finishing the causal factor analysis and sending the land
health assessment and causal factor analysis together. That may paint a more complete picture of
needed action moving forward.

Thanks,

Marcus

From: Howell, Tami L <thowell@blm.gov>
Sent: Friday, December 15, 2023 11:47 AM
To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Subject: West Box Elder

Marcus,

Can you give me an idea of a timeline/next steps for the land health assessment once we have it
reviewed? We talked about it yesterday and it will be my main focus after the first of the year to
finish reviewing it.

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

Subject: RE: West Box Elder allotments RAP data
Date: Wednesday, June 28, 2023 10:04:43 AM
Attachments: WBE RAP Trend Graphs 6.28.docx

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

Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2023 4:53 PM

To: Burgess-Conforti, Jason R <jburgessconforti@blm.gov>
Subject: West Box Elder allotments RAP data

Hello Jason,

Here is a spreadsheet with all of the RAP data for BLM lands within the five west box elder
allotments from 2006 to 2021. The data for each allotment is in its own tab. If you can throw
together graphs for these allotments like you made with the RAP data previously that would be very
helpful.

Thanks!

Marcus Rose

Rangeland Management Specialist
Bureau of Land Management

Salt Lake Field Office

Office: 801-320-8352

Cell: 385-600-1049
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Precip	2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	21.69	15.17	18.16	19.54	16.45	16.62	16.07	12.46	20.170000000000002	20.010000000000002	22.71	20.45	15.16	22.24	14.3	15.38	Bare Ground	2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	12.23	13.34	15.76	13.42	10.68	10.75	12.97	14.79	13.02	12.14	10.53	9.01	8.15	9.81	11.12	13.9	Litter	2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	13.48	15.56	14.49	12.62	12.49	13.22	17.38	14.64	11.81	11.16	11.11	10.97	11.57	11.01	14.54	15.31	

Cover (%)





Annual Precipitation (in)









Precip	2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	22.36	15.7	16.940000000000001	18.54	17.53	16.95	16.89	12.73	20.87	21.4	24.6	21.19	16.670000000000002	24.07	15.14	16.190000000000001	Perrenial Forb/Grass	2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	34.9	34.11	33.61	35.950000000000003	36.130000000000003	36.270000000000003	27.67	32.03	34.270000000000003	38.39	42.35	42.86	38.94	40.18	36.549999999999997	32.54	Shrub	2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	35.020000000000003	32.19	29.44	33.07	37.04	31.48	34.630000000000003	31.43	34.06	31.55	26.67	27.1	30.84	29.76	31.72	33.1	Annual Forb/Grass	2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	2.17	4.04	6.43	3.77	2.71	3.69	2.81	4.83	5.58	6.58	9.4700000000000006	8.2899999999999991	10.85	8.57	4.28	3.59	Tree	2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	2.0499999999999998	1.2	1.04	1.35	1.96	1.87	2.5299999999999998	2.09	2.88	3.42	2.33	2.4700000000000002	1.83	2.52	3.13	1.88	

Cover (%)





Annual Precipitation (in)









Precip	2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	22.36	15.7	16.940000000000001	18.54	17.53	16.95	16.89	12.73	20.87	21.4	24.6	21.19	16.670000000000002	24.07	15.14	16.190000000000001	Bare Ground	2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	8.81	9.69	10.88	9.25	6.97	8.2100000000000009	10.050000000000001	10.56	8.66	6.91	6.14	5.82	5.52	6.64	7.92	10.25	Litter	2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	10.93	12.84	12.02	10.36	10.38	11.47	14.54	12.3	9.17	8.57	8.41	8.68	8.57	8.15	11.44	13.23	

Cover (%)





Annual Precipitation (in)










From: Rose, Marcus F

To: Burgess-Conforti, Jason R

Subject: RE: West Box Elder allotments RAP data
Date: Wednesday, June 28, 2023 11:28:00 AM
Thanks!

From: Burgess-Conforti, Jason R <jburgessconforti@blm.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, June 28, 2023 10:02 AM

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
To: Puttere, Jennifer M

ce ‘Davis, Jordan R; Wade, Jessica A; Rose, Marcus E
Subject: Re: West Box Elder Permit Renewal

Date: Tuesday, October 3, 2023 8:04:30 AM

Good morning Jennifer,

The due date Jessica gave in our check in meeting last week was 3 weeks which was the 16th. I had requested more because of being out for Lars and I being sick, and knowing that I will be out days over the next
weeks (Columbus day is a holiday, school is closed 12/13=AL, and I have a handful of doctors appts). I will focus my time on just my sections and will be complete by the 16th.

Status update

1.We re-rated Lynn allotment last week. We both need to make sure those changes are reflected throughout that section.

2.Tam working on the mig bird and big game analysis currently. I have a meeting with Jennifer Timmer and a biostatistician from IMBCR about the assessment area and mig bird trend data this week.
3. I am working on the fence and livestock water analysis. Lucas is making me some maps, I am working on graphics/figures, and the write up.

4. Formatting the doc - I will work on my sections.

The entire document needs to be reviewed (particularly chapter 4) for one voice. I will focus a reread on my sections and Chaps 1-3 since I primarily wrote those.

5, The Landcart supplemental report needs to be QC'd and added as an appendix at some point. Right now it is 5 separate documents.

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

Sent: Monday, October 2, 2023 4:00 PM

To: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>

Cc: Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Wade, Jessica A <jwade@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Subject: RE: West Box Elder Permit Renewal

| was of the understanding you needed additional weeks starting from the time we spoke. Let me know of your progress! Thanks.
Jennifer Puttere

ssistant Field Manager, Renewables — Salt Lake Field Office
st Desert District

Bureau of L Management
491 North John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, Utah 84116

k Phone: 801-320-8364
Cell Phone: 385-471-1518

From: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>

Sent: Monday, October 2, 2023 3:32 PM

To: Puttere, Jennifer M <jputtere@blm.gov>

Cc: Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Wade, Jessica A <jwade@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: West Box Elder Permit Renewal

1 believe that is the same due date as previously. But noted.

Emily Jencso

SLFO Wildlife Biologist CWB®
Cell: (801) 599-0954

Office: 801-320-8300

Salt Lake Field Office BLM
491 N John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116

From: Puttere, Jennifer M <jputtere@blm.gov>

Sent: Monday, October 2, 2023 3:10 PM

To: Jencso, Emily D <ejencso@blm.gov>

Cc: Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Wade, Jessica A <jwade@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>
Subject: West Box Elder Permit Renewal

In response to your request for an extension for West Box Elder, the new Due Date is Monday, October 16 by close of business.
Thanks!

Jennifer Puttere

Assistant Field Manager, Renewables — Salt Lake Field Of
West Desert District

Bureau of L

Salt Lake City, Uta
Desk Phone: 801-320-8364
Cell Phone: 385-471-1
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From: Williams, Nancy N

To: Fletcher, Dan T

Cc: Neff, Brandon D

Subject: Re: Wildlife Escape Ramps

Date: Thursday, November 30, 2023 4:07:40 PM

We've got 11 in Randolph right now. Brandon is going to get a count of new troughs and we'll
figure it out from there. | also noticed yesterday that some of the troughs (don't have a
complete inventory) in Woodruff Pastures don't have ramps, so we will need ramps for those
too.

Nancy N Williams

Wildlife Biologist

Salt Lake Field Office
Bureau of Land Management
491 North John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116
(801) 320-8357

From: Fletcher, Dan T <dfletche@blm.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, November 29, 2023 6:35 AM
To: Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Wildlife Escape Ramps

That sounds great. If you could find out how many are in Randolph and then estimate how
many more are needed we could go ahead and get them purchased.

From: Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, November 29, 2023 6:34 AM
To: Fletcher, Dan T <dfletche@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Wildlife Escape Ramps

Those look like the ones we have been using. We've got some in the shop at the Randolph
Field Station. | can see how many we've got up there.

Nancy N Williams

Wildlife Biologist

Salt Lake Field Office
Bureau of Land Management
491 North John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116
(801) 320-8357



mailto:nwilliam@blm.gov
mailto:dfletche@blm.gov
mailto:bneff@blm.gov

From: Fletcher, Dan T <dfletche@blm.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, November 28, 2023 4:31 PM
To: Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>
Subject: Wildlife Escape Ramps

Nancy,

Do you have a specification for wildlife escape ramps that you would like to use in UBR? |
have used the following and they work pretty good.
https://www.rainmakerwildlife.com/products/escape-ramps

| am just thinking as the water troughs are being inventoried for escape ramps that we may as
well get them installed at the same time. The new troughs will need ramps as well. If we
could estimate how many ramps are needed we could go ahead and submit a PR to get them
purchased. Dependent on what kind of ramps you want and how much they cost | would
expect that they could be purchased with a credit card.

Let me know your thoughts.
Cheers,

Dan Fletcher

Restoration Landscape Project Manager
Utah State Office (Duty Station - Cedar City)
Bureau of Land Management

435-865-3049

435-590-4834


https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.rainmakerwildlife.com%2Fproducts%2Fescape-ramps&data=05%7C01%7Cbneff%40blm.gov%7Cf17f7d2f1e0f42662be208dbf1f9252d%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638369824597043933%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=uYgd%2BD7E6myp%2B788%2Fk4oDWitLfJH6ieL8wgCCBRoQ6s%3D&reserved=0

From: Bullock, Jerry D

To: Fletcher, Dan T; Neff, Brandon D; Williams, Nancy N; Howell, Tami L
Subject: Re: Wildlife Escape Ramps
Date: Wednesday, January 17, 2024 1:25:13 PM

I'm including Tami. Last | talked to her they were working out who would make the purchse
since | just recently bought $10,000 worth. It wouldn't be a split purchase, but if someone else
were to purchase them it would help minimize the appearence of a split purchase.

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

Sent: Wednesday, January 17, 2024 1:18 PM

To: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>; Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>; Bullock, Jerry D
<jdbulloc@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: Wildlife Escape Ramps

All,

| was wondering if the Purchase Request for 50 wildlife escape ramps was completed in
December.

If so can | get a copy of the signed PR for the project record.

Thanks,

From: Fletcher, Dan T <dfletche@blm.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 3:58 PM

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

Lets go ahead and change the PR to 50. | guess the biggest issue that | can see is this may be
deemed a split purchase unless the order was completed last Fiscal Year. Talk to Jerry and let
me know.

Thanks,

From: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 3:51 PM

To: Fletcher, Dan T <dfletche@blm.gov>; Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Wildlife Escape Ramps

Dan,

It's a moot point now | suppose. | just talked with Jerry and he said this order was from a
couple months ago and has been reconciled in the system now. | will go through with the
order of 100 ramps. Never hurts to have extras. Sorry for any confusion.

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

Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 3:44 PM

To: Fletcher, Dan T <dfletche@blm.gov>; Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Wildlife Escape Ramps

Dan,

Yes this is a previous order, not the one you have attached to this thread. Would you want the
whole amount changed to the code?

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

Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 3:41 PM

To: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>; Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Wildlife Escape Ramps

Brandon,

So this is a previous order that was received? If so I think I want Jerry to change a portion to
the code I provided earlier today. Pretty imperative we spend IRA funding where we can
especially if escape ramps are used in UBR.

Cheers
Get Outlook for i0OS

From: Fletcher, Dan T <dfletche@blm.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 3:38:35 PM

To: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>; Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Wildlife Escape Ramps

Brandon,

I identified IRA funding on the PR form is that the code that was used. Everyone is in a panic
about funding being utilized quickly so I am glad this is done.

Let me know.
Thanks
Get Outlook for iOS

From: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 3:20:48 PM

To: Fletcher, Dan T <dfletche@blm.gov>; Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Wildlife Escape Ramps

Dan,

FYI, Jerry just ordered and we have received 120, 24" escape ramps from rainmaker. These
were purchased through wildlife program funding (Nancy, please correct me if | am wrong). In
light of this information, unless they are dedicated to other projects (Nancy?), do you still
want to continue with this new order for ramps? Also, Jerry said that that many ramps came


https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Faka.ms%2Fo0ukef&data=05%7C02%7Cbneff%40blm.gov%7Cd25c3671216f4e4b45ca08dc179a67b6%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638411199127589239%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=O0kVI%2BRJ4prCBAud7kUP6fnV1PPXqbKVyRitN2IfQyo%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Faka.ms%2Fo0ukef&data=05%7C02%7Cbneff%40blm.gov%7Cd25c3671216f4e4b45ca08dc179a67b6%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638411199127597955%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=pIi7lzYgSXmAtATC3m%2FQtFxvqq4PEUA2ava6rt5Mdr4%3D&reserved=0

to $9,920, so a PR may not be needed since it would be under $10,000.

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

Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 1:48 PM

To: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>; Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Wildlife Escape Ramps

Brandon,

Sounds good thanks for doing that. Whoever completes the order for you be sure to let them
know if the ladders need to go to Randolph. They will need to provide rainmaker with the
delivery address. Also sounds like SLFO has a deal with a local that takes delivery of materials.
They will need some lead time if they are taking delivery and putting in the Randolph yard.

Cheers

From: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 1:42 PM

To: Fletcher, Dan T <dfletche@blm.gov>; Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Wildlife Escape Ramps

Dan,
| will go ahead and take this on. Appreciate you prepopulating most everything!

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

Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 12:56 PM

To: Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>; Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Wildlife Escape Ramps

Hi,

Would one of you mind taking the lead on getting the attached PR signed by your Supervisor
and have someone purchase the escape ramps on a credit card? You will need to complete
the requestor name and phone number fields. Also since it is a supply purchase over $5,000
you will need to have the property clerk sign. | have used 24" down here the majority of the
time, but be sure to verify the size prior to ordering.

Let me know.

Thanks,

From: Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 12:25 PM

To: Fletcher, Dan T <dfletche@blm.gov>; Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Wildlife Escape Ramps

Seems like that should be plenty.

Nancy N Williams

Wildlife Biologist

Salt Lake Field Office
Bureau of Land Management
491 North John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116
(801) 320-8357

From: Fletcher, Dan T <dfletche@blm.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 11:36 AM

To: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>; Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Wildlife Escape Ramps

Hi,



So does 100 bird ladders sound reasonable? If we order to many they can always be used in
other locations as determined necessary.

Let me know.

Thanks,

From: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>

Sent: Friday, December 1, 2023 10:07 AM

To: Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>; Fletcher, Dan T <dfletche@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Wildlife Escape Ramps

Yes, it sure was. I'm thinking that it was some kind of disconnect between BLM and the
contactor(s) that wrote the EA. Also, sometimes you don't see the weaknesses/issues of
complex grazing systems until full implementation.

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

Sent: Friday, December 1, 2023 9:35 AM

To: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>; Fletcher, Dan T <dfletche@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Wildlife Escape Ramps

Let me get an estimate of what we need for Woodruff Pastures.

And BTW, 28 new troughs on top of what we've already added? That seems like there was
crazy underestimate of trough needs when Three Creeks was being written.

Nancy N Williams

Wildlife Biologist

Salt Lake Field Office
Bureau of Land Management
491 North John Glenn Road
Salt Lake City, UT 84116



(801) 320-8357

From: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>

Sent: Friday, December 1, 2023 9:21 AM

To: Fletcher, Dan T <dfletche@blm.gov>; Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Wildlife Escape Ramps

Hello,

There are 28 new trough locations proposed with a maximum of 3 troughs/location. However,
some locations may not take 3 troughs, but we should plan for the maximum just to cover all
bases in my opinion. Does this information give you enough to calculate escape ramps?

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
Sent: Thursday, November 30, 2023 4:14 PM
To: Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>
Cc: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Wildlife Escape Ramps

Okay sounds good | think a good solid ball park on the number of escape ramps that are
needed would suffice. They do not cost to much and it would be great to go ahead and start
obligating funding.

From: Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>
Sent: Thursday, November 30, 2023 4:07 PM
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


https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.rainmakerwildlife.com%2Fproducts%2Fescape-ramps&data=05%7C02%7Cbneff%40blm.gov%7Cd25c3671216f4e4b45ca08dc179a67b6%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638411199127604567%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=43j36vl4uN%2BlnFckMWK5BuPe9XsfjKvCD1SS8KDRuNc%3D&reserved=0

From: Bates, Thomas H

To: Rose, Marcus F
Subject: Re: WWP and PEER lawsuit regarding the use of FLPMA 402 c
Date: Tuesday, October 17, 2023 4:32:56 PM

Spence sent that to me earlier today. Thanks!

Tom Bates

Rangeland Management Specialist
Tuscarora Field Office

BLM Elko District

3900 East Idaho Street
Elko, NV 89801

(775) 753-0389
tbates@blm.gov

From: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, October 17, 2023 9:28 AM

To: Bates, Thomas H <tbates@blm.gov>

Subject: FW: WWP and PEER lawsuit regarding the use of FLPMA 402 c

| don’t know if you have seen this or not. Hope all is well!

From: Bass, Alan J <abass@blm.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, October 17, 2023 10:04 AM

To: Reese, John C <jcreese@blm.gov>; Carlile, Jason G <jcarlile@blm.gov>; Kitchen, Lara J
<lkitchen@blm.gov>; Caso, Paul E <pcaso@blm.gov>; Carling, Jed J <jcarling@blm.gov>; Davenport,
Burke W <bdavenport@blm.gov>; Lefevre, Logan J <ljlefevre@blm.gov>; Carpenter, Dusty L
<dlcarpen@blm.gov>; Reese, Ryan S <rsreese@blm.gov>; Bauer, Stephanie G <sbauer@blm.gov>;
Gubler, Carson K <cgubler@blm.gov>; Bybee, Jason M <jmbybee@blm.gov>; Vollmer, Vernen
(Aaron) <vvollmer@blm.gov>; Bayles, Douglass M <dbayles@blm.gov>; Tucker, Dylan W
<dwtucker@blm.gov>; Bullock, Jerry D <jdbulloc@blm.gov>; Decker, Travis W <tdecker@blm.gov>;
Reese, Jeffrey M <jmreese@blm.gov>; Stewart, Sean L <s2stewar@blm.gov>; Taylor, Brian G
<b65taylo@blm.gov>; Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>; Carson, Haydn D <hcarson@blm.gov>;
Tallerico, Johny S <jtallerico@blm.gov>; Whitaker, David M <dwhitake@blm.gov>; Rose, Marcus F
<mrose@blm.gov>; Andreason, Wyatt D <wandreason@blm.gov>; Reese, Brandt L
<breese@blm.gov>; Moulton, Michael C <mcmoulton@blm.gov>; Eliason, Chad E
<celiason@blm.gov>

Cc: Robbins, Joshua C <jcrobbin@blm.gov>

Subject: WWP and PEER lawsuit regarding the use of FLPMA 402 ¢

| don't think | ever sent this out and said | would on the last Utah range call.


mailto:tbates@blm.gov
mailto:mrose@blm.gov
mailto:dbroockmann@blm.gov

Alan Bass

Utah Range Program Lead
Bureau of land Management
abass@blm.gov

Office 801-539-4149

Cell 385-222-1783

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This message (including any attachments) is intended exclusively for the individual or entity to
which it is addressed. This communication may contain information which is proprietary, privileged or otherwise legally
exempt from disclosure.


mailto:abass@blm.gov

From: Johnson, Drusus (Dru)

To: Seiders, Erin S

Subject: Re: Young Bro Pipeline Data

Date: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 2:03:53 PM
Hi Erin,

It was great to chat with you today about the updated pipeline route, and making me aware of
the GIS update

To summarize, | will be looking up the OHV designations for the following locations:
Township 9, Range 12, Sections 5, 6, 7, 8, 17, 32.
Township 8, Range 11, Sections 9, 15, 16.

In the meantime,

Can you please ask Collin to send us a shapefile path of this project's pipeline. | have your
zipfile but with the most recent GIS update it will be difficult for me to upload it into a project,
whereas a shapefile path would be easiest to load into my working NEPA template.

Thank you!

From: Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, March 15, 2023 3:54 PM

To: Johnson, Drusus (Dru) <dajohnson@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Young Bro Pipeline Data

Hey Dru,

Sorry just now seeing this response back from you, its been a busy day.... Why don't we try to
chat next week
sometime, if that could work for you...

Erin Seiders, Range Technician
BLM Salt Lake Field Office
2370 S. Decker Lake Blvd

West Valley City, UT 84119
Desk: 801-977-4334

From: Johnson, Drusus (Dru) <dajohnson@blm.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, March 15, 2023 10:48 AM

To: Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>

Subject: Re: Young Bro Pipeline Data

Hi Erin, thanks for the update. If they are now using a designated route there would be very


mailto:dajohnson@blm.gov
mailto:eseiders@blm.gov

few concerns from my end. Just making sure they can allow traffic through in increments if
crews may be blocking the road during construction. Although I don’t anticipate much traffic
in that area.

If you have any questions and you’d like to chat today (Wednesday) feel free to give me a call
on teams. I’1l be in the field tomorrow (Thursday) at Knolls.

Hope this information helps!

From: Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>

Sent: Monday, March 13, 2023 4:02:22 PM

To: Johnson, Drusus (Dru) <dajohnson@blm.gov>
Subject: Fw: Young Bro Pipeline Data

Dru,

| am forwarding this email from Colin to you because it has the latest shapefiles for the
Young Pipeline. | was able to go out with the permittee and 'fine tune' the pipeline route. The
IDTeam Check List under the "Travel/Transportation section in the areain T.9N.,R. 12 W,,
Section 4, will now be following a designated route.

| also have a few questions under Protective Measures in the DNA under
Travel/Transportation...maybe we could reach out via Teams on Wednesday or Thursday ?

Sincerely,

Erin

Erin Seiders, Range Technician
BLM Salt Lake Field Office
2370 S. Decker Lake Blvd

West Valley City, UT 84119
Desk: 801-977-4334

From: Powers, Colin M <cpowers@blm.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, January 31, 2023 2:11 PM
To: Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>
Subject: Young Bro Pipeline Data

Erin,

| think the file they shared back is an older version. | am attaching the most recent data we worked
on in this zip. It contains the pipeline we edited, the well/trough/tank locations and the potential
tank locations.



| believe this should be everything, but if there is anything missing | can find or recreate it.

Colin Powers

GIS Specialist

BLM- West Desert District
491 John Glenn Road

Salt Lake City, UT 84116



From: Powers, Colin M

To: Seiders, Erin S; Johnson, Drusus (Dru)
Subject: Re: Young Bro Pipeline Data
Date: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 3:09:25 PM

No problem, here is the locations, the data and maps are in this project folder.
\\bIm\dfs\loc\EGIS\UT\GisData\ut\sl\projects\Range\Projects\Young Brothers Pipeline

Colin Powers
GIS Specialist
BLM- West Desert District

From: Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 3:05:40 PM
To: Powers, Colin M <cpowers@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Young Bro Pipeline Data

Oh thank you Colin, in there also a path that Dru can follow to get this data ?

Erin Seiders, Range Technician
BLM Salt Lake Field Office
2370 S. Decker Lake Blvd

West Valley City, UT 84119
Desk: 801-977-4334

From: Powers, Colin M <cpowers@blm.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 2:37 PM

To: Seiders, Erin S <eseiders@blm.gov>; Johnson, Drusus (Dru) <dajohnson@blm.gov>
Subject: Fwd: Young Bro Pipeline Data

Erin, here is the latest data we worked on.

Colin Powers
GIS Specialist
BLM- West Desert District

From: Powers, Colin M

Sent: Tuesday, January 31, 2023 2:11:59 PM
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


mailto:cpowers@blm.gov
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

Subject: Re: Young Pipeline Bid

Date: Monday, March 20, 2023 6:16:04 AM
Attachments: Outlook-xmb4mv1l.png

Erin,

The bid sounds reasonable to me.

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
Sent: Friday, March 17, 2023 10:23 AM

To: Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>
Subject: Young Pipeline Bid

Jordan,

It sounds like Arie received four bids, with the lowest from LA Neal Consulting, LLC. They have
a bid for $ 19,775.10

(~S68/acre). The approximate finish date would be 6/30/23. Let me know if this all sounds
reasonable, and | will give

the go ahead from our end.

Thank you,
Erin

Erin Seiders, Range Technician
BLM Salt Lake Field Office
2370 S. Decker Lake Blvd

West Valley City, UT 84119
Desk: 801-977-4334


mailto:jordandavis@blm.gov
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https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.blm.gov%2Futah&data=05%7C01%7Ceseiders%40blm.gov%7C3bb8d67aa8a249e2273f08db293cdcad%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638149113638142139%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=kjNY32xuDMwnVe1bQNufSg8VMYu%2FcPb7EGKNI1tw0%2Fs%3D&reserved=0

NATIONAL SYSTEM OF PUBLIC LANDS

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT





From: Rose, Marcus F

To: Rose, Marcus F
Subject: Emigrant pass rain gauge was knocked over when I checked it on March 28, 2023.
Date: Monday, July 10, 2023 11:57:15 AM

Emigrant pass rain gauge was knocked over when I checked it on March 28, 2023. I put it
back on the post and filled it up to 1.25 inches with antifreeze and mineral oil.

Get Outlook for i0OS
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From: Neff, Brandon D

To: Howell, Tami L

Subject: Fw: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: Dry hollow pipeline Cumberland
Date: Tuesday, December 12, 2023 4:10:51 PM
Attachments: Pipeline.PNG

Last trouah locations.PNG
Dry Hollow Pipeline Extension.pdf

Tami,

Just forwarding this to you from Taylor Payne. This is the project he is talking about that is on
Utah BLM lands, but grazing management is overseen by the Kemmerer FO. | would suppose
this to be a supervisor/upper management decision between the two FO's.

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

Sent: Wednesday, December 6, 2023 11:23 AM

To: Neff, Brandon D <bneff@blm.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: Dry hollow pipeline Cumberland

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on
links, opening attachments, or responding.

Here are some maps of the proposed Dry Hollow Pipeline. This is the Cumberland Allotment
that is administered by the Kemmerer Field Office. This project is located in Utah behind the
Cumberland Mountains. The pipeline would be attached to an existing well and existing
pipeline on SITLA land. It is approx. 4.5 miles with 5 or 6 trough locations.

- Taylor

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: Jared Davis <jared137@gmail.com>
Date: Wed, Dec 6, 2023 at 9:57 AM
Subject: Dry hollow pipeline Cumberland
To: Taylor Payne <taylorpayne@utah.gov>
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Taylor,
Here are the maps for this project.
Thanks

Jared

Taylor Payne | NW Region GIP Coordinator

435-757-6115 mobile
Website | Twitter | Eacebook | Instagram

®

How was your experience with the Utah Department of Agriculture and Food? Tell us about your

experience through this 2-minute survey!
Follow this link to the survey:

Take the Survey

Or copy and paste the URL below into your internet browser:

https://utconcierge.qualtrics.com/jfe/form/SV_cUTRcsmWFEFj4rjg


https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fag.utah.gov%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cbneff%40blm.gov%7Cc02a865681de418611a508dbf688aad4%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638374839151139052%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=VqZKSs0ZI0xW1u1YoyvdosJ4pnx7MYusvJFmhpl26Xo%3D&reserved=0
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From: Davis, Jordan R

To: Seiders, Erin S

Subject: Fw: [EXTERNAL] Goring Actual Grazing Use Report
Date: Tuesday, April 11, 2023 9:08:11 AM
Attachments: Outlook-mmncozhe.png

NATIONAL SYSTEM OF PUBLIC LANDS
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
'OF LAND MANAGEMENT

BUREAU

Jordan Davis

Assistant Field Manager

Salt Lake Field Office|Bureau of Land Management -Utah
p: (385) 278-3618

w: www.blm.gov

From: Sherie Goring <sheriegoringl3@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, April 10, 2023 8:11 PM

To: Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Goring Actual Grazing Use Report

This email has been received from outside of DOI - Use caution before clicking on
links, opening attachments, or responding.

I have attached the actual grazing use report. Any questions, please let me know.
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
Date: Thursday, August 31, 2023 12:56:21 PM

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

Date: Tuesday, September 12, 2023 3:14:25 PM
Attachments: BearRiverFenceMod12SEP2023.pdf

BearRiverFencesModLatestData.zip

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

\}

BearRive... |
Priority

T

7 .

| o
'w""'d’ i i

gl f af L oz : f

CCep Yool

i | o AL i A
Ni’ﬂgnfalﬁ(%erg%aphlc Society, |-subeq









BearRiverFencesModLatestData.cpg
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BearRiverFencesModLatestData.dbf

			globalid			DateSurvey			LivestockS			Notes			user_name			Shape__Len			CreationDa			Creator			EditDate			Editor			Sources			Status			FeatureID			FenceMater			BottomWire			TopWireTyp			TopWireHei			TopWireDis			SurveyMeth			DataQualit			Visibility			BottomWi_1			FenceType_			FencePostM			LENGTH_GEO			Year_Compl			FenceType			WildlifeMo			ClipLength			Priority			ClipRev			ClipRev2			{217f2c74-90c6-4270-af72-ae9035d97298}			07/02/2020			Good									1.47054581967e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						8.78807182746e-01			0									6.47706980308e-01			wild			6.47706906601e-01			6.47706980308e-01


			{a7f7ad67-1eba-49a5-b3fa-cdd8e9448441}			06/23/2020			Good			flagging onto strand only; watched sheep cross through						3.53561015952e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best			Sgflagging			0			Barbed_fence						2.42556150870e-01			0									2.44242683347e-01			2			2.44242655632e-01			2.44242683347e-01


			{853c0b27-659e-4acd-8840-02b6a3c61a19}			06/23/2020			Good			flagging on top only; 6 strand						5.20682834214e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best			Sgflagging			0			Barbed_fence						2.87173548210e+00			0									2.87519289197e+00			1			2.87519256651e+00			2.87519289197e+00


			{25a85bef-116f-4683-aac8-612d8103fb6d}			06/23/2020			Good									6.22072218851e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best			Sgflagging			0			Barbed_fence						4.02694423836e-01			0									3.23585743681e-01			2			3.23585706978e-01			3.23585743681e-01


			{45f32753-c6ad-493a-8aba-338e0f2ec7b9}			06/24/2020			Good									4.08389001779e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						2.15056552011e+00			0									2.15159738499e+00			2			2.15159714157e+00			2.15159738499e+00


			{9d4b35d7-7c69-4f6b-a59f-f5071898eafe}			07/07/2020			Good			5 and 6 strand						7.47585290252e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best			Sgflagging			0			Barbed_fence						3.86691312526e-01			0									3.86587021016e-01			1			3.86586977247e-01			3.86587021016e-01


			{c518ef07-3938-4232-8869-3d343953bf48}			07/07/2020			Good									1.83456627159e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best			Sgflagging			0			Barbed_fence						1.01537932449e+00			0									1.00320686439e+00			2			1.00320675070e+00			1.00320686439e+00


			{ce7298e5-150d-47cf-ac0e-0e55f7256b85}			07/08/2020			Good									3.16235139698e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.78233173082e+00			0									1.71530603830e+00			wild			1.71530584340e+00			1.71530603830e+00


			{b569a3f3-93b4-4e3c-8fcc-f2d0d7ee0999}			07/08/2020			Good									9.06184981577e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						5.17127824454e-01			0									4.27755818161e-01			wild			4.27755769546e-01			4.27755818161e-01


			{bd94cabb-d759-40da-ac74-cb3e7d774155}			07/08/2020			Good									5.18927746183e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						3.08538995276e-01			0									1.44457728284e-01			wild			1.44457711856e-01			1.44457728284e-01


			{a260f60c-1005-408a-8546-9b51ab1437ac}			07/09/2020			Good			Near the forest.						8.53482388708e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						5.82029664648e-01			0									5.69268035361e-01			low			5.69267970533e-01			5.69268035361e-01


			{fe7f7b6a-7a22-414c-ac3c-d3e2ad3a9e93}			07/09/2020			Poor			Near the forest						1.35588013786e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						7.02870082329e-02			0									8.95825355585e-02			low			8.95825253907e-02			8.95825355585e-02


			{408262c9-c92d-418a-8e39-be695e936849}			07/09/2020			Fair			Near the forest						2.20912221927e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.14484621501e-01			0									1.15760546231e-01			low			1.15760533094e-01			1.15760546231e-01


			{34029fae-e8ba-4b47-9f01-6290ced8223a}			07/09/2020			Poor									1.72626690255e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						8.94887228716e-02			0									1.08423070119e-01			2			1.08423057813e-01			1.08423070119e-01


			{d977e933-026e-4238-8796-70fb8e95ade0}			07/07/2020			Good									1.14761751839e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						7.92008910589e-01			0									8.34334826318e-01			high			8.34334731590e-01			8.34334826318e-01


			{dbdbf89a-64e4-413b-87df-2443f1609715}			07/08/2020			Good									8.76600159034e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						5.41864590854e-01			0									5.68616871139e-01			wild			5.68616806411e-01			5.68616871139e-01


			{f503548d-3497-46b8-a612-c62b7334b4be}			07/09/2020			Good			5 strand up to the cattle corral. Lacks pronghorn habitat.						1.22963644803e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						8.48400244603e-01			0									8.24228098092e-01			low			8.24228004258e-01			8.24228098092e-01


			{a8c951de-a5b0-4b7c-a429-9232a822d03c}			07/09/2020			Good			5 strand. Lacks pronghorn habitat.						1.17412513585e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						6.09203494189e-01			0									6.39923283306e-01			low			6.39923210722e-01			6.39923283306e-01


			{4d830de2-e49c-40ab-b790-1ee8bd55964f}			07/13/2020			Good			5 strand						4.53129315893e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						2.37010578332e+00			0									2.42385975192e+00			1			2.42385947599e+00			2.42385975192e+00


			{285ab1fe-84a4-494b-9318-7700c0199162}			07/13/2020			Good									1.05818881643e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						6.84725808877e-01			0									7.39034769387e-01			2			7.39034684994e-01			7.39034769387e-01


			{bbb4caef-7058-4830-b6b7-bef1d6e6fb31}			07/14/2020			Good									2.51083170415e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.36274108072e+00			0									1.34039664956e+00			2			1.34039649685e+00			1.34039664956e+00


			{b5ddd71c-7f03-432b-a6ef-2b0267050908}			07/14/2020			Fair			repair needed on about the first 18 feet						1.39986016870e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						7.33936943861e-01			0									7.33847580937e-01			2			7.33847497405e-01			7.33847580937e-01


			{908c17f0-010a-448c-9324-726b88490c8f}			07/14/2020			Good									3.65352656797e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						2.09166023348e+00			0									2.09751785588e+00			2			2.09751761690e+00			1.36303653852e+00


			{88f8c113-3070-43b9-8424-e2e42d6b58ea}			07/14/2020			Good			5 strand at sections; mostly 4						2.98113991162e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.81411096925e+00			0									1.73430307495e+00			1			2.43997397801e+00			2.43997425606e+00


			{0306198e-9378-4298-8dbc-e666f311694b}			07/14/2020			Good									2.54360168270e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best			Sgflagging			0			Barbed_fence						1.40655781704e+00			0									1.40777588900e+00			high			7.02104615704e-01			7.02104695525e-01


			{d2615c21-a5b3-411c-af60-e854d9b6ddaf}			07/14/2020			Good			photo 2: tilted fence, possible for cattle to get over?						5.99311535673e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						3.60263661455e+00			0									3.56146772686e+00			high			2.39625551614e+00			2.39625578907e+00


			{c7354826-8109-4208-9521-4b395aebc746}			07/15/2020			Good									1.41824571220e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						9.78384387477e-01			0									1.02168288638e+00			2			1.02168276966e+00			1.02168288638e+00


			{da3676f4-fb39-4637-b15b-212527667a4e}			07/15/2020			Good									1.37871424772e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						7.52581723037e-01			0									7.56814198956e-01			high			5.58261633329e-01			5.58261696833e-01


			{3af2e83f-b205-41e2-8f4a-5ce8e7fc9e76}			07/15/2020			Good									3.28721498036e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.73858622475e+00			0									1.73944242380e+00			high			1.73944222598e+00			1.73944242380e+00


			{89d729d0-d908-4cc6-8ea2-32d65ea817db}			07/15/2020			Good									8.57177436833e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						4.85077298555e-01			0									4.79300136201e-01			2			4.79300081551e-01			4.79300136201e-01


			{ad9e6e67-1916-4c5c-b39a-f7b66aab3e51}			07/15/2020			Good									1.24518166673e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						7.03146879982e-01			0									6.99823416827e-01			2			6.99823337011e-01			6.99823416827e-01


			{9dfd9d7e-bc1f-4498-8605-7b303e2f027d}			07/20/2020			Good			6 strand						6.71862020207e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						3.49497740479e-01			0									3.51730186748e-01			high			3.51730146756e-01			3.51730186748e-01


			{e8116ec2-5520-4c70-95cf-78e8633bc22f}			07/20/2020			Good			6 strand. Stuart pasture fence that is being removed.						9.69313141194e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						5.05725322278e-01			0									5.09704382636e-01			remov			5.09704324704e-01			5.09704382637e-01


			{a5627763-4149-408e-8d91-6386c5feb136}			07/20/2020			Good			6 strand. Stuart pasture fence that is being removed.						6.11771006344e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						3.19001746621e-01			0									3.23409002657e-01			remov			3.23408965901e-01			3.23409002656e-01


			{a8ec364b-e30d-4b86-9077-3ab591c1c48f}			07/20/2020			Good			6 strand						2.28583983337e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.19043760315e+00			0									1.19894799869e+00			high			1.19894786238e+00			1.19894799869e+00


			{fedf6dc2-6702-45ea-a95e-f3b21b7c2e4d}			07/20/2020			Good			Stuart pasture fence that is being removed.						3.00054968009e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.89197598211e-01			0									2.46301659012e-01			remov			2.46301630946e-01			2.46301659014e-01


			{6fc5c60b-9cfc-47b5-bba8-145cf337667e}			07/20/2020			Good			Stuart pasture fence that is being removed.						7.43973656764e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						4.61196596342e-01			0									4.89947045209e-01			remov			4.89946989392e-01			4.89947045207e-01


			{cfe760d6-56c9-4029-afe3-f77f4baebff1}			07/20/2020			Good			Stuart pasture fence that is being removed.						1.03823248108e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						5.85737013082e-02			0									9.01964306076e-02			remov			9.01964203471e-02			9.01964306088e-02


			{d663af1a-839f-4d86-a648-d288acc5ceee}			07/20/2020			Good			Stuart pasture fence that is being removed.						5.73767277817e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						3.03353866350e-01			0									3.24180557571e-01			remov			3.24180520723e-01			3.24180557571e-01


			{59317cf9-a1ef-49ca-a310-86a8c8fa50b0}			07/20/2020			Good			Stuart pasture fence that is being removed.						3.25561228907e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.75035621992e-01			0									2.11893558635e-01			remov			2.11893534543e-01			2.11893558635e-01


			{4d1f3cb3-e4ed-47e9-ab1a-27a95c94eff9}			07/20/2020			Good			Stuart pasture fence that is being removed.						3.64056822664e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.91314385441e-01			0									2.43887875677e-01			remov			2.43887847957e-01			2.43887875677e-01


			{43227122-f45d-4668-a66c-550b2017e730}			07/20/2020			Good			Stuart pasture fence that is being removed.						2.88732156631e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.50598201037e-01			0									1.89696370987e-01			remov			1.89696349428e-01			1.89696370986e-01


			{69a1a8d5-a0a5-44e4-8de8-c945d218f716}			07/21/2020			Good									2.89082189415e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.84065970047e+00			0									1.86751999149e+00			high			1.86751977976e+00			1.86751999149e+00


			{044bb4d1-166f-4332-8f2f-38b891b264c8}			07/21/2020			Good			Top strand only						2.39661093407e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best			Sgflagging			0			Barbed_fence						1.25574974160e+00			0									1.17711062910e+00			high			1.17711049597e+00			1.17711062910e+00


			{56bb2583-63f4-49c3-a4bf-d31d22e303cb}			07/21/2020			Good									4.08687629627e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						2.36595248995e+00			0									2.19936108763e+00			high			1.62620478338e+00			1.62620496737e+00


			{29b57382-98b7-4521-98e0-bc9265bfcbc6}			07/21/2020			Good			bottom wire occasionally more than 18" above ground						1.77416918654e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.21448785522e+00			0									1.22706147115e+00			high			1.22706133201e+00			1.22706147115e+00


			{86278844-3a62-4c81-83bd-85eae0dcf29e}			07/21/2020			Good									3.86144043046e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						2.17669211987e-01			0									1.85105782559e-01			2			1.85105761624e-01			1.85105782559e-01


			{84ef4177-fe6b-40a8-a3e0-66c6c645fd8d}			07/21/2020			Good									1.11026388071e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						6.41947954905e-02			0									1.33333816789e-01			2			1.33333801709e-01			1.33333816789e-01


			{7dd73e60-1aa7-46fb-a72c-00318c48eae4}			07/21/2020			Poor			cows inside enclosure on 8/17/2020						3.10968042596e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.83925774743e-01			0									1.33333816789e-01			2			1.33333801709e-01			1.33333816789e-01


			{5e7331e0-6895-46ed-ab13-d7eedcea1411}			07/21/2020			Good									1.21385167336e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						6.58036076429e-02			0									1.01010038157e-01			2			1.01010026736e-01			1.01010038157e-01


			{d9497957-a34f-4aac-9317-38ece11d8a5d}			07/21/2020			Good			wood poles						1.11145158751e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wood									0			0			Walking			Best						0			Rail_fence						6.08081045315e-01			0									4.81558792354e-01			low			4.81558737915e-01			4.81558792354e-01


			{7e66b28b-927f-416a-bad3-7887b0920e45}			07/21/2020			Good			6 strand						1.87630495164e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						9.93621227581e-02			0									1.01010038157e-01			1			1.01010026736e-01			1.01010038157e-01


			{4c76b7fc-3df2-4995-8db1-4c02e27acaec}			07/21/2020			Good			4 and 5 strand						2.91130062419e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.59432803788e-01			0									1.85105782559e-01			1			1.85105761624e-01			1.85105782559e-01


			{237e2ec9-698f-4011-8671-cecec8041c8b}			07/22/2020			Poor			Post and strands gone						1.99394211375e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.03081296818e+00			0									1.26210753416e-01			2			1.26210739137e-01			1.26210753416e-01


			{f60b3fb4-24f1-402c-a289-161adcc0b982}			07/22/2020			Good			Top strand only with some missing						5.41123854785e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best			Sgflagging			0			Barbed_fence						2.79885398863e-01			0									3.06590591297e-01			2			3.06590556582e-01			3.06590591297e-01


			{a7d90260-2e83-4179-ae7b-c7fcd4c000b8}			07/22/2020			Good									1.03227170581e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						7.12404561454e-01			0									7.13621704544e-01			2			7.13621623435e-01			7.13621704544e-01


			{16d872dc-eea3-476b-8ee0-16078e6daded}			07/29/2020			Good			Dead pronghorn.						1.76943538742e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.19753045134e+00			0									1.19248989353e+00			high			1.19248975730e+00			1.19248989353e+00


			{552ef042-11ac-4515-8f1f-eb18506706dc}			12/30/1899			Fair			Woven wire						5.63937821152e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									WovenWire						Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			WovenBarbed_fence						3.20680624285e-01			0									2.26229017325e-01			1			2.26228991526e-01			2.26229017325e-01


			{542c6dd3-3cb6-4456-9a49-ef8af4a4522d}			07/29/2020			Good									1.53133161588e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.01355601539e+00			0									9.64017631884e-01			2			9.64017521748e-01			9.64017631884e-01


			{b6f8bd6b-2a7f-46ea-b9fa-b09b0bda4d53}			07/29/2020			Good			Woven wire						4.49140444964e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									WovenWire						Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best			Sgflagging			0			WovenBarbed_fence						2.65364632787e-01			0									1.79083872106e-01			wild			1.79083851730e-01			1.79083872106e-01


			{153b8834-8c00-46f9-b76d-4535113d0b63}			07/29/2020			Good									1.72284419060e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best			Sgflagging			0			Barbed_fence						1.10266969026e+00			0									1.10567317165e+00			wild			1.10567304547e+00			1.10567317165e+00


			{701cacaa-e201-4eca-8181-937913ccbe46}			07/29/2020			Good									3.28869118440e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.82010639541e+00			0									1.86068819190e+00			wild			1.86068798000e+00			1.86068819190e+00


			{6a6ef725-1469-4717-993d-18ce7d6b8dd3}			07/29/2020			Good									2.51828439506e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.67854622013e-01			0									2.26878320015e-01			wild			2.26878294113e-01			2.26878320015e-01


			{5382870c-50af-4334-81ec-e8696c6fc45e}			08/03/2020			Good									3.88625326035e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						2.68205770674e-01			0									3.43367566174e-01			2			3.43367527177e-01			3.43367566174e-01


			{2573e69d-748f-4303-aecc-b5120db0f369}			08/04/2020			Good			Dead pronghorn.						1.45674559122e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						9.10563346477e-01			0									8.65007979672e-01			high			8.65007880889e-01			8.65007979672e-01


			{641d3300-f725-4c7c-ac8e-0710d51389b9}			08/05/2020			Good									2.86136234678e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.56323212926e+00			0									1.55534615610e+00			high			2.07982356141e+00			2.07982379795e+00


			{a75d1d83-287f-4493-be27-5fdc940f5786}			08/10/2020			Good			Dead pronghorn. Highway 39						1.05135446401e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						6.62429811646e-01			0									6.79043503026e-01			1			6.79043425472e-01			6.79043503026e-01


			{7aa63d54-7ace-42b5-9d6d-b315b0a772da}			08/12/2020			Fair			Lacks pronghorn habitat						3.40269829022e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						2.34821479038e-01			0									2.34704901301e-01			low			2.34704874624e-01			2.34704901301e-01


			{1550d124-b82c-4f7d-a2cf-22b516876050}			08/11/2020			Good									5.22214184566e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						3.46705652960e-01			0									3.93602761806e-01			wild			3.93602716862e-01			3.93602761806e-01


			{92abefb0-38a6-4b0a-8c89-5c58a8ce0715}			08/12/2020			Good									4.16475881624e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						2.23877551304e+00			0									2.22617594819e+00			high			2.22617569573e+00			2.22617594819e+00


			{455171b7-2817-489b-9fc8-4a345a27dd0b}			08/12/2020			Good									3.48535403896e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						2.40435878774e+00			0									2.40463200922e+00			high			2.06876909956e+00			2.06876933508e+00


			{1f1b753e-239b-44d8-963c-27de178bd89d}			08/12/2020			Good			Lacks pronghorn habitat						4.14064577752e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						2.85737973466e-01			0									2.81199024909e-01			low			2.81198992954e-01			2.81199024909e-01


			{03a0e7f0-796a-4151-92d5-d7360b6500f9}			08/12/2020			Good									2.08107507019e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.07738212835e+00			0									1.08221263162e+00			wild			1.08221250890e+00			1.08221263162e+00


			{5942d943-a960-4912-8036-5bcce2abe064}			08/12/2020			Good									1.33706766447e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best			Sgflagging			0			Barbed_fence						6.92191946508e-02			0									1.01309255453e-01			wild			1.01309243964e-01			1.01309255453e-01


			{916d1d0c-e70a-49e0-8f5a-e4e65879e02e}			08/12/2020			Good									2.95528431421e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best			Sgflagging			0			Barbed_fence						1.60284012279e-01			0									1.55159992099e-01			wild			1.55159974498e-01			1.55159992099e-01


			{68875049-1196-47c8-809f-99b3c67aa3ec}			08/12/2020			Good									1.53778146846e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						8.69438306053e-02			0									1.45716911916e-01			wild			1.45716895369e-01			1.45716911916e-01


			{0d14a2b7-cd0f-4848-8e27-b902f2d53031}			08/12/2020			Good									2.19169618059e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.22879237384e-01			0									1.51631085765e-01			wild			1.51631068547e-01			1.51631085765e-01


			{8a5765a3-0b99-4188-ae4e-11e451702eb1}			08/12/2020			Good									1.14025958482e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best			Sgflagging			0			Barbed_fence						6.49011560837e-01			0									6.74958092046e-01			wild			6.74958015391e-01			6.74958092046e-01


			{1a81e4bb-7889-4eea-a544-443f2a06aa53}			08/12/2020			Good									1.20354124718e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best			Sgflagging			0			Barbed_fence						6.79141218315e-01			0									7.02814680543e-01			wild			7.02814600742e-01			7.02814680543e-01


			{5461c5ba-8d44-4ae5-807a-a9e17c1d2c9a}			08/12/2020			Good									1.82895684637e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						9.47054178173e-02			0									9.34787953179e-02			wild			9.34787847168e-02			9.34787953179e-02


			{58b7373e-1ee5-4140-b5cd-990b6eb8a318}			08/12/2020			Good									1.62246936831e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best			Sgflagging			0			Barbed_fence						8.40139226684e-02			0									8.36848367676e-02			wild			8.36848272778e-02			8.36848367676e-02


			{13beb7c5-a99e-468e-9990-e0e654154c24}			08/12/2020			Good									4.09931922845e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						2.40061599516e+00			0									1.38138477377e-01			wild			1.38138461711e-01			1.38138477377e-01


			{004dd202-02c8-4c1a-abe3-2f411302c62a}			08/17/2020			Good			Lacks pronghorn habitat.						1.44535212832e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						7.47749822633e-01			0									7.70920979431e-01			low			7.70920892333e-01			7.70920979431e-01


			{24522175-335a-4e3e-8f2e-5e4110fa540b}			08/17/2020			Good									3.97995003261e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						2.06891330534e-01			0									2.09548293852e-01			2			2.09548270174e-01			2.09548293852e-01


			{2f09e3e6-1579-4631-a752-96b7f18f673b}			08/17/2020			Good									6.35269853828e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						3.56406271991e-01			0									3.65489091608e-01			2			3.65489050239e-01			3.65489091608e-01


			{bb4a718e-77a8-4575-8bd7-3dfe22e85968}			08/17/2020			Good			Lacks pronghorn habitat						3.91059272950e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						2.51792541543e+00			0									2.51023986750e+00			low			2.51023958280e+00			2.51023986750e+00


			{b03c0714-ec0d-4a20-bee4-e5fce9cd726a}			08/17/2020			Good									1.93101845613e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.18078965133e+00			0									1.14824959163e+00			low			1.14824946147e+00			1.14824959163e+00


			{4b737079-8d7e-436c-b629-d7abc5c1b81c}			08/18/2020			Poor			cows in enclosure 8/17/2020. Lacks pronghorn habitat.						4.95939463751e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						2.62480333081e-01			0									2.34698620357e-01			low			2.34698593839e-01			2.34698620357e-01


			{cdf2a450-a51b-4fe3-9cd6-66aa3f6cfb4d}			08/18/2020			Good									9.75780399792e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						5.25316843666e-01			0									3.58404655586e-01			2			3.58404614994e-01			3.58404655586e-01


			{a9bbe202-0545-4a69-900d-435a4cb24fc1}			08/18/2020			Good			Lacks pronghorn						4.91587604029e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						3.30249641203e-01			0									3.25433500387e-01			low			3.25433463427e-01			3.25433500387e-01


			{bb5b939e-2f20-46e7-a051-3591da583ac4}			08/18/2020			Good			sage grouse spotted. HIghway 30.						9.55472939322e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						6.09352256135e-01			0									1.16932456988e-01			low			1.16932443793e-01			1.16932456988e-01


			{eb540c42-383a-410e-9a41-43af83a252f7}			08/18/2020			Good			Woven wire						5.50148274204e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									WovenWire						Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			WovenBarbed_fence						3.47656254757e-01			0									3.51123030521e-01			1			3.51122990756e-01			3.51123030521e-01


			{e92bb92d-d99c-4d4f-99a5-2bce04438056}			08/18/2020			Good									7.12439750684e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						4.91667264736e-01			0									4.91290976567e-01			2			4.91290920866e-01			4.91290976567e-01


			{471bae4e-ea05-4729-996d-18246f55ff31}			08/18/2020			Poor			Lacks pronghorn habitat						1.10730390973e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						7.48006658734e-01			0									7.35196439324e-01			low			7.35196356010e-01			7.35196439324e-01


			{6b9ee43f-29d0-4f58-9e1d-082ed6f3e86f}			08/18/2020			Good									1.53970143279e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.04711029233e-01			0									1.23792616759e-01			low			1.23792602728e-01			1.23792616759e-01


			{66e64819-f40e-4bee-9494-3e9e45a1ea29}			08/18/2020			Good									3.20464498093e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.94249557939e-01			0									1.94482027189e-01			2			1.94482005180e-01			1.94482027189e-01


			{1ff95449-0214-4577-9fb1-19ef9a661e32}			08/18/2020			Fair									2.51711850193e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.31784053937e-01			0									1.33318301613e-01			2			1.33318286555e-01			1.33318301613e-01


			{acf9b119-4231-4da9-91c3-8dc69f2f116d}			08/17/2020			Good			Lacks pronghorn habitat						7.13850320315e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						4.18630284846e+00			0									4.06163993076e+00			low			4.06163947113e+00			4.06163993076e+00


			{be0c3c73-534f-49e5-9853-590f42934a6e}			08/17/2020			Good			Lacks pronghorn habitat						4.12748694399e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						2.23988138681e+00			0									2.15347396775e+00			low			2.15347372417e+00			2.15347396775e+00


			{3cb59782-3679-4f0f-946a-9bd5d4d44262}			08/18/2020			Fair			2nd picture: gap in top two wired. Lacks pronghorn habitat.						4.81920892178e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						2.52177563333e-01			0									2.34698620357e-01			low			2.34698593839e-01			2.34698620357e-01


			{31bd5ef6-ae0a-42ad-85d0-aca7b39a7790}			08/18/2020			Good									5.98317457402e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						3.13426687278e+00			0									3.04628893277e+00			high			3.04628858786e+00			3.04628893277e+00


			{554ace01-024b-4b77-99fa-20ac92e9f4df}			08/18/2020			Good			HIghway 30						1.03541677088e-01			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						5.74528671677e+00			0									5.71297664073e+00			low			5.71297599479e+00			5.71297664073e+00


			{65671a9d-a113-4665-944d-51b7da7068d5}			08/18/2020			Good			Woven wire						2.72096577386e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									WovenWire						Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			WovenBarbed_fence						1.87763667001e-01			0									2.49916770062e-01			1			2.49916741752e-01			2.49916770062e-01


			{1db4ff77-0e80-442c-ab25-452f7a48a13c}			08/18/2020			Good			Woven wire						3.85572584986e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									WovenWire						Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			WovenBarbed_fence						2.49015205195e-01			0									2.64077361504e-01			1			2.64077331609e-01			2.64077361504e-01


			{82b07aad-8267-4f31-a31c-c7565dfb0787}			08/19/2020			Good									2.28936720460e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						18			Barbed_fence						1.46389855491e+00			0									1.43098980922e+00			2			1.43098964664e+00			1.43098980922e+00


			{bfc863b9-814c-421e-8d23-7cdc8ffd56ab}			08/20/2020			Good									2.82610241205e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.77720559147e+00			0									1.77335469415e+00			wild			1.77335449218e+00			1.77335469415e+00


			{b2eda2d5-eb55-46c3-8d55-4c0d76c807d8}			09/22/2020			Good									3.40953157655e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/06/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.79033028127e+00			0									1.78790271177e+00			2			1.78790250991e+00			1.78790271177e+00


			{6604596f-b226-42b0-96cd-68ea2f33d6b6}			09/22/2020			Good									4.00127980851e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/06/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						2.06735297580e-01			0									2.03043753328e-01			2			2.03043730405e-01			2.03043753328e-01


			{d4216a4b-85b8-44d1-bbf1-6fa4da4b3b56}			09/22/2020			Good									2.04282517892e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/06/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						1.08989397474e+00			0									1.05383529275e+00			2			1.05383517366e+00			1.05383529275e+00


			{5ca8c5cb-ba5e-4896-8eac-1a4c1f95c400}			09/23/2020			Fair			HIghway 30						1.21439365723e-01			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/06/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						6.66415516098e+00			0									5.33553483621e+00			low			5.33553423286e+00			5.33553483621e+00


			{abb42437-4100-4072-8b44-b948efe19a61}			09/23/2020			Good			6 strand						5.33243737938e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/06/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best			Sgflagging			0			Barbed_fence						2.84056923961e+00			0									2.86133600304e+00			high			2.96661064002e+00			2.96661097538e+00


			{843f2067-ffe8-4282-80e2-d11f2929cdcf}			10/05/2020			Good			Lacks pronghorn habitat						5.88644748509e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/06/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						4.06228222148e-01			0									4.39007979722e-01			low			4.39007929783e-01			4.39007979722e-01


			{ab00f1fa-2369-4833-b32c-52f2331636fc}			10/05/2020			Good			Lacks pronghorn habitat						5.60904639077e-03			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/06/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						3.64498407400e-01			0									3.18157445033e-01			low			3.18157408838e-01			3.18157445033e-01


			{d2615c21-a5b3-411c-af60-e854d9b6ddaf}			07/14/2020			Good			photo 2: tilted fence, possible for cattle to get over?						5.99311535673e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						3.60263661455e+00			0									3.56146772686e+00			wild			1.16521180501e+00			1.16521193779e+00


			{56bb2583-63f4-49c3-a4bf-d31d22e303cb}			07/21/2020			Good									4.08687629627e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						2.36595248995e+00			0									2.19936108763e+00			2			5.73156055262e-01			5.73156120271e-01


			{908c17f0-010a-448c-9324-726b88490c8f}			07/14/2020			Good									3.65352656797e-02			02/11/2021			dwr.rhiannajames			06/14/2022			dwr.zacharyclausen			BLM									Wire			Barbed_type			Barbed_type			0			0			Walking			Best						0			Barbed_fence						2.09166023348e+00			0									2.09751785588e+00			wild			2.09751761690e+00			7.34481317366e-01
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

To: Rovyal, Kevin A

Subject: Fw: Bear River wildlife priority fences for modification/replacement
Date: Tuesday, August 29, 2023 12:32:15 PM

Attachments: Outlook-wicea4kv.png

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

Sent: Tuesday, August 29, 2023 11:45 AM

To: Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>; Williams, Nancy N <nwilliam@blm.gov>
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
mailto:kroyal@blm.gov
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and next to the Woodruff allotment. I am not seeing a purpose for the fence there and
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

\3

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

To: joeellis014@gmail.com

Subject: FW: Grouse Creek Allotment information

Date: Thursday, September 28, 2023 7:49:00 AM

Attachments: Permittees, dates and brands on Grouse Creek allotment.docx

Grouse Creek allotment.pdf

From: Rose, Marcus F

Sent: Thursday, August 24, 2023 1:04 PM
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
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Walker Family Farm L.P
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Delroy Kimber (Leased by Milt Oman for 2023)
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Della Ranches, Jay or Diane Tanner (4302577), Jay or Diane Tanner(4304469)
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Simplot Land and Livestock
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Clay Blanthorn
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Grouse Creek Livestock association

I believe Jay Tanner/ Della Ranches runs cows on Grouse Creek under the Grouse Creek Livestock association.
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KN Double Cone Ranch LLC
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Warr Land and Livestock (4304822)
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Warr Land and Livestock (4304979)
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From: Jencso, Emily D

To: Burgess-Conforti, Jason R; Rose, Marcus F; Mellon, Cassie D
Subject: Fw: New Report : Setting Benchmarks with Terrestrial AIM Data
Date: Thursday, September 7, 2023 8:12:22 PM

Report ValeBenchmarks pdf

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

To: NAIMPractitioners <blm-NAIMPractitioners@blm.gov>

Subject: New Report : Setting Benchmarks with Terrestrial AIM Data

Hello AIM Practitioners,

A report about setting benchmarks with terrestrial AIM data to evaluate a land health standard was just released. It is attached to this email and you may access it and an R workflow internally here:| Standard 1
Benchmarks

The report accompanies a presentation from the 2023 AIM Practitioners' Webinar Series by Jennifer Nelson and Monica Ketcham. In June, they described how their team developed benchmarks for evaluating
OR/WA land health standard 1 in the Cow Lakes Allotments and Assessment Area. To set benchmarks, they used the approach outlined in Appendix 2 of Technical Note 453 with data from terrestrial AIM plots in

Level IV Ecoregions. You can find the presentation in the AIM Practitioners Webinars Stream Channel: https://web.microsoftstream.com/channel/dd68a714-62¢5-4b1b-b52a-2efd117b0001

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

The Great Basin Institute advances environmental research, education, and service throughout the west. The institute promotes applied research and ecological literacy through community engagement and agency partnerships to support
national parks, forests, open spaces and public lands.

AIM Links:

bim.gov/aim

External user access fo Terrestrial and Lotic AIM Data

Internal user access to Terrestrial and Lotic AIM Data

Terrestrial Geospatial Gateway

Lotic Geospatial Gateway
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An Application of Technical Note 453: Using Terrestrial
AIM Data to Set Benchmarks in the Vale District Office,

Oregon

By: Monica Ketcham?, Alex Laurence-Traynor!, Nika Lepak?, Jennifer E. Nelson?, Robert

Pattison?!, and Anya Tyson?
1. Bureau of Land Management
2. Great Basin Institute

3. The Nature Conservancy

Corresponding author: Jennifer E. Nelson, Great Basin Institute, jenelson@blm.gov

Photo of Mahogany Mountain Allotment within the Cow Lakes Assessment Area and the Owyhee River by Monica Ketcham,
BLM.
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Background

Land Health Assessments & Evaluations in Oregon/Washington

Within the Bureau of Land Management (BLM), land health standards and guidelines provide structure
to the agency’s directive to maintain the health of public lands (43 CFR 4180 and BLM Manual and
Handbook 4180). Specifically, the purpose of the land health assessment (LHA) and evaluation process is
1) to assess the current ecological condition of BLM-administered lands by synthesizing available data
and information and 2) to evaluate whether current conditions are achieving regionally specified
standards. When one or more of these standards are not achieved, the BLM then 3) determines the
significant causes and proposes appropriate management changes (USDI 1995). Though the land health
process is mostly considered a critical precursor to public land decisions pertaining to grazing
management, land health standards often inform land management decisions pertinent to many other
landscape uses and values, such as fuels, recreation, and invasive species management actions.

Approved in 1997, the five Oregon/Washington BLM Standards for Rangeland Health are shown below
(USDI 1997; Appendix 1). In relation to each of these standards, BLM assesses current conditions and
evaluates whether these conditions are “achieving” or “not achieving” the standard, or where
applicable, “making” or “not making” significant progress towards regaining achievement of a standard.

Standard 1 - Watershed Function — Uplands: Upland soils exhibit infiltration and permeability
rates, moisture storage, and stability that are appropriate to soil, climate, and landform.

Standard 2 — Watershed Function — Riparian/wetland areas: Riparian-wetland areas are in
properly functioning physical condition appropriate to soil, climate, and landform.

Standard 3 — Ecological Processes: Healthy, productive, and diverse plant and animal
populations and communities appropriate to soil, climate, and landform are supported by
ecological processes of nutrient cycling, energy flow, and the hydrologic cycle.

Standard 4 — Water Quality: Surface water and ground water quality, influenced by agency
actions, complies with State water quality standards.

Standard 5 — Native, Threatened and Endangered (T&E), and Locally Important Species: Habitats
support healthy, productive, and diverse populations and communities of native plants and
animals (including special status species and species of local importance/significant importance
to Native American populations) appropriate to soil, climate, and landform.

Cow Lakes Assessment Area

Beginningin 2018, the Malheur Field Office of the Vale BLM District in Oregon has been working on land
health assessments and evaluations of the Cow Lakes Assessment Area (CLAA; Figure 1). The CLAA
occupies about 366,981 acres of public land located in central Malheur County, Oregon. This area is
bordered by Idaho to the east, the Main Fork Owyhee River to the northwest and west, and Jordan
Valley, Oregon and US-highway 95 to the south. It contains important habitat for Greater Sage-grouse
(Centrocercus urophasianus), including the Cow Lakes Priority Area of Conservation (PAC). This area was
prioritized forassessmentand evaluation because Greater Sage-grouse population declines and habitat
loss within the PAC tripped soft habitat and soft population triggers defined in Appendix J of the Oregon
Greater Sage-Grouse Approved Resource Management Plan Amendment (USDI 2015). Tripping two soft



https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/CFR-2013-title43-vol2/pdf/CFR-2013-title43-vol2-sec4180-1.pdf

https://www.blm.gov/programs/natural-resources/rangeland-and-grazing/rangeland-health/oregon-washington



triggers initiated adaptive management responses. In addition, there is a general need to assess land
health and review effects of current grazing managementas part of the grazing permit renewal process.

The CLAA is comprised of 19 allotments and 1 pasture that form four groups (Figure 1) that will be
evaluated with four LHAs, one for each group. To inform their assessments, the BLM Inter-Disciplinary
Team (IDT) spent several years assembling existing data sets and collecting field data, e.g., following
Describing Indicators of Rangeland Health (DIRH; Pellant et al., 2020) and Proper Functioning Condition
(PFC; Dickard et al, 2015) protocols. In terms of data availability, BLM Terrestrial Assessment, Inventory
& Monitoring (AlIM) sites are distributed throughout the area (Figure 2), but the area is otherwise
challenged by significant gaps in mapped soil units and ecological site information and inconsistent
and/or unavailable long-term trend monitoring data. Given this context, the IDT was interested in
establishing benchmarks from AIM data as a quantitative line of evidence to complement other
relatively qualitative data sets (DIRH, PFC, etc.) to inform their CLAA land health assessments and
evaluations.
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Figure 1. Map of the grouped allotments in the Cow Lakes Assessment Area located within the administrative boundary of the
BLM Oregon/Washington Malheur Field Office.
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Figure 2. Screenshot of the BLM National AIM Terrestrial Data Portal. The blue polygon represents the Cow Lakes Assessment

I :
Area, green circles depict available information from Terrestrial AIM plots as of April 2023, and yellow polygons define BLM

Ecological indicators can be calculated from data collected at terrestrial AIM plots. As a quantitative line
of evidence, these AIM indicators can be evaluated against benchmarks developed to provide

ecologically relevantinsightsinto degree of departure from specificland health standards. Indicators are
components of an ecosystem whose characteristics (e.g., presence or absence, quantity, distribution)
are used as an index of an attribute (soil/site stability, hydrologic function, and biotic integrity) that is
not feasible or too expensive to measure (Pellant et al., 2020). Good indicators for assessing standards
are relevantto the standards and noticeably change with management practices. It is best to use a suite
of indicators to adequately address questions posed by standards because no single indicator can fully
describe whether a site is meeting a standard (43 CFR 4180 and BLM Manual and Handbook 4180).
Benchmarks are indicator values or ranges of values that describe desired conditions that, when
exceeded, trigger adjustments to management practices, additional data collection, or indicate
management success (Webb et al., 2019). An indicator value that does not meet a benchmark can
indicate that desired resource conditions or objectives are not being met to achieve standards, in which
case the cause of the resource issue should be identified and addressed through appropriate

management actions (e.g., modification to a grazing plan). Technical Note 453: Guide to Using AIM and
LMF Data in Land Health Evaluations and Authorizations of Permitted Uses (Kachergis et al., 2020)

outlines a workflow on how to choose indicators and set appropriate benchmarks as a line of evidence
to assess current conditions and evaluate land health standards. In this report, we use the workflow to
referred to as standard 1.

setbenchmarks pertinent to Oregon/Washington standard 1) watershed function — uplands, hereafter





Appendix 1 of Technical Note 453 is a crosswalk among all land health standards and relevant AIM
indicators than can be used to evaluate them. AIM core indicators listed for standard 1 include bare
ground, proportion of large gaps between plant canopies, vegetation composition, vegetation height,
and soil aggregate stability (Figure 3). Other indicators that can be calculated from data collected at AIM
plots are also outlined. As lines of evidence to assess standard 1, the IDT chose core indicators: bare soil
cover (bare ground) and average soil stability rating (soil aggregate stability) and associated indicator:
total foliar cover (amount and distribution of plant cover).

Oregon and Washington

AIM Terrestrial and Lotic Core and Contingent Indicators
Associated with Land Health Standard

STANDARD #1—Watershed function - uplands: Upland seils exhibit infiltration and permeability rates, moisture storage, and stability
that are appropriate to soil, climate, and landform.

Indicators Associated with Land Health Standard

Protection of the soil surface from raindrop impact; detention of + Bare ground
overland flow; maintenance of infiltration and permeability and + Proportion of large gaps between plant canopies
protection of the soil surface from erosion, consistent with the +Vegetation composition
potential/capability of the site, as evidenced by the: +Vegetation height
+ Amount and distribution of plant cover (including forest » Soil aggregate stability
canopy cover)

+ Amount and distribution of plant litter

+ Accumulation/incorporation of organic matter

+ Amount and distribution of bare ground

+ Amount and distribution of rock, stone, and gravel
+ Plant composition and community structure

+ Thickness and continuity of A horizon

+ Character of microrelief

+ Presence and integrity of biotic crusts

+ Root occupancy of the soil profile

+ Biological activity (plant, animal, and insect)

+» Absence of accelerated erosion and overland flow

Soil and plant conditions promote moisture storage as evidenced by:
+ Amount and distribution of plant cover (including forest

canopy cover)
+ Amount and distribution of plant litter

+ Plant composition and community structure

+ Accumulation/incorporation of organic matter

Figure 3. Relevant AIM indicators that can help evaluate Oregon/Washington Rangeland Health Standard 1. Adapted from Table
Al in Technical Note 453: Guide to Using AIM and LMF Data in Land Health Evaluations and Authorizations of Permitted Uses.

We determined that when combined, scientific literature, screened data from terrestrial AIM plots, and
best professional judgement, represented the best available information to set benchmark values.
Figure 4 in Technical Note 453 outlines a hierarchical approach for determining suitable information to
set benchmarks values. The approach suggests beginning with policy and decision documents then
consider reference conditions and/or scientific literature (Figure 4). Standard 1 does not provide
guantitative thresholds and the relevant resources available for the CLAA (e.g., Resource Management
Plan, biological opinions, land treatment/reclamation objectives, and allotment management plans) are
also vague and/or non-quantitative. Thus, we considered reference conditions (e.g., ecological site
descriptions, predictive models, etc.) and scientific literature. Ecological site descriptions (ESDs) often
specify quantitative thresholds for bare ground cover, total foliar cover, and soil aggregate stability
ratings for proper ecological function in a soil type. Thresholds obtained from ESDs are ideal for setting

-4 -





benchmark values, but soils are not yet fully mapped across this region. Therefore, ESDs have not been
developedforthe entire assessment area. Without already-identified reference sites from the IDT, we
referred to information from screened AIM data, scientific literature, and best professional judgement
to set benchmark values for the CLAA.

Policy/Decision Documents

- RMP objectives

« Land health standards

- Biological opinions

- Allotment management plans

» Land treatment/reclamation objectives
+ Clean Water Act

( If no policy exists, or policy is vague, use one or more ofthese:)
|

4 R

“Reference” Conditions Peer Reviewed Articles
- Predictive models* » Habitat values

+ Percentiles/natural range of variability of regional reference sites . Recovery thresholds

- Ecological site descriptions** - Ecosystem services

- AlM/other monitoring data (preferably screened)

* Preferred for aguatics where available
** Preferred for terrestrial where available and sufficient quality

Best Professional Judgment

Figure 4. Example information sources that can be used to set benchmarks. Adapted from Figure 4 in Technical Note 453: Guide
to Using AIM and LMF Data in Land Health Evaluations and Authorizations of Permitted Uses.

Set Benchmarks

We followed the workflow outlined in Appendix 2 of Technical Note 453 to set benchmark values with
screened data from terrestrial AIM plots, findings from scientific literature, and best professional
judgement. The workflow outlines the following steps: 1. Identify AIM, LMF, and other comparable
monitoring data within a broad, geographically similar area (e.g., ecoregion, watershed), 2. Screen
monitoring data to identify plots that represent reference conditions and/or that are maintaining
ecological functions, 3. Group monitoring plots by geographic areas having similar climatic, topographic,
geologic, vegetation, and soil conditions (e.g., ecoregions, ecological site types, stream types), 4.
Visualize indicator values within each group using box plots or frequency distributions, and 5. To
establish benchmarks, select percentiles of the indicator value distribution. In this section, we
demonstrate how we completed each step to establish benchmarks for standard 1 in the CLAA.

Step 1. Identify AIM, LMF, and other comparable monitoring data within a broad geographically
similar area (e.g., ecoregion, watershed).

We chose the finest scale of ecoregions (Level IV) to delineate areas geographically similar to the
assessment area and identify reference AIM plots to set benchmarks (Thorson et al., 2003). Ecoregions
characterize areas by relative homogeneity in ecological systems, theirresponse to change, and primary
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land uses (Gallant et al., 1989). The BLM uses the Level Ill ecoregion framework (Omernik, 1987) as a
standard for broad-scale landscape assessments in rapid ecoregional assessments, which BLM managers
and partners use to meet the BLM’s multiple use and sustained yield mission (Toevs et al., 2011). We
determined Level IV ecoregions most accurately represented the ecological heterogeneity within the
CLAA and were broad enough in scale to capture sufficient AIM plots (at least 30 reference plots). Other
largescale mapping and characterization products considered were Disturbance Response Groups,
LANDFIRE, and Level Il Ecoregions.

Two level IV ecoregions, 80a Dissected High Lava Plateau and 80f Owyhee Uplands & Canyons, intersect
the assessment area (Figure 5). Both ecoregions are dominated by sagebrush grasslands and nested
within Level lll ecoregion 80 - Northern Basin and Range (Thorson et al., 2003). Ecoregion 80a (11,097
km?) spans the corner of southeastern Oregon, dips into northern Nevada, and extends into
southcentral Idaho and northeastern Nevada. Defining features of ecoregion 80a include alluvial fans,
rolling plains, and shear-walled canyons that are cut into extrusive rocks. Ecoregion 80f (3,2873 km?) is
smaller and lies north of ecoregion 80a in eastern Oregon and extends into southwest Idaho. Ecoregion
80f is characterized by deep, precipitous river canyons, barren lava fields, badlands, and tuffaceous
outcrops that are riddled by caves. It has higher stream density and water availability than in ecoregion
80a (Thorson et al., 2003).

We extracted data from terrestrial AIM plots in each ecoregion from the BLM Terrestrial AIM database
(https://blm.gov/aim/TerrestrialDataPortal). At the time of extraction in early 2022, data from 2,014 and
653 AIM plots were available in ecoregions 80a and 80f, respectively, from 2011 to 2020 (Table 1, Figure
5). The database includes a dataset collected by BLM and a dataset collected by the Natural Resource
Conservation Service for a component of the AlM strategy, the BLM Landscape Monitoring Framework
(LMF). Both datasets are collected with AIM data collection methods described in the Monitoring
Manual for Grassland, Shrubland, and Savana Ecosystems (Herrick et al., 2021). Hereafter, the use of
terrestrial AIM refers to both datasets unless specified.
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Figure 5. Level IV ecoregions 80a Dissected High Lava Plateaus and 80f Owyhee Uplands and Canyons (left) and terrestrial AIM
and LMF plots with data available to set benchmarks within each ecoregion (right).
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Table 1. Summary of terrestrial AIM and LMF plots with available data to set benchmarks by ecoregion.

Plot Ecoregion
Type 80a 8of
AlM 987 450

LMF 1,027 203
Total 2,014 653

Step 2. Screen monitoring data to identify plots that represent reference conditions and/or that
are maintaining ecological functions.

We screened the extracted data in two phases to identify reference plots that are more likely to
maintain proper upland watershed functions. In the first phase, we identified realistic thresholds to
screen plots for reference with percent cover values. We excluded plots containing 5% or more annual
grass cover and less than 9% biological soil crust (BSC) cover. In the second phase, we reviewed the
remaining plots in ecoregion 80f with photos and AIM indicators.

We selected a threshold of <5% annual grass cover because high invasive annual grass cover can
increase fire frequency and reduce cover potential for functioning native perennial species, which may
reduce a site’s ability to meet standard 1. High cover of invasive annual grasses like cheatgrass (Bromus
tectorum), medusahead (Taeniatherum caput-medusae), Ventenata (Ventenata dubia; i.e., north Africa
grass, wiregrass), and other non-native bromes can increase fire frequency in shrubland ecosystems
(D’Antonio and Vitousek, 1992). Shifts in fire frequency are known to change sagebrush density and
cover, altering habitat and triggering population declines for sagebrush obligates like the Greater sage-
grouse (Nelle etal., 2000; Coatesetal., 2015). Furthermore, Baker(2006) explains fire regimes are likely
significantly altered from their historical range in sagebrush ecosystems now dominated by cheatgrass.
Bradley et al. (2018) found fire probability increases rapidly in areas with 1 to 5% cheatgrass cover in the
Intermountain Western United States, and cheatgrass cover was greater than 15% across nearly one-
third of their study area in which the CLAA resides. In both ecoregions combined, the proportion of
annual grass cover measured at terrestrial AIM plots that is comprised of cheatgrass, medusahead, and
Ventenata is high (mean = 90.6%, standard deviation = 24.0%). We determined plots with 25% annual
grass cover, indicated by the AIM indicator, ‘AH_AnnGrassCover’, to not be meeting the definition of a
reference site based on the findings in Bradley et al. (2018).

We used 29% BSC cover as a reference site criterion because areas with low BSC cover are more likely to
have been impacted by anthropogenic disturbances and cheatgrass invasion. BSCs are comprised of
microorganisms (e.g., algae, cyanobacteria) and nonvascular plants (e.g., mosses, lichens) which help
facilitate properupland watershed functions by protecting soils from wind and water erosion. BSCs may
be sensitive to disturbance from grazing, recreation, and loss of native bunchgrasses (Ponzetti et al.,
2007, Root and McCune 2012). Ponzetti and McCune (2001) found exclosures in central and eastern
Oregon averaged 9.7% BSC cover as opposed to 6.9% outside the exclosures where active grazing
occurred. Based on their results, we used 9% cover of BSCs as a threshold for plot exclusion with the
assumption that plots with BSC cover of 29% are less likely to have been impacted by anthropogenic
disturbances and loss of native bunchgrasses. We calculated any-hit BSC cover with R package
terradactyl (McCord et al., 2022) in program R version 4.2.1 (R Core Team 2022) and data collected with
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the line-point intercept method at terrestrial AIM plots. We included moss, cyanobacteria, and lichen
hits when calculating BSC cover but not vagrant lichen. We did not exclude plots near anthropogenic
features like major roads, fences, and water developments based on recommendations by staff in
another office who found plots near those features may meet standard 1.

We applied the phase one screening criteria to the data in each ecoregion. In ecoregion 80a, 348 (17%)
plots met both phase one screening criteria. 693 (34%) and 246 (12%) plots did not meet the BSC cover
and exceeded the annual grass cover criteria respectively, and 726 (36%) plots met neither criterion. Of
the 653 plots in ecoregion 80f, 48 (7%) plots met both criteria, 91 (14%) plots failed the BSC cover
criterion, 126 (19%) plots exceeded the annual grass cover criterion, and 388 (59%) plots failed both
criteria (Table 2, Figure 6). This concluded phase 1 of screening.

Table 2. Summary of phase one screening results by ecoregion. Two criteria were applied to identify terrestrial AIM plots for
reference: <5%annual grass cover and 29% biological soil crust cover.

Ecoregion
Plot Type 80a 80f
<9% BSC Cover 693 (34%) 126 (19%)
>5% Annual Grass Cover 246 (12%) 91 (14%)
<9% BSC Cover & >5% Annual Grass Cover 726 (36%) 388 (59%)
Met Thresholds 348 (17%) 48 (7%)
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Figure 6. Map displaying phase one screening results in level 1V ecoregions 80a and 80f. Two criteria were applied to identify

terrestrial AIM plots for reference: <5% annual grass cover and 29% biological soil crust (BSC) cover. Red points are plots with

>5% annual grass cover, yellow points are plots with <9% biological soil crust cover, orange points are plots with >5% annual
grass cover and <9% biological soil crust cover, and blue points are plots that met both screening criteria.
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Figure 7. Photos from terrestrial AIM plots determined by BLM staff to be reference sites for BLM Oregon/Washington
Rangeland Health Standard 1 (top row), not reference (middle row), or are anomalous sites (bottom row) in ecoregion 80f.

We applied a second screening phase to ecoregion 80f. For every AIM plot that met both phase one
screening criteria, we generated a PDF summary that contained plot photos, plot characteristics (e.g.,
location, elevation), soil pit information, a list of detected species, and AIM indicator values. We also
extracted a spreadsheet from the Terrestrial AIM Data Portal with indicator values for all plots that met
phase one screening criteria. We used conditional formatting in Excel to flag data values that were
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below the 25" and above the 75" percentiles of values for each indicator listed in Table 3. The flagged
values were helpful to identify plots with extreme indicator values relative to the other plots. With plot
photos, we examined distribution of canopy gaps among plants and presence and abundance of
functional/structural groups. The photos made it easy for us to identify anomalous sites like juniper
stands and rock outcrops and visualize cover values from AlIM indicators (Figure 7). From the AIM data,
we relied mostly on species composition information and percent shrub and tall perennial grass cover
values to understand a site’s ability to retain snow and infiltrate. We also reviewed additional AIM
indicators outlined in Table 3. When we struggled to decide if a plot was meeting standard 1, we erred
on the side of inclusion. We categorized 35 plots as reference for proper upland watershed functions,
five plots as not reference, and eight plots as anomalous sites (e.g., juniper dominated, extraordinary
rock cover; Appendix 2).

Table 3. Definitions of terrestrial AIM indicators used to evaluate whether a site was meeting Oregon/Washington Rangeland
Health Standard 1 for reference.

AIM Indicator Description
AH_NonNoxAnnGrassCover % Cover of non-noxious annual grasses
AH_NonNoxPerenGrassCover % Cover of non-noxious perennial grasses
AH_NonNoxSubShrubCover % Cover of non-noxious sub shrubs
AH_NonSagebrushShrubCover % Cover of non-sagebrush shrubs
AH_NoxAnnGrassCover % Cover of noxious annual grasses
AH_NoxPerenGrassCover % Cover of noxious perennial grasses
AH_SagebrushCover % Cover of sagebrush
AH_ShortPerenGrassCover % Cover of short-statured perennial grasses
AH_ShrubCover % Cover of shrubs
AH_TallPerenGrassCover % Cover of tall-statured perennial grasses
Spp_Nox Noxious species present
Spp_Sagebrush Sagebrush species present
Spp_ShortPerenGrass Short-statured perennial grass species present
Spp_TallPerenGrass Tall-statured perennial grass species present

Instead of implementing a second screening phase to plots in ecoregion 80a, we subset plots by BLM
field office boundaries. Applying the second screening phase was effective in ecoregion 80f but also the
most time intensive step of the workflow. We decided it was not feasible to implement a second
screening phase to the remaining 348 plots in ecoregion 80a based on the time commitment to review
48 plots in ecoregion 80f. Because the geographic extent of ecoregion 80a was large, we excluded AIM
plots that did not occur in field offices that neighbored the Malheur Field Office and took extra
measures when selecting percentiles from the less screened data in step 5, instead. This resulted in 213
reference plotsin ecoregion 80a from the Malheur Field Office in Oregon, Owyhee Field Office in Idaho,
and Tuscarora and Humboldt River Field Offices in Nevada (Figure 8).

To avoid circular reasoning, it is recommended that the plots used to set benchmarks (i.e., ourreference
plots) be removed from the pool of plots to be evaluated against the benchmarks. Because our
reference plots were determined from a pool of plots at the larger, ecoregional scale rather than the
allotment or assessmentareascale, we agreed circular reasoning would be avoided and did not remove
reference plots when evaluating plots against benchmarks.
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Figure 8. Map of terrestrial AIM plots rated as reference for Oregon/Washington Rangeland Health Standard 1. in level IV
ecoregions 80a (dark blue points) and 80f (light blue points).

Step 3. Group monitoring plots by geographic areas having similar climatic, topographic,
geologic, vegetation, and soil conditions (e.g., ecoregions, ecological site types, stream types).
We did not stratify AIM plots into benchmark groups finerthan the scale of Level IV ecoregions because
stratifying further would result in insufficient plots in at least one stratum. Previous recommendations
suggest selecting percentiles from indicator distributions from no less than 30 reference plots. In
ecoregion 80f, 35 plots were rated as reference and stratifying further would result in less than 30

reference plots in at least one stratum. Thus, the Level IV ecoregions, 80a and 80f, were the benchmark
groups.

We used two-sided Kolmogorov-Smirnov tests (K-S tests) to assess whether reference plots were
representative of the ecoregion’s topography and elevation. For ecoregion 80f, we compared all
terrestrial AIM plots in the ecoregion with plots rated as reference. K-S tests indicated reference plots
were representative of AIM plots in ecoregion 80f with respect to percent slope (D = 0.16, p>0.05) but
represented areas with slightly higher elevation (D = 0.23, p<0.05). However, because the difference
between the average elevation of ecoregion 80f AIM plots (mean = 1,361 m) and reference plots (mean
= 1,454 m) was less than 100 meters and distribution shapes were similar (Figure 9), we decided this
difference was ecologically insignificant and the reference plots were representative of all AIM plots in
the ecoregion. In ecoregion 80a, we compared all terrestrial AIM plots in the ecoregion that occurred in
the Malheur, Owyhee, Tuscarora, and Humboldt River Field Offices with plots rated as reference.
Reference plots represented slightly gentlerslopes (mean = 4.15%) and slightly higher elevations (mean
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= 1,572 m) than all plots in neighboring field offices (mean slope = 5.62%; mean elevation = 1,501 m).
The K-S tests indicated the reference plots were not representative of the subset of AIM plots in
ecoregion 80a with respect to slope (D = 0.12, p<0.05) and elevation (D = 0.23, p<0.05). Despite this,
because of the slight differencesin means and similar distribution shapes (Figure 9), we again concluded
the results were ecologically insignificant and reference plots were representative of the ecoregion.
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Figure 9. Comparison of distributions of elevation (top row) and percent slope (bottom row) of terrestrial AIM plots in level IV
ecoregions 80a (left) and 80f (right) between all terrestrial AIM plots (grey bars) and plots rated as reference (blue bars) for BLM
Oregon/Washington Rangeland Health Standard 1. in each ecoregion.

We also calculated Pearson’s correlation coefficients to assess whether benchmark indicator values
were influenced by elevation and topography. For each ecoregion, we calculated a Pearson’s correlation
coefficient for each combination of the benchmark indicators with slope and elevation at all available
AlIM plots. Allindicators were weakly correlated (r <0.3) with slope and elevation in both ecoregions
(Table 4).

Table 4. Calculated Pearson’s correlation coefficients (r) among AIM indicators bare soil cover, total foliar cover, and average
soil stability rating with percent slope and elevation in level IV ecoregions 80a and 80f terrestrial AIM plots.

Ecoregion 80a Ecoregion 80f
Indicator Slope Elevation Slope Elevation
Bare Soil Cover -0.28 0.15 -0.28 -0.13
Total Foliar Cover 0.17 -0.02 0.15 -0.07
Soil Stability -0.02 -0.13  -0.09 0.07
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Step 4. Visualize indicator values within each group using box plots or frequency distributions.
We plotted distributions of the benchmark indicators at reference plots and visualized potential
benchmark ranges with the 10t, 25, 75", and 90*" percentiles (Figure 10; Table 5). For bare soil cover,
we used 0% to visualize the lower limit instead of the 10®" and 25" percentiles because low values of
bare soil cover do not directly threaten proper upland watershed functions. Likewise, we used soil
stability value 6 to visualize the upper limit for average soil stability rather than the 75" and 90t
percentiles since more stable soils do not threaten proper upland watershed functions in this region.
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Figure 10. Boxplots of AIM indicator values for bare soil cover, total foliar cover, and average soil stability rating from terrestrial
AIM plots rated as reference for BLM Oregon/Washington Rangeland Health Standard 1. in level IV ecoregions 80a (left) and 80f
(right). The green boxes outline potential benchmark value ranges with the 10t and 90th (A) and 25th and 75th (B) percentiles,
using minimum and maximum values as appropriate.
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Table 5. AIM indicator values at the 10th, 25th, 75th, and 90th percentiles of their distributions from terrestrial AIM plot data that
were rated as reference for BLM Oregon/Washington Rangeland Health Standard 1. in level IV ecoregions 80a and 80f.

*0% was used rather than the 10th and 25th percentiles.

**6 was used rather than the 75th and 90t percentiles.

Ecoregion Indicator 10t 25t 75t 90t
Percentile Percentile Percentile Percentile
Bare Soil Cover *0% *0% 34.67% 41.2%
80a Total Foliar Cover 29.7% 34.65% 56% 64.67%
Avg. Soil Stability 3.1 4.1 **6 **6
Bare Soil Cover *0% *0% 15.42% 23.07%
80f Total Foliar Cover 36.27% 53% 70% 79.32%
Avg. Soil Stability 4.11 4.17 **6 **6

Step 5. To establish benchmarks, select percentiles of the indicator value distribution.

We used photos, AIM indicators, and scientific literature to aid our discussions while considering each
percentile as a potential benchmark limit. We set benchmarks for bare soil cover, total foliar cover, soil
stability, and perennial to annual grass cover ratio for each ecoregion, beginning with 80f.

Ecoregion 80f

Bare Soil Cover. We selected 20% as an upper limit because it was close to the 90" percentile (23.07%)
and is commonly used as a threshold to prevent acceleration of soil erosion from wind and water (Webb
et al., 2014). For the lowerlimit, we selected 0% because low levels of bare soil do not directly threaten
proper upland watershed functions. We considered whether 0% bare soil cover would be too low of a
threshold as it could indicate other issues affecting upland watershed functions (e.g., extensive litter
cover). To avoid flagging areas that are properly functioning and inherently have low values of bare soil
cover (e.g., highly productive sites) as potentially problematic, we decided it would be more appropriate
to address those concerns with a separate benchmark (e.g., total litter cover), which we did not develop
in this effort.

Total Foliar Cover. We selected the 20™ percentile (49%) for the lower limit and 100% for the upper
limit. We first considered the 10t percentile, 36%, for the lower limit but decided that was too low for
proper upland watershed functions. Then we considered the 25 percentile, 53%. We felt the 25®
percentile was too restrictive and explored the 15" and 20t percentiles. After reviewing photos of
reference plots with total foliar cover values between the 10" and 25" percentile, we felt 49%, the 20t
percentile, was mostappropriate. We discussed using percentiles to set an upper limit because we were
concernedthat very high foliar cover would indicate extensive annual grass invasion. We considered the
90" percentile (79%) to exclude only extreme cases of high foliar cover and therefore, extensive invasive
annual grass invasion. To test this threshold, we reviewed photos from AIM plots with total foliar cover
greaterthan 79% and metthe benchmarks for bare soil cover and soil stability. We found this threshold
excluded highly productive sites with little annual grass invasion and chose 100% as the upper limit. To
address our concern with extremely high annual grass cover, we considered anew benchmark indicator:
perennial to annual grass cover ratio, explained below.

Soil Stability. We selected 4 for the lower limit and 6 for the upper limit. For the lower limit, we
considered the 25" (4.11) and the 10 (4.17) percentiles. Because both percentiles were similar, we
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selected 4 for the lower limit, rounding down the percentile values to agree with the whole number
nature of the soil aggregate stability test metric. For the upper limit, we chose the maximum score, 6,
because high levels of soil stability do not threaten proper upland watershed functions.

Perennial to Annual Grass Cover Ratio. We selected 1 forthe lower limit and infinity for the upper limit.
While the direct effects of invasive annual grasses on infiltration, runoff, and erosion processes are not
well understood, professional knowledge indicates perennial grasses may offer better hydrologic
function than annual grasses (J. Williams, personal communication, October 20, 2022). Therefore, we
anticipate a transition in grass dominance from perennial to annual grasses would reduce a site’s
hydrologic function capabilities. Cheatgrass does not outcompete established perennial grasses under
currentand changing environmental conditions alone (McGlone et al., 2012, Larson et al., 2018, Blank et
al., 2020), but is able to outcompete perennial grasses with disturbance (e.g., fire on actively grazed
rangelands; Condon and Pyke, 2018) that may be mitigated through management. Medusahead may
outcompete native perennialbunch grasses under normal conditions directly by its ability to grow faster
and longer (Mangla et al., 2011; Young and Mangold, 2008), but established, tall vegetation can prevent
medusahead populations from spreading (Davies and Svejcar, 2008; Davies et al., 2010). Medusahead
may also outcompete native species indirectly through development of thick thatch layers which inhibits
other species and contributes to an increase in fuel load and fire frequency (Nafus and Davies, 2014).

To quantify annual grass domination at a site, we calculated a fourth benchmark indicator, perennial to
annual grass cover ratio, based on Wood and Mealor’s (2022) approach to identify rangelands needing
restoration. We calculated a perennial to annual grass cover ratio with the quotient of AIM indicators
perennial grass cover (AH_PerenGrassCover) and annual grass cover (AH_AnnGrassCover) to determine
whetherasite’s grass composition is dominated by perennial or annual grasses. A value of one indicates
equal annual and perennial grass cover, less than one indicates more annual grass cover, and greater
than one indicates more perennialgrass cover. Thus, we selected 1 as the lower limit and infinity for the
upper limit, to exclude plots where grass composition was dominated by annual grasses.

Ecoregion 80a

Bare Soil Cover. We selected the 75" percentile (35%) for the upper limit and 0% as the lower limit. For
the upper limit, we first considered the 90™ percentile (41%) because we selected the 90* percentile in
ecoregion 80f. However, after reviewing photos from AIM plots with bare soil cover between 35% and
41%, we felt 41% was too high for proper upland watershed functions. Acknowledging the data from
ecoregion 80f were more thoroughly screened, we conducted further photo review and considered a
secondary benchmark, percent cover of canopy gaps greater than 100 cm. (sum of AIM indicators
GapCover_25_50and GapCover_51_100), for plots with bare soil cover between 35% and 41%. We
considered this indicator based on a suggestion from Webb et al. (2014) that wind and water erosion
could be effectively controlled when canopy gaps greaterthan 100 cm comprise less than 35% of ground
cover. We reviewed photos from AIM plots with bare soil cover between 35% and 41% and compared
plots with less than 35% of canopy gaps greater than 100 cm to plots with more than 35%. After the
review, we did not find 35% of canopy gaps to be a helpful breakpoint in characterizing plots with high
bare soil cover as functioning properly in this region and therefore we chose the more restrictive 75
percentile (35% bare soil cover) for the upper limit.

Total Foliar Cover. We selected the 25" percentile (35%) for the lower limit and 100% for the upper
limit. We selected the more restrictive benchmark, the 25" percentile, over the 10™ percentile (30%),
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because 30% appearedtoolow to meetstandard 1. We selected 100% for the upper limit with the same
justification used for 80f.

Soil Stability. We selected 4 for the lower limit and 6 for the upper limit. For the lower limit, we
considered the 10" (3.1) and 25™ percentiles (4.1). In nearby areas with soil maps, most ecological site
descriptions use 4 as an acceptable lower limit and use 3 as a limit for sites with predominantly sandy
soils. We used soil texture information from the first horizon of soil pits in ecoregion 80a plots from
2013 to 2021 to examine the prevalence of sandy soils (Figure 11; Table 6). In 803, soil pits were dug at
1,296 AIM plots and first horizon soil textures were classified as sands at 12 (<1%) plots, loamy sands at
63 (5%) plots, and silts, clays, and loams at 1,221 (94%) plots. Because a low percentage of plots were
classified as sands in the first horizon, we selected the 25" percentile for the lower limit, rounding down
to four to agree with the whole number nature of the soil aggregate stability test metric. For the upper
limit, we chose the maximum score, 6, because high levels of soil stability do not threaten properupland

watershed functions.
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Figure 11. Bar plot summary of first horizon soil textures determined from soil pits dug at terrestrial AIM plots in Level IV
Ecoregions 80a and 80f.
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Table 6. First horizon soil textures from soil pits dugs at terrestrial AIM plots in Level IV Ecoregions 80a and 80f.

Soil Surface Texture Ecoregion

Class 80a 8of
Clay (C) 40 (3%) 19 (3%)
Silty Clay (SIC) 60 (5%) 24 (4%)
Sandy Clay (SC) 27 (2%) 10 (1%)
Clay Loam (CL) 151 (12%) 63 (10%)
Silty Clay Loam (SICL) 145 (11%) 69 (11%)
Sandy Clay Loam (SCL) 122 (9%) 71 (11%)
Loam (L) 267 (21%) 122 (20%)
Silty Loam (SIL) 211 (16%) 72 (12%)
Sandy Loam (SL) 198 (15%) 115 (19%)
Loamy Sand (LS) 63 (5%) 37 (6%)
Sand (S) 12 (<1%) 5 (<1%)
Total 1,296 607

Perennial to Annual Grass Cover Ratio. We selected 1 for the lower limit and infinity for the upper limit
with the same justification used for this indicator in ecoregion 80f.

Final Benchmarks

The final benchmarks are displayedin Table 7. Figure 12 contains transect photos from plots that met all

and two benchmarks in both ecoregions.

Table 7. Final benchmarks to evaluate Oregon/Washington Rangeland Health Standard 1. in level IV ecoregions 80a and 80f

within the Cow Lakes Assessment Area.

Ecoregion80a  Ecoregion 80f

Lower Upper Lower Upper

Indicator Limit  Limit  Lmit  Limit

Bare Soil Cover 0% 35% 0% 20%
Total Foliar Cover 35%  100% 49%  100%
Average Soil Aggregate Stability Rating 4 6 4 6
Perennial to Annual Grass Cover Ratio 1 oo 1 oo
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Figure 12. Photos from terrestrial AIM plots in the Cow Lakes Assessment Area that met all four (left) and only two of four (right)
benchmarks set for BLM Oregon/Washington Rangeland Health Standard 1 in level IV ecoregions 80a (top row) and 80f (bottom
row).

Applying Benchmarks

We applied the benchmarks to data collected from all terrestrial AIM plots in the Group 2 allotments.
Group 2is comprised of the Mahogany Mountain and Spring Mountain allotments which are at higher
elevations and more mountainous than other allotments in the CLAA. Data from 48 plots were available
in the Terrestrial AIM Database at the time of extraction (June 2023) for each allotment (96 total). Most
of the data were collected from random sampling designs within Oregon PACs. Most of Group 2 lies
within the Cow Lakes PAC(92%). The remaining data were collected with sampling designs for Land Use
Planning, Emergency Stabilization and Burned Area Rehabilitation (ESR), and the BLM Landscape
Monitoring Framework. We applied benchmarks to 12 plots from ecoregion 80a and 84 plots from
ecoregion 80f. We summarized the results by total number of benchmarks met and allotment (Table 8).
52% and 42% of plots met all four benchmarks in the Mahogany Mountain and Spring Mountain
allotments, respectively (Figure 13, Table 8). Most plots met benchmarks for bare soil and total foliar
cover and fewer plots met soil stability and perennial to annual grass cover ratio benchmarks (Table 9).
Plots were most likely to fail the perennial to annual grass cover ratio benchmark where 36% of plots in
Group 2 had more annual grass than perennial grass cover, potentially indicating a decrease in
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hydrologic function in much of Group 2 due to invasive annual grasses. The applied benchmarks are
summarized by indicator at each plot in Appendix 3.

Cow Lakes Allotment Group 2

Legend
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Figure 13. Map summarizing the number of benchmarks met at all terrestrial AIM Plots within the Group 2 allotments of the
Cow Lakes Assessment Area. Group 2 is comprised of the Mahogany Mountain (left) and Spring Mountain (right) allotments. The
benchmarks were developed to evaluate whether ecological conditions in a grazing allotment within level IV ecoregions 80a and

80f satisfy BLM Oregon/Washington Rangeland Health Standard 1.

Table 8. Summary of terrestrial AIM plots within the Cow Lakes Assessment Area and how many of the four benchmarks
established for evaluating Oregon/Washington Rangeland Health Standard 1 in level IV ecoregions 80a and 80f were met.

No. of Plots (%)
No. of Mahogany Mountain  Spring Mountain
Benchmarks Met Allotment Allotment

0 0 (0%) 1(2%)

1 0 (0%) 2 (4%)

2 5 (10%) 7 (15%)

3 18 (38%) 18 (37%)

All 25 (52%) 20 (42%)
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Table 9. Summary of the number of terrestrial AIM plots within the Cow Lakes Assessment Area meeting each of the four
benchmarks established for evaluating Oregon/Washington Rangeland Health Standard 1 in level IV ecoregions 80a and 80f.

Indicator No. of Plots

Meeting
Bare Soil Cover 91 (94%)
Total Foliar Cover 89 (92%)
Average Soil Aggregate Stability Rating 75 (77%)
Perennial to Annual Grass Cover Ratio 62 (64%)

Decide if Standard 1 is Achieved in Group 2

In the land health evaluation, the IDT decides whether standard 1 is achieved with convergent lines of
evidence or preponderous of evidence approach. The other lines of evidence used by the IDT for land
health include but are not limited to data collected with the line-point intercept method, step-point
transects, production transects, Proper Functioning Condition protocols (PFC), and Describing Indicators
of Rangeland Health (DIRH). DIRH is a modified version of the Interpreting Indicators of Rangeland
Health protocol (Pellant et al., 2020) used in areas where ecological site descriptions are not available.
Incorporating AIM data evaluated against benchmarks into the land health evaluation would be an
additional line of evidence.

To determine whether standard 1is achieved with AIM data, Technical Note 453 suggests comparing
indicator values at each plot to the benchmarks and considering whether the results can be extrapolated
to the entire assessment area based on spatial distribution of plots and their sampling designs. The
technical note recommends using tables, maps, and/or graphs to visualize the results like we produced
in Figure 13, Tables 8 and 9, Appendix 3, and an ArcGIS Online Dashboard
(https://www.arcgis.com/apps/dashboards/ec40b4c839f440e5a40d15103a4f6aad; Figure 14). The
spatial distribution of plots should be adequate to extrapolate findings to the entire assessment area
because 1) the locations of most terrestrial AIM plots in Group 2 were randomly determined within
boundaries that contain and are larger in scale than the assessment area, 2) few locations were
determined with a sampling design with an extent that did not encompass most of the assessment area
(e.g., ESRplots), 3) few plots were rejected (e.g., steep slopes, inaccessible areas), and 4) the density of
plots is high.

The technical note, however, falls short of outlining a workflow, best practices, or examples on how to
use the comparison results to determine whether standard 1is achieved at a plot and across the
assessment area. Incorporating indicator values from plots evaluated against benchmarks as a line of
evidence requires field offices to develop an additional workflow. The technical note describes
components that may be incorporated into that workflow such as 1) a point-counting analysis, an
unweighted analysis that will give a rough estimate of the proportion of an area meeting or not meeting
each benchmark, or2) a weighted analysis, to provide percentage of acres achieving benchmarks with a
level of confidence. The trickiest portion of the workflow may be deciding whether an area is achieving
standard 1 when some but not all benchmarks are met at a plot or in most of the assessment area.
Setting a minimum number of indicators meeting benchmarks (e.g., 2 of 4) and scrutinizing additional
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indicators and plot photos for plots that fall below that minimum is one idea for the workflow. The
developed workflow should result in consistent determinations that are convergent with other lines of
evidence, use sound professional judgement, and be well documented.
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Figure 14. Screenshot of the Cow Lakes Assessment Area ArcGIS Online Dashboard developed by Alex Laurence-Traynor
(https://www.arcgis.com/apps/dashboards/ec40b4c839f440e5a40d15103a4f6aad). The dashboard summarizes a comparison
of indicator values from data collected at terrestrial AIM plots within Group 2 of the Cow Lakes Assessment Area to benchmarks
developed to evaluate a land health standard. Dashboard users can view maps and charts at multiple scales and interact with
plot-level data.

Lessons Learned

Setting benchmarks takes time. Our team met for one hour approximately every two weeks for 15
months, where we set benchmarks for four indicators in two benchmark groups for one land health
standard. Much of this time was spent identifying and trying different approaches to set benchmarks
with AIM data given the typical resources used to identify ecosystem potential and proper functioning —
soil maps and ecological site descriptions — were lacking for this region. Reviewing photos for reference
and selecting percentiles was also time consuming and while the IDT believes quantitative benchmarks
will strengthen their decisions, they anticipate extra hurdles if they incorporate benchmarks into their
evaluation. We are optimistic that documenting our workflow will help streamline efforts conducted by
otherfield offices to set benchmarks for indicators when guiding resources are lacking but AIM data are
plentiful, but also acknowledge that there are tradeoffs involved with incorporating additional lines of
evidence into the land health process.

Quality photos are vital for context. In addition to data values, photos proved vital in providing context
in screening data for reference locations and determining benchmark limits (e.g., choosing one
percentile over another).

-21-



https://www.arcgis.com/apps/dashboards/ec40b4c839f440e5a40d15103a4f6aad



Well-rounded interdisciplinary teams are effective for setting benchmarks. Our team consisted of staff
from BLM state offices, the Malheur Field Office, the National Operations Center, and partner
organizations, including the state monitoring coordinator, a wildlife biologist, rangeland ecologist,
conservation specialist, and two AIM data analysts. Each team member brought a distinct skillset
allowing us to split up tasks to gatherand summarize data, review data and photos for reference, record
discussions and rationale for decisions, elicit expert input, and document results, which made our
workload feasible and never overbearing on one person. Our ability to divide and conquer a diverse task
list was important to not only complete a data-heavy workflow, but also to document our thought and
decision-making process for the benchmarks to be defensible for litigation. In addition, our well-
rounded teamresultedin each member bringing a different perspective and experience which made for
thorough discussions and explorations before making decisions. We proceeded from each step of our
workflow only after we reached a group consensus.

More guidance may be helpful for integrating multiple lines of evidence into decisions on whether
specific standards are being met. The process to decide if standard 1 is achieved with the applied
benchmarks isn’t clear in Technical Note 453. The technical note does not provide structured guidance
or best practices to determine whether the assessment areais meeting standard 1 after benchmarks are
applied beyond considering the sampling design and visualizing how many and which indicators met
benchmarks at each AIM plot. Therefore, the field office must develop another workflow to determine
whether the applied benchmarks indicate whether standard 1 is achieved in some of or all the
assessment area and how to tie this line of evidence with others in the final evaluation. This may be
especially challenging when there are complex or contradictory lines of evidence. Possible components
to incorporate into that workflow are 1) thresholds for the number of benchmarks met at each plot, 2)
taking a closer look at plots that meet none or very few benchmarks, and 3) conducting a point-counting
or weighted analysis. The developed workflow and decision rationales should be documented, and
professional judgement should be used when applied benchmarks are a line of evidence in the land
health evaluation.

Contribution of Authors

Monica Ketcham initiated this process, selected AIM indicators, communicated with her IDT, and
reviewed AIM photos and datafor reference. Jennifer Nelson and Alex Laurence-Traynor extracted and
summarized AIM data and Jennifer authored this report. Anya Tyson facilitated meetings, documented
rationale, and helped author this report. All authors reviewed scientific literature and AIM data
summaries, provided professional opinion, developed the approach to this workflow, and edited this
report.
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Appendix 1. Oregon/Washington B

LM Standards for Rangeland Health

Oregon and Washington O

Indicators Associated with Land Health Standard

AIM Terrestrial and Lotic Core and Contingent Indicators
Associated with Land Health Standard

that are appropriate to soil, climate, and landform.

STANDARD #1—Watershed function - uplands: Upland soils exhibit infiltration and permeability rates, moisture storage, and stability

Protection of the soil surface from raindrop impact; detention of

overland flow; maintenance of infiltration and permeability and

protection of the soil surface from erosion, consistent with the

potential/capability of the site, as evidenced by the:

« Amount and distribution of plant cover (including forest
canopy cover)

« Amount and distribution of plant litter

+ Accumulation/incorporation of organic matter

« Amount and distribution of bare ground

« Amount and distribution of rock, stone, and gravel

+ Plant composition and community structure

- Thickness and continuity of A horizon

« Character of microrelief

« Presence and integrity of biotic crusts

+ Root occupancy of the soil profile

« Biological activity (plant, animal, and insect)

+ Absence of accelerated erosion and overland flow

Soil and plant conditions promote moisture storage as evidenced by:
« Amount and distribution of plant cover (including forest
canopy cover)
« Amount and distribution of plant litter
« Plant composition and community structure
+» Accumulation/incorporation of organic matter

« Bare ground

« Proportion of large gaps between plant canopies
«Vegetation composition

- Vegetation height

- Soil aggregate stability

STANDARD #2—Watershed function - riparian/wetland areas: Ripari
appropriate to soil, climate, and landform.

an-wetland areas are in properly functioning physical condition

Hydrologic, vegetative, and erosional/depositional processes
interact in supporting physical function, consistent with the
potential or capability of the site, as evidenced by:

GUIDE TO USING AIM AND LMF DATA IN LAND HEALTH EVALUATIONS AND AUTHORIZATIONS OF PERMITTED USES —O

+ Frequency of floodplain/wetland inundation
« Plant composition, age class distribution, and community structure
« Root mass

« Point bars revegetating

+ Streambank/shoreline stability

- Riparian area width

« Sediment deposition

« Active/stable beaver dams

« Coarse/large woody debris

« Upland watershed conditions

« Frequency/duration of soil saturation

«» Water table fluctuation

Stream channel characteristics are appropriate for landscape
position as evidenced by:

+» Channel width/depth ratio

« Channel sinuosity

« Gradient

« Rocks and coarse and/or large woody debris

« Overhanging banks

+ Pool/riffle ratio

+ Pool size and frequency

« Pool dimensions

- Streambed particle sizes

« Pool tail fines

« Thalweg depth profile

« Floodplain connectivity

« Large wood

« Greenline vegetation composition
« Bank stability and cover

« Bank angle

\ « Stream embeddedness
56 TECHNICAL NOTE 453 —QO
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Indicators Associated with Land Health Standard

AIM Terrestrial and Lotic Core and Contingent Indicators
Associated with Land Health Standard

STANDARD #3—Ecological processes: Healthy, productive, and diverse plant and animal populations and communities appropriate to

soil, climate, and landform are supported by ecological processes of

nutrient cycling, energy flow, and the hydrologic cycle.

Photosynthesis is effectively occurring throughout the potential
growing season, consistent with the potential/capability of the
site, as evidenced by plant composition and community structure.

Nutrient cycling is occurring effectively, consistent with the

potential/capability of the site, as evidenced by:

« Plant composition and community structure

+ Accumulation, distribution, incorporation of plant litter and
organic matter into the soil

+ Animal community structure and composition

+ Root occupancy in the soil profile

« Biological activity including plant growth, herbivory, and rodent,
insect, and microbial activity

«Vegetation composition
«Vegetation height

« Soil aggregate stability

« Benthic macroinvertebrates

« Greenline vegetation composition

STANDARD #4—Water quality: Surface water and groundwater qual
standards.

ity, influenced by agency actions, complies with state water quality

- Water temperature

+ Dissolved oxygen

+ Fecal coliform

« Turbidity

«pH

+ Populations of aquatic organisms

« Effects on beneficial uses (i.e., effects of management activities
on beneficial uses as defined under the Clean Water Act and state
implementing regulations)

-pH
+ Temperature

« Turbidity

« Benthic macroinvertebrates

STANDARD #5—Native, threatened and endangered, and locally important species: Habitats support healthy, productive, and diverse

populations and communities of native plants and animals (includin
to soil, climate, and landform.

g special status species and species of local importance) appropriate

Essential habitat elements for species, populations, and

communities are present and available, consistent with the

potential/capability of the landscape, as evidenced by:

« Plant community composition, age class distribution,
productivity

- Animal community composition, productivity

« Habitat elements

« Spatial distribution of habitat

« Habitat connectivity

« Population stability/resilience

« Plant species of management concern
« Vegetation composition

« Floodplain connectivity

« Benthic macroinvertebrates

« Indicators listed for other ds related to aquatic species

habitat requirements (e.g., temperature and fine sediment)
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Adapted from Table A1 in Technical Note 453: Guide to Using AIM and LMF Data in Land Health Evaluations and Authorizations
of Permitted Uses.
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Appendix 2. Phase 2 Screening Results in Level IV Ecoregion 80f.

Phase 2 screening results from step 2 in Setting Benchmarks workflow. Phase 2 was applied to terrestrial Assessment, Inventory & Monitoring
plots in level IV ecoregion 80f.

Bare Total Avg.

Soil Foliar Soil
Cover Cover Stability

(%) (%) Rating

Primary Key Reference Justification

High perennial grass and shrub cover,
good infiltration.
High deep-rooted perennial grass
cover (24.7% |daho fescue) and

ID_OwyheeFOMHAFFIlintCreek2020_FlintCr-003_V12020-09-01 Yes 10.67 74.67 NA

ID_OwyheeFOMHAFFlintCreek2020_FlintCr-019 V12020-09-01 Yes . . 17.33  30.00 NA
moderate cover Wyoming big
sagebrush
Moderate deep-rooted perennial
ID_OwyheeFOMHAFFIlintCreek2020_FlintCr-030_V12020-09-01 Yes grass cover with 19% shrub coverand  10.00 36.67 NA

very high litter cover (76%).
Moderate Idaho fescue cover, low
ID_OwyheeFOMHAFFlintCreek2020_FlintCr-035_V12020-09-01 Yes shrub cover and low shrub height - 20.00 24.67 NA
reducing capacity to hold snow.
High grass cover, moderate-low

17080107180635572017-09-01 Yes sagebrush cover, crested wheatgrass 11.33  66.67 4.17
seeding.
No pictures. Moderate deep-rooted
16052415134750352016-09-01 Yes perennial grass cover, shrubs are not 5.33  58.67 4.11
very tall.
16052912540474452016-09-01 Yes Crested wheatgrass seeding with -3 33 3067 4 47

different soils and high bare ground.
Very high deep-rooted perennial grass

16072209215647442016-09-01 Yes and shrub cover, high foliar cover 0.00 84.67 5.50
overall.
Yes Very high deep-rooted perennial grass

16072310424610822016-09-01 2.67 7533 4.78

cover, high shrub cover.
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160726083407572016-09-01

18050708540572552018-09-01

18050709445360452018-09-01

18050807301052192018-09-01

1805221215438632018-09-01

18062514052378962018-09-01

18073108062692252018-09-01

18082608261644282018-09-01

1808280912134362018-09-01

19052911384220592019-09-01
19053110485764632019-09-01

19060113051018652019-09-01

19060208261516342019-09-01

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes
Yes

Yes

Yes

-29-

Moderate deep-rooted perennial
grass and shrub cover, high shallow-
rooted perennial grass cover.
High sagebrush and perennial grass
cover.

25% perennial forb cover (including
15% cover of littleleaf pussytoes,
Antennaria microphylla) + high
Sandberg bluegrass and deep-rooted
perennial grass cover.

Good deep-rooted perennial grass
and shrub cover for infiltration.
Good deep-rooted perennial grass
and shrub cover for infiltration.
Extensive perennial grass cover and
good shrub cover.

Low deep-rooted perennial grass
cover, moderate shrub cover, only 2%
of shrubs are evergreen.
Deep-rooted perennial grass cover a
bit low but good shrub/sagebrush
cover to compensate.

High deep-rooted perennial grass
cover, shrubs are a little short but
close to desired condition.
Good parameters.
Moderate.

Juniper encroachment may decrease
infiltration, good shrub and deep-
rooted perennial grass cover.
Moderately low shrub cover and
adequate deep-rooted perennial grass
cover.

7.33

6.00

6.67

14.00

3.33

1.33

20.67

23.33

0.00

8.67
22.67

6.00

32.00

57.33

86.00

78.00

59.33

59.33

86.00

57.33

56.00

61.33

68.67
50.00

66.00

36.00

5.33

511

511

4.11

4.17

5.72

3.50

5.00

5.89

5.83
5.72

4.44

5.83





1906041629427852019-09-01

19063011122615412019-09-01

19071014285445532019-09-01

19071614523323462019-09-01

19072511530399812019-09-01

19072515073974572019-09-01

19092822071976082019-09-01

20124145161001R1

20144145294602B1

20161673103615B2

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

-30-

Shrub cover a little low but medium-
high deep-rooted perennial grass
cover (21% Idaho fescue and
bluebunch wheatgrass).

Low sagebrush (short) and almost no
deep-rooted perennial grasses, but
good sagebrush and shallow-rooted
perennial grass cover.

Only lower end of Yes, very low shrub
cover and adequate deep-rooted
perennial grass cover.

Very high deep-rooted perennial grass
cover, low shrub cover but good
deep-rooted perennial grasses more
than compensate.

High deep-rooted perennial grass
cover and shrub cover.
Moderately low shrub cover but very
high deep-rooted perennial grass
cover.

Good shrub and deep-rooted
perennial grass cover, NOTE: recently
felledjuniper could change vegetation
composition/infiltration rates in the
future.

Moderate deep-rooted perennial
grass cover, Moderate-Low Sagebrush
cover, no other shrubs present.
Deep-rooted perennial grasses are
minimal, although photos appear to
show more than 2%, High shrub cover
but mostly little sagebrush.
Deep-rooted perennial grass and
shrub cover good.

7.33

10.00

8.00

1.33

8.67

10.00

1.33

24.75

1.98

11.88

66.67

46.67

69.33

70.67

59.33

58.67

69.33

26.73

80.20

49.50

4.17

5.72

5.39

6.00

5.61

5.67

5.61

5.56

5.89

2.67





Low deep-rooted perennial grass
cover (~7%), moderate-low sagebrush

2017414532462782 ves cover at 8% little sagebrush with low
vigor.
20181673103401B1 Yes High perennial grass cover, good
infiltration.
20191673103609B 1 Yes Very high perennial grass and shrub

cover, good infiltration.
No photos. Low deep-rooted
20154145201413B2 No perennial grass cover but good
sagebrush cover (18% ARTRWS).
No photos. Juniper encroachment
(8.9%) may decrease infiltration. High
deep-rooted perennial grass and
moderate-high sagebrush cover

Low deep-rooted perennial grass

1909121257525812019-09-01 No cover and moderately low shrub

cover.

No deep-rooted perennial grass cover
(although 8 species were recorded
present), 21% sagebrush and 36%

SRPG cover.
No deep-rooted perennial grass cover
20124145141001A1 No and sagebrush cover is all little
sagebrush (ARARL).
No deep-rooted perennial grass cover
20141673103514B2 No (only one present is squirreltail), high
sage cover but mostly little sagebrush
Heavy juniper site with moderate

15071314331827452015-09-01 Anomalous deep-rooted perennial grass and low

sagebrush cover.

20154145263701B2 No

20082717291441352020-09-01 No

-31-

9.90

16.83

4.95

34.65

4.95

3.33

27.33

32.67

17.82

1.33

56.44

61.39

76.24

27.72

56.44

59.33

50.67

31.68

42.57

42.00

6.00

2.56

5.67

5.33

5.56

5.39

5.22

6.00

3.00

4.00





16072809254297072016-09-01

20141673103306B1

20141673103606B3

ID_OwyheeFOLUP2016_BigCM-079_V12020-09-01

ID_OwyheeFOMHAFFlintCreek2020_FlintCr-001_V12020-09-01
ID_OwyheeFOMHAFFlintCreek2020_FlintCr-043_V12020-09-01

Anomalous

Anomalous

Anomalous

Anomalous

Anomalous

Anomalous
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Heavy juniper site with low perennial
grass, shrub, and forb cover

Juniperstand, moderate deep-rooted
perennial grass cover, low shrub
cover.

May be phase 2 Juniper
encroachment, not old growth.
Moderate to low deep-rooted
perennial grass and moderate shrub
cover
High tree cover, no shrubs, very low
grass and forb cover.
Boulders, high shrub cover, possibly
high slope.

Juniper site

10.00

12.87

14.85

2.67

4.00
5.33

67.33

50.50

69.31

53.33

50.00
66.67

4.28

4.00

4.44

4.39

NA
NA





Appendix 3. Apply Benchmarks Results

Results from comparing the four developed benchmarks to indicator values from terrestrial AIM plots in Group 2 of the Cow Lakes Assessment Area.

. Perennial:
Bare Bare Total Total Avg. Perennial:
. . . R Avg. : Annual
Primary Key I?:f\te Benchmark Soil Soil Foliar Foliar Soil SO.I|' Annual Grass Total No. Allotment
Visited Group Cover Cover Cover Cover Stability Stability Grass Ratio Meeting
(%) Rating (%) Rating Rating Ratio .
Rating
Mahogany
18060408292286882018-09-01 | 6/4/2018 80a 1.33 Meeting | 60.00 [ Meeting 5.18 Meeting . Meeting 4 Mountain
Mahogany
17081017584081222017-09-01 | 8/10/2017 80a 0.67 | Meeting | 93.33 | Meeting 5.39 Meeting . 3 Mountain
Mahogany
1608050418194562016-09-01 8/5/2016 80a 1.33 | Meeting | 77.33 | Meeting 4.78 Meeting . 3 Mountain
OR_OR_VADOPAC_2021_CL- Mahogany
058_V12021-09-01 5/3/2021 80a 10.67 | Meeting | 54.67 | Meeting 5.61 Meeting . Meeting 4 Mountain
Mahogany
17060409082757382017-09-01 | 6/4/2017 80a 0.67 | Meeting | 85.33 | Meeting 5.47 Meeting . 3 Mountain
Mahogany
17060409091283522017-09-01 | 6/4/2017 80a 3.33 | Meeting | 96.00 | Meeting 5.28 Meeting . Meeting 4 Mountain
Mahogany
19081111073721582019-09-01 | 8/11/2019 80a 0.00 | Meeting | 92.00 | Meeting 3.78 2 Mountain
Mahogany
18060408535011662018-09-01 | 6/4/2018 80a 0.00 | Meeting | 50.67 | Meeting 5.50 Meeting 2.27 Meeting 4 Mountain
Mahogany
20124145140801R2 6/12/2013 80a 4.95 | Meeting | 64.36 | Meeting 6.00 Meeting 0.16 - 3 Mountain
Mahogany
20204145284518B1 6/17/2020 80a 22.77 | Meeting | 59.40 | Meeting 5.67 Meeting 14.33 Meeting 4 Mountain
Mahogany
20124145140801R1 6/12/2013 80a 16.83 | Meeting | 46.53 | Meeting 5.44 Meeting 4.60 Meeting 4 Mountain
Mahogany
20204145284518B2 6/17/2020 80a 23.76 | Meeting | 56.43 [ Meeting 5.00 Meeting 2.73 Meeting 4 Mountain
Mahogany
17060507014759282017-09-01 | 6/5/2017 80f 4.67 | Meeting [ 88.00 | Meeting 5.50 Meeting 0.86 3 Mountain
Mahogany
17080815193135182017-09-01 | 7/29/2017 80f 6.00 | Meeting | 70.00 | Meeting 4.94 Meeting 0.87 3 Mountain
Mahogany
16080411061624382016-09-01 | 8/4/2016 80f 6.67 | Meeting | 73.33 | Meeting 4.00 Meeting 1.25 Meeting 4 Mountain
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Mahogany
18073109153146122018-09-01 | 7/31/2018 80f 10.67 | Meeting | 72.00 | Meeting 5.53 Meeting 2.48 Meeting Mountain
Mahogany
160628085457532016-09-01 6/28/2016 80f 2.00 | Meeting | 95.33 | Meeting 5.00 Meeting Mountain
Mahogany
1608061102569802016-09-01 8/6/2016 80f 3.33 | Meeting | 77.33 | Meeting 3.00 Meeting Mountain
Mahogany
17060310173765972017-09-01 | 6/3/2017 80f 0.00 | Meeting | 84.67 | Meeting 5.11 Meeting 0.92 Mountain
Mahogany
17060309033061332017-09-01 | 6/3/2017 80f 10.67 | Meeting | 74.00 | Meeting 4.94 Meeting 2.86 Meeting Mountain
Mahogany
16080908330064612016-09-01 | 8/9/2016 80f 0.00 | Meeting | 86.67 | Meeting 5.72 Meeting 1.04 Meeting Mountain
Mahogany
16062714301789092016-09-01 | 6/27/2016 80f 1.33 | Meeting | 57.33 | Meeting 4.53 Meeting 0.20 Mountain
Mahogany
18081116581522402018-09-01 | 8/11/2018 80f 6.00 | Meeting | 83.33 | Meeting 5.11 Meeting 1.72 Meeting Mountain
Mahogany
17072909460944352017-09-01 | 7/29/2017 80f 0.00 | Meeting | 92.00 | Meeting 4.67 Meeting 4.07 Meeting Mountain
Mahogany
18060309550495472018-09-01 | 6/3/2018 80f 2.00 | Meeting | 46.67 5.82 Meeting 0.27 Mountain
OR_VADO_ESR_2022_HAWK_ Mahogany
NAT_REC-01_V22022-09-01 5/15/2022 80f 0.67 | Meeting | 54.67 | Meeting 4.72 Meeting 1.78 Meeting Mountain
Mahogany
17080110422829902017-09-01 | 8/1/2017 80f 2.00 | Meeting Meeting 461 Meeting 1.21 Meeting Mountain
Mahogany
16080608424212582016-09-01 | 8/6/2016 80f 20.67 4.89 Meeting 2.17 Meeting Mountain
Mahogany
16062807181018922016-09-01 | 6/28/2016 80f 1.33 [ Meeting | 94.00 | Meeting 5.44 Meeting Mountain
Mahogany
18062810264889732018-09-01 | 6/28/2018 80f 8.00 | Meeting | 60.00 | Meeting 2.63 Meeting Mountain
OR_VADO_ESR_2022_HAWK_ Mahogany
NAT_REC-03_V22022-09-01 5/13/2022 80f 18.00 | Meeting | 42.00 5.86 Meeting Mountain
Mahogany
16062815144270442016-09-01 | 6/28/2016 80f 11.33 | Meeting | 74.00 | Meeting 4.39 Meeting 1.94 Meeting Mountain
Mahogany
16090112382633022016-09-01 | 9/1/2016 80f 2.00 | Meeting | 90.00 | Meeting 4.83 Meeting 0.95 Mountain
Mahogany
17071611333472942017-09-01 | 7/16/2017 80f 1.33 [ Meeting | 76.00 | Meeting 5.78 Meeting 2.83 Meeting Mountain

-34-






Mahogany

19061617371172422019-09-01 | 6/16/2019 80f 0.67 | Meeting | 90.67 | Meeting 5.00 Meeting 1.43 Meeting Mountain

Mahogany

16080609202971622016-09-01 | 8/6/2016 80f 3.33 | Meeting | 72.00 | Meeting 5.11 Meeting 1.39 Meeting Mountain

OR_VADO_ESR_2022_HAWK_ Mahogany

NAT_REC-02_V22022-09-01 5/13/2022 80f 23.33 52.00 | Meeting 2.94 32.50 Meeting Mountain

Mahogany

16080509054623432016-09-01 | 8/5/2016 80f 3.33 | Meeting | 64.00 | Meeting 3.50 Meeting Mountain

Mahogany

18062908255754032018-09-01 | 6/29/2018 80f 6.00 | Meeting | 72.67 | Meeting 5.00 Meeting 0.73 Mountain

Mahogany

18062814284410282018-09-01 | 6/28/2018 80f 2.00 | Meeting | 92.67 | Meeting 5.28 Meeting 1.51 Meeting Mountain

Mahogany

20062310034640662020-09-01 | 6/23/2020 80f 17.33 | Meeting | 44.00 5.56 Meeting 6.25 Meeting Mountain

Mahogany

1707161146577582017-09-01 | 7/16/2017 80f 0.00 | Meeting | 93.33 | Meeting 5.61 Meeting 1.35 Meeting Mountain

Mahogany

20184145274426B1 6/6/2018 80f 1.98 | Meeting | 62.38 | Meeting 6.00 Meeting 0.48 Mountain

Mahogany

20184145274426B2 6/6/2018 80f 13.86 | Meeting | 74.26 | Meeting 5.67 Meeting 2.32 Meeting Mountain

Mahogany

20154145284504B1 5/8/2015 80f 8.91 | Meeting | 87.13 | Meeting 5.11 Meeting 2.17 Meeting Mountain

Mahogany

20124145150901R1 6/14/2013 80f 7.92 | Meeting | 56.44 | Meeting 6.00 Meeting oo Meeting Mountain

Mahogany

20154145284504B2 5/8/2015 80f 5.94 | Meeting | 88.12 | Meeting 4.22 Meeting 0.71 Mountain

Mahogany

20124145150901R2 6/14/2013 80f 8.91 | Meeting | 67.33 | Meeting 6.00 Meeting 8.00 Meeting Mountain
Spring

17072915561387712017-09-01 | 7/29/2017 80f 0.67 | Meeting | 96.00 | Meeting 5.44 Meeting 0.58 Mountain
Spring

18072906533710952018-09-01 | 7/29/2018 80f 0.67 | Meeting | 92.00 | Meeting 5.72 Meeting 1.04 Meeting Mountain
Spring

16062909085079572016-09-01 | 6/29/2016 80f 14.67 | Meeting | 78.67 | Meeting 3.78 Mountain
Spring

16072415474355512016-09-01 | 7/24/2016 80f 1.33 [ Meeting Meeting 2.66 Meeting Mountain
Spring

18072911534943492018-09-01 | 7/29/2018 80f 14.67 | Meeting Meeting 6.70 Meeting Mountain
Spring

18072708123973472018-09-01 | 7/27/2018 80f 44.67 2.20 Meeting Mountain






Spring

16072310424610822016-09-01 | 7/23/2016 80f 2.67 | Meeting | 75.33 | Meeting 478 Meeting 47.50 Meeting Mountain
Spring

1706021252171372017-09-01 6/2/2017 80f 0.67 | Meeting | 83.33 | Meeting 4.78 Meeting oo Meeting Mountain
Spring

1707171149112302017-09-01 | 7/17/2017 80f 2.00 [ Meeting | 94.00 | Meeting 4.67 Meeting 0.16 Mountain
Spring

16072209215647442016-09-01 | 7/22/2016 80f 0.00 | Meeting | 84.67 | Meeting 5.50 Meeting 17.71 Meeting Mountain
OR_VADOPAC_2021_CL- Spring

059_V12022-09-01 5/13/2022 80f 2.67 | Meeting | 76.00 | Meeting 3.67 0.46 Mountain
Spring

18063009400616922018-09-01 | 6/30/2018 80f 2.67 | Meeting | 70.67 | Meeting 5.17 Meeting 1.40 Meeting Mountain
Spring

16072509390116122016-09-01 | 7/25/2016 80f 10.00 | Meeting | 81.33 | Meeting 461 Meeting 1.85 Meeting Mountain
Spring

16090108423067412016-09-01 | 9/1/2016 80f 3.33 [ Meeting | 74.67 | Meeting 4.56 Meeting 2.69 Meeting Mountain
- Spring

18072712052317022018-09-01 | 7/27/2018 80f 24.00 39.33 3.28 2.93 Meeting Mountain
Spring

1806300920146232018-09-01 | 6/30/2018 80f 6.00 [ Meeting | 74.67 | Meeting 5.00 Meeting 2.18 Meeting Mountain
Spring

17071808180834892017-09-01 | 7/18/2017 80f 1.33 | Meeting | 80.67 | Meeting 4.67 Meeting 1.04 Meeting Mountain
Spring

18072806314577352018-09-01 | 7/28/2018 80f 8.00 | Meeting | 76.67 | Meeting 422 Meeting Mountain
Spring

17072808065849312017-09-01 | 7/28/2017 80f 20.00 | Meeting | 56.00 | Meeting 2.17 Meeting Mountain
Spring

1805181315485622018-09-01 | 5/18/2018 80f 4.00 | Meeting | 80.00 | Meeting 3.89 Meeting Mountain
Spring

18072913441516272018-09-01 | 7/29/2018 80f 3.33 [ Meeting | 86.67 | Meeting 4.56 Meeting Mountain
Spring

18082114294860352018-09-01 | 8/21/2018 80f 18.00 | Meeting | 50.00 | Meeting 5.22 Meeting oo Meeting Mountain
Spring

18063009050642422018-09-01 | 6/30/2018 80f 9.33 | Meeting | 78.00 | Meeting 5.72 Meeting 0.24 Mountain
Spring

16072110235120862016-09-01 | 7/21/2016 80f 0.00 | Meeting | 76.67 | Meeting 5.17 Meeting 0.66 Mountain
Spring

16072409152593302016-09-01 | 7/24/2016 80f 2.67 | Meeting | 78.00 | Meeting 4.47 Meeting 1.83 Meeting Mountain
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Spring

16072210154015052016-09-01 | 7/22/2016 80f 2.00 | Meeting | 82.00 | Meeting 3.56 Mountain
17071810534974852017-09-01 | 7/18/2017 80f 0.00 | Meeting | 94.67 | Meeting 5.94 Meeting 2.58 Meeting Mountain
Spring
16072409543252262016-09-01 | 7/24/2016 80f 2.00 | Meeting | 96.00 | Meeting 5.17 Meeting 0.30 Mountain
Spring
1806301502343792018-09-01 | 6/30/2018 80f 3.33 | Meeting | 86.67 | Meeting 4.33 Meeting 0.25 Mountain
Spring
17063011090975012017-09-01 | 6/30/2017 80f 2.00 [ Meeting | 87.33 | Meeting 461 Meeting 1.25 Meeting Mountain
Spring
16080909114919272016-09-01 | 8/9/2016 80f 0.67 | Meeting | 69.33 | Meeting 4.27 Meeting 15.17 Meeting Mountain
Spring
17081109484245772017-09-01 | 8/11/2017 80f 8.00 | Meeting | 77.33 | Meeting 5.22 Meeting Mountain
Spring
16072512441773362016-09-01 | 7/25/2016 80f 8.00 | Meeting Meeting Meeting Mountain
Spring
18072610173419502018-09-01 | 7/26/2018 80f 37.33 Mountain
Spring
18072813195456412018-09-01 | 7/28/2018 80f 1.33 [ Meeting Meeting Meeting Mountain
Spring
18062812585076542018-09-01 | 6/28/2018 80f 18.00 | Meeting | 57.33 | Meeting 3.44 Meeting Mountain
Spring
17060209443981082017-09-01 | 6/2/2017 80f 0.00 | Meeting | 92.00 | Meeting 5.35 Meeting Mountain
Spring
17060116134358092017-09-01 | 6/1/2017 80f 0.00 | Meeting | 92.67 | Meeting 5.17 Meeting Mountain
Spring
20081314115431472020-09-01 | 8/13/2020 80f 26.00 55.33 | Meeting 2.83 Mountain
Spring
17081009391828972017-09-01 | 8/10/2017 80f 0.00 | Meeting | 82.00 | Meeting 5.39 Meeting Mountain
Spring
16072111035767532016-09-01 | 7/21/2016 80f 1.33 | Meeting | 67.33 | Meeting 6.00 Meeting Mountain
Spring
18072713153977622018-09-01 | 7/27/2018 80f 10.67 | Meeting | 80.00 | Meeting 3.61 Mountain
OR_OR_MFO_2021_MF02021- Spring
078_V22021-09-01 7/22/2021 80f 5.33 | Meeting | 85.33 | Meeting Mountain
Spring
20194145274615B3 4/22/2019 80f 5.94 | Meeting | 32.67 Meeting Mountain
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Spring

20164145284610B1 5/2/2016 80f 9.90 | Meeting | 60.40 | Meeting 6.00 Meeting 1.22 Meeting Mountain
Spring
20214145284601B2 6/11/2021 80f 4.95 | Meeting | 85.15 | Meeting 5.33 Meeting oo Meeting Mountain
Spring
20194145274615B1 4/22/2019 80f 16.83 | Meeting | 63.37 | Meeting 6.00 Meeting oo Meeting Mountain
Spring
20164145284610B2 5/2/2016 80f 5.94 | Meeting | 69.31 | Meeting 6.00 Meeting 2.43 Meeting Mountain
Spring
20174145274628B3 5/22/2017 80f 2.97 | Meeting | 59.41 | Meeting 6.00 Meeting 10.75 Meeting Mountain
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From: Rose, Marcus F

To: Howell, Tami L; Gochis, Matthew D; Johnson, Tamsen M
Subject: FW: Water Pumping Site on BLM, Patterson Pass, Pilot Range
Date: Monday, November 27, 2023 1:40:00 PM

Attachments: image001.ona

Hello,

Jeff Moore from the Wells Field Office found what looks like some unauthorized pumping equipment on BLM land at Patterson pass just over the
state line on the Utah side. See his message below for more details.
Thanks!

Marcus Rose

Rangeland Management Specialist
Bureau of Land Management

Salt Lake Field Office

Office: 801-320-8352

Cell: 385-600-1049

From: Moore, Jeffrey D <j2moore@blm.gov>

Sent: Monday, November 27,2023 1:07 PM

To: Rose, Marcus F <mrose@blm.gov>

Cc: Culver, Stevon L <sculver@blm.gov>; Draves, Joshua L <jdraves@blm.gov>
Subject: RE: Water Pumping Site on BLM, Patterson Pass, Pilot Range

Thanks Marcus! Coordinates lifted from Google Earth are going to be in the close neighborhood of 41.191145° x -114.041066°. Thanks, Jeff

iUnnt!e'd Placemark

From: Rose, Marcus F <mr. Im.gov>

Sent: Monday, November 27,2023 11:14 AM

To: Moore, Jeffrey D <j2moore@blm.gov>

Cc: Culver, Stevon L <sculver@blm.gov>; Draves, Joshua L <jdraves@blm.gov>
Subject: Re: Water Pumping Site on BLM, Patterson Pass, Pilot Range

Thanks Jeff! It is good to hear from you. | was gone last week, so am slow responding. | will pass this along to our law enforcement as well and we
will keep an eye out. Do you happen to have coordinates of where it is?
| hope all is going well for you over there.


mailto:mrose@blm.gov
mailto:thowell@blm.gov
mailto:mdgochis@blm.gov
mailto:tmjohnso@blm.gov
mailto:mrose@blm.gov
mailto:j2moore@blm.gov
mailto:sculver@blm.gov
mailto:jdraves@blm.gov





Sent from my iPhone

On Nov 17, 2023, at 9:41 AM, Moore, Jeffrey D <j2moore@blm.gov> wrote:

Greetings Marcus! | hope all is well with you.

Late yesterday | went up to Patterson Pass in the north end of the Pilot Range, as | approached the state line | passed an older Ford
F250ish, green and white in my memory, driving down the hill with a large wire water tank in the bed. When | got to the state line and
the cattleguard | noticed a lot of piping and a white bucket on the ground on the Utah side of the cattleguard. | continued on up to the
top of the pass, on the way back down | noted the white bucket was gone but the piping was still coiled up on the ground, along with
what looks like a car battery and a pump and maybe a few other items that are back in the brush and just visible in the photo. Appears
that one or more of the off the grid residents in Pilot Valley is pumping water out of the little stream right on the Utah side of the line,
which is public/BLM according to a shapefile | found.

Thought I'd pass this along, I’'m also including the Elko law enforcement staff in this message. Whoever is doing the pumping had the
gate next to the cattleguard open and by the tire tracks are backing through it to fill their tanks. | shut the gate before | left and then
let both of the livestock permittees on the Nevada side know they may need to watch that area until such time as we get enough snow
to discourage cattle from wandering that far up the hill.

Again, hope all is well, and let me know if you have any questions or need anything else. Thanks, Jeff

<image0.jpeg>


mailto:j2moore@blm.gov

From: Davis, Jordan R

To: Seiders, Erin S

Subject: Fw: Young Brothers Pipeline Cadastral
Date: Thursday, November 30, 2023 3:23:38 PM
Attachments: Young Brothers pipeline maps.pdf
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

Sent: Thursday, November 30, 2023 11:25 AM

To: Davis, Jordan R <jordandavis@blm.gov>

Cc: Verhoef, Nicholas S <nverhoef@blm.gov>; Batty, Ronald (Keith) <rbatty@blm.gov>
Subject: Young Brothers Pipeline Cadastral

Jordan,

Cadastral work on the Young Brothers pipeline was completed on Nov. 14. All of the section
corners that were at risk now have a T-post alongside and are flagged with pink flagging. We
were unable to locate any substandard section corners. However, the risk of corner
disturbance has been minimized as much as possible.

I've attached maps showing the work that was completed.

P. Chip Goodrich

BLM - Cadastral Surveyor
Utah State Office - Salt Lake City
440 west 200 South, Suite #500

C: 801-209-4160

O: 801-539-4155
pgoodrich@blm.gov


mailto:jordandavis@blm.gov
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https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.blm.gov%2Futah&data=05%7C01%7Ceseiders%40blm.gov%7C60119a8cf76444b510c108dbf1f2e0fa%7C0693b5ba4b184d7b9341f32f400a5494%7C0%7C0%7C638369798175139463%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=F8tA2y88zzfvcEAjSg9OkM7SgBlBcn2xcJf1StBqwi0%3D&reserved=0
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From: Powers, Colin M

To: Seiders, Erin S; Johnson, Drusus (Dru)
Subject: Fwd: Young Bro Pipeline Data

Date: Wednesday, March 29, 2023 2:39:48 PM
Attachments: YoungBro Pipeline Data.zip

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
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Dove Creek Well.CPG

UTF-8






Dove Creek Well.dbf

			Id			0









Dove Creek Well.prj

PROJCS["NAD_1983_UTM_Zone_12N",GEOGCS["GCS_North_American_1983",DATUM["D_North_American_1983",SPHEROID["GRS_1980",6378137.0,298.257222101]],PRIMEM["Greenwich",0.0],UNIT["Degree",0.0174532925199433]],PROJECTION["Transverse_Mercator"],PARAMETER["False_Easting",500000.0],PARAMETER["False_Northing",0.0],PARAMETER["Central_Meridian",-111.0],PARAMETER["Scale_Factor",0.9996],PARAMETER["Latitude_Of_Origin",0.0],UNIT["Meter",1.0]]






Dove Creek Well.sbn
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Dove Creek Well.shp.xml

   20221208 15414100 1.0 TRUE    file://\\blm\dfs\loc\egis\UT\GisData\ut\sl\projects\Range\Projects\Young Brothers Pipeline\Dove Creek Well Local Area Network  
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GSL Well.dbf
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GSL Well.prj

PROJCS["NAD_1983_UTM_Zone_12N",GEOGCS["GCS_North_American_1983",DATUM["D_North_American_1983",SPHEROID["GRS_1980",6378137.0,298.257222101]],PRIMEM["Greenwich",0.0],UNIT["Degree",0.0174532925199433]],PROJECTION["Transverse_Mercator"],PARAMETER["False_Easting",500000.0],PARAMETER["False_Northing",0.0],PARAMETER["Central_Meridian",-111.0],PARAMETER["Scale_Factor",0.9996],PARAMETER["Latitude_Of_Origin",0.0],UNIT["Meter",1.0]]
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GSL Well.shp.xml

   20221208 15415500 1.0 TRUE    file://\\blm\dfs\loc\egis\UT\GisData\ut\sl\projects\Range\Projects\Young Brothers Pipeline\GSL Well Local Area Network  
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Trough.dbf
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Trough.prj

PROJCS["NAD_1983_UTM_Zone_12N",GEOGCS["GCS_North_American_1983",DATUM["D_North_American_1983",SPHEROID["GRS_1980",6378137.0,298.257222101]],PRIMEM["Greenwich",0.0],UNIT["Degree",0.0174532925199433]],PROJECTION["Transverse_Mercator"],PARAMETER["False_Easting",500000.0],PARAMETER["False_Northing",0.0],PARAMETER["Central_Meridian",-111.0],PARAMETER["Scale_Factor",0.9996],PARAMETER["Latitude_Of_Origin",0.0],UNIT["Meter",1.0]]
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Young Brother Pipeline.cpg

UTF-8






Young Brother Pipeline.dbf
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Young Brother Pipeline.prj

PROJCS["NAD_1983_UTM_Zone_12N",GEOGCS["GCS_North_American_1983",DATUM["D_North_American_1983",SPHEROID["GRS_1980",6378137.0,298.257222101]],PRIMEM["Greenwich",0.0],UNIT["Degree",0.0174532925199433]],PROJECTION["Transverse_Mercator"],PARAMETER["False_Easting",500000.0],PARAMETER["False_Northing",0.0],PARAMETER["Central_Meridian",-111.0],PARAMETER["Scale_Factor",0.9996],PARAMETER["Latitude_Of_Origin",0.0],UNIT["Meter",1.0]]






Young Brother Pipeline.sbn





Young Brother Pipeline.sbx





Young Brother Pipeline.shp





Young Brother Pipeline.shx





YoungBro_PotentialTank_Loc.cpg

UTF-8






YoungBro_PotentialTank_Loc.dbf
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From: Jessop, Brad D

To: Rose, Marcus F

Subject: Fuels Monitoring Strategy

Date: Monday, September 11, 2023 7:40:18 AM

Attachments: 20150408 Utah Fuels Monitoring Strategy-Draft Submitted Version April 2015.docx
Marcus,

Here’s the monitoring strategy. Let me know if you need anything else.

Brad


mailto:bdjessop@blm.gov
mailto:mrose@blm.gov
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[bookmark: _Toc286932711][bookmark: _Toc416256106]Executive Summary



In the spring of 2008, a BLM national-level fuels program review included an assessment of fuels treatment monitoring in Utah.  Their findings indicated that the monitoring program implementation, particularly Standard 5 (Field Offices Are Completing Plan Monitoring), was only partially met.  In addition, the direction issued recommended interdisciplinary coordination and sharing of monitoring data and information between fire and resource staffs because little or no cooperation was occurring.  The report also stated:

“Offices indicated that current guidance on either short or long term plan monitoring did not exist.  A more formal issuance of implementation monitoring procedures to determine if plans are implemented as described may be beneficial statewide.”

Traditionally, monitoring has been a rather haphazard occurrence, dependent on the presence of a person or small group of people with the interest and drive to conduct any monitoring.  Often when such a person or group left the local unit or subunit, the established monitoring program fell into disuse.  Few monitoring programs were systematic, limiting the ability of the fuels program to identify clear trends in the effectiveness of fuels treatment prescriptions. Accordingly, a task force involving specialists from the fuels staff throughout Utah BLM as well as representatives from the Utah State Office was charged with creating a statewide monitoring standard.  This standard is intended to create a consistent, practical and manageable monitoring program for fuels treatment effectiveness.  This direction is intended to meet monitoring needs within Utah BLM.  





9 March 2015
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[bookmark: _Toc286932714][bookmark: _Toc416256109]Purpose

This Monitoring strategy establishes the monitoring policy, objectives, authorities, roles and responsibilities for Fuels Management Programs of the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) in Utah. The protocols defined in the manual are the minimum monitoring standards for measuring fuels treatment effectiveness and results on project sites in Utah.

The purpose of this strategy is to establish a clear, consistent approach to conducting fuels related monitoring in Utah.  Fuels treatment monitoring data are to be used to: 1) Determine whether project/treatment objectives were met; 2) Assess vegetation and soil trends following treatment; 3) Evaluate the success or failure of a given treatment as it relates to management objectives; 4) Assist managers with management decisions; 5) In conjunction with data from other disciplines, form a basis for project planning on watersheds, allotments, and wildlife or wild horse management areas.  Because agency initiated fuel reduction treatments are often the predominant disturbance on the landscape, it is imperative that their impacts are understood.  Following the minimum monitoring standards outlined in this manual will help develop a data rich framework for understanding ecosystem response to fuel treatments and provide information for the decision making process and adaptive management.



[bookmark: _Toc286932715][bookmark: _Toc416256110]Objectives

The objectives of this monitoring manual are to:



· Provide guidance and consistency in fuels treatment monitoring for all Fuels Management Programs in Utah.



· Set statewide minimum monitoring standards for fuels treatment monitoring.



· Assist in designing a monitoring program to collect, analyze, evaluate and report data in a way that improves land use planning, project design and the management decision making process.



[bookmark: _Toc416256111][bookmark: _Toc286932717]Why Monitor?

First, it’s the law.  The following are basic authorities that mandate intensive, site specific, long-term monitoring to determine whether programs are meeting the land management objectives established under applicable land use plans:  

1. The Federal Land Policy and Management Act of 1976 as amended (43 U.S.C. 1701 et. Seq; referred to as “FLPMA”) constitutes the “organic act” and requires a periodic inventory of the public lands and their resources.



2. The Public Rangeland Improvement Act of 1978 (43 U.S.C. 1901 et. Seq) established policies aimed at improving the conditions of public rangelands for grazing, wildlife habitat and other uses and requires BLM to report annually the condition of rangelands.

3. The Environmental Quality Improvement Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. 4371-4374), assures that Federal agencies conducting or supporting public works and activities, which affect the environment, shall implement the policies established under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969.  



Additionally, effectiveness monitoring is required under the National Fire Plan and the Healthy Forest Restoration Act of 2003 (HFRA).  The HFRA states that “The BLM shall monitor the results of a representative sample of the projects authorized under this title for each management unit.”  The act also states that, “Monitoring and assessment shall include a description of the changes in condition class, using the Fire Regimes Condition Class Guidebook or successor guidance, specifically comparing end results to:

· Pre-treatment conditions.



· Historical fire regimes.



· Any applicable watershed or landscape goals or objectives in the resource management plan or other relevant direction.

 

Second, it’s in our regulations.  The Fuels Management and Community Assistance Handbook states that “All field units with fuels treatment programs are required to establish monitoring programs.” The planning regulations for BLM (BLM-H-1600-1, Chapter V; see also Utah BLM Fuels Treatment Data Standard and Data Integration Guidance; IM# UT2009-038) require monitoring and evaluation to support the adaptive management process and to determine whether on-the-ground activities are maintaining or moving toward desired conditions and objectives within applicable land use plans.  The National Wildfire Coordinating Group’s (NWCG) Interagency Prescribed Fire Planning and Implementation Procedures Guide PMS 484 (April 2014) Element 20,  requires a monitoring plan for prescribed fires that includes provisions to monitor burn day weather, fire behavior, and whether fire treatment objectives have been met. Furthermore, Secretarial Order 3336 Implementation Plan (February 2015), Section 7b (vi), commits to “multi-year investments for the restoration of sagebrush-steppe ecosystems, including consistent long-term monitoring protocols…”  This emphasis on monitoring within sagebrush-steppe will play a critical role in the adaptive management for restoring these areas.

Third, it’s part of the Federal Wildland Fire Management Policy.  Item 17 of the current policy requires a systematic method of evaluation to determine whether projects effectively implement the various elements of the policy, which includes use of fire and other fuel treatments intended to protect resources from unwanted fire and to meet ecological, social, and economic components of land use plans.

Fourth, monitoring is conducted to determine whether the agency’s planned actions were implemented as planned (implementation monitoring), whether the agency’s actions were effective in reaching desired goals and objectives (effectiveness monitoring), and whether the predicted cause-and-effect relationship of management activities is valid (validation monitoring).

Lastly, monitoring is the critical link between management decisions and desired outcomes and provides the basis for adaptive management.  The adaptive management process is a systematic, formal and structured management program driven by well thought out objectives which are clear, measureable and attainable.  The process focuses on learning from experience, sound science and good qualitative and quantitative monitoring data.  This “learning by doing” process enables greater understanding of ecological processes and their response to treatments.  As knowledge increases, changes can be made to improve and refine project design and confidence in management decisions increases.  Thus, monitoring becomes the crux for improving the quality of management decisions and ecosystem health.  We cannot learn which treatments and prescriptions work and which ones do not and make adjustments unless we have a systematic monitoring strategy in place to support such learning.  A systematic program will also support land use and project planning efforts and build the necessary site-specific data needed for future project analyses under the provisions of NEPA.  A systematic monitoring program can also aid in building public trust.
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Responsibility  

In order to summarize quantitative monitoring results at the State Office (SO) level, we will develop a method for compiling both qualitative and quantitative data.  The State Office will assume responsibility for designing collection methods so that units will not need to deal with information technology (IT) security issues.  The intent is to develop a protocol that requires minimal effort at the field level to transfer data to the SO.

Training related to ecosite determination, qualitative or quantitative field methodologies may be organized through the state office if the need exists.

State Fuels Specialist - acquire, analyze statewide fuels project data and create an annual report; organize monitoring training, etc.  

Fuels Program Managers - coordinate data collection, maintain data continuity, provide data to State Fuels Specialist annually; etc.
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It is the policy of the Utah Bureau of Land Management to inventory, monitor, and assess the effects of fuels treatments on public lands.  The protocols defined in this manual are the minimum monitoring standards for measuring fuels treatment effectiveness and results on project sites in Utah.  Because fuels treatments are often used to meet multiple use goals, monitoring objectives may be developed in association with other programs.  The funding mechanism(s) should be established during the initial project development phase within the interdisciplinary team setting.  Once fuels monitoring objectives are met, long term monitoring should become the responsibility of the respective renewable resource staff with interest/responsibility of assuring that the Utah Standards for Rangeland Health, Standards 1 and 3 are achieved (see below). Accordingly, where possible, fuels treatment monitoring data should focus on measuring indicators that are cross compatible with other disciplines (e.g. Utah Standards for Rangeland Health). relating to these standards.
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[bookmark: _Toc286932721][bookmark: _Toc416256116]Goals of the Fuels Monitoring Program

Fuels treatments are implemented for two primary reasons.  One is to alter fire behavior and risk by reducing or rearranging fuel loads in order to protect communities, municipal watersheds, and key wildlife habitat; and the second is to improve ecological resiliency.  

Fuels treatments alter fire behavior and fire effects by altering vegetation composition and structure.  These changes also affect other resource values such as wildlife habitat, grazing availability and other vegetation management considerations.  Nevertheless, altering fire behavior or fire effects is the primary consideration in all fuels treatments, and the primary objective in fuels treatment NEPA documents. Assessing fire hazards and fuel loading does not monitor fire behavior directly, since treatments may not be affected by wildfire for many years, if ever.  However, changes in fuel loading can be used for modeling changes in predicted fire behavior.  Monitoring other first order effects (see Fuels Indicators: First and Second Order Effects page 11) can also help predict vegetation response following treatment.  

Ecological resiliency is the ability of an ecosystem to recover naturally following disturbance such as wildland fire.  The key to ecosystem resiliency is a diverse understory, consisting predominantly of perennial species, which promotes soil stability and resistance to invasive species like cheatgrass. Assessing ecological resiliency, or how the ecosystem responds to disturbance/treatments, is critical for understanding the impacts of fuel treatments while providing feedback for adaptive management.   

The goal of this monitoring strategy is to evaluate the effectiveness of fuel treatments in modifying fire behavior/risk and improving ecological resiliency by implementing an efficient, practical, and feasible set of monitoring protocols.  



[bookmark: _Toc286932722][bookmark: _Toc416256117]To monitor fire hazard:



· Establish minimum requirements for quantitative monitoring.

· Provide guidance and standard protocols for conducting qualitative monitoring.

· Provide a systematic, standardized set of protocols for monitoring direct (first order) treatment effects that allow data and information sharing between units and agencies.



[bookmark: _Toc286932723][bookmark: _Toc416256118]To monitor ecological resiliency:



· Establish core indicators to monitor both first and second order treatment effects and identify standard protocols for measuring those indicators.

· Establish minimum requirements for quantitative monitoring.

· Provide guidance and standard protocols for conducting qualitative monitoring.

[bookmark: _Toc416256119][bookmark: _Toc286928884]Chapter 3 - Key Indicators for Measuring Fuels Treatment Effectiveness 

One of the benefits of the protocols identified in this strategy is the potential to measure key indicators that are relevant not only to fuels but will also inform other resource disciplines (i.e. range, wildlife, etc).  In an effort to integrate fuels monitoring with other resource disciplines the Utah Fuels Monitoring Strategy focuses on key indicators, from current national and state monitoring strategies, that are widely applicable across disciplines. 



[bookmark: _Toc416256120]National Strategy - Assessment, Inventory and Monitoring (AIM)

In recent years the BLM initiated the Assessment, Inventory and Monitoring (AIM) Strategy to respond to requests from the administration and Congress for better information about the condition of the public lands and address shortcomings in natural resource data collection “specific to vegetation and supporting ecological components of soil and water.”  This was in response to a 2004 OMB analysis of the BLMs resource protection activities where the OMB directed the BLM to: 1) analyze its monitoring activities and; 2) develop and implement a monitoring strategy.  The AIM strategy is consistent with the Integrated Vegetation Management (IVM) Handbook (1740-2) where much of its terminology is defined.

The AIM strategy identified four ecological attributes (Taylor et. al., 2014) that are universally relevant to upland sites:

· Soil/Site Stability

· Hydrologic Function

· Biotic Integrity

· Landscape Integrity

To measure these ecological attributes, the AIM strategy began to standardize resource data collection by identifying a core set of indicators that could be used across programs and be shared with partners at various scales (local, regional and national).  Understanding and managing vegetation and ecological processes are fundamental to developing and implementing AIM standards. 

In 2008, scientists of the USDA-ARS Jornada Experimental Range, drawing from the lessons learned from the AIM program, coordinated with both BLM and outside experts to identify a set of core terrestrial indicators.  These indicators can be applied across rangeland, forest and riparian ecosystems to evaluate ecosystem health (Herrick and Pyke, 2009).  A set of six core indicators were identified and recommended (MacKinnon et. Al., 2011), that allow data to be integrated and analyzed across field office, district and state boundaries (Table 1). These indicators reflect fundamental changes in ecosystem health, as well as specific changes in wildlife habitat, soil stability, and vegetation productivity.  Incorporating these key indicators into the Utah Fuels Monitoring Strategy will help to assess ecological resiliency and maintain integration with other resource monitoring efforts that typically monitor solely for indirect effects (i.e. second order treatment effects).  



		Table 1.  Six Terrestrial Indicators



		Indicator

		Protocol



		Bare Ground

		Line-point Intercept



		Vegetation Composition

		Line-point Intercept



		Non-native Invasive Plant Species

		Line-point Intercept



		Plant Species of Management Concern

		Line-point Intercept



		Vegetation Height

		Measuring Stick



		Proportion of Soil Surface in Large Intercanopy Gaps

		Canopy Gap Intercept
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In 2010, the BLM Utah State Office completed an effort to standardize range monitoring across the state. The Utah Monitoring Manual for Upland Rangelands (H-4400-1) is the product of that effort.  The manual provides the official guidance to the Utah BLM Range program for assessing specific ecological attributes by measuring the associated indicators using a minimum monitoring standard. 

The manual draws heavily from the Utah Standards and Guidelines for Healthy Rangelands (USGHR) document, the Monitoring Manual for Grassland, Shrubland and Savanna Ecosystems Volume II and the Interpreting Indicators of Rangeland Health Technical Reference.  

Standards one and three, from the USGHR, are the most relevant to the fuels program since they are applied to upland areas.



Standard 1.  Upland soils exhibit permeability and infiltration rates that sustain or improve site productivity, considering the soil type, climate, and landform. 



Standard 3.  Desired species, including native, threatened, endangered, and special-status species, are maintained at a level appropriate for the site and species involved.



Three ecological attributes/processes and a series of indicators are associated with each standard that are nearly identical to those identified by the AIM program.  Detailed information regarding the ecological attributes/processes can be found in the Utah Monitoring Manual for Upland Rangelands (p. 17-21).  A brief summary of the range monitoring protocols and associated trend indicators are presented in table 2.



		Table 2.  Monitoring Protocols and Associated Quantitative Trend Indicator(s)



		Nested Plot Frequency

		Line-Point Intercept

		Trend Photographs

		Soil Stability 
Test

		Imagery



		% Frequency of Occurrence

		% Foliar Canopy Cover

		Landscape and Photo Plot Comparisons

		Soil Stability Class Comparisons

		NAIP Imagery Comparisons



		

		% Basal Cover

		Change over time

		

		



		

		% Bare Ground

		

		

		



		

		% Total Ground Cover

		

		

		



		

		% Total Litter

		

		

		



		

		% Biological Crusts

		

		

		



		

		% Vegetation Cover

		

		

		



		

		% Cover by Species

		

		

		



		

		% Species Composition by Cover
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Fuels indicators are drawn from the aforementioned monitoring efforts to maintain consistency across disciplines where possible. Additional indicators that are specific to the fuels program are also included.  However, unlike other disciplines fuels indicators are divided into first and second order effects.

First order indicators are those that are directly or immediately a result of wildland fire or fuels management treatments.  One example would be the change in fuel loading as a result of a fire. 

Second order effects are often focused on vegetation response.  Since changes in plant communities are often the first detectable changes in an area, they provide the earliest indication that management actions may be causing impacts that affect the area’s long-term potential. Therefore, understanding how management activities affect vegetation is a vital component of this monitoring plan.  

The first and second order effects that this monitoring plan will focus on include bare soil, plant species composition, weed species, key species, percent foliar canopy cover, percent litter cover, percent total ground cover, frcc, and fuel loading.  Table 3 shows a more comprehensive list of fuels indicators and the method used to quantify them and how they fit within the contexts of first/second order effects, fire risk/ecological resiliency, and ecological processes/attributes.   



		Table 3.  Fuels Indicators

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		Indicator

		Fire/Fuels Attribute

		Ecological Processes/Attribute

		Order



		

		Fire Risk

		Ecological Resiliency

		Soil Stability

		Hydrologic Condition

		Biotic Integrity, Energy and Nutrient

		First Order

		Second Order



		Fuel loading

		X

		

		

		

		

		Yes

		No



		Pile Density

		X

		 

		 

		 

		 

		Yes

		No



		Snags

		X

		

		

		

		X

		Yes

		Yes



		FRCC

		 

		X

		 

		 

		 

		Yes

		No



		Mastication Mulch Depth

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		Yes

		No



		Bare Soil

		 

		X

		X

		X

		X

		Yes

		Yes



		Plant Species Composition

		

		X

		

		X

		X

		No

		Yes



		Weed Species

		 

		X

		 

		X

		X

		No

		Yes



		Key Species

		

		X

		

		X

		X

		No

		Yes



		% Foliar Canopy Cover

		X

		X

		X

		X

		X

		Yes

		Yes



		% Litter Cover

		X

		X

		

		X

		X

		Yes

		Yes



		% Total Ground Cover

		 

		 

		X

		X

		X

		No

		Yes



		Vegetation Height

		X

		

		

		

		X

		Yes

		No



		Soil Heating

		 

		 

		X

		X

		X

		Yes

		No



		Tree Mortality

		

		

		

		

		X

		Yes

		No



		Smoke Emissions

		 

		 

		 

		 

		 

		Yes

		No
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[bookmark: _Toc286928875]Monitoring Program Basics

The Utah Fuels Monitoring Strategy is designed to provide consistent scientific data collection while still being feasible given the typical constraints on time and money.  This is achieved by combining simple monitoring methods with varying levels of sampling intensity and participation.  This general approach has gained acceptance within the Oregon BLM and several Utah BLM fire management units.  This approach is being implemented in other disciplines, notably in the National Wildlife Habitat Monitoring Guide.  

The basic precepts of a sound monitoring program are:

· Project objectives should be clearly defined and attainable. 

· Monitoring should be focused on determining whether project objectives were met.

· Monitoring should be designed within the context of the entire fuels and vegetation management programs for a given agency and unit.

· The program should be practical with reasonable costs and based on a set of core indicators, not on “wish lists.”

· The monitoring program should be suitable for both forest and rangeland ecosystems.

· This monitoring program will not replace already existing and established monitoring programs in other disciplines, but instead coordinate with and supplement them.

· Data standards will include those needed by all resource areas that may participate in the program, sometimes requiring that data be collected using more than one method.



It is also important to identify common pitfalls that ensnare monitoring programs so that they can be avoided.



[bookmark: _Toc416256124]Common PitfallsCommon pitfalls:



· The monitoring is never completed.

· The information or data are collected but never analyzed.

· The information or data are analyzed but the results are inconclusive.

· The information or data are collected and analyzed but never presented to decision makers or used to guide adaptive management.

· The information or data are analyzed and presented for use but not used due to internal or external factors.

· The data or analyses are filed in locations where it cannot be found by others.

· The data or analyses are filed on media that become obsolete without transfer to non-obsolete media.



While not all of these scenarios are completely unavoidable, the intent of this strategy is to completely avoid the first two scenarios and minimize the occurrence of the other five.



Basic Monitoring Approaches

Implementation Monitoring: Implementation monitoring is the most basic type of monitoring and simply determines whether planned activities have been implemented in the manner prescribed by the plan. Specific thresholds or indicators have not been established for implementation monitoring.



Effectiveness Monitoring: Effectiveness monitoring determines if the implementation of activities has achieved the desired goals and objectives. Effectiveness monitoring answers the question: Were the specified activities successful in achieving the objective? This requires knowledge of the objectives established in the planning document as well as indicators that can be measured. Indicators are established by technical specialists in order to address specific questions, and thus avoid collection of unnecessary data. Success is measured against the benchmark of achieving the objectives (desired future conditions) established by the plan.  Effectiveness monitoring data gathered over time is examined and used to draw conclusions on whether management actions are meeting objectives, and if not, why. Conclusions are then used to make recommendations on whether to continue current management or to identify what changes need to be made in management practices to meet objectives.



Validation Monitoring: Validation monitoring determines whether predicted cause-and-effect relationships are valid. It confirms whether the predicted results occurred and if assumptions and models used to develop the plan are correct. This type of monitoring is often done by contract with another agency, academic institution, or other entity, and is usually expensive and time consuming since results often are not known for many years.



The majority of the monitoring for fuels projects will be implementation and effectiveness monitoring. However, this document focuses primarily on effectiveness monitoring.



[bookmark: _Toc286928877][bookmark: _Toc416256125]Monitoring Intensity Levels

The Utah Fuels Monitoring Strategy incorporates three levels of monitoring intensity.  The lowest intensity level (Level 1) requires the project to be captured in a spatial dataset (i.e. shapefile, feature class). Low intensity monitoring would generally be better suited to common projects whose effects are well understood through previous high intensity monitoring. The middle level of monitoring intensity (Level 2) employs simple qualitative monitoring methods which provide baseline information with a small time investment.  The highest intensity level (Level 3) utilizes quantitative monitoring methods and requires more time to implement but provides more information about the treatment.  Certain high-profile, controversial, or new projects (e.g. new treatment, new ecological site, etc) would benefit from high intensity monitoring efforts.  Incorporating various monitoring intensity levels into the Utah Fuels Monitoring Strategy provides flexibility to monitoring personnel but maintains statewide data consistency across projects. 

For the purposes of this strategy “project” means the collection of treatments  units and activities covered by a single environmental decision document where project-level NEPA analysis was conducted, or an individual treatment unit where programmatic-level NEPA analysis was conducted.  Each fire management unit can select the projects at their discretion.  If the treatment regimen involves several treatment types, such as thinning, piling, and burning, then visits at different stages of the regimen may be useful, particularly for treatment methods that are new to the unit or that have environmental concerns associated with particular elements of the regimen.  However, no post-treatment qualitative or quantitative monitoring is required until after the final activity is completed, exclusive of subsequent maintenance treatments.



[bookmark: _Toc286928879][bookmark: _Toc416256126]Intensity Level 1	Comment by Bissonette, Gabriel J: 	Comment by Bissonette, Gabriel J: This is a subheading under Monitoring Intensity Levels



Intensity Level 1 will be applied to ALL fuels projects without exception.  The intent of this monitoring is to ensure that treatment units are digitally mapped.  This level requires that a spatial dataset be created to capture the footprint of the treatment, subsequent treatments and associated attributes.  Spatial data shall consist of a Geographic Information System (GIS) polygon layer (i.e. shapefile or feature class) and attributes consistent with the Submission of Vegetation Treatments, Wildfire Perimeters, Inventory/Monitoring, and other Disturbance Data Instruction Memorandum (IM# number 2014-005;  http://web.blm.gov/internal/wo-500/directives/dir-14/im2014-005.html; http://web.blm.gov/internal/fire/fpfm/dmr.html).  All other vegetation treatments should adhere to existing agency spatial data standards.

[bookmark: _Toc286928880]
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Intensity Level 2 is a medium intensity qualitative methodology that should be applied to the majority of the fuel treatment units.  This level consists of the Level 1 protocol, a fuel loading determination, the standard qualitative assessment forms, an ecosite determination, and photopoints (Table 4).  For the fuels program, the Prescribed Fire Report included as part of the burn plan under the interagency template can provide a method for collecting intensity level 2 information both pre- and post- treatment for prescribed fires.  This report can be used for pile burns as well as broadcast burns by altering some of the elements.









		Table 4.  Intensity Level 2 Protocols.



		Minimum Standard Protocols

		Measured Indicators



		Intensity Level 1 Protocol

		Spatial Footprint



		Fuels Photo Guide and/or FCCS

		Fuel Loading



		Site Condition Scoresheet 

		Bare Soil



		Species Richness and Abundance

		Plant Species Composition



		

		Key Species



		

		Weed Species



		Ecosite Determination 

		Ecological Context



		Photopoints*

		Change Over Time1,000 Words



		*see discussion below

		































Fuels Photo Guide	Comment by Bissonette, Gabriel J: This is a sub-sub heading under Intensity Level 2.

One of the primary direct (i.e. first-order effects) is the change in fuel loading resulting from a fuels treatment.  Fuel loading determinations will be made using one of the following semi-quantitative references.  Instructions are provided with each resource and will not be duplicated here. 



· Stebleton, A. and S. Bunting. 2009. Guide for Quantifying Fuels in Sagebrush Steppe and Juniper Woodlands of the Great Basin. Technical Note 430. Bureau of Land Management, Denver, CO, BLM/ID/PT-09/002+2824. 81p.



· Bourne, A. and S. Bunting. 2011. Guide for Quantifying Post-treatment Fuels in Sagebrush Steppe and Juniper Woodlands of the Great Basin. Technical Note 437.  Bureau of Land Management, Denver, CO, BLM/ID/PT-11/003+2824. 115p.





· FCCS - An Overview of the Fuel Characteristic Classification System – Quantifying, Classifying, and Creating Fuelbeds for Resource Planning.  Ottmar, R.D., Sandberg, D.V., Riccardi, C.L.,  Prichard, S.J. 2007.  Canadian Journal of Forest Research. 37(12): 2383-2393.



· Ottmar, Roger D., Vihnanek, Robert E., Regelbrugge, Jon C. 2000. Stereo photo series for quantifying natural fuels. Volume IV: pinyon-juniper, sagebrush, and chaparral types in the Southwestern United States. PMS 833. Boise, ID: National Wildfire Coordinating Group, National Interagency Fire Center. 97 p.





Qualitative Assessment Forms

Qualitative assessments are based on general observations rather than measurements of specific attributes or characteristics.  Qualitative measures are intended to provide descriptive information without significant investment in time or resources.  Although not statistically defensible, qualitative data collected in a standardized format can provide valuable information for documenting both short and long-term trends.  There are two qualitative assessment forms located in Appendix B that are used to formalize the ocular “drive-through” monitoring commonly performed within the BLM; the Species Richness and Abundance Form and the Site Condition Scoresheet (SCS).  Using the SCS worksheet provides consistency with the Utah BLM range program because it is a subset of one of the surveys within the Utah Monitoring Manual for Upland Rangelands 



Species Richness and Abundance Form.  	Comment by Bissonette, Gabriel J: This is a sub-sub-sub heading under intensity level 3

The Species Richness and Abundance Form is used in conjunction with the photopoints to provide qualitative information about presence and abundance of species located within a project area.  Species richness is simply a count of the number of individual species present on a site.  Abundance tells how much of each species is present relative to others.  It can also be used to supplement quantitative data methods such as Line Point Intercept. To populate the data sheet, simply list the species that are present and give a rating between 1 and 5 based on relative abundance (Table 5; see Appendix B Table 8).  

	

		Table 5. Excerpt from the Species  Richness and Abundance Qualitative Assessment.



		Class Code

		Description

		Clarification



		5. Dominant

		> 50% cover

		Only one plant can receive this rating.  Not all plots will have clearly dominant plants.



		4. Subdominant or codominant

		25-50% cover

		More than 1 plant can receive this rating.  Annual and perennial forbs are rarely subdominant.



		3. Common

		5-25% cover

		Easily seen without walking around.  If cover is < 5% then the plant has high frequency and density (e.g. small annual forbs).



		2. Sparse

		<5% cover

		Scattered plants within the plot that are easy to spot when walking around.



		1. Rare

		1-5 plants in plot

		Very few plants in the plot.  You have to hunt around the plot to find them.







Site Condition Scoresheet.

  The Site Condition Scoresheet (SCS; Appendix B) is a subset of the Rangeland Health Evaluation Summary Worksheet (RHESW) that has been modified to fit the needs of fuels monitoring.  The RHESW comes from the Interpreting Indicators of Rangeland Health (IIRH). The SCS is a qualitative measurement of the ecological health of a site and should be filled out in conjunction with each photo point that is established within a project area.  Site condition scores can be averaged across all plots within an ecological site to give an overall description of that ecological site (Appendix B).  



Qualitative Assessment Photopoints

.   In each project selected for qualitative monitoring, three or more permanent photopoints should be established in representative locations. Each photopoint shall be marked in a manner that allows the same scene to be revisited after treatment (e.g. permanent t-post) and its location recorded with a GPS.  If using a t-post, it is helpful to align the ribbed side of the t-post in the north direction and the flanged sides aligned in the remaining cardinal directions.  In revisiting a site for later photos, take the previous photo into the field to aid in relocating the site as well as in reframing the next image to match the previous image as closely as possible.

Once the photopoint location is established photographs should be taken in each of the four cardinal directions using the T-post as a “tripod”.  Using a whiteboard/marker or chalkboard/chalk, record the date, project name (include phase if applicable), project status (pre- or post- treatment), plot number, and transect identifier (0°, 90°, 180° or 270°).  When taking the photo, lean the whiteboard on a chaining pin 15’ away from the T-post.   The whiteboard should be centered if possible and in the lower 1/3rd of the photo.  Photos should be taken with a digital camera.  View your photo after taking it to ensure that the writing on the whiteboard is visible.  If it is unreadable, adjust the whiteboard to reduce glare and retake the photo.



Three photopoint guides (Appendix D) are stored in the BLM sharepoint site (https://blmspace.blm.doi.net/ut/fuelsspec/_layouts/viewlsts.aspx) under:

“Shared Documents”  “Utah State Office Fuels Management”  “Monitoring” 

These guides are provided to aid in developing useful photopoints in uplands and riparian areas. Although these guides are largely oriented towards long-term monitoring with photos, they provide useful information for short-term monitoring as well.



Landscape Photopoints.

At least one landscape photo should be taken to capture the “big picture” or overall character of the treatment. These types of photographs help to illustrate the larger scale change that results from the treatment and can provide helpful examples when trying to convey project outcomes to the public. These photos do not need to be randomly located and therefore the locations are up to the discretion of the monitoring staff.  However, the photopoints do need to be permanently monumented and locations collected with a GPS.  No qualitative assessments are required for these types of photographs. 
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Intensity level 3 is the highest level of monitoring intensity and is required for a minimum of one project per year Table 6. Each fire management unit (i.e. BLM Fire Zone) with a hazardous fuels program should sample at least one project per year with 3 to 10 plots established per project.  A key to assist practitioners in determining which level of monitoring should be employed for a given project is shown in Appendix A.  Specifically, which project will be the best candidate for Intensity Level 3 monitoring.  In some cases, treatment implementation constraints might reduce the number of projects sampled at Intensity Level 3.  In that instance a request for monitoring fewer projects will be made to the State Fuels Management Specialist.  

The intent of this strategy is to start quantitative monitoring on a minimum of one project; the timing of the post-treatment monitoring is dependent on the time it takes to complete the treatment.  No post-treatment quantitative monitoring is required until after the final activity is completed, exclusive of subsequent maintenance treatments.  For example, if the full treatment consists of mechanical plus prescribed fire, post-treatment quantitative monitoring is not required until after the prescribed fire was declared out.



		Table 6.  Intensity Level 3 Protocols.



		Minimum Standard Protocols

		Measured Indicators



		Intensity Level 1 Protocol

		Spatial Footprint



		Fuels Photo Guide and/or FCCS

		Fuel Loading



		Ecological Site Determination

		Ecological Context



		Photopoints

		1,000 WordsChange Over Time



		FRCC

		FRCC



		Line-point Intercept

		% Bare Soil



		

		Plant Species Composition



		

		Weed Species



		

		Key Species



		

		% Foliar Canopy Cover



		

		% Litter Cover



		

		% Total Ground Cover



		Nested Frequency or 

Species Richness and Abundance

		Plant Species Composition



		

		Key Species



		

		Weed Species



		*see discussion below

		


















		Table 7.  Fuels Indicators Monitoring Method Summary



		Indicator

		Method

		Intensity Level 



		

		

		1

		2

		3



		Fuel loading

		Photo Series, Brown's Planar

		NA

		X

		X



		Pile Density

		Belt Transect 

		NA

		 

		Opt



		Snags

		Belt Transect

		NA

		

		Opt



		FRCC

		FRCC Method

		NA

		 

		X



		Mastication Mulch Depth

		Ruler

		NA

		

		Opt



		Bare Soil

		Line-point, SCS

		NA

		X

		X



		Plant Species Composition

		Line-point, SRA Form

		NA

		X

		X



		Weed Species

		Line-point, SRA & SCS Forms 

		NA

		X

		X



		Key Species

		Line-point; Frequency

		NA

		X

		X



		% Foliar Canopy Cover

		Line-Point

		NA

		 

		X



		% Litter Cover

		Line-point

		NA

		

		X



		% Total Ground Cover

		Line-point

		NA

		 

		X



		Vegetation Height

		Line-point

		NA

		

		Opt



		Soil Heating

		Soil Thermometers

		NA

		 

		Opt



		Tree Mortality

		Belt Density

		NA

		X

		Opt



		Smoke Emissions

		Consume, FOFEM, SASEM

		NA

		 

		Opt








Line-Point Intercept.  

The line-point intercept method is the only quantitative monitoring required as part of the level three minimum standards. It is a relatively simple and rapid protocol that provides accurate and objective vegetation and ground cover data. Line-point intercept can be used to address the direct effects of fuels treatments.  For example, this method can quantify changes in cover of pinyon-juniper or bare soil directly resulting from a fuels treatment.  Additionally, the data can be used to quantify four of the six important terrestrial indicators identified by Herrick et al (2005).  In general, this method is employed to provide a rapid quantitative assessment of changes in the dominant species, vegetation composition, ground cover, and other first- and second-order effects related to fuels treatments.  





Nested Frequency.  

Frequency is the number of times a plant species occurs within a given number of quadrats.  In other words, frequency measures whether a species is present or not and is usually expressed as a percentage.  Frequency data is often used to monitor trends over time based on changes in vegetation composition. Frequency is also used to describe the distribution of a species within a community or across a landscape.  One of the challenges of assessing vegetation with frequency is that this measurement is completely depended on quadrat size. Challenges with quadrat size include:



· You can't really know until after a pilot study or after collecting data what an appropriate size will be.  You need a plot that samples a frequency between 20% and 80%. 

· Even if you select a quadrat size that works this year, the quadrat may become too big or too small as the vegetation community changes.

· A quadrat that is "just" right for one plant may be too big or too small for another species of interest.  



To overcome this "right size" problem, a nested frequency plot may be used where multiple plots are nested within one another.

Nested frequency monitoring has been used to sample rangelands in Utah for many decades and continues to be a core measurement identified in the Utah Monitoring Manual for Upland Rangelands for detecting long-term changes in composition and distribution of plant communities.  Refer to Appendix C for specific details on nested frequency methodology.



Macroplots.  



Level 3 Intensity requires the use of permanent (i.e. the same location) three spoke or single-transect plots for both pre- and post-treatment measures.  Using permanent plots reduces the potential variance by minimizing potential differences between pre- and post-treatment measurements thus reducing the number of plots needed for a sound analysis.  Three or more permanent plots should be established within the project area and marked with a T-post and flagged for visibility during treatment. These permanent plots should be left in place for sufficient time to ensure that monitoring/treatment objectives are met.  An example of a plot layout that is consistent with the standardization effort of the Emergency Stabilization and Rehabilitation Program (ESR) (Wirth and Pyke, 2007) and the AIM program is shown in Appendix E.  

  

Locations of permanent macroplots should be located using a stratified random approach that establishes plots in representative areas that are feasible to navigate to location.  The basic assumption of any statistical analysis is that the sampling occurred randomly.  Macroplots not located randomly cannot be analyzed using statistical methods and limits the ability to perform landscape level analysis.  Stratification is the process of dividing the project area up into relatively homogenous groups (i.e. strata) prior to sampling.  This process helps to maximize statistical inference by reducing the variation in the data introduced by analyzing dissimilar areas together.  



An example of stratified random sampling is provided in Appendix E using the Utah BLM Enterprise Geographic Information System (EGIS).  In this example, the project area is divided into strata along soil types/ecological site boundaries.  One can reasonably assume that the effects of a single treatment type (e.g. mastication) could be different between soil types/ecological sites with different soils, plant community composition or ecological potential.  Using stratification, the two co-dominant ecological sites comprising the majority of the treatment area are divided into separate strata and a random sample collected from each (i.e. ecological site).  Ecological sites are but one example of stratification.  Examples of other stratification approaches include:  phase of woodland succession (phase 1-3), level of pinyon-juniper encroachment, tree density, slope, aspect or previously burned/unburned areas.  This is not an exhaustive list and selecting the appropriate strata should be done at the local level and be project/treatment specific.


Once the strata are identified, random sample points should be generated that are both representative and accessible.  One way to generate a set of random sample locations within a given strata is to use the Create Random Points tool in ArcGIS.  Once a set of random points is generated it is helpful to apply a series of rejection criteria to eliminate locations that aren’t representative or are difficult to travel to.  Rejection criteria are project specific but a generic list might include: farther than ½ mile for from a road/trail; located on a rock-outcrop, road or drill pad.  To maintain objectivity, rejection criteria should be established before the random points are generated, not as you begin to apply them.



The monitoring plots must be digitally mapped for use within GIS software.  Mapping monitoring plots typically utilizes one of two approaches; (1) the final locations of t-posts and rebar can be recorded using a GPS unit or mobile device in the field after they are installed; (2) the locations of t-posts and rebar can initially be laid out in GIS and a GPS/mobile device can be used to navigate to the correct locations where the monuments need to be installed.  All spatial data need to be gathered using the UTM NAD83 Zone 12 North coordinate system.

  

For those who are interested in the various methods available to measure vegetation, several monitoring guides have been placed in the BLM Sharepoint site under the Monitoring folder.  For the fuels program, the Prescribed Fire Report included as part of the burn plan under the interagency template can provide a method for collecting intensity level 2 information both pre- and post- treatment for prescribed fires.  This report can be used for pile burns as well as broadcast burns by altering some of the elements.



[bookmark: _Toc416256129]Database Management



The Database for Inventory, Monitoring, and Assessment (DIMA) will be used to compile the quantitative data.  DIMA is a free, interagency funded Microsoft Access-based monitoring database and therefore requires no IT privileges to install.  It offers a simple user interface, tablet PC and keyboard input modes, drop-down menus, calculations/reports and automated species lists from the USDA-NRCS plants database. 

http://jornada.nmsu.edu/monit-assess/dima/info



[bookmark: _Toc416256130]Fire Regime Condition Class Monitoring



Fire Regime Condition Class (FRCC) is most useful as a planning tool to identify/prioritize treatment areas that have departed from their historic fire regimes.  Periodically, updating Fire Management Plans (FMP) with changes in FRCC resulting from successful implementation of fuels projects may be important.

FRCC is not a classification of fire hazard or risk, which has traditionally been used to characterize fire condition. Thus, it is often misused to represent fire severity or resistance to control. In cases where determining fire severity or resistance to control is the objective, FRCC is not the appropriate measure.







[bookmark: _Toc416256131]Further Integration of Fuels Monitoring With Other Resources

As previously mentioned one of the overarching goals of this monitoring strategy is to promote interdisciplinary coordination and sharing of monitoring data and information between fire and resource staffs.  One place to begin this integration is during project planning.  Interdisciplinary teams should discuss what monitoring is needed pertinent to the treatment objectives and specific treatment prescriptions.  This discussion should also cover funding, assistance in plot establishment and data collection, timelines and expectations, and the final product anticipated.  We recommend that level 3 monitoring be discussed during project planning so that the hazardous fuels program can be prepared and funding requested if that particular project is selected for level 3 monitoring.



A component of an interdisciplinary approach includes cost sharing.  Costs of collecting the data should be distributed across the disciplines that want or need the data, taking into account the primary purpose and objectives of a given project.  If the primary purpose is hazardous fuels reduction in a rangeland setting and shrub cover is not included in the project objectives, yet range management would like to know how shrub cover or dominant species changes, then the range program would pay to collect shrub information.  On the same project, if range or wildlife management wanted to know how some aspect of vegetation not directly related to project objectives, such as how production of a key forage species changed, then the range or wildlife program would pay to collect that information.  The discipline tied to the primary purpose of a given project would pay for plot installation while other disciplines would pay for collecting information not directly tied to the primary purpose.  For example, on a hazardous fuels project, the fuels program would pay for plot installation and primary fuels data collection while other disciplines would pay for any additional information collected to support programs other than the hazardous fuels program.



[bookmark: _Toc286928885][bookmark: _Toc416256132]Chapter 5 - Implementation & Training

Level 1 and level 2 monitoring should be relatively easy and inexpensive to complete and implement with existing personnel.  Level 3 monitoring will incur more costs.  Estimates obtained from the field indicate costs of $125-400 per plot, depending on a variety of factors and assuming 3 hours to establish and read a plot.  Subsequent years will be less because the plot is already established.  The actual costs will vary depending on who actually conducts the monitoring, the level of botanical expertise required of the monitors, and the amount of data collected.  Costs may also fluctuate from year-to-year depending on the timing of pre- and post-treatment data collection in relation to the timing of treatment completion.  These estimates do not include the additional time needed to manage the monitoring program and analyze the data collected.

There are several approaches to conducting level 3 monitoring.  Some approaches include BLM personnel, IDIQ contracts, multi-party or third party monitors, youth corps, volunteers or some combination of all the approaches.  Use of multi-party or third party monitors is already encouraged by various elements of the National Fire Plan.  Units with small programs may elect to combine their monitoring programs with other units in order to leverage scarce funds with a single person managing the program for multiple units.

This task force has established the core attributes and data standards.  Refinement of those core attributes may occur, in the future, with the assistance of local fuels and resource specialists.  As much as possible, fire-related monitoring should integrate with other resource monitoring to reduce overall costs, increase efficiency, and better tie first order effects to second order effects.  Individual projects are required to monitor all core attributes on every project that is selected for quantitative monitoring.  Although monitoring of additional attributes is encouraged where applicable.

In order to summarize quantitative monitoring results at the State Office level, we will develop a method for compiling the vegetation data collected and entered into the DIMA database.  The State Office will assume responsibility for designing collection methods so that units will not need to deal with IT security issues.  The intent is to develop a protocol that requires minimal effort at the field level to forward data.

The first year will be a pilot This monitoring strategy is a dynamic document and may be updated, changed or adjusted following feedback from users. to allow us to adjust the protocols based on these results.  Data will be summarized at the fire management unit level to determine what changes, if any are needed.  We expect that any changes will be of the nature of fine-tuning rather than major.  While we expect that many of the data management particulars will be handled adequately by DIMA, we will also develop additional direction as needed to cover data stewarding, including data storage, requirements for consistency and other specifics as need arises.

Training for various aspects of this monitoring strategy may be advantageous but will be at the expense of the home unit.  Training related to ecosite determination, qualitative or quantitative field methodologies may be organized through the state office if the need exists.
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[bookmark: _Toc416256133][bookmark: _Toc286928887]Appendix A:  Key for Choosing Between Intensity Level 2 and Intensity Level 3

[bookmark: _Toc416256134]Monitoring Level 2 vs. Level 3

This key will assist in determining the projects to be monitored at Intensity Level 3 to meet the minimum number of projects per Fire fire Zonemanagement unit.  Answer each criterion with a ‘yes’ or ‘no’.  If the intensity Llevel 2 section has more ‘yes’ answers, that treatment unit is a good candidate for that level of monitoring.  If the intensity Llevel 3 section has more ‘yes’ answers, that treatment unit may not be a good candidate for intensity Llevel 2 monitoring.





		Intensity Level 2 vs Intensity Level 3 Go/No-Go Checklist



		[bookmark: _Toc286928888]Comparison or evaluation isare more important than description?

		YES   NO



		The project is controversial?

		YES   NO



		Expected project effects are somewhat uncertain for the type of treatment?

		YES   NO



		Treatment type is new relative to the Unit or the ecosystem?

		YES   NO



		Treatment regimen is complex (3 or more treatments in combination)?

		YES   NO



		Access into treatment area is more or less unlimited by time of year, travel method, or other factors?

		YES   NO



		If you selected Yes more than No you should use Level 3 monitoring.  Otherwise use Leve 2 monitoring.







Intensity Level 2



· Description is more important than comparison or evaluation

· Project is not controversial

· Expected project effects are typical for the type of treatment

· Treatment type is routine relative to the Unit or ecosystem

· Treatment regimen is simple (1-2 treatments in combination)

· Access into the treatment area is limited by time of year, travel method, or other factors



[bookmark: _Toc286928889]Intensity Level 3



· Comparison or evaluation is more important than description

· Project is controversial

· Expected project effects are at least somewhat uncertain

· Treatment type is new relative to the unit or ecosystem

· Treatment regimen is complex (3 or more treatments in combination)

· Access into the treatment area is more-or-less unlimited
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[bookmark: _Toc416256135]Appendix B: Implementation Protocols for Qualitative Sampling

[bookmark: _Toc416256136]Site Condition Scoresheet

Site condition is a qualitative measurement of the ecological health of a site.  Site condition of each plot will be rated using a site characteristics score card.  Characteristics evaluated are functional/structural groups, perennial plant reproduction and vigor, invasive species, bare ground and soil stability (Table 1.).  Where multiple plots exist within a project, site condition scores should be averaged across all plots.   

Site condition scores are presented out of a maximum score of 24.  Ratings between 22 and 24 are classified in excellent condition.  Sites in excellent condition have functional/structural groups and/or species diversity that closely match what would be expected for the site.  Sites in excellent condition are further characterized by stable soils with little or no signs of erosion; perennial species are dominant, recruiting and healthy; exotic annuals are virtually absent.  Decreasing condition scores indicate a departure from expected functionality and species diversity, a decline in the abundance and/or health of perennial species, increased exotic annual presence, and visible signs of soil erosion (ratings between 18-21 = Good; 14-17 = Fair).  Sites in poor or very poor condition (scores 11-13 and <11 respectively) are drastically different from reference conditions and are characterized by obvious erosion or high susceptibility to erosion, and annual plants dominate to the point of exclusion or near exclusion of perennial species.  Perennial species present are in decline and/or decadent.

Table 1. Site Condition Score sheet

		SITE CONDITION SCORE SHEET

		

		

		

		

		



		Indicators

		Very High

		High or Abundant

		Moderate or Common

		Slight or Low

		None



		1. Amount of bare ground

		0

		1

		2

		3

		4



		     - Comments:



		2. Evidence of active erosion (gullies, rills, pedestaling, water flow patterns)

		0

		1

		2

		3

		4



		     - Comments:



		3. Departure of functional/structural groups from site description or  appropriate historical plant community

		0

		1

		2

		3

		4



		     - Comments:



		4. Reduction in perennial plant recruitment (reproduction)

		0

		1

		2

		3

		4



		     - Comments:



		5. Amount of plant mortality and decadence

		0

		1

		2

		3

		4



		     - Comments:



		6. Presence of invasive plants (including noxious)

		0

		1

		2

		3

		4



		     - Comments:



		24 to 22 = Excellent;  21 to 18 = Good;  17 to 14 = Fair;  13 to 11 = Poor;  <11= Very Poor 

		Total Score

		 







*Adapted from “Interpreting Indicators of Rangeland Health”, Technical Reference 1734-6; 2000. 



Table 2. Site Condition Score Sheet Descriptions



		SITE CONDITION SCORE SHEET - DESCRIPTIONS

		



		Indicator

		Description

		SCORE



		*Bare Ground

		Amount and size of bare areas nearly to completely match that expected for the site.

		4



		 

		Slightly to moderately higher than connected. Bare areas are small and rarely connected.  

		3



		 

		Moderately higher than expected.  Bare areas are of moderated size and sporadically connected.

		2



		 

		Moderate to much higher than expected. Bare areas large and occaisionally connected

		1



		 

		Much higher than expected.  Bare areas large and generally connected.

		0



		*Soil Stability:

		Minimal evidence of past or current soil erosion; past erosion healed.

		4



		 

		Some evidence of minor erosion; no recent formation of rills; current or past evidence of pedestalling uncommon.

		3



		 

		Erosion is minor; slight active pedestalling and rill formation; mostly in interspaces and/ or exposed areas. 

		2



		 

		Active erosion moderate; some pedestalling and/or rills present; localized; occasional exposed roots.

		1



		 

		Active erosion abundant and obvious; pedestalling and/or rills well defined and extensive; exposed roots common.

		0



		*Functional/Structural Groups (F/S Groups):

		F/S groups and number of species in each group closely match that expected for the site.

		4



		 

		Number of F/S groups slightly reduced; and/or relative dominance of F/S groups has been modified from that expected for the site; and/or number of species within F/S groups slightly reduced.

		3



		

		Number of F/S groups moderately reduced; and/or one or more subdominant F/S groups replaced by F/S groups not expected for the site; and/or number of species within F/S groups moderately reduced.

		2



		 

		Number of F/S groups reduced; and/or one dominant group and/or one or more subdominant groups replaced by F/S groups not expected for the site; and/or number of species within F/S groups significantly reduced.

		1



		 

		Number of F/S groups greatly reduced; and/or relative dominance of F/S groups has been dramatically altered; and/or number of species within F/S groups dramatically reduced.

		0



		*Plant Reproduction/Recruitment (perennials):

		Perennials dominant, obvious recruitment; various age classes present.

		4



		 

		Perennials dominant; some recruitment; mostly even-aged.

		3



		 

		Perennials present but not dominant; little to no recruitment.

		2



		 

		Perennials sparse; little to no recruitment.

		1



		 

		Perennials virtually absent, no recruitment.

		0



		*Plant Vigor:

		Perennials healthy, robust, not decadent, well rooted. 

		4



		 

		Slight perennial plant mortality and/or decadence.

		3



		 

		Some dead and/or decadent plants are present.

		2



		 

		Dead and/or decadent plants are somewhat common.

		1



		 

		Dead and/or decadent plants are common.

		0



		*Invasive Plants:

		Rarely present on the site.

		4



		 

		Present primarily on disturbed sites.

		3



		 

		Scattered throughout the site.

		2



		 

		Common throughout the site.

		1



		 

		Dominate the site.

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

The Species Richness and Abundance Form is used in conjunction with the photopoints to provide qualitative information about presence and abundance of species located within a project area.  Species richness is simply a count of the number of individual species present on a site.  Abundance tells how much of each species is present relative to others.  It can also be used to supplement quantitative data methods such as Line Point Intercept. To populate the data sheet, simply list the species that are present and give a rating between 1 and 5 based on relative abundance.

[image: ]

[bookmark: _Toc286928890]

[bookmark: _Toc416256137]Appendix C:  Implementation Protocols for Quantitative Sampling



The following appendix describes a sample plot layout and sampling protocol in addition to providing methodologies that may be used to assist in stratifying and randomizing monitoring locations.



[bookmark: _Toc286928891]Objective



The basic objective is to estimate the average change in key attributes as the result of fuel treatments.  The Fire Zone over a five year period is the smallest unit for which we want meaningful statistics.  Meaningful statistics are defined loosely as providing information that is of value to managers.  You can calculate meaningful statistics in a shorter time period by aggregating fire zones or across the state.





[bookmark: _Toc416256138]Plot Layout

1. Using a GPS, locate center of plot.  



2. Mark plot center with 5½’ t-post (make sure that the post is clearly flagged so that it can be avoided by equipment).



3. Establish 3, 100’ transects at 0⁰, 120⁰, and 240⁰.  Each transect begins 15’ from the t-post and extends 100’.  Mark each end of the transect with rebar and a rebar cap (make sure that rebar is nearly flush with the ground in bullhog sites to avoid puncturing tires).  The 15’ buffer around the t-post should be used as a staging area for gear and serves as the photo-point for each transect (Figure 1).  The zero end of the tape should always be closest to the t-post.  Tapes should be taut and as close to the ground as possible.



4. Once transects are established, 1 photo of each transect should be taken (3 total).  Using a whiteboard and marker, record the date, project name (include phase if applicable), project status (pre- or post- treatment), plot number, and transect identifier (0⁰, 120⁰, or 240⁰).  When taking the photo, place the board at the 0’ mark and stand with your back to the t-post.  The whiteboard should be centered if possible and in the lower 1/3rd of the photo.  Place a photo-reference-pole at the 25’ mark prior to taking the photo.  Photo’s should be taken with a digital camera.  View your photo after taking it to ensure that the writing on the whiteboard is visible.  If it is unreadable, adjust the whiteboard to reduce glare and 

retake the photo (Figure 2).





[image: ]

Figure 1. Three spoke design monitoring plot.







[image: ]

Figure 2. Photo point example.





























[bookmark: _Toc286928893]

[bookmark: _Toc416256139]Line-point Intercept



Line-point intercept* is a rapid, accurate method for quantifying soil cover, including vegetation, litter, rocks and biotic crusts. These measurements are related to wind and water erosion, water infiltration and the ability of the site to resist and recover from degradation. For a detailed discussion of this and other methods for measuring plant cover and/or composition, see Elzinga et al. 20012.  







Materials



• Measuring tape (100’)

• Pointers— 36” pin flag with the flag removed. 

• Clipboard, Line-Point Intercept Data Form and pencil(s). 



Standard methods (rule set)



1. Pull out the tape and anchor each end with a steel pin.

Rules

1.1 Line should be taut.

1.2 Line should be as close to the ground as possible (thread under shrubs using a steel pin as a needle; Figure 3).



2. Begin at the “0” end of the line.



3. Begin at the 2’ mark and read every 2’ through the 100’ mark (total of 50 pin drops per transect). Always stand on the same side of the line.



4. Drop a pin flag to the ground from a standard height of 5cm above herbaceous canopy next to the tape. 

Rules

4.1 The pin should be vertical.

4.2 The pin should be dropped from the same height above the vegetation each time. A low drop height minimizes “bounces” off of vegetation but

increases the possibility for bias.

4.3 Do not guide the pin all the way to the

ground. It is more important for the pin to

fall freely to the ground than to fall precisely on the mark.

4.4 If vegetation over the point is greater than arms-length, then the pin should never be dropped from higher than the height of the out-stretched arm.

[image: ]

Figure 3. Example of transect line.





4.5 If vegetation is above the height of the out-stretched arm, visualize the pin extending upward and determine whether the pin would hit the vegetation. 



5. Once the pin flag is flush with the ground, record every plant species it intercepts.

Rules

5.1 Record the species of the first stem, leaf or plant base intercepted in the “Top canopy” column using the PLANTS database species code http://plants.usda.gov/), a four-letter

code based on the first two letters of the

genus and species, or the common name.

5.2 If no leaf, stem or plant base is intercepted, record “NONE” in the “Top canopy” column (Table 1).



5.3 Record all additional species intercepted by the pin.

5.4 Record herbaceous litter as “L,” if present. Litter is defined as detached dead stems and leaves that are part of a layer that comes in contact with the ground. Record “W” for detached woody litter that is greater than 5 mm (or ~1/4 in) in diameter and in direct contact with soil.

5.5 Record each canopy species only once, even if it is intercepted several times.

5.6 If you can identify the genus, but not the species either use the PLANTS database genus code (http://plants.usda.gov) or record a number for each new species of that genus. ALWAYS define the genus portion

of the code and the functional group at

the bottom of the data form (Artemisia

species = AR01).

5.7 If you cannot identify the genus, use the following codes:

AF# = Annual forb (also includes

biennials)

PF# = Perennial forb

AG# = Annual grass

PG# = Perennial grass

SH# = Shrub

TR# = Tree

If necessary, collect a sample of the

unknown off the transect for later

identification.

5.8 If the pin intercepts standing dead material use the following codes rather than the species name: 

DT = Dead tree

DS = Dead shrub

DF = Dead forb

DG = Dead grass

5.9 If the point hits a dead branch of a shrub and the shrub is still alive record DS for the foliar hit.

5.9.1 In areas with mechanical treatments (i.e. mastication or slashing) use “WL”  for pieces of wood or bark on the ground that do not have limbs attached and are obviously a result of the treatment.  

6. Record whether the pin flag intercepts a plant base (Fig. 8) or one of the following in the “Soil surface” column.

R = Rock (> 5 mm or ~1/4 inch in diameter)

BR = Bedrock

EL = Embedded litter

D = Duff

M = Moss

LC = Lichen crust on soil (lichen on rock is recorded as “R”) 

S = Soil that is visibly unprotected by any

of the above



Rules

6.1 For unidentified plant bases, use the codes listed under 5.7.

6.3 If the pin hits the base of a dead plant enter “DS, DT, DF, DG” appropriately for the soil surface code.

6.2 Record embedded litter as “EL” where

removal of the litter would leave an indentation in the soil surface or would disturb the soil surface. Wood embedded in soil is recorded as “W”. Record duff as “D” where there is no clear boundary between litter and soil and litter is not removed during typical storms (occurring annually).

6.3 Additional categories may be added, such as “CYN” = dark cyanobacterial crust.















2 Elzinga, C.L., D.W. Salzer, J.W. Willoughby and J.P. Gibbs. 2001. Monitoring Plant and Animal Populations, Blackwell Publishing. 368 pp.

*Line point intercept methodology adapted from Herrick, J.E., Van Zee, J.W., Havstad, K.M., Burkett, L.M., and W.G. Whitford. 2005. Volume 1: Quick Start. Monitoring Manual for Grassland, Shrubland, and Savanna Ecosystems. USDA-ARS Jornada Experimental Range. 36pp. http://usda-ars.nmsu.edu/



Upon completion of line intercept, walk the plot and fill out the “Species Richness and Abundance” worksheet.  

















Table 1. Sample data form for examples illustrated below. Points 1 and 2 show the first two points on a line. In Point 1, the pin flag is touching dead fescue, live bluegrass, clover, live fescue, litter and a rock. Record fescue only once, even though it intercepts the pin twice. In Point 2, the flag touches fescue, then touches litter and finally the fescue plant base. The table below shows how to record these two points on the data form.
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[bookmark: _Toc416256140]Nested Frequency

Nested frequency quadrats should be placed every 5’ along the graduated side of the tape beginning at 5’ and ending at the 100’ mark.   This gives a total of 20 samples per line.  For each frequency frame reading, record the key species that falls within each of the four quadrats (see diagram below). The boundary rules set forth previously are to be followed in recording the species for a given quadrat. If plants A, B, and C are within quadrat 1, record the four-letter designator for each plant in the quadrat 1 column.  These plants will be automatically recorded in each of the larger quadrats of the frame.  This is done because quadrat 1 is included within each of the other three quadrats. Do this for each of the subsequent quadrat sizes because frequency is defined as the number of times a species is present in a given number of quadrats of a particular size. The sizes of the quadrats in the Nested Plot Frame are:

· Quadrat 1 – 6”x 6” 

· Quadrat 2 – 12”x 12” 

· Quadrat 3 – 12” x 24”

· Quadrat 4 – 24”x 24”

[bookmark: _Toc261225856][bookmark: _Toc261226035][bookmark: _Toc261226551]Each of the four quadrats in the Nested Plot Frame are shown in Figure J-2, Nested Plot Frequency Frame Quadrats. When conducting the field sampling, data collection begins at the left-hand side of the frame at the smallest quadrat (number 1) and moves to the right ending at the largest quadrat (number 4).  Figure J-2. Nested Plot Frequency Frame Quadrats shows the sizes of the quadrats which are 6”x6” for quadrat 1, 12”x12” for quadrat 2, 12”x 24” for quadrat 3, and 24”x24” for quadrat 4.  Quadrats are sampled from the lowest size (quadrat 1) to the largest size (quadrat 4). 

Figure J-2. Nested Plot Frequency Frame Quadrats

[image: F:\hg_maps\QuadratFrame.jpg]Therefore, calculating frequency is relatively simple. The method being used results in 20 frequency frame readings. For that reason, all that is needed to calculate frequency is to add up the number of times a species is located within a given quadrat size and divide that number by 20 then multiply by 100. This procedure is completed for all key species. Once all of the transects are sampled and the data recorded, the next step is to calculate the frequency of a given species which is expressed as a percentage. 

Calculations for Nested Plot Frequency Method







For instance, if the data for species A showed that it was located 24, 26, 60, and 70 times in Quadrats 1, 2, 3, and 4 respectively, the calculations for each Quadrat would be as follows: 













When calculating Nested Plot Frequency, it must always be remembered that any of the smaller quadrats are portions of the larger quadrat. Therefore, if you record a species in Quadrat 1, it is considered to be in quadrats 2, 3 and 4.  Plants determined to be in quadrat 2 are included in quadrats 3 and 4, but not in quadrat 1.  When a plant is found in quadrat 3, it is in quadrat 4 as well and is not considered to be in quadrats 1 or 2.  Species found in quadrat 4 are only assigned that quadrat, not quadrats 1, 2, or 3 (see the calculations section below for detail on making the appropriate calculations of the frequency data).  . The number of occurrences in each quadrat must be added to the total from each subsequently smaller quadrat. 

Frequency data analysis assumes a normal distribution of the data, which in turn requires the data for the different quadrat size for the analysis to be adjusted for each species. Due to the assumption of normal distribution of frequency data, the quadrats that result in a frequency percentage ranging between 20-80% should be used for analysis. “Quadrat size determines the frequency value. The larger the plot, the greater the likelihood that an individual species will occur within the quadrat, resulting in a larger overall frequency value. If quadrats are large enough, all of them will contain the target species (100% frequency). This leaves no sensitivity to upward change. If too small, there will be little sensitivity to downward change. Frequency values, at least the first year, should be between 30% and 70%. If you are concerned about change in only one direction, or that the change may be dramatic, you may wish to change these target percentages. For example, if you are only concerned about declines, you may want to target your initial measure to between 50% and 80% to provide a wide margin of sensitivity to declines.[endnoteRef:1]” This allows for detection of the most meaningful amount of change. The following table represents hypothetical data for species A. Using this example, data from either Quadrat 2 or Quadrat 3 would be used for analysis to track the trend of species A as it falls within the range of 20-80%. There will be instances where the data for a key species does not fall within the preferred range and in this case the data that is closest to the range should be used for analysis. If the data are less than 20%, use the largest plots for analysis and the reciprocal for data that is above 80%. [1: 
] 




		

		Frequency (%) of a given species



		Species

		Quadrat 1 

		Quadrat 2

		Quadrat 3 

		Quadrat 4



		A

		12%

		25%

		55%

		90%







Frequency data are very efficient at detecting change in vegetation structure; however it does not pinpoint the vegetation characteristic that has changed. The main benefit of frequency data is its ability to detect changes in vegetation structure over time. Other measurements are needed to provide a complete analysis of the nature of the change.
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Line Point Intercept Data Form
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Canopy cover (as calculated here) does not include bare spaces within a plant’s canopy.



1. Percent canopy (foliar) cover

Rules

1.1 Count the total number of canopy intercepts in the “Top canopy” column and

record this number in the blank provided.

1.2 Canopy intercepts include all points where a plant is recorded in the “Top canopy” column. Do not include points that have a “NONE” in the “Top canopy” column.

Top canopy codes: Species code, common name, DT, DS, DF, DG, or NONE (no canopy).

Lower canopy layers codes: Species code, common name, L (herbaceous litter), W (woody litter, >5 mm

(~1/4 in) diameter), CW (cut wood), CT (cut tree).

1.3 Multiply the number of canopy intercepts (from 1.1) by 2 and record your “% canopy cover” in the blank provided.



% canopy (foliar) cover = canopy pts (1st col) x 2 = %





2. Percent bare ground

Rules

2.1 Count the total number of points along the line that have bare ground and record this number in the blank provided.

2.2 Bare ground occurs only when:

A. There are no canopy intercepts

(NONE is recorded in the “Top

canopy” column).

B. There are no litter intercepts

(“Lower canopy layers” columns

are empty).

C. The pin only intercepts bare soil

(“S” recorded in the “Soil surface”

column).

2.3 Multiply the number of bare ground hits (from 2.1) by 2 and record your “% bare ground” in the blank provided.



% bare ground* = pts (w/NONE over S) x 2 = %



*Bare ground occurs ONLY when Top canopy = NONE,

Lower canopy layers are empty (no L), and Soil surface = S.





3. Percent basal cover

Rules

3.1 Count the total number of plant basal intercepts in the “Soil surface” column and

record this number in the blank provided.

3.2 Plant basal intercepts occur anytime the pin intercepts a live or dead plant base (Species code recorded in “Soil surface” column).

3.3 Multiply the number of basal intercepts (from 3.1) by 2 and record your “% basal cover” in the blank provided. 



% basal cover = plant base pts (last col) x 2 = %



Plant Species Richness and Abundance
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		SITE CONDITION SCORE SHEET

		

		

		

		

		



		*Indicators

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
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Stratification and Plot Randomization

Stratification is the process of dividing the project area up into relatively homogenous groups prior to sampling.  This process helps to maximize statistical inference by reducing the variation in the data introduced by analyzing dissimilar areas together.  For the purposes of this monitoring effort stratification by soil type/ecosite and treatment may be useful.  

Randomization of macroplots is required where level three quantitative sampling is to be conducted.  The basic assumption of any statistical analysis is that the sampling occurred randomly.  Macroplots not located randomly cannot be analyzed using statistical methods.  

This appendix provides computer-based methodologies for both stratification and randomization.  The methodologies provided are only one example of how to establish a stratified random sampling design given the tools currently available to the Utah BLM.  Other acceptable methods exist and may be utilized.   



































Step 1. Navigate to the following location and add the ssa_utm83_utah.shp to your ArcMap Project. This dataset shows all the SSURGO soil surveys that have been completed in the state of Utah.

Pathname: \\blm\dfs\ut\loc\GisData\ut\so\data\PhysioSoils\SoilSurveyData\SSURGO\ssa_utm83_utah.shp 
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Step 2. Add your fuels project polygon to your ArcMap project and zoom to it. Then write down the soil survey number for which the fuels project falls within.  In the example below it is UT638.
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Step 3. Navigate to the following folder in the GISData root directory and locate the correct SSURGO soil survey. Add it to your ArcMap project.  In this example the correct shapefile is soilmu_a_ut638.shp.

Pathname: 

\blm\dfs\ut\loc\GisData\ut\so\data\PhysioSoils\SoilSurveyData\SSURGO\ut638_SanJuanCtyUtCentralPart\spatial\soilmu_a_ut638.shp
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Step 4. In this screen capture, the soilmu_a_ut638.shp (i.e. soil_ut638.shp in image below) layer has been labeled with the MUSYM field located in the shapefile’s attribute table and the symbology has been changed to show the project area beneath.  The MUSYM table corresponds to a soil type and can be looked up in the written soil surveys.   
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Step 5. Open ArcToolbox by clicking the red toolbox icon.  Navigate to the Intersect tool and launch it.  The intersect tool will combine the project area polygon and the soil polygons together.  Match the settings below, select your output folder and hit “OK”.
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Step 6. This is the resultant dataset. The dataset has been symbolized and labeled to show the different soils within the project area. You will notice in the table that the soils and project data have been combined. 
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Step 7. Next we want to create another shapefile that combines all polygons with the same MUSYM number into one polygon. In ArcToolbox navigate to the dissolve tool and launch it.  Dissolve using the MUSYM field. 
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Step 7. This is the resultant dataset.  You can see that the majority of the project area is in soil type 5 and 45.  For this example, since there are two codominant soil types we will focus the monitoring effort on and stratify plots within soil types 5 and 45 and exclude soil type 49.  If resources and time permit sampling all soil types is encouraged. The next step is to generate random plot locations.
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Step 8.  Open ArcToolbox and navigate to Data Management Tools  Feature Class  Create Random Points.  Select the Create Random Points tool. 
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Step 9.  Select the output folder.  Fill out the name of the output shapefile.  Input the constraining feature class.  This is the shapefile you want the random points to fall within.  Enter the number of points you want to generate.  Define your minimum allowed distance between random points criteria.   It is good to generate more than you need as some will be too close to an edge or need to be rejected for some other reason. Once generated start with the first point and in the table and apply your rejection criteria.  Work your way down until you have all the locations you need.
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Step 10.  This is the output.
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Step 11. It is useful to attach the coordinates to the shapefile’s table.  Open ArcToolbox and navigate to the Add XY Coordinates tool and launch it. Select the random point layer and hit OK.
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Step 12.  This is the output. Download this to your GPS and set up your plots. 
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Activity – a specific action taken as part of a treatment, such as thinning, mastication, mowing, piling, burning and so forth.

Administrative Unit – an individual BLM Fire Zone, also called a Unit.

Footprint - the acres within the perimeter of an individual treatment unit.  Since most hazardous fuels treatments involves more than one activity, the footprint acres are usually smaller than the number of acres reported in NFPORS for accomplishment purposes.  Level 1 monitoring documents the footprint acres.

Metric- a standard or type of measurement, especially one that evaluates a complex process, ecological attribute or system (e.g. % cover, density).

Project – a planned series of treatments occurring on a landscape and involving one or more treatment units.

Protocol- A specific methodology for measuring an ecological attribute or metric.  

Treatment – one or more activities undertaken to alter vegetation structure or species composition to attain the project objectives.

Treatment Objectives – the specific, measureable intent of a vegetation/fuels treatment or treatment regimen; the treatment prescription.  Treatment objectives should specify the post-treatment structure, such as tree or shrub density, canopy closure, canopy base height, downed woody fuel loading, herbaceous cover and so forth.  As needed, the treatment objectives should specify the intended species composition of the post-treatment stand/patch for at least the target or targeted species.

Treatment Unit – the physical location where a given treatment will occur, is occurring or has occurred.
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[bookmark: _Toc286928900]Photopoints

Lucy, W.P.; Barraclough, C.L.  2001.  A user guide to photopoint monitoring techniques for riparian areas: field test edition.  Kimberley, BC: Aqua-Tech Scientific Consulting Ltd.  90 p.

Hall, F.C.  2002.  Photo point monitoring handbook: part A – field procedures.  Gen. Tech. Rep. PNW-GTR-526.  Portland, OR: US Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Pacific Northwest Research Station.  48 p.  2 parts.

van Willigen, G.; Grodecki, A.  2006.  Land manager’s monitoring guide: photopoint monitoring.  Queensland, AU: Department of Natural Resources and Water.  14 p.

[bookmark: _Toc286928901]Vegetation Sampling

Most of the vegetation methods included in the guides below are already included in FFI.  These guides may also be useful for designing monitoring plans in specific situations, such as in riparian areas or for post-wildfire monitoring.

Eliznga, C.I.; Salzer, D.W.; Willoughby, J.W.  1998.  Measuring and monitoring plant populations.  BLM Technical Reference 1730-1.  Denver, CO: U.S. Department of the Interior, Bureau of Land Management.  477 p.  Available at http://www.blm.gov/nstc/library/techref.htm.  Note: this interagency guide is the parent document for several other guides listed below.

Herrick, J.E.; Van Zee, J.W.; Havstad, K.M.; Burkett, L.M.; Whitford, W.G.  2005.  Monitoring manual for grassland, shrubland, and savanna ecosystems: volume I: quick start.  Las Cruces, NM: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Agricultural Research Service, Jornada Experimental Range.  36 p.  (includes soil monitoring methods)

Herrick, J.E.; Van Zee, J.W.; Havstad, K.M.; Burkett, L.M.; Whitford, W.G.  2005.  Monitoring manual for grassland, shrubland, and savanna ecosystems: volume II: design, supplementary methods, and intpretation.  Las Cruces, NM: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Agricultural Research Service, Jornada Experimental Range.  200 p.  (includes soil monitoring methods)

Herrick, J.E.; Pyke, D.A.; 2009.  Terrestrial Indicators: Selection Process and Preliminary Recommendations. Project Report from the USDA-ARS Jornada Experimental Range to the BLM. 25 p.

Mackinnon, W.C., J.W. Karl, G.R. Toevs, J.J. Taylor, M. Karl, C.S. Spurrier, and J.E. Herrick. 2011. BLM core terrestrial indicators and methods. Tech Note 440. U.S. Department of Interior, Bureau of Land Management, National Operations Center, Denver, CO.

Taylor, J.J., E.J. Kachergis, G.R. Toevs, J.W. Karl, M.R. Bobo, M. Karl, S. Miller, and C.S. Spurrier. 2014. AIM-Monitoring: A Component of the BLM Assessment, Inventory, and Monitoring Strategy. Technical Note 445. U.S. Department of the Interior, Bureau of Land Management, National Operations Center, Denver, CO.

Winward, A.  2000.  Monitoring the vegetation resources in riparian areas.  Gen. Tech. Rep. RMRS-GTR-47.  Ogden, UT: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Research Station.  49 p.

Wirth, T.A.; Pyke, D.A.  2006.  Monitoring post-fire vegetation rehabilitation projects: current approaches, techniques, and recommendations for a common monitoring strategy in non-forested ecosystems.  Scientific Investigations Report 2006-5048.  Reston, VA: U.S. Department of the Interior, United States Geological Survey.  33 p.  Available at http://www.usgs.gov/pubprod.  (Note: some of the information in this document likely has equal applicability for forested ecosystems.)

Wirth, T.A., Pyke, D.A. 2007. Monitoring Post-fire Vegetation Rehabilitation Projects-A Common Approach for Non-forested Ecosystems: U.S. Geological Survey Sceintific Investigations Report 2006-5048, P. 36.

U.S. Army.  2006.  RTLA technical reference manual: ecological monitoring on military lands.  Aberdeen Proving Grounds, MD: Department of the Defense, United States Army.  386 p.

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service.  1999.  Fuel and fire effects monitoring guide.  Miller, M., ed.  674 p.

National Park Service.  2003.  Fire monitoring handbook.  Boise, ID: U.S. Department of the Interior, National Park Service, Fire Management Program Center.  274 p.

Birds and Burns Website:  http://www.rmrs.nau.edu/wildlife/birdsnburns/info_partic.shtml
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From: Rose, Marcus F

To: Rose, Marcus F
Subject: I spoke with Drake Walker about the cows in the Grouse Creek allotment that I
Date: Monday, July 10, 2023 11:57:42 AM

I spoke with Drake Walker about the cows in the Grouse Creek allotment that I saw today.
There were four mother cows and four calves with them. He said he’s out of town but will get
back and check them as quickly as he is he can he said that there was a hole in the fence by the
trough, and it looked big enough for a calf, but not big enough for a cow to get through when
he moved the other group out of the grouse Creek allotment. I also spoke with Shorty
Williams with River View Ranch and told him that there were some cows in the Grouse Creek
allotment that were his with Drake’s cows. He told me that they would go and check. I sent
him a map with where I saw the cows. he also said that the plan is for the Permittee‘s to move
their cows out of buckskin around the first part of next week. I asked him if the permit gives
that kind of flexibility and he didn’t know. He just said that that as always how it has been
done with the Permittee’s on the allotment. he also said that they plan to move cows out of
red Butte next week down to owl Springs. I asked him if that permit had the flexibility to
move cows after the date and he wasn’t sure. He just said that as always how it has been done.
he also said that they plan to put two new troughs in owl springs to replace old troughs one
along the Clay Road and another at the end of the pipeline. He said that there were tire troughs
left at that field station and from what he understands, they can use them as long as they tell us
where they are going to go .
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